

Configuration Manager

User Guide

i

Copyright © 2022, 8x8, Inc. All rights reserved.

This document is provided for information purposes only and the contents hereof are subject to change without notice. This document is not warranted to be error-free, nor subject to any other warranties or conditions, whether expressed orally or implied in law, including implied warranties and conditions of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. We specifically disclaim any liability with respect to this document and no contractual obligations are formed either directly or indirectly by this document. This document may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose, without our prior written permission.

8x8® is a registered trademark of 8x8, Inc.

Microsoft® Internet Explorer is a trademark or a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and other countries.

All other trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks, or registered service marks are the property of their respective owner/s. All other brands and/or product names are the trademarks (or registered trademarks) and property of their respective owner/s.

ii

Contents

Overview: 8x8 Contact Center for admins	1
System requirements	2
What's new in the 8x8 Contact Center 9.14 release for administrators?	л
Ability to set up DTMF blacklist	
Introducing the Chat API 2.0	
Features	
Support OAuth2 authentication for email channels	-
	-
Ability to adjust post-processing time for direct agent calls	-
8x8 web chat is now WCAG 2.1 compliant	Ŭ
9.13 Release	Ŭ
Introducing 8x8 Contact Center new APIs Enhancing outgoing email settings for channels and agents via SMTP	0
Ennancing outgoing email settings for channels and agents via swite	7
Previous releases	8
Benefits of global reach	
Improvements	42
Get started	14
Understand basic entities of 8x8 Contact Center	4 E
	+3
Plan 8x8 Contact Center entities	47
	••
Before you start	19
Log in	50
Before you begin	50
Log in roles	
Log out	53
Reset password	54
Forgot password	
	57
Change your language settings	56
Update email address	57
Tour the 8x8 Configuration Manager interface	58

Get remote customer assistance	60
Features	60
Limitations	61
Supported browsers	61
Co-browsing modes	
Summary of the 8x8 Configuration Manager tabs	65
Configure accounts and profiles	69
View 8x8 Contact Center summary	
Summary page options	
Configure profile settings	72
Summary of profile settings	
Allow multiple time zones	80
Enable Phone Connection Mode	
Renaming off-hook connection mode to Persistent Connection Mode	82
About Persistent Connection Mode	
Features	83
Enable Persistent Connection Mode	83
Combinations for Persistent Connection Mode and Auto Answer settings	
Enable Auto Answer	
Enable Auto Answer for your 8x8 Contact Center	
Combinations for Persistent Connection Mode and Auto Answer settings	92
Adjust post-processing time for direct agent calls	93
Features	
Configure the post-processing timeout	93
Priority rules	
Introducing workplace setting validation	96
Features	
Enable workplace setting validation in 8x8 Configuration Manager	96
Configure audio files and recorded greetings	
Upload audio files	
Edit audio files	103

Delete audio files	
Verify audio files deployment	
Create agent whisper for phone queues	
Features	
Known limitations	106
Set up Agent whisper	
Delete Agent whisper audio files	
Replace Agent whisper audio files for a queue	
Remove Agent whisper audio files from a queue	109
Define business hours and schedules	
Limitations	110
Add a new schedule	111
Understand tenant dial plans	
Previous releases	
	110
Types of dial plans About the North American Numbering Plan (US NANP)	
Access a system dial plan	
Create custom dial plans	
Variables	126
Select a default dial plan	128
Reset idle timer for agents	129
Assumptions	
Set up idle timer for agents	
Use cases	
Work with agent's idle timer	
Define password policies	139
Features	
Configure password policies	141
Lock and unlock user accounts	144
Roles and administrators	

v

Features
Type of roles148
Create roles and assign administrators
Change the administrator password
Define a role with granular control
Change roles for an administrator
Filter and sort roles158
Sorting roles list
Filter and sort administrators
Sorting roles list
Softling roles list
Enhance system access authentication
Features
Limitations
Create an authorized IP addresses
Access 8x8 Contact Center when locked out
Authorize IP access via email
Features
How the authorization process works
Set up DTMF blacklist
Features
Add phone numbers to the blacklist
Changes in 8x8 Customer Experience Call Flow
Create agent functional groups
Add an agent group and assign to outbound phone codes169
Reassign an Agent Group Membership
Filter group list
0
Sorting group list
Sorting group list
Sorting group list

Access agent recorded calls	191
Assign agents to queues	198
Grant supervisor rights	201
Grant Local CRM permissions	204
Configure multi-chats	207
Create and configure queues	
Create inbound phone queues	212
Define inbound phone queue properties	213
Assign inbound phone queue members	216
Configure inbound phone queue voicemail	218
Set up inbound phone queue call priority	219
Define inbound phone queue SLA	221
Create outbound phone queues	223
Define outbound phone queue properties	224
Assign outbound phone queue members	226
Set up outbound phone queue call priority	228
Define outbound phone queue SLA	230
View campaign assignments	232
Create chat queues	233
Define chat queue properties	234
Assign chat queue members	236
Configure chat queue greetings via ICR	238
Set up chat queue message priority	241
Define chat queue SLA	243

Configure chat queue email fallback	245
Create email queues	247
Define email queue properties	248
Assign email queue members	250
Set up email queue message priority	252
Define email queue SLA	254
Create voicemail queues	256
Define voicemail queue properties	257
Assign voicemail queue members	259
Configure voicemail delivery message	261
Set up voicemail queue message priority	263
Define voicemail queue SLA	265
Configure voicemail notification	266
Create and configure channels	
Features	
Set up phone channels	
Configure phone channel properties	272
Set up email channels	275
Features	275
Use dedicated contact center email channels	275
Configure email channel properties	276
Configure email channel properties	
	279
Set up App passwords	···· 279 282
Set up App passwords	····· 279 ···· 282 ···· 282

Pretures	Enhance outgoing email settings for channels and agents via SMTP	
Set up chat channels 297 Features 297 Configure chat channel properties 298 8x8 Contact Center: Social media integration 300 Features 300 Unitations 300 Use case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Preparation 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Configuring the social script 310 Availability 310 Variability 310 Features 311 Unitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 322 Create a phone IVR script objects 324 VPres of IVR script		
Features 297 Configure chat channel properties 298 8x8 Contact Center: Social media integration 300 Features 300 Use case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Vise case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Preparation 302 Configuring the && Contact Center social media integration 302 Configuring the && Contact Center social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 312 SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 313 Create and configure scripts 321 Create a phone IVR script 322 Create a phone IVR script objects and operation 324 IVR script operation 324 IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Define a custom SMTP server	
Configure chat channel properties2988x8 Contact Center: Social media integration300Features300Limitations301Use case301Configure social media integration302Preparation302Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration302Crafting the social script3078x8 Contact Center SMS310Availability310Features310Limitations311Use case312SMS channels312Configure script social script312Configure script social media integration312Configure script social media integration312Configure script social script312Configure script social media integration312Configure script social script312Configure SMS channels312SMS: list of supported countries319Create and configure scripts321Features i322Create a phone IVR script objects and operation324VPR script objects324VPR script objects325IVR phone script examples346	Set up chat channels	
8x8 Contact Center: Social media integration 300 Peatures 300 Limitations 300 Use case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Preparation 302 Configure social media integration 302 Configure social media integration 302 Configure social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 VIR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Features	
Features 300 Limitations 300 Use case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Preparation 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Use case 311 Use case 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 Create and configure scripts 323 Overview of IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 IVR script operation 324 IVR script operation 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples	Configure chat channel properties	298
Limitations 300 Use case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Preparation 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 312 SMS: list of supported countries 321 reatures 321 Create and configure scripts 322 Verview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 VR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 324	8x8 Contact Center: Social media integration	
Use case 301 Configure social media integration 302 Preparation 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Imitations 311 Use case 311 Use case 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Features	
Configure social media integration302Preparation302Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration302Crafting the social script3078x8 Contact Center SMS310Availability310Features310Limitations311Use case311Configure SMS channels312SMS: list of supported countries319Create and configure scripts321Features321Create a phone IVR script323Overview of IVR script objects324Types of IVR script objects324Summary of phone IVR script objects325IVR phone script examples346	Limitations	
Preparation 302 Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Use case	301
Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration 302 Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 324	Configure social media integration	
Crafting the social script 307 8x8 Contact Center SMS 310 Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Preparation	
8x8 Contact Center SMS310Availability310Features310Limitations311Use case311Configure SMS channels312SMS: list of supported countries319Create and configure scripts321Features321Create a phone IVR script323Overview of IVR script objects and operation324Types of IVR script objects324Summary of phone IVR script objects325IVR phone script examples326	Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration	
Availability 310 Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Crafting the social script	
Features 310 Limitations 311 Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	8x8 Contact Center SMS	
Limitations .311 Use case .311 Configure SMS channels .312 SMS: list of supported countries .319 Create and configure scripts .321 Features .321 Create a phone IVR script .323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation .324 Types of IVR script objects .324 IVR script operation .324 Summary of phone IVR script objects .325 IVR phone script examples .346	Availability	
Use case 311 Configure SMS channels 312 SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Features	
Configure SMS channels312SMS: list of supported countries319Create and configure scripts321Features321Create a phone IVR script323Overview of IVR script objects and operation324Types of IVR script objects324IVR script operation324Summary of phone IVR script objects325IVR phone script examples346	Limitations	
SMS: list of supported countries 319 Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Use case	311
Create and configure scripts 321 Features 321 Create a phone IVR script 323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation 324 Types of IVR script objects 324 IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples 346	Configure SMS channels	
Features .321 Create a phone IVR script .323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation .324 Types of IVR script objects .324 IVR script operation .324 Summary of phone IVR script objects .325 IVR phone script examples .346	SMS: list of supported countries	
Create a phone IVR script .323 Overview of IVR script objects and operation .324 Types of IVR script objects .324 IVR script operation .324 Summary of phone IVR script objects .325 IVR phone script examples .346	Create and configure scripts	
Overview of IVR script objects and operation .324 Types of IVR script objects .324 IVR script operation .324 Summary of phone IVR script objects .325 IVR phone script examples .346	Features	
Types of IVR script objects	Create a phone IVR script	
IVR script operation 324 Summary of phone IVR script objects 325 IVR phone script examples	Overview of IVR script objects and operation	
Summary of phone IVR script objects	Types of IVR script objects	
IVR phone script examples	IVR script operation	
	Summary of phone IVR script objects	
	IVR phone script examples	

Copy and paste IVR script objects	. 355
Create inbound phone scripts	357
System default script	357
User-defined script	357
Create outbound phone scripts	361
Reserve idle agents for inbound queues	361
Assign scripts to channels	. 363
From the scripts page	363
From the channels page	363
Enable Direct Agent Routing (DAR)	364
DAA call handling constraints	364
Features	365
Limitations	365
Requirements	365
Process flow for direct agent routing	365
Generate report on direct agent calls	367
Enable Text to speech	369
Features	369
Enable Queued Callback	372
Features	372
Use case	372
Add Callback option to IVR	373
Enable Post Call Survey	377
Features	377
Enhanced Data Augmentation	378
Features	378
Use cases	378
An example workflow	378
Steps to forward calls to an external IVR (eIVR)	- · 379
Create a chat script	384
Summary of chat script objects	391

Using script variables in chat channels	396
Assumptions	396
Step 2a: Add a custom variable to the variables list	
Step 2b: Begin crafting the script	
Create an email script	404
Summary of email script objects	408
Email script examples	
Before you begin	417
Create intelligent IVR	
Features	
Configure Local CRM	423
Features	
Understand Customers, Cases, and Tasks	
Customer	
Case	
Follow-up	
Task	
Integrate with External CRM	426
Understand types of CRM fields	427
Configure CRM fields	430
Configure case notification	434
Configure CRM properties	436
Understand CRM import	438
Import customer data into Local CRM	
About 8x8 Auto Dialer with campaign management	
Features	
Limitations	
Dialer campaigns work in cycles	
Dialing modes	444
Features	446
Risks	

Next steps	447
Configure the 8x8 Auto Dialer	448
Step 1: Set up an outbound queue for dialer	449
Step 2: Add custom phone fields in the Local CRM(Optional)	452
Step 3: Configure the outbound setup	454
Specify target CRM properties	455
Add CRM objects and fields	
Add a CRM field to the Outbound Setup	
Custom phone fields in campaigns	
Delete a CRM object	464
Upload pre-recorded messages for campaigns	466
Map disposition code	469
Create a campaign	471
Main tasks	
Define campaign properties	
Enable autodial campaign calls after preview	
Enable Answer Machine Detection (AMD) service	479
Enable Carrier Call Blocking (CCB) Service	
Automatically Apply Transaction Codes (Auto-TCL)	482
Update live (dynamic) campaigns	484
Features	
	-
Skip campaign calls while on Auto Answer	
Assign audio files to campaigns	
Assigning abandoned messages to campaigns	
Set preferences for abandoned campaign calls	492
Assign supervisors to campaigns	
Define search criteria to filter campaign call list	496

Filter campaign lists based on Do Not Call preferences	497
Specify sort order	
Control a campaign	
Pause a campaign	
Purge a campaign	
Understand campaign status	502
Manage a campaign	
Edit a campaign	504
Control a campaign	
Copy a campaign	504
Delete a Campaign	
Broadcast messages	
Integrate with External CRM	
Features	
Overview of integration functionality	510
Configure External CRM API access	
Configure External CRM Triggers	
Set up the CRM Triggers	
Overview of data exchange	
Example of a CRM trigger	
Define screen pop settings for External CRM	520
Overview of screen pop	
Example of a screen pop	528
Access control for Salesforce integration	
NetSuite Single Sign-On	
Features	532
Limitations	533
Requirements	533

Generate authentication tokens for 8x8 Contact Center APIs	534
Status codes overview	535
Create status codes	539
Edit and delete status codes	544
Transaction codes overview	
State the Purpose of Interactions with Transaction Codes	0.0
	546
Create Transaction codes	550
Edit and Delete Transaction Codes	555
Outbound phone codes overview	556
Create outbound phone codes	558
Edit and delete outbound phone codes	562
Assign Outbound phone codes at agent level	563
Wallboards overview	564
Features	564
Requirements	565
Configure a wallboard	566
Set up a wallboard	566
Specify desired metrics	568
Define thresholds	570
Select queues	572
Share wallboard authentication	573
Customize a wallboard	575
Run a wallboard	579
Requirements	579
Brand your wallboard	581
Chat overview	582
Features	

Case study - embedded chat design
Configure embedded chat design
Design a chat button
Design a chat invitation
Design a chat form
Design a chat window
8x8 web chat complies with WCAG 2.1
Features
Enhancements in Chat Design for WCAG compliance
Create a chat script
Summary of chat script objects
Using script variables in chat channels
Assumptions
Step 2a: Add a custom variable to the variables list
Step 2b: Begin crafting the script
Configure multi-chats
Handle multilingual chats
Supported languages
Configure multilingual support for chat
Multilingual chat flow
Enable Co-browsing via chat
Enable Co-browsing in 8x8 Configuration Manager
GLOSSARY

Overview: 8x8 Contact Center for admins

8x8 Contact Center administrators use 8x8 Configuration Manager platform to set up their tenants. Administrators can use a graphical user interface (GUI) to manage all components in a tenant. 8x8 Configuration Manager is easy to use and requires no special software or hardware to run. It is 100% cloud-based and accessible from anywhere and anytime as long as you have a computer and Internet access. Using 8x8 Configuration Manager, administrators can set up agents and supervisors, create roles and assign tasks, create campaigns, broadcast messages, create wallboards, and much more.

Use 8x8 Configuration Manager to:

- Create and configure your contact center's communication channels, interaction queues, agent groups, agent accounts, and the optional Status Code and Transaction Codes features.
- Customize the tools and features available to your agents.
- Define security policies for the tenant.
- Customize the Local CRM to match your customer resource management requirements.
- Provide Internet access to your contact center's channels with a 8x8 Contact Center Support Center.
- Create and run campaigns based on phone media.
- Integrate your 8x8 Contact Center with an External CRM, such as NetSuite or Salesforce.
- Send broadcast messages to your 8x8 Contact Center groups.
- Define status codes to indicate the reasons for agents' change of status.
- Define transaction codes to indicate the purpose or outcome of interactions.

For details about our latest 8x8 Contact Center features, see What's New for Administrators. See Get Started and Understand the Interface in this guide to learn how to start.

System requirements

Each administrator requires a computer equipped with a browser. We fully support the following browsers for 8x8 Contact Center

- Google Chrome (latest version)
- Mozilla Firefox (latest version)
- Microsoft Edge (Chromium)

We do our best to support the following browsers for 8x8 Contact Center:

- Microsoft Internet Explorer 11 (latest version)
- Apple Safari (latest version)

You can test your current browser's security standard compatibility. For information about agent workstation technical requirements, see your contact center supervisor, or refer to the Technical Requirements document for Agents.

- 7	
- 11	
÷	_//
÷	
	-11

Known Issue: If you use Internet Explorer to run 8x8 Contact Center applications, you may encounter high memory usage. To resolve this issue, clear your browser cookies and cache, activate the setting to clear history, clear history on exit, and reboot.

.....



Note: We do not support 8x8 Contact Center on mobile browsers.



Note: Firefox requires the QuickTime plug-in for audio features.



Note: To maintain uninterrupted access, update your web browsers or SSL libraries to the latest available versions. Attempts to access 8x8 web portals on a computer without a TLS 1.2+ compliant browser or SSL library prevents you from configuring your services.

Note: For APIs customization in the 8x8 Contact Center, check with your system administrators or developers to ensure that the system SSL libraries are updated to support TLS 1.2 or better. Affected products may include, but are not limited to, older distributions of Linux-based operating systems (using old versions of OpenSSL) or Java Runtime Environments (JRE) older than 1.8.

What's new in the 8x8 Contact Center 9.14 release for administrators?

In 8x8 Contact Center for administrators, we have introduced the following enhancements to improve the productivity of agents, supervisors, and administrators in our new release.



Note: The product version in 8x8 Agent Console and 8x8 Configuration Manager may show up as 10.0 instead of 9.14 while we are working to fine-tune our 8x8 Contact Center applications.

Ability to set up DTMF blacklist

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can now manage your DTMF blacklist by adding, editing, and deleting phone numbers as well as SIP URIs in your DTMF blacklist. The DTMF blacklist is an existing service to stop recording a call once connected to a blacklisted destination. It also masks any key presses in the customer experience call flow, so that payment card data is kept private. Prior to this release, adding an entry to the DTMF blacklist required raising a ticket with 8x8 support team. For details, see our content on how to set up DTMF blacklist.

Introducing the Chat API 2.0

The 8x8 Contact Center Chat API allows third-party companies to connect directly to an agent from their own system, this enables them to use their interface to speak to their customers, such as enabling their clients to communicate with an agent from mobile app-based chat, Desktop web chatbots, and messaging via integrations with other apps or platforms.

Features

- Enhanced documentation in developer portal
- Introduction of frontend logging
- Introduction of new user interface for maintaining Chat API channels
- Sending secure webhook callback requests
- Standardizing API to fit in with 8x8 public API approach

For details, see our content on chat workflow for developers.

Support OAuth2 authentication for email channels

The 8x8 Contact Center authenticates email channels via basic authentication, using the simple username and password. Email service providers like Microsoft announced plans to stop supporting basic authentication for Post Office Protocol (POP), Internet Message Access Protocol (IMAP), and potentially for outgoing server setups (SMTP). This requires integrators to migrate their current email client to use modern authentication methods like OAuth2. To prepare for this security improvement, 8x8 Contact Center now introduces support for OAuth2 authentication for users of Microsoft. We continue to support basic authentication for existing users. For details, see our content on how to use OAuth2 authentication for email channels.

Ability to adjust post-processing time for direct agent calls

Post-processing time is the duration agents are allowed, after terminating the calls, to wrap up any pending notes or actions related to the call. Prior to this release, while processing direct-to-agent calls, agents had a limited duration of five seconds for post-processing. Depending on your business needs, agents may require more time to wrap up notes on calls. In this release, we are introducing the ability to adjust post-processing time for direct-to-agent calls from five seconds to a maximum of 60 minutes helping to meet your business needs. For details, see our content on how to adjust post-processing time for direct agent calls.

8x8 web chat is now WCAG 2.1 compliant

When websites, tools, and technologies are designed and developed so that people with disabilities can use them, they are considered web accessible. Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) offer recommendations on how to increase the usability of your website, and how to make it accessible to people with disabilities. Web accessibility encompasses all disabilities that affect access to the Web, including auditory, cognitive, neurological, physical, speech, and visual.

Prior to this release, 8x8 Contact Center customers who are WCAG 2.1 compliant were restricted from using the web chat solution due to the lack of compliance. In this release, we have enhanced the 8x8 Contact Center web chat experience to comply with the WCAG 2.1 guidelines allowing better readability, navigability, and interactivity with our web chat elements. For details on how to make your chat WCAG compliant, see our content on chat design enhancements for WCAG 2.1 compliance.



Note: WCAG Compliance is limited to 8x8 Contact Center web chat only. All other features and applications in the 8x8 Contact Center are not yet WCAG compliant.

To comply with WCAG 2.1, 8x8 Contact Center introduces enhancements to the web chat experience, thus allowing 8x8 customers to be WCAG 2.1 AA compliant. Learn more¹

9.13 Release

We have introduced the following enhancements to improve the productivity of agents, supervisors, and administrators in our new release of 8x8 Contact Center.

Introducing 8x8 Contact Center new APIs

8x8 Contact Center introduces the Call API allowing 8x8 Contact Center customers to place outbound calls for agents from an external (desktop-based) system. Agents can simply log into the 8x8 Agent Console, place it on a persistent connection, and handle calls from their external system. Prior to this release, click-to-dial was used to place outbound calls for the agent. Click-to-dial calls were initiated by agents from within the 8x8 Agent Console application.

The call API allows placing calls, dropping calls, dropping agents from a conference call, and more. It works in conjunction with the Agent Status API to change the status of the agent, and the SAPI API to publish events on the 8x8 platform. We have also added the following attributes to the SAPI API in this release:

- Additional granularity of the call status
- Additional granularity of the customer hung up reason
- Additional granularity about reasons for call abandonment

For features and limitations, see our content in release notes. For details about API, refer to Call API, Agent Status API, and SAPI API.

¹(Learn more about the compliance levels > Level **A**: Minimal compliance; Level **AA**: Acceptable compliance; Level **AAA**: Optimal compliance)

Enhancing outgoing email settings for channels and agents via SMTP

As an 8x8 Contact Center agent, when you email customers via email channel, you want to ensure that customers receive the emails without being blocked by your outbound email servers, or the spam filters of the customer's email servers.

To ensure the delivery of emails sent by agents, 8x8 Contact Center now supports an enhanced configuration for outbound mailing systems, only available for custom SMTP servers. This enhancement allows specific configuration for each and every channel or agent, so that emails actually get signed and sent using the individual accounts. When sending out emails, the "From" section in the email header must match the actual address used for sending out that email, which implies using correct accounts and credentials, and the actual sender. When an agent sends an email via a channel, it uses the channel address. When an agent sends an email via their own address, it uses the agent's individual email address.

Prior to this release, emails were sent from a unique address and user account configured on the SMTP server. The email address on the email header did not match the email address used to send the email, causing emails to be blocked by spam filters. For details, see our content on how we enhanced our outgoing email settings for channels and agents via SMTP.

See our content on all Previous releases.

Previous releases

You can find 8x8 Contact Center previous releases for admins here: Release 9.12

About 8x8 Auto Dialer: 8x8 Contact Center now introduces progressive and predictive dialing modes to better manage outbound telephone-based campaigns to meet your business needs. Automate your outbound dialing and maximize the productivity of your contact center agents. Empower your agents to connect with prospects and customers more effectively, and boost conversion rates as well as customer satisfaction. The progressive and predictive dialing modes call numbers automatically from campaign calling lists, screen for busy signals, voicemail, no-answers, and disconnected numbers, connecting agents to only live-answered calls.

Learn more about the 8x8 Auto Dialer and its benefits. Release 9.10

Controlling call recording on third-party transfers: As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can choose to stop call recording on the third-party transfers when your last contact center agent leaves the call. Let's say the contact center agent transfers the call to a customer or a third-party caller who is outside the contact center, via a warm or cold transfer. Or, the agent decides to drop out of a conference call as the last contact center agent. Using this feature, stops the call recording to avoid sensitive information to be recorded. Calls to 8x8 Work extensions are also considered third-party calls and therefore affected by this rule.

The call recording control is enabled at the tenant level and cannot be modified per agent. Once enabled, it becomes the default setting for call recording of the tenant and overrides the existing settings such as agent's ability to pause recording. Contact 8x8 Support for more information and to enable this feature. For details, see our content about Agent's Recording Controls.

Introducing 8x8 Contact Center SMS: In this release, 8x8 Contact Center introduces communication via SMS inbound channels. SMS has become a popular channel of communication in customer service. Let's say customers of a car insurance company want to check their claim status or send related inquiries, they can simply send SMS messages to an SMS number published by the insurance company. These messages are routed via SMS channels and chat queues to agents, and offered to them as chat interactions for responses. Agents can look up customer records if the message is from an existing customer. They can look up outstanding cases and history of interactions to handle the conversation effectively.

For details, see our content about SMS channels and how to set them up.

Introducing agent whisper for phone queues: In this release, 8x8 Contact Center agents can now hear an audio message (whisper) about the context of the call they have dialed or received via a queue. Agent whisper is an audio file that can be uploaded and assigned by the tenant administrator to an inbound or outbound queue to inform the agent, upon connection, about the connected call. Let's say John serves support calls as well as sales calls. Upon receiving calls, the system plays a brief message stating if it is a sales or a support call. Agent whisper can be implemented for both inbound and outbound calls such as campaign calls. For details, see our content on how to create Agent whisper for phone queues.

8×8									
Home Security	Queues/Skills » Add Inbound Phone » Properties								
, Agent Groups									
Users									
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list								
Channels	Presenting Marchan	Voice Mail Interactions	SLA						
Scripts	Properties Members	Voice Mail Interactions	SLA						
CRM	Queue type	Phone							
Outbound	Queue direction	Inbound							
Setup	* Queue name								
Campaigns	Default priority	8	1=Low 10=High						
Broadcast	Transfer Incoming Calls to								
Integration	Post-processing timeout	5 seconds							
Status Codes	Voice Recording	0	96						
Transaction	Waiting Music	Jazz music 🔹							
Codes	Agent whisper audio	None							
Outbound Phone Codes		None Acme Sales							
		AcmeJets Agent-Whisper	-	Save	Cancel				
Wallboard		OisinQ Orens sale gueue		ouro	Current				
Chat design		Sales Queue Support Whisper jaudio							

Transferring a chat interaction with contextual information: When your agents know who your customers are, what they're looking for, and what they've already spoken to another agent about, they can give better service, faster. Contextual information informs live agents so they can have more productive conversations while handling customer issues. 8x8 Contact Center introduces the ability to hand off the conversation with interaction details when transferring a live chat.

This feature is available to all agents by default. It does not require admin configuration. Learn more about how agents benefit from contextual information during chat transfer.

Intelligent routing of chat interactions based on customer data: Before initiating a chat interaction, customer information such as account numbers or case numbers collected via the pre-chat form, can now be used to determine routing of the chat interaction. You can now collect customer data, store them into system and user-defined variables, and use values stored in these variables to direct the interaction to the appropriate queue. This improves the efficiency of handling chat interactions.

Let's say your company wants to route interactions based on the customer language. Collect the preferred language choice in a variable, and use this data in the IVR to direct them to the appropriate language queue. Let's say your company wants to route interactions based on the department such as Sales or Support, you can collect this information during the pre-chat, and use it to route the interaction to the right queue.

Learn more about how to define custom variables and use them in chat channels.

These variables can be used to store data in advanced interaction routing involving external IVR. To learn more see our content on enhanced data augmentation.

You can also use variables to present personalized greeting messages based on the customer input. If the customer enters their name, then greet them by name.



Note: The variables are also supported in the Embedded Chat API.

Let's say your contact center has implemented the 8x8 web-chat solution. Your users log into the website so you already have information about the customer based on their account, e.g. language of the account or the browser language. You do not have to ask the customer for this information in the pre-chat form again. Use the 8x8 Embedded Chat API to post this information using variables. The contact center admin has to make sure to define the same name for variables in the IVR script as used in the API, to ensure routing based on this customer information.

Enhancing data augmentation: Data collected by External CRMs and third party integrations can now be used in a meaningful way. The data augmentation API allows you to tie data between external applications and call data. This facilitates greater resolution on what drives call volumes and handling times. Prior to this release, the two nodes: 8x8 IVR, and Forward to External IVR, have been limited in terms of data variables. To forward calls to an external IVR such as intelligent IVR, you need to forward an incoming call to the external IVR, assign a queue ID, check the queue ID in the phone script, and forward the call to the right queue. For details, see our enhanced data augmentation example workflow and the required steps to forward calls to an external IVR.

8×8			Å Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile Co-browsing Logout
Home Security	Scripts » Phone » Script			
Agent Groups				
Isers	AcmeJets			
ueues/Skills hannels	< Back to script list			
cr pts	Properties Script			
RM Jutbound	Script	Save	Revert Cancel	View Variables
ietup Campaigns Sroadcast Integration itatus Codes ransaction Codes Untbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	G - ∞ MainIVR G - ≪ MainIVR G - ≪ MainIVR G - ≪ Serverad To External IVR [IVR] [edit add co G - ≪ Serverad to External to E	Edit object Forward To External IV Object tag : Phone number : NOTE: To wold cepturing for example account num number of a hird party IV DTMF tones sert while th Sud reporting stute, and to when the transfer is made	IVR 999-999-9999 any sensitive data being typed into the IVR, pers or bank card numbers, add a phone to the Bik Blackits. This will ensure that at IVR is executing are not reported in the at call recording is automacially unred off	

Announcing end of life for Support Center functionality: In this release, 8x8 Contact Center is retiring the Support Center functionality. Support Center previously offered communication channels and information services for your customers to reach your contact center agents and get help. We offered direct URLs to the default or custom Support Center which could be embedded in your company website.

8x8	Secondary Administrator (AcmeJets) My Profile Co-browsing Help Logout	
Home	Support Center » Direct URL	
Security Agent Groups Agents	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	
Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Back to Support Center List Support Center Properties Assignment	
CRM Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast	Direct URL Category cthalini2 Direct access to Main Menu Image: Collaborate EAOS Collaborate Collaborate Chat Email My Account	
Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes	URL to use for integration purpose Direct access to the Main Menu of th https://vcc-na4b.8x8.com//AGUl/ag April 13, 2020 17:16	
Wallboard Chat design	Generate URL	

Feature	Description	Access
FAQ	FAQ was a repository of frequently- asked questions and answers for customers which was accessed via a user interface.	Use the CRM API to add, modify, get, delete, and list FAQs. For details, see our CRM API documentation.
Collaborate	Collaborate was a mechanism for agents to remotely access and control a customer's computer.	The control functionality is no longer available, however, the remote access and user guidance functionality is replaced by the improved Co-browsing feature to offer remote customer access.
Chat	In the Support Center, chat provided a user interface for customers to initiate a chat with live contact center agents.	We now offer chat, SMS, and social media channels with better chat workflow and design. For details about chat, see our documents for the Embedded Chat Channels. To take advantage of social media to service customers, such as Facebook and Twitter, see our guide about Social Media Integration.
Email	The Email functionality in the Support Center offered a user interface for customers to send emails to agents.	Customers can now publish the email addresses for support, as configured in the email channels on Configuration Manager. Or, implement their own email submission forms on their websites and forward them to the inbound email server as configured for 8x8 Contact Center. For details, see how to set up email channels.
My Account	My Account was a portal for customers to submit information requests or open cases and receive responses to requests. Customers could check the status of their cases, or close their cases using this portal.	We are no longer offering My Account, by default, for Local CRM. However, for more advanced implementations we offer the CRM API which can be used by Contact Centers to implement their own portal similar to My Account. For details, see our CRM API documentation.

In this release, access to Support Center functionality is not provided through Support Center, but through new tools and interfaces as seen below:

Release 9.9

Introducing 8x8 Secure Pay: 8x8 Contact Center now offers customers a secure integration to support the processing of bank card information via our partner PCI Pal. 8x8 Secure Pay enables an agent and customer to stay in contact on a call while masking the card input from the customer's handset so that the sensitive card data stays secure and out of the contact center. The service can be integrated with a CRM, Enterprise Resource

Planning (ERP), or a billing system and the customer's payment gateway to process the payment. The service can also feed information about the payment back to the originating system.

This new integration offers agents a secure payment page for processing customer transactions. The secure payment page can be configured to include pre-populated data or data that the agent adds manually. When this page is opened, the customer audio is rerouted via PCI Pal, which allows them to mask the keypad input both visually and audibly.

The agent hears the conversation and controls the card input, but only hears a single-tone DTMF and sees starred out digits for the card number, date, and Card Verification Value (CVV). In the event of erroneous data input by customers, agents can reset the relevant data field in the payment page, allow customers to fix the input, and facilitate a successful transaction.

pc/pa/	1 0°		
	8501] ⇔ €	Protected by
Customer Name	Barry Alle	en	
		10.50	
	Amount	19.56	
PAN			
			1
Expiration			
			1
CV2			
			1
Process			

When on an active call during the card payment, the agent hears the conversation and controls the card input, but only hears a single-tone DTMF and sees starred out digits for the card number, date, and Card Verification Value (CVV). The agent can reset any field if a mistake is made, and once the data is ready they can take a payment and receive the confirmation or rejection of the transaction. For detials, see our content in the release notes.

Introducing the Answer Machine Detection (AMD) Service: In 8x8 Contact Center when the dialer is used in its aggressive mode, it can call more numbers than available agents to maximize agent efficiency. The dialer needs a service which detects the calls answered by a machine instead of people, and to filter them. We have now introduced the Answer Machine Detection (AMD) service to identify such calls and allocate the calls answered by people to the available agents. When the AMD service identifies a machine-answered call, it sends a one-way message to the call routing to end that call and resolve it automatically. AMD is a learning service and it needs some time to build an effective library of known audio samples before it reaches the maximum efficiency. Once this is done, the AMD service resolves a machine-answered call quicker than the manual effort of an agent.

Once AMD is provisioned for your tenant, the contact center administrators can activate it for the desired campaigns. For details, see our content on the Answer Machine Detection (AMD) service.

AMD works in conjunction with our new Auto-TCL. The transaction code for such calls appears as **Answer machine detected** in CRM Cases or under Historical reports.

Menu Robin (Robin)	l) × Mike chat, Mi × Call Log	(1242) × Google, Echi	a × Call Log (1243) × Maca	idaeg, Je × Call Lo	g () × Cal	Log (1244) ×	AAASani, AA × (b w	
Available Take Break Log Out	Edit Task								
1 2	Customers: Task Number: * Assigned to:	AAASani, AAASamuel (1 120 Robin Shasta *	0000009]	Created by: Phone:	Customers Robin Sha +1669900	sta			
Options +	Email:			Subject:	Call Log				
Dial Mute Hold End Call	Due Date: Media Type:	08/05/2019 12:10 Phone	ē	Status:	Closed		Y		
Transfer Lines Join Lines Phone Transaction Agents Queues	Call Type:	Outbound	v v						
Participants	Description:								
	Transaction Id			Last Modified Date Campaign Name:		301-302-303-3	04-		
	Call Duration:	0		Transaction Code:		Status	Due Date	Last Modified Date	Transaction Code
						Closed	25/07/2019 11:3	25/07/2019 11:36:	System Codes: Mobile number blocked
Powerd by 8x8	Save Cancel			The new Tran Code records		Closed	25/07/2019 11:3	25/07/2019 11:36:	System Codes: DNC blocked
				- machine-detec		Closed	24/07/2019 16:2	24/07/2019 16:25:	System Codes: Call rejected
						Closed	24/07/2019 16:0	24/07/2019 16:08:	System Codes: Call rejected
						Closed	15/07/2019 15:2	15/07/2019 15:21:	System Codes: Answer machine detected

Note: The AMD service is only applicable to the calls routed via campaigns, but not the outbound calls placed by an agent.

Ability to Detect TCPA-Listed Phone Numbers via Carrier Call Blocking (CCB): 8x8 Contact Center is now able to detect TCPA-listed phone numbers via Carrier Call Blocking (CCB) service. This feature is available for US customers only. The Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) designed to safeguard consumer privacy restricts telemarketing communications via calls, SMS texts, and fax. To comply with TCPA, we have introduced Carrier Call Blocking (CCB) service for campaign calls which allows the campaign manager in the Dialer to apply special routing to two carriers: Brightlink and RSquared. They will then run dialer calls through a service that checks whether or not the phone number is listed on a Do Not Call (DNC) or mobile block list. If listed, the call is terminated by the carrier and an appropriate Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) code response is sent back to the interaction router. The call is then handled by our Auto-TCL and completed. Once provisioned, CCB can be enabled at the campaign level. If CCB is enabled, the campaign dialer checks whether the outbound call's phone number is listed on TCPA list.

Once CCB is provisioned for your tenant, the contact center administrators can activate it for the desired campaigns. If CCB is enabled, the campaign dialer checks whether the outbound call's phone number is listed on TCPA list. For details, see our content on Carrier Call Blocking.

Improved Call Handling via Phone Connection Mode and Auto Answer:



Note: Auto Answer is currently on limited availability. Contact 8x8 Support for more help.

8x8 Contact Center has improved the existing call handling capability via two features: Phone Connection Mode and Auto Answer. With Phone Connection Mode, agents set up their phone connection before they start working on calls and remain connected throughout their working day. It allows them to respond to incoming and outbound phone calls with a simple click on the user interface improving their call handling efficiency. There is no audio indication with the Phone Connection Mode. For details, see our content on Phone Connection Mode.

With Auto Answer, however, every phone interaction that is offered to an agent is automatically connected eliminating the need to accept it manually. Agents receive an audio prompt to alert them of a call as it connects. Auto Answer is paired with Workplace Setting Validation and is configurable at the tenant level. To enable Auto Answer, you must also enable workplace setting validation. For details, see our content on Auto Answer.

×8 me	Home » Profile			名 Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101) My Profile Co-browsing Log		
curity		eration completed suc	coccfully			
ent Groups ers	_ Op	eradon compreted suc	cessiony.			
eues/Skills	Summary Profile Au	idio Files Schedul	es Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer		
annels	Password (min. 8 chars.)			* Administrator's email(s)†		
ripts	Retype Password			ryan.cox@8x8.com		
M						
bound						
ip				* Maintenance email distribution list(s)† ryan.cox@8x8.com		
paigns	Miscellaneous tenant settings			ryan.cox@oxo.com		
dcast	Default Time Zone			×		
gration	(GMT-8) Pacific Time			Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters		
us Codes	Other Time Zone (Edit)			Spam threshold level 5 🔻		
saction	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time,	British Summer Time				
es	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time,	No Davlight Saving Tir	ne	Spam Black List #		
bound						
ne Codes	Tenant Label	nyande	mo0101			
lboard	Default Agent Display Name	First N				
t design	berdale rigene biopidy ridine		l agents	Spam White List #		
	Allow Agents to Change Disp	lay Name				
	Allow Agents to Change Scre	enpop	to enable Workplace se			
	🗹 Allow Agents to Reject Intera	ctions	change valida			
	Enable SSL for Agent GUI					
	🖢 🗹 Enable Workplace setting cha	nge validation 🕜		Tenant - Logo		
	Enable Enhanced Ringtone			Choose Files No file chosen		
	Enable Agent's My Recording			The file must be an image(.jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.		
	 Enable transferring to queues Allow agents to configure 			exceed 323(w) x d3(r) pixels.		
	Enable agents to return to ava			8 x 8 to enable		
	Enable agents to return to ava Enable sending FAQ as HTML		ng entair	Persistent		
	Enable Queue/Skill groups			Phone Connection Mode Connection Mode		
				Default Connection Mode ⑦ Persistent Reset all		
			to enable Auto Answer	Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode Reset all		
			Answer	Enable Auto Answer ⑦ Reset all		

Once Phone Connection Mode is provisioned for your tenant, the contact center administrators can activate both Phone Connection Mode and Auto Answer for your tenant. Auto Answer is only supported on line **1** for phone interactions.

Introducing Workplace Setting Validation: When changing workplace setting (Workplace Phone and Workplace SIP URI), agents must validate their changes to be able to handle the calls. When they click to validate the change, it triggers a phone call to the updated phone number. A PIN code is then communicated to the agent. The agent must enter the PIN code to validate the changes and continue. If they are unable to confirm the PIN, they must exit and revert to their last validated setting. The workplace setting validation is offered as a mandatory security feature with Auto Answer, or it can be deployed as a stand-alone feature. For details, see our content on Workplace setting validation.

x8 ome	Home » Profile		A Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101) My Profile Co-browsing Logo				
curity							
gent Groups	Operation com	pleted successfully.					
sers ueues/Skills	Summary Profile Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer				
annels ripts RM	Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password		* Administrator's email(s)† ryan.cox@8x8.com				
tbound tup			* Maintenance email distribution list(s)†				
npaigns	Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone		ryan.cox@8x8.com				
adcast gration	(GMT-8) Pacific Time	*	Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters				
	Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, British Sumn	ner Time	Spam threshold level 5 💌				
saction es	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, British Sullish		Spam Black List #				
oound ne Codes Iboard	Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name	ryandemo0101 First Name					
	 ✓ Allow Agents to Change Display Name ✓ Allow Agents to Change Screenpop ✓ Allow Agents to Reject Interactions ✓ Enable SSL for Agent GUI 	Reset all agents to enable Workplace setting change validation	Spam White List #				
	Enable Sociol Agent Gol Enable Workplace setting change validatio Schable Enhanced Ringtone	n (?)	Tenant - Logo Choose Files No file chosen				
	 Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no wor 		The file must be an image(,jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.				
	 Allow agents to configure warning mes Enable agents to return to available status 		8 x 8 to enable Persistent				
	✓ Enable sending FAQ as HTML ■ Enable Queue/Skill groups		Phone Connection Mode Default Connection Mode Reset all				
		to enable Auto Answer	Persistent Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode Reset all Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode Reset all Anable Auto Answer (?) Reset all				

Ability to Automatically Apply Transaction Code (Auto-TCL): 8x8 Contact Center automatically assigns transaction codes to campaign calls when the destination party is not available to answer the call, or the call cannot be completed, such as when there is a busy tone or dead line. The new feature also identifies the calls that are answered by a machine. Auto-TCL works with Answering Machine Detection (AMD) service to identify such calls and automatically disposition them. It then moves onto the next call with minimal agent disruption. This feature allows agents to be more efficient with their time.

Once Auto-TCL is provisioned for your tenant, the contact center administrators can activate it for the desired campaigns. For details, see our content on how to Automatically Apply Transaction Codes (Auto-TCL).

8x8							å a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help	Logou
Home Security	Campaigns » Pro	perties								
Agent Groups Agents	AcmeJets Campaign									
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to Campaign List									
Scripts	Properties Supervisors	Search	Sort	Audio files						
CRM	General Properties									
Support Centre	Campaign ID * Campaign Name	181 dfIPK2SC3YrjOA	5		Status This campaign is	Manual Stopped				
Outbound Setup	* Queue	Out	·	•	Answer Machine	e Detection				
Campaigns	* Dial Plan	System Dial Plan	: Internat	•	Show Skip butto	on oply Transaction Code to syster	a and ad calls			
Broadcast	* Caller Id	14086278909 🖉				ndatory Transaction Code selec				
Integration	 CRM Objects 	Load Test		•	Dynamic Campa	,				
Status Codes					Carrier Call Block	king				
Transaction										
Codes	Preview Properties									
Outbound Phone Codes	 Preview Timeout (sec) 	Use Agent Offer	Timeout	•	Timeout Action	No Action	•			
Wallboard	Start & End Time									
Chat design	Start Date			Ō	Start Time	•				
	End Date				End Time	v				
		L								

Dynamic Campaigns: Ability to Update Live Campaigns: Dynamic Campaigns allow you to add or remove records from an active campaign via API. Prior to this release we could not add or remove records from a campaign after it started running. This supports integrated lead capturing systems which feed new prospects into the corresponding campaign in real time so they can be dialed within five minutes. Removing a campaign record will not delete it from the list but will keep the record for future reports.

For details, see our content on dynamic campaigns. For API configuration details, see our support article on how to configure 8x8 Contact Center Dynamic Campaign API.

Allow Agents to Skip Campaign Calls While on Auto Answer: 8x8 Contact Center is now offering agents the option to skip the campaign calls during a campaign. To give the agents this capability, you must enable this option under Campaign > Properties.

8×8					යි a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills	Campaigns » Prop	perties						Ĵ
Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM Setup Combound Setup Compagins Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transection Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	< Back to Campaign List Properties Seneral Properties Campaign Name Cueue Dial Plan Catler Id Catler Id CRM Objects	Search Sort Audio files		etection Transaction Code to system ended o story Transaction Code selection	alls			4
	Preview Properties • Preview Timeout (sec)	Use Agent Offer Timeout	Carrier Call Blockin	g No Action				
	Start & End Time Start Date End Date Daily Call Start & End Time	i i	Start Time End Time	v v				
		Enabled	Use	 Area Code (US & Canada only) Time Zone 				*

For details, see our content on how to skip campaign calls while on Auto Answer.

Ability to Clone Queues: 8x8 Contact Center now offers customers the ability to clone queues. With this new enhancement, administrators can copy inbound phone queues, outbound phone queues, chat queues, email queues, as well as voicemail queues with a simple click. Cloning queues allows Contact Center administrators to create multiple queues in a short time.

When you clone a queue, the queue properties, members, interactions, SLA, and email settings are copied. A queue name is automatically generated. You can modify or make changes to the new queue, if required. To clone a queue, in 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to **Queues/Skills** to display a list of queues, select a queue and click

Copy. For details, see our content on how to clone queues.

	Queues/Skills	» Queue List								G
ty Groups	Operation completed successfully.									
		_								_
/Skills	Queue List									
:	Queue List						>	Filter Q)uei	ue List
	Add Queue: 🕀 Inbour	nd Phone 🕀 Outbound Phone 🕀	Chat 🕀 Email 🕀 Voice	Mail << <	1 >>	> 20 recor	rds	Clea	ar A	dl Sort
	Media ^ 1	Queue name		ld ^ 2	Default Priority	Agents assigned	Agents enabled		_	
	Chat	AcmeSalesChatQ		111	б	4	3	Ø		ŵ
	Chat	AcmeSupportChat		148	6	3	2	Ø	D	<u>ل</u>
) baigns	Chat	AcmeSupportTier2	\frown	149	6	4	3	Ø	D	ŵ
	Chat	AcmeSalesChatQ - 1	Queue name is generated	167	6	4	3		-	⑪
	Email	AcmeSalesEmail	automatically	110	2	3	0		_	⑪
	Outbound Phone	Sales_Outbound		113	8	4	3		-	団
	Outbound Phone	Support_Outbound		143	8	5	5	Ø	D	団
	Outbound Phone	Outbound_Queue		144	8	7	7		_	Ū
ound e Codes	Inbound Phone	Acme_Services		103	8	3	2		-	Ū
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Support		109	8	7	7		Ō	_
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Sales		114	8	4	3		-	Ū
	Voice Mail	AcmeSalesVM		112	1	2	2		_	Ū
	Voice Mail	Acme_VM-Q		166	4	1	1	Ø	D	۵.

Release 9.8

Enhanced Usability of Co-browsing: With Co-browsing, you offer live, hands-on assistance to customers, take control of their cursor, and demonstrate how to perform the action while the customer observes. Via co-browsing, you can securely connect to remote computers, access, and troubleshoot problems over the 8x8 Contact Center platform. For details, see our content on how to get remote customer assistance.

Customers, who use 8x8 Co-browsing for remote assistance, can now enjoy better usability with the following enhancements.

• A refreshed user interface.


• Better visibility to the status of co-browsing session on customer side.



• The auto-minimized status window allows the customer to keep an eye on the status of the shared screen at all times. The customer can move the status window to the desired location while in a live session.

Co-browsing	×
Click Start to initialize the session and provide the agent. Session ID:	
Start sharing	Close
🔯 Co-browsing sessio	n not started.
	Powered by BxB Inc.
Click to maximize or move around.	Auto minimize
🖸 SI	haring L

• Agents receive feedback when the co-browsing session is interrupted, or takes time to load.



Ability to Reset the Agent's Idle Timer: In 8x8 Contact Center, idle time refers to the length of time agents have been idle and is measured for each agent by the agent's idle timer. By default, an agent is considered idle from the time he ends post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction and becomes available. When multiple agents with the same queue and skill level assignments are idle, the system routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. The agent's idle timer is reset every time they end post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction. Agent-initiated interactions do not reset the idle timer.

To supplement the default behavior, in the new enhancement we allow 8x8 Contact Center administrators to reset the idle timer when agents transition from one status to another. For example, The idle timer resets when agents change their status from On Break to Available when they log in. For details, see our content on reset agent's idle timer.

8x8								은 Rob	in Shasta (ry	/andemo010	1) My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Home Security	Home » A	gent's	Idle Time	er									(i)
	Summary	Profile	Audio Files	Schedules	Dial Plans	Agent's Idi	e Timer						
	Agent's Idl	e Timer F	Reset Setti	ngs									
Scripts CRM											ngest. By default, ractions do not res		
Outbound Setup	Additionally, you	ı can customiz	ze your contact	center to reset	your agent's is	dle timer based u	pon a combina	ion of agent	and system init	tiated status cl	nanges.		
				to the following status via AGENT action			to the following status vi			itus via SYSTEM a	action		
	Reset idle timer when coming from	Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout		Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout			
Integration Status Codes	Post Processing	,											
Transaction	Status Change												
Codes	Login									<			
	On Break			✓									
	Work Offline												
Wallboard Chat design	* The timer also re	sets at the end	of a non-busy Dir	ect Agent Routing		to Default	Save	C	ancel				

Ability to Autodial Campaign Calls after Preview: In this release, we have introduced the ability to autodial campaign calls when an agent has spent all the preview time without taking an action. Autodialing campaign calls after previewing a campaign record is controlled by a campaign setting.

i	
i	<u> </u>
i	
i	÷
i	/
i	
i	
i	
i	
i	<u> </u>
i	

Note: This feature enhancement is only applicable if your company uses 8x8 Contact Center campaigns.

Prior to this release, agents handling a campaign could view the campaign record for the specified preview period and manually start, reject, or skip the interaction. They were not forced to take the interaction in the time allowed. Additionally, the need for a manual action to initiate a call was repetitive and inefficient. With the autodial feature,

however, at the end of the preview time if no action is taken, calls are initiated automatically eliminating the need for manual action by the agent. The 8x8 Contact Center administrators can enable autodialing for each campaign when an agent's preview countdown ends. The minimum preview duration is 15 seconds. For details, see our content on how to set up autodial for campaign calls.

8x8						ြိ Techpu
Home Security	Campaigns » Pro	perties				
Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills						
Channels Scripts	 Back to Campaign List Properties Supervisors 	Filter Sort	Audio files			
CRM	General Properties					
Support Center	* Campaign Name * Queue			This campaign is e Answer Machine I		
Outbound Setup	* Dial Plan	System Dial Plan: US Nort	v	Show Skip button	ly Transaction Code to system ended calls	
Campaigns Broadcast	* Caller Id * CRM Objects	Select ID	•		atory Transaction Code selection	
Integration Status Codes				Carrier Call Blockir		
Transaction Codes	Preview Properties					
Codes Outbound Phone Codes	* Preview Timeout (sec)	Use Agent Offer Timeout	•	Timeout Action	Dial Call	
Wallboard	Stort & End Time				Diarcan	
Chat design	Start Date End Date			Start Time End Time	v	
	End Date			End Time	•	
	Daily Call Start & End Time					
	Schedule	Enabled	•	Use	 Area Code (US & Canada only) Time Zone 	

Efficient Voice Channel Workflow via off-Hook Mode: With off-hook connection mode agents can instantly and seamlessly connect to customers and improve their productivity. Off-hook is a persistent connection from the agent's device to 8x8 Contact Center. It removes the need to connect the agent's workplace phone for every call handled. Agents set up their voice connection before they start working on calls and remain connected throughout their working day. It allows them to respond to incoming and outbound phone calls with a simple click on the user interface.

In the previous behavior, after agents log in to 8x8 Contact Center and make themselves available, they have to accept the interaction for every call that comes through the queue. If they miss the ringing phone, they will no longer be available to take the interaction.

To enable off-hook connection mode for the tenant, log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager as an administrator and click **Enable Off-hook Connection Mode** in **Home > Profile**. If enabled by the contact center administrators, agents can click **Enable Off-hook Connection** in their 8x8 Agent Console's user profile. For details, see our content on off-hook connection mode.

Release 9.7.3

We have introduced a brand-new look for 8x8 Contact Center applications in this release. Additionally, we have a new feature enhancements for administrators:

Ability to Filter Campaign Lists Based on Do Not Call Preferences: While creating a campaign filter, you can filter those numbers from Local CRM records that are registered with the Telephone Preference Service (TPS) and Corporate Telephone Preference Service (CTPS), to be compliant with TPS and CTPS. This feature is currently supported for UK phone numbers, but will be extended to other countries in future releases.

8x8	گ	Rafael
Home	Campaigns » Filter	
Security		
Agent Groups		
Agents	MingailioCampaign	
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to Campaign List 🚽	
Scripts	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
CRM	Properties Supervisors Filter Sort Audio files	
Support Center	and v (0) +0	
Outbound		
Setup	Check Do Not Call lists UK - Telephone Preference Service (TPS), UK - Corporate Telephone 💌	
Campaigns	 UK - Telephone Preference Service (TPS) UK - Corporate Telephone Preference Service (CTPS) 	
Broadcast	 On a comportate relepitorite interest ence pervice (cirred) 	
Integration	Test	
Status Codes		
Transaction Codes	Once done entering filter criteria, you should test it by clicking on the 'Test' button below.	
Outbound Phone Codes		
Wallboard	Test	
Chat design		

This feature helps customers to be TPS/CTPS compliant, but does not guarantee it. Customers are responsible for their own compliance. It is recommended not to run campaigns longer than 28 days. For details, see our content on Filter Campaign Lists Based on Do Not Call Preferences.

Release 9.7.1

We have introduced the following new enhancements to improve the productivity of agents, supervisors, and administrators.

Ability to Set the Browser Language as the Pre-Chat Language: In 8x8 Configuration Manager, administrators can now set the browser language as the language visible in the pre-chat form. A pre-chat survey form serves to gather information from a chat user before initiating a chat. Using the form, you can collect information from an existing user, such as their preferred language. With this enhancement, the customer's browser language can optionally overwrite the pre-chat default language, eliminating the need for the customer to

Chat de	sign » Add pre-chat form			Ō
< Back to form Button	n list			
* Name	AcmeJets Pre-chat		* Description The pre-chat form to get customer's information	Step 1 > Step
Survey				
Format	Translation	-	Available translation Set as default	
Question	Select your preferred language.		🛄 Japanese 🔘 🔺	
	Mandatory		Spanish	
	Include a separator on the end		French	
			🗌 Portuguese 💿 🚽	
			Overwrite default with browser language	
			When browser language is not available for translation, default language above set will be used.	Pre-chat
				Name *
			Add	Age
Drag and drop to	o change the display order of questions inside a form.		(Gender
M Question		Identifier	Format	The browser language is Email address *
			No items to show	default language.
				Start chating powerity bit in.
				Cancel Next >>

answer an extra question. When the translation is not available for the browser language, the pre-chat selected language will be in effect. See Translation in pre-chat form.

Ability to Bypass Automatic Translation in Greeting Messages: In 8x8 Configuration Manager, the administrator can configure the greeting messages to bypass the automatic translation. Greeting messages are routinely used to invite the customers to a chat session. You can type your message in the chat window, and select to automatically translate. With the new enhancement, however, you can bypass the automatic translation and let



the user provide a customized translation instead. See Greeting Messages in the summary table.

Release 9.6

Refreshed New Look for 8x8 Contact Center: Whether you are an agent, a supervisor, or an administrator of 8x8 Contact Center, you will certainly love the new refreshed user interface of all our applications. Look out for the notifications when you launch your application. Please note that we have kept all our functionality workflows intact so there is no learning curve for you.

8×8				ᡭ vcctechpubs	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home	Home » Summ	nary					
Security							
Agent Groups							
Agents	Summary Profile	Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plan	ıs			
Queues/Skills Channels	Incoming Channels		Agent Group				
Cnanneis Scripts	Phone	2	Ungroup	0			
Scripts CRM	Email	1	Sales	3			
Support	Chat	1	Support	3			
Center	Social	2	Marketing	0			
Outbound			- and a				
Setup	Inbound Queues						
Campaigns	Phone	2					
Broadcast	Email	2					
ntegration	Chat	3					
Status Codes	Voice Mail	2					
Transaction Codes	Outbound Queues						
Outbound	Phone	2					
Phone Codes							
Wallboard							
Chat design							
	4						•

- Ability to Message Customers via Facebook and Twitter: Take advantage of Facebook and Twitter to service customers directly and increase customer satisfaction with 8x8 Contact Center Social Integration. By unifying the agent experience, 8x8 Social allows users to channel their messages from social media into 8x8 Contact Center. Customers can contact the businesses and receive support from within their social platform. 8x8 Contact Center Social supports messaging via Facebook and Twitter in this release. To receive chat interactions, agents must be assigned to an enabled chat queue and be in Available state. See Social Media Integration.
- Increased Length of Email Addresses: You can now save email addresses exceeding 55 characters. The maximum limit now stands at 254 characters. This change allows many areas such as saving longer email IDs of agents, customers in Local CRM, setting up email notification for voicemails, and more. See User Profile.

	Agent » Add	Agent » General			
rity t Groups t s es/Skills nels ts	< Back to agent list General Phon	-		ctions Experimental Features	
	Enabled		* Agent Group	Sales	
ort ≅r	* First Name	Pablo	Interaction offer timeout	30 🗸	
	* Last Name	Picasso	* Agent primary language	English	
	Display Name	Picasso	Agent secondary language	Russian	
	* Email Address	PabloDiegoJoséFranciscodePa	ula 🖌	German	
	* Software language		PabloDiegoJoséFranciscodePaulaJuanNepo		
	* Username	picasso	diosCiprianodelaSantísimaTrinidadRuizyPica	asso@gmail.com	
	Password		Status-change Coding		
action s	Retype Password			Allow agent to change Enable/Disable setti	ngs in Assigned Queues
				Allow agent to Pull e-mails from queue	
				Allow agent to Delete pending e-mails	
	Comment			Allow agent to Reject interactions	
				Enable Collaborate Enable and show Options menu button	
				Chapte and show Options menu button	
		Enable agent's My Recording	ig feature		
	Copy Details From		 Current Country 	Auto select 🔍	
			Reset Password	Save Cancel	

For the complete list of areas that benefit from this enhancement, see below.



Release 9.5.2

New features and enhancements to VCC-8x8 Configuration Manager impact supervisors and agents. Some of these features are available to agents and supervisors by default, while others need to be enabled by administrators to benefit from the functionality.

 Enhanced Queued Callback: Our phone IVR scripts can now provide increased callback time, time granularity, and efficiency:

- Increased callback time: The cancel callback time can be set to an increased maximum of six hours. The requested callback remains in an outbound queue for the duration of that time. Any callback attempt is prevented after the time expires. The callback request is removed from the outbound queue after Cancel Callback duration has expired.
- **Improved granularity for callback retry delay:** You can set callback retry attempts using minutes, and seconds.
- **Improved granularity for Cancel callback after:** You can set the time duration to cancel call back using hours, minutes, and seconds.
- Improved efficiency for selecting the callback channel number: Using the new option [Current Channel] for CLI/CN, you can display the original channel number, which the caller used as the caller ID for the callback. This option is selected by default. If you wish to display any other channel number during the callback, you can select from the list of available channels.

Insert object	8
IVR object :	Callback
Object tag :	Sales Queue
Callback type :	When agent becomes available
Queue name :	General - Outbound
Callback CLI/CN :	[Current Channel]
Dial plan :	System Dial Plan: Australian 🔽
Callback paramet	ers
Callback tries :	3
Callback retry dela	y: 120 sec 🔽 (40 sec - 90 min)
Cancel callback af	ter: 6 hrs (120 sec - 6 hrs)
	OK Cancel

Ability to Reserve Idle Agents for Inbound Queues: This feature only applies to outbound calls that are assigned to go through an outbound queue. The Reserve Idle Agents feature allows a configurable number of agents to be reserved in available and idle state, to improve the probability of quickly attending to a new inbound

call. While there are fewer than the assigned number of reserved "Available and idle" agents, no queued outbound calls will be presented to agents. Whenever the "Available and idle" agents reserve is exceeded then the most idle agent will receive a queued outbound call.

Scripts » New Phone Script » Properties					
New Phone Scrip	t				
 Back to script list 					
Properties S	Script				
* Script type	Inbound phone	Assigned channels			
* Script name	Inbound phone Post call survey	Warning: Please restrict your assignment			
Category	Outbound phone	Assign new channel(s)			
Copy script from					
Comment					
	This script is enabled				
		Save Cancel			

;	Scripts » Phone » Scri	pt	6
	Techpubs OP		
	 Back to script list 		
	Properties Script		
	Script	Save	el
	* Test queue	Sales Queue	
	Select the phone queue you would like to test the availability of agents		
	* Number of agents to reserve	(0- 100)	
	Outbound interactions will be offered to the longest idle agent only if there are more than the number of reserved agents available		

 Enhanced Voicemail Email Notification: The voicemail email notification provides more data allowing you to track the queued voicemails better. The following information is captured in the voicemail email notification: Transaction ID, tenant name, cluster ID, phone queue ID, voicemail queue ID, calling name, interaction GUID of the inbound phone queue, transaction ID of the inbound phone interaction, voicemail begin offset, filename, agent name, and voicemail retrieval delay.

Queues/Skills » Edit Voice Mail » Notifie	cation 🚯					
Operation completed successfully.						
Sales Queue						
 Back to queue list 						
Properties Members IVR Interactions S	SLA Notification					
Enable voicemai	il					
Enabled Inotification						
* Email Address(es) sales@acmeiets.com						
Delete from queue						
Note: Multiple email addresses can be entered in Email Address(es) separ	rated by comma (',') or semi-colon (',') .					
Save	Cancel					
	,					
<my label="" tenant=""> / <channel name=""> message <interaction guid=""> from <cnam> /</cnam></interaction></channel></my>	CLID E.164> for <xxx> seconds at <agent and="" date="" localized="" time="">/<utc offset=""></utc></agent></xxx>					
to me v	C 1:24 PM (35 minutes ago)					
Tenant smy tenant label>/smy tenant name>/scluster id> Channet: schannel name>/schannel number> Script: script name>/script id> Queue: squee name>/smy ueue id> VM Queue: smy queue name>/smy queue id> Agent: slast, first name>/sagent username> Emait: sagent mail address>	The information captured in a voicemail email notification					
Calling Name: <cnam></cnam>						
Calling Line ID: <clid (in="" applicable)="" e:164="" fmt="" when=""></clid>						
Contact Name: <show available="" if="" only="" row="" this=""></show>						
Interaction GUID: p347g8s6085dk82e-3 Interaction Arrval Time: agent localized date and time>/ <utc offset=""> Transaction Id: 650087 Voicemail Begin Offset: <xxx> seconds Voicemail Retrival Duration: <yyy> seconds Voicemail Retrival Delay: <ddd hh:="" mm:ss=""></ddd></yyy></xxx></utc>						
Filename and Size: f452791a-aa0a-11.wav / 107564 bytes						

Ability to Prevent Agents from Rejecting Interactions: Improved the ability in 8x8 Configuration Manager to allow or prevent agents from rejecting interactions. You can set up this ability for the entire tenant, an agent group, or individual agents. By default, this option is enabled allowing agents to reject interactions. When disabled, the

b)

4) f452791a-aa0a-11...

Home » Profile		
Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans		
Administration & File Transfer Passwords	Service notifications - email addresses	
Current Configuration Manager Password	* Administrator's email(s)† sachin.songara@&x8.com	1
	saurin.songara@oxo.com	
Configuration Manager - change password]
New Password (min. 8 chars.)	* Maintenance email distribution list(s)†	
Retype New Password	sachin.songara@8x8.com	
Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password		
Password (min. 8 chars.)		
Retype Password	Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters	
	Spam threshold level 5	
	Spam Black List ††	
Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone		
(GMT-6) Central Time		
	Spam White List ††]
Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT+5:30) India Standard Time		
	Toront Louis	
	Tenant - Logo	
Tenant Label vm2p4	Choose Files No file chosen	
Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents	The file must be an image(.jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.	
Allow Agents to Change Name	iess train thib, it cannot exceed 323(w) x to(ii) pixels.	
Allow Agents to Change Display Name	8x8. Inc.	
Allow Agents to Change Screenpop	00	
Allow Agents to Reject Interactions		
Enable SSL for Agent GUI		
Enable Enhanced Ringtone	Configure agents to	
Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality	accept or reject	
Enable transferring to queues with no working agents Allow agents to configure warning message popup		
Enable agents to return to available status after pulling email	interactions at the	
these agents to return to available status after polying email these agents to return to available status after polying email	tenant level	
++ separate email addresses with carriage return (Enter)		
		Save Cancel
		save Cancel

Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console is disabled preventing agents from rejecting the interactions they are offered.

Agent Group » Ed	it Agent Group » General	
Techpubs Agent Group General Outbound Pho	ne Codes	
* Group Name Comment	Techpubs Agent Group This is made for techpubs team	
Default Agent Display Name	First Name First Name © Reset all agents © Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	Configure agents to accept or reject interactions at the agent group level

	A				
Agent » Edit	Agent » Gene	eral			
Enabled * First Name * Last Name	one Skill Group	Supervisor	CRM & Tab permissions * Agent Group Interaction off * Agent prima	er timeout ry language	Experimental Features Techpubs Agent Group
Display Name • Email Address • Software language • Username • Password • Retype Password	Lisa Iblack@8x8.com English (US) Lblack		Agent second Status-change		Russian German Japanese Spanish French No status-change coding is assigned Allow agent to change Enable/Disable settings in Assigned Queues
Comment * Current Country	Auto select		Configure a to accept reject interaction the agent l	or is at	 Allow agent to Pull e-mails from queue Allow agent to Delete pending e-mails Allow agent to Reject interactions Enable Collaborate Enable and show Options menu button Assigned to Salesforce Integration Enable agent's My Recording feature
			6	Save	Cancel

Ability to Define Playback Speed of Text-To-Speech Prompts: You can define the playback speed of IVR Text-To-Speech (TTS) prompts when using the Say object. The Say object converts programmed text and variable objects such as phone number and queue position into speech. You can play these prompts slowly, at a normal speed, or at a faster pace. Using the playback rate option, you can control the speed of the speech that reads your text so your callers do not miss the important information such as names, numbers, or account balances. The

8x8

Edit object		8
Say		
Object tag :	hello updesh	
Language :	English (US)	
Voice :	Ava (F) 🔽	
Value to play :	Free text 🔽	
Text to play :	hey updesh baba	
Data type :	Text 🔽	
Playback rate :	Normal	
Playback options :	Slow Normal	
	Fast	

default speed is Normal. The playback speed is set per IVR Say node.

Enhanced Email Routing Based on Customer Data: Emails can now be routed based on the CRM customer field of picklist type. For example, if a company wishes to prioritize their premium customers and offer to assist them quickly, agents can prioritize and route the emails from customers based on their account type, say Platinum, Gold, and Bronze. Emails received from Platinum customers can be routed to a dedicated queue for faster processing. Using the Check Picklist object in the email script, you can filter emails based on the customer type and send them to their respective queues for better customer experience. To take advantage of the check picklist object, you must first define the desired customer field of picklist data type in the Local CRM and then select this field in the email script.

Edit object		8
Check Picklis		
Object tag :	Customer_Type	
Data to test :	Customer Type	
Select operato	Is equal to	
Name Platinur Gold Bronze	Define customer fields	
	OK Cancel	

Scripts » Email » Script	
AcmeJets Back to script list Properties Script	
Script	Save Revert Cancel
Fmail Routing Check Picklist [Customer_Type] matched routed overload Forward to Queue [Premium] routed overload vourded overload	Select the defined customer fields from the email script

Release 9.5

In this release, we have introduced a few enhancements and fixed many bugs:

ImprovedTest Queue and Forward to Queue: Our scripts can now provide in-queue treatments, checking the status of a call in-queue, such as how long the current call has been waiting in the queue. We can also check the agent's availability in the queue at a more granular level in both Test Queue and Forward to Queue objects.

Insert object		8
IVR object :	Test Condition of Queue	
Object tag :		
Queue name :	phone_queue	
Queue Condition	s: d tests are true, the result will be condition matched	
There are NO	2 agents:	
Available		
The number of	of calls waiting ahead of this call is greater than :]
Current call h	as been waiting in this queue for more than :	(seconds)
The longest w	ait time for any call in this queue is greater than :	(seconds)
The instantan	eous expected-wait-time calculation exceeds :	(seconds)
	OK Cancel	

Insert object		8
IVR object :	Test Condition of Queue	
Object tag :		
Queue name :	phone_queue	
	ted tests are true, the result will be condition matched	
There are <u>I</u>	NO agents:	
Available		
Available Available d	ater than :	
Available, I	busy, or working offline e than :	(seconds)
1 1 1	(assigned but may not be enabled)	(seconds)
The instant	aneous expected-wait-time calculation exceeds :	(seconds)
	OK Cancel	

 Enhanced Edit and View inside scripts: The new enhancement adds double-click capability inside a script. This enhancement provides a quick way to view the object's details without opening it in the edit mode. To edit the object, click edit inside the View details window, or click the edit link next to the object inside the script. This enhancement applies to all scripts including phone, email, and chat.

 Ability to generate PDF images for scripts: You can now generate a PDF image of the script in a printable format and save it locally. It gives developers the ability and flexibility to review and design the script at a later time.

Scripts » Phone » Script			0
Script from channel 1.650.352.4513 Eack to script list Properties Script Script	Save Revet Cancel	View Variables	<u>*</u>

This enhancement applies to all scripts such as phone, email, and chat.

Allow agents to change Display Name: This new improvement allows agents to present themselves with a customized display name. The new feature ensures agents privacy and helps them save time and effort to introduce themselves to customers every time they start a new chat. The display name also shows up in the chat log. Display Name can be modified by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in the 8x8 Configuration Manager, or if

Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Current Lobel * Ammistrators email(s)1 cosmin.malutan@8x8.com, dkourosh@8x8.com Configuration Manager * ammistrators email(s)1 cosmin.malutan@8x8.com, dkourosh@8x8.com * ammistrators email(s)1 Secure File Transfer Protocol (FIPES) - set password * ammistrators email(s)1 Password (min. 8 chars.) Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam Black List 11 Defout Time Zone Spam White List 11 [GMT-30] Yukon Time First Name [GMT-40] Yukon Time Reset all agents Cosmin4test First Name Cable Agents to Change Display Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Screenpo Tenant Logo Challer Agent Sub Change Screenpo Tenant Logo Cable Agents to Change Screenpo Tenant Logo Chast St. for Agent GUI First Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpo Tenant Exam texaed 325(w) x 65(h) poels. Challer Agents Sub Change Duston First Agent CUI Challe	Home » Profile		
Current Compuration Manager * Administrator's email(s)T Cosmin malutan@ax8.com_dkourosh@ax8.com Configuration Manager - change password * Maintenance email distribution list(s)T New Password (min. 8 chars.) * Maintenance email distribution list(s)T Retype New Password cosmin.malutan@ax8.com_dkourosh@ax8.com Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level Image: Spam Black List 1T Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam Black List 1T Spam Black List 1T Other Time Zone (GMT-3) Prazil Brazilla Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Spam Black List 1T (GMT-10) Havaii Time (GMT-10) Havaii Time Spam White List 1T (GMT-10) Havaii Time Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Display Name First Name Image: Spam Black List 1T Allow Agents to Change Screeppo Reset all agents The file must be an image(,jpg, .png, .gf or .bmg) with a size of less than 1mb. 1t.cannot exceed 325(w) x.65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Screeppo Enable Standereck Ringtone Enable Standereck Ringtone Allow Agents to Change Screeppo Enable Standereck Ringtone Enable Standereck Ringtone Enable Banabereck Ringtone Enable Standereck Rin			
Current Compuration Manager * Administrator's email(s)T Cosmin malutan@ax8.com_dkourosh@ax8.com Configuration Manager - change password * Maintenance email distribution list(s)T New Password (min. 8 chars.) * Maintenance email distribution list(s)T Retype New Password cosmin.malutan@ax8.com_dkourosh@ax8.com Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level Image: Spam Black List 1T Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam Black List 1T Spam Black List 1T Other Time Zone (GMT-3) Prazil Brazilla Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Spam Black List 1T (GMT-10) Havaii Time (GMT-10) Havaii Time Spam White List 1T (GMT-10) Havaii Time Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Display Name First Name Image: Spam Black List 1T Allow Agents to Change Screeppo Reset all agents The file must be an image(,jpg, .png, .gf or .bmg) with a size of less than 1mb. 1t.cannot exceed 325(w) x.65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Screeppo Enable Standereck Ringtone Enable Standereck Ringtone Allow Agents to Change Screeppo Enable Standereck Ringtone Enable Standereck Ringtone Enable Banabereck Ringtone Enable Standereck Rin	Duration Destin	dia Silaa Dahadadaa Dial S	21
Password comfiguration Manager - change password Configuration Manager - change password • Maintenance email distribution list(s)† New Password (min. 8 chars.) • Maintenance email distribution list(s)† Retype New Password • Maintenance email distribution list(s)† Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password • Maintenance email distribution list(s)† Password (min. 8 chars.) • Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level S Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level S Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level S Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam Black List †† Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Spam White List †† (GMT-10) Aleudan Time (GMT-10) Aleudan Time (GMT-10) Aleudan Time (Reset all agents No file chosen Tenant Label Cosmin/Reset all agents Tenant - Logo Tenant Label Cosmin/Reset all agents The file must be an image(Lgop. ong. off or .bmp) with a size of last an 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Display Name File Masse St. for Agent GUI The file must be an image(Lgop. ong. off or .bmp) with a size of last an 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Stophage Name <td></td> <td>dio Files Schedules Dial F</td> <td></td>		dio Files Schedules Dial F	
Configuration Manager - change password New Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype New Password Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password Spam Black List 11 Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aeutan Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time (GMT-10) Aeutan Time			
New Password (min. 8 chars.) • Maintenance email distribution list(s)† Retype New Password cosmin.malutan@8x8.com,dkourosh@8x8.com Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password fenant email - SPAM filtering parameters Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level 5 • Retype Password 5 • Spam threshold level 5 • Spam Unreshold level 5 •			
Retype New Password Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password Password Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleuti	Configuration Manager - chang	e password	
Retype New Password cosmin malutan@8x8.com dkourosh@8x8.com Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters Password (min. 8 chars.) Spam threshold level 5 • Retype Password Spam threshold level 5 • Miscellaneous tenant settings Spam Black List †† Default Time Zone (Edit) Spam White List †† (GMT-0) Havaii Time Spam White List †† (GMT-0) Havaii Time Spam First Name (GMT-10) Havaii Time First Name (GMT-10) Havaiis Time First Name Reset ail agents No file chosen Allow Agents to Change Display Name Tenate Enhanced Rigone Allow Agents to Change Sterenpop Enable St. for Agent GUI Senable St. for Agent GUI Enable St. for Agent GUI Senable St. for Agent GUI Enable St. for Agent GUI Senable St. for Agent GUI Enable St. for Agent GUI Enable St. for Agent Suppose Enable St. for Agent GUI	New Password (min. 8 chars.)		* Maintenance email distribution list(s)†
Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password Spam threshold level 5 • Spam Black List 17 Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-3) Yukon Time Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Streenpop Allow Agents to Ch	Retype New Password		
Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password Spam threshold level Spam Black List ff Internation of the second sections (GMT-30) Havail Time (GMT-10) Aleutan Time (GMT-10) Aleut	,,		
Retype Password Spam threshold level Span thresho	Secure File Transfer Protocol (F	TPES) - set password	
Retype Password Spam threshold level Image: Spam Black List 1 Image: Spam Black List 1 <td>Password (min. 8 chars.)</td> <td></td> <td>Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters</td>	Password (min. 8 chars.)		Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters
Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time (GMT-9) Yukon Time Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Chable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Chable Agent's My Recording Functionality Chable Agent's My Recording Functionality	Retype Password		Spam threshold level 5
Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time (GMT-9) Yukon Time Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Chable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Chable Agent's My Recording Functionality Chable Agent's My Recording Functionality			
Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time <td></td> <td></td> <td>Spam Black List TT</td>			Spam Black List TT
Default Time Zone (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
(GMT-3) Brazil Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) Spam White List †† Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleutian Time Tenant Label Cosmin4test Choose Files No file chosen Default Agent Display Name First Name Allow Agents to Change Name The file must be an image(.jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Screenpop The file must be an image(.jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Y Enable transferring to queues with no working agents Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	Miscellaneous tenant settings		
Spam White List †† Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-9) Yukon Time Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop If Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Rable Enhanced Ringtone If Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality If Enable transferring to queues with no working agents Spam White List †† Tenant - Logo Tenant - Logo The file must be an image(,jpg, .png, .glf or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.	Default Time Zone		
Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time (GMT-3) Yukon Time Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Name Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Ye Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Ye Enable Agents My Recording Functionality Ye Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	(GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No	Daylight Saving Time)	
(GMT-10) Aleutian Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time (GMT-10) Hawaii Time (GMT-9) Yukon Time Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents Allow Agents to Change Name Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Ye Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Ye Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Ye Enable transferring to queues with no working agents			Spam White List TT
GMT-10) Hawaii Time Image: Common time GMT-9) Yukon Time Image: Common time Tenant Label cosmin4test Default Agent Display Name First Name First Name Image: Common time Allow Agents to Change Name Image: Common time Allow Agents to Change Display Name Image: Common time Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Image: Common time Image: Common time Image: Common time Image: Common timage: Common time Image: Common time			
CGMT-9) Yukon Time Tenant Lago Tenant Label cosmin4test Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents The file must be an image(,jpg, ,png, ,gif or ,bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Image: Transferring to queues with no working agents Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	· · · · ·		
Tenant Label cosmin4test Choose Files No file chosen Default Agent Display Name First Name The file must be an image(,jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Name Allow Agents to Change Display Name The file must be an image(,jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Image: Enable Change to queues with no working agents Enable transferring to queues with no working agents			
Default Agent Display Name First Name Reset all agents The file must be an image(.jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Image: Screenping to queues with no working agents Enable transferring to queues with no working agents			Tenant - Logo
Reset all agents The file must be an image(.)pp, .pg, .gf or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Size or Display Name Allow Agents to Change Size or Display Name Allow Agents to Change Size or Display Name East than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Yes than 1mb Size or Display Name East than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Size or Display Name East than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Yes than 2mble Size or Display Name Enable Size or Change Size or Display Name Yes than 2mble Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Yes Enable transferring to queues with no working agents Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	Tenant Label	cosmin4test	Choose Files No file chosen
Reset all agents less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Name It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Display Name It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Allow Agents to Change Screenpop It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Yes Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels. Yes Enable fransferring to queues with no working agents	Default Agent Display Name	First Name	The file must be an impact ing and aff or home) with a size of
Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no working agents		Reset all agents	
Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	Allow Agents to Change Name	e	
 ✓ Enable SSL for Agent GUI Enable Enhanced Ringtone ✓ Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality ✓ Enable transferring to queues with no working agents 	Allow Agents to Change Displ	ay Name	
Enable Enhanced Ringtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	Allow Agents to Change Scree	enpop	
 Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no working agents 	Enable SSL for Agent GUI		
Enable transferring to queues with no working agents	Enable Enhanced Ringtone		
-	Enable Agent's My Recording	Functionality	
Allow agents to configure warning message popup	C Enable transferring to queues with no working agents		

permitted, by the agents in 8x8 Agent Console. The changes immediately appear in both applications.

Release 9.4.3

Enhanced Control for CRM Reports: As an administrator, you have the ability to allow or prevent agents from creating or downloading reports for customers, cases, and tasks in Local CRM. By default, agents are allowed to create and download reports.

Release 9.4

This release offers Global Reach for 8x8 Contact Center. The Single Tenant Global Reach initiative from 8x8 Contact Center provides best call quality on VoIP across the globe. If your contact center has agents and customers distributed globally, serving your customers 24/7 with the right skilled agents and providing smooth call quality can be a challenge given the global operation. The last thing you want is to distress customers with poor call quality when they need help. The Single Tenant Global Reach initiative from 8x8 Contact Center provides best call quality on VoIP across continents.

With Single Tenant Global Reach, 8x8 Contact Center houses all your agents on a single platform and on a single tenant irrespective of their geographic location. The single-tenant architecture eliminates the need to log in to multiple tenants to manage traffic from different continents. An agent logging in from North America can service customer interactions not only from North America, but also from Europe and Asia Pacific with a single login and with little compromise on the interaction quality.

Benefits of global reach

- Single tenant for a global contact center
- Best call quality for global audience
- Availability of media servers in US, Canada, Europe, Australia, and Asia Pacific
- Call flow based on the media server closest to the point of call origination
- Eliminated need for multiple tenants to serve geographically-distributed agents
- Smooth call quality and agent interaction experience

For details on Global Reach use cases, refer to Single Tenant Global Reach.

Improvements

In addition to Global Reach, the release offers key improvements in IVR capabilities, improving caller experience:

- In-Queue Treatments and Controls: Ability to provide better in-queue experience to callers.
- Queued Callback: Ability to call back customers who opted out of waiting in the queue.
- Text to Speech: Ability to announce free text or dynamically collected data using the text to speech engine.
- Agent Menu: Enhanced experience for callers in direct agent routed calls.
- IVR Variables: The ability to set variables allows programming abilities within IVR scripts enabling better caller experience. You can use variables to store the user input and use them to drive the call flow.

Other features and enhancements include:

- Time Zone Enhancements: Support for multiple time zones to better handle global operation of the contact center.
- Co-browsing via Chat: Ability to initiate Co-browsing via chat sessions.
- Improvements in Local CRM: The Local CRM now gives the ability to mark fields as mandatory, customize the display order of these fields, and even hide them.
- Optimized call quality and routing: We allow agents to input their country of location that helps optimize call quality and routing.
- Localization: We support European French and German languages.
- Browser Support: We support Microsoft Edge browser.

Release 8.1

- Multi-Chat
- Embedded Chat Design
- Enhanced Chat Script
- Direct Agent Routing
- Script Decoupling
- Single Sign-On Access for NetSuite Integration
- Single Sign-On Access for Zendesk Integration
- Handling Multilingual Chat
- Common Identifier for Pre-Chat Forms in Multiple Languages
- Enhanced Awareness of Queue Status
- Enhanced System Access Authentication
- Shared Wallboard Authentication

8x8

Get started

8x8 Contact Center administrators use 8x8 Configuration Manager to get started with:

- Understand basic entities of 8x8 Contact Center
- Plan 8x8 Contact Center entities
- Before You Start
- How to Log In and Log Out
- Reset Password
- Change your language settings
- Update email address

Understand basic entities of 8x8 Contact Center

The primary call-handling characteristics of your 8x8 Contact Center are determined by four interaction processing and reporting entities. When a phone, chat, or email interaction enter 8x8 Contact Center, appropriate channels receive them, direct them to the desired queues, and lastly to agents who are members of the queue. The following image shows an overview of 8x8 Contact Center entities and relationships.



The following table lists the entities in the order they process an incoming service request:

Call handling or reporting entity	Description of inputs, operation, and outputs
Channels	 Receive new service requests (calls or interactions) from phone, email, or chat communications media.
	 Categorize each incoming service request.
	 Send incoming service requests to the appropriate queue.
Queues	 Receive service requests from one or more channels.
	 Prioritize each service request.

Call handling or reporting entity	Description of inputs, operation, and outputs
	 Send service requests to the agents assigned to the queues.
Agents	 Receive prioritized service requests from queues.
	 Service the incoming interaction.
	Complete the interaction.
Groups	Specify organizational categories, such as Sales or Support, used to analyze and report upon the performance of the contact center's Channels, Queues, and Agents.

Plan 8x8 Contact Center entities

8x8 Contact Center consists of a series of configuration entities.

To use 8x8 Configuration Manager most efficiently, and to create and configure your contact center's entities, follow a top-down hierarchy. The following image illustrates the contact center planning and configuration hierarchy, and lists the contact center planning considerations you use when creating and configuring those entities.



Because the Groups, Agents, Queues, and Channels entities are interrelated, you can save time if you create and configure the entities in the following order:

 Create Groups for the categories that use 8x8 Contact Center. Groups may be functional (Support or Sales), or organizational (by team or management entity). Creating Groups first enables you to completely create new Agent profiles.

- 2. Create Agent accounts for all of your contact center agents.
- Define your contact center's Phone, Email, Chat, and Voicemail Queues.
 To enable you to assign voice mail rollover to your Phone queues, create your Voicemail queues first.
 When you create Queues, you can assign one or more previously defined Agents to the Queue.
- Configure your Phone Channels, then create Email, or Chat Channels.
 To create a Phone Channel, contact 8x8, Inc.'s provisioning department.
- Configure your Local CRM. Add customized customer, case, and follow-up fields to your CRM.

8x8

Before you start

To configure your 8x8 Contact Center, you need to:

- Review technical requirements: More¹
- Create a maintenance notification distribution list: More²
- Compile a list of users: More³
- Gather physical phone number, soft or SIP phone IDs: More⁴
- Diagram automated call processing rules: More⁵

¹To ensure your infrastructure is best configured to interoperate with 8x8 Contact Center, refer to the 8x8 Contact Center Technical Requirements document.

²8x8 Contact Center sends maintenance notifications via email. We recommend you ask your email administrator to set up an email distribution list that includes all employees in your company who want to be notified of contact center maintenance. You can then enter the email list under Home > Profile.

³Compile a list of employees who will use 8x8 Contact Center to interact with customers. The list should include the first and last name, email address, login name, and phone number the user uses as their agent number in 8x8 Contact Center.

⁴If agents use physical phones to process contact center calls, gather agents' phone numbers. If agents use softphones (such as Bria), the software must be downloaded and installed. Gather the SIP phone IDs.

⁵Draft a diagram on how you would like your call flow to be. This helps you configure an interaction flow to achieve the best customer experience.

Log in

8x8 Contact Center administrators need a login URL and credentials to access 8x8 Configuration Manager. 8x8 Provisioning provides you with the URL, username, and password to log in to your 8x8 Configuration Manager account.

Before you begin

Before you log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- For the latest browser requirements, refer to the 8x8 Contact Center Technical Requirements document.
- Acquire the URL, username, and password for your 8x8 Contact Center tenant's 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Log in roles

You can log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager in various roles. For details, refer to Roles and Administrators.

- Primary administrator: an administrator with unrestricted administrative privileges to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- Role-based or Secondary administrator: an administrator who assumes a role with full or partial configuration rights to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- Wallboard Access: a Secondary administrator to access and run 8x8 Wallboards.

Log in as the Primary administrator

The 8x8 Provisioning communicates information required to log in to your tenant by email. The email provides:

- URL to log in to your tenant
- URL to log in as an agent
- Login credentials

To log in as a Primary administrator:

- 1. Initiate a browser session.
- 2. Enter the URL provided by 8x8, such as https://vcc-na8.8x8.com/CM/login.php.

8x8 Configuration Manager displays the Administrator login page.

- 3. In the Login page, enter your Login ID and password:
 - Login ID: <TenantName>
 - Password: <TenantPassword>
- 4. Click Login.

8x8 Configuration Manager launches the **Home >Summary** page.

3				යී John Smith (rr1q9a2 1)	My Profile	Help	
	Home » Summa	rv					
ty		- /					
Groups							
s	Summary Profile	Audio Files S	chedules Dial Plans				
s/Skills							
ls	Incoming Channels		Agent Groups				
	Phone	8	Support	17	A		
	Email	2	Sales	7			
t	Chat	3	Apple	0			
nd	Social		OPS	0			
d			VCCSales	0			
Ins	Inbound Queues		ProductSupport	2			
ist	Phone	13	VO Support	0			
ion	Email	2	val support	3			
odes	Chat	3	AcmeJets	0			
on	Voice Mail	8	test	0	•		
	Outbound Queues						
nd Codes	Phone	5	*				
ard							
esign							

Log in as a Secondary administrator

As a Secondary administrator, you inherit privileges defined for the role you are assigned to. For example, if you are a campaign manager with administrative rights to the Campaigns object, you can create, edit, and manage campaigns.

To log in as a Secondary administrator:

- 1. Go to the 8x8 Configuration Manager login page.
- 2. Enter the login credentials communicated to you.

If the login URL does not contain the tenant name (as in https://vcc-na8.8x8.com/CM/login.php); add the tenant name in the Login ID:

- Login Id: <AdministratorUserName>@<TenantName> as in nwayne@AcmeJets
- Password: <AdministratorPassword>

Log in for Wallboard Access

Use the 8x8 Configuration Manager login credentials to access and run wallboards. For details, refer to Run a

Wallboard.

To Access Wallboards:

1. In the 8x8 Configuration Manager login screen, select Wallboard Access from the drop-down menu.

8x8 Global Cloud Communications	Login	Enter:	Configuration Manager Configuration Manager Wallboard Access
	Iogin password Remember me Forgot Password? Login Version: 9.6.0 © 2018 8x8, Inc.		
Relaser 47393			Powered by 8x8

2. Enter the 8x8 Configuration Manager login credentials, and click **Login**. The Wallboard launches displaying the list of configured wallboards.

Log out

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, click Logout in the header bar to log out of the 8x8 Configuration Manager.

			උ Dana Berg	mann (AcmeJets)	My Profile	Help	Logout
Home » Summ	nary						(j)
Summary Profile	Audio Files Schedule	s Dial Plans					
Incoming Channels		Agent Groups					
Phone	0	Ungroup	0				
Email	0	Sales	3				
Chat	0	Support	3				
Social	0	Marketing	0				
Inbound Queues							
Phone	2						
Email	2						
Chat	1						
Voice Mail	2						
Outbound Queues							
Phone	2						

Additionally, 8x8 Configuration Manager forces you to log out during:

- Idle Time: When your session is idle for longer than 45 minutes, the session logs you out automatically.
- Concurrent Session: Your login credentials allow you access to a single session only. Invoking a second session using the same credentials logs you out of the first session.

Reset password

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can change your password and security question by going to your profile in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To change the password or your security question:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the top navigation menu click My Profile.
- 3. Enter the Old Password and the New Password.
- 4. Enter a Security Question for additional password protection. The security question is offered when you request your password to be reset. You must answer the security question to receive a link with the temporary password.
- 5. Click Save.

Forgot password

If you forget your password during login, you can reset the password. When you reset the password, you receive an email communication with a temporary password. The reset password is your gateway to change the password. When you log in with the reset password, you are prompted to change the password. The changed password takes effect from the next login session. The login fails if you do not change the password.

To reset the password:

- 1. Go to the 8x8 Configuration Manager login screen.
- 2. Click Forgot?.

Bx8 Global Cloud Communications	Login	Enter:	Configuration Manager	•
	login password Remember me Forgot Password? Login Version: 9.6.0			
	© 2018 8x8, Inc.			
Release: 46369			Powered by 8x8	

A Reset Password window appears and you are prompted to enter your user name.

3. Enter the User Name, and click Continue.

A message indicates that the reset password will be communicated to your email instantly.

- 4. Retrieve the temporary reset password from the email communication. If you have set the security question, you must answer it first in order to receive the link with a temporary password.
- 5. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager with the reset password.

You are prompted to change the password.

Enter a new password, and click Change.
 The changed password takes effect from the next login session.

Change your language settings

8x8 Contact Center administrators can select their preferred language for 8x8 Configuration Manager. To change the language from English (default) to a different language, go to My Profile in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To change the language you use to see Configuration Manager:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the top navigation menu click My Profile.

			ے ا	n Smith (rr1q9a2 1)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
My Profile						٨		()
						profile, initiate session, and m		
General Settings			Security Settings		browsing s	session, and m	ore.	
* User Name :	jsmith		Old Password :				_	
* First Name :	John		New Password :					
* Last Name :	Smith		Retype Password :					
* Email :	nalini@8x8.com		Security Question :		•			
* Language :	English (US)	•	Security Answer :					
		Save	Cancel					

- 3. Select a different **Language** from the list and click **Save**. The new language is in effect the next time you log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager. We support the following languages:
 - English
 - Japanese
 - French
 - Canadian French
 - German
 - Spanish
 - Dutch
 - Italian
 - Portuguese

Update email address

As an administrator, you can update your email address by going to My Profile in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To update the administrator email:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the top navigation menu click My Profile.
- 3. Enter your new Email.
- 4. Click Save.
Tour the 8x8 Configuration Manager interface

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, when you log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager, you see the Configuration Menu, the Home page, and some tabs. 8x8 Configuration Manager organizes the user interface into three functional areas:

3x8				ے Dar	a Bergmann (AcmeJets)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
^{lome} 1	Home » Sumn	nary				3			G
ecurity									
	Summary Profile	Audio Files S	hedules Dial Plans Agen	it's Idle Timer					
	Incoming Channels		Agent Groups						
	Phone	0		0					
			Ungroup						
	Email	0	Sales	3					
Support Center	Chat	0	Support	3					
	Social	0	Marketing	0					
Dutbound Setup	Inbound Queues								
Campaigns	Phone	2							
Broadcast	Email	2							
ntegration	Chat	1		2					
Status Codes				2					
ransaction	Voice Mail	2							
ransaction Codes	Outbound Queues								
outbound Phone Codes	Phone	2							
Vallboard									
hat design									

The following table summarizes the functional areas in 8x8 Configuration Manager. For details about each area, see Summary of the 8x8 Configuration Manager Tabs.

Functional Area	Description
1) Configuration Menu	Use the Configuration Menuon the left to configure a desired functionality for your contact center. The Configuration Menu lists features your company has subscribed to.
2) Configuration tabs	Select a desired item in the Configuration Menu, such as Profile or Audio Files, to configure the feature.
3) Header Bar	 My Profile: Allows the Secondary administrator to change their 8x8 Configuration Manager interface language to French or Japanese, for example, edit their email address, change password and set up a security question using this link. For more information refer to How to change the role-base administrator password. The supported languages are: English, Japanese, French, Canadian French, German, Spanish, Dutch, Italian, and Portuguese. Co-browsing: Allows 8x8 Contact Center customers using 8x8 Configuration Manager to

Functional Area	Description				
	seek hands-on assistance from 8x8 customer support or deployment team. To initiate a Co- browsing session from 8x8 Configuration Manager:				
	1. Click Co-browsing .				
	 A pop-up window appears with a session ID that helps you establish a secure connection with the customer support agent. 				
	 Communicate the Session ID to the agent, and click Start. See Get Remote Customer Assistance. 				
	Logout: Logs you out of 8x8 Contact Center.				

Get remote customer assistance

8x8 Contact Center Co-browsing allows customer support agents to assist customers remotely via a shared browser. With Co-browsing, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can empower a website or any browser-based application, and offer live, hands-on assistance to customers. A customer in need of assistance must initiate the remote session, generate a unique session code, communicate it to an agent via phone or chat. The agent then uses the code to establish a remote session. Co-browsing session co-exists with a call or a chat for communicating the session code.

Features

- Visual, real-time web page assistance: Monitor and assist customers in real time through browser instance shared by the customer.
- Mouse tracking: As a customer, easily follow along by viewing the agent's mouse location and movement.
- Platform details: Access information about the customer's platform.
- Sub-domain support: The Co-browsing session continues working if the user navigates to a site that is hosted in a sub-domain, assuming that Co-browsing snippet is also included on that new sub-domain.
- Form co-filling: Co-fill forms on websites.
- Customer privacy and security: During a Co-browsing session, if the customer is filling a form and entering sensitive information such as SSN in a form, it can be encrypted and hidden from the agent.
- Highlighting: Agents can highlight content on web pages and call out information to customers during Co-browsing.
 Highlight key elements on the page with drawing tools.
- Auto-fit: Agents can automatically scale the browser view to fit customer's view settings. If the customer's screen is bigger than the agent during a Co-browsing session, agents will have to scroll constantly. With the ability to auto-fit, agents can enable "Auto-fit" to automatically scale the view to fit agent's view settings or manually increment/decrement the zoom level to the desired value.
- Privilege control: You can control the extent of remote help agents can offer using Co-browsing mode. It varies from a basic view only mode to complete control of the browser instance. Take control of the customer's screen, with their permission.

Limitations

- Co-browsing only works in HTTP secure web pages.
- Adobe Flash components, including videos, and Java applets are not supported.
- Anything that is external to the current page is not supported. This includes the file browser window that is open when selecting a file to be uploaded.
- WYSIWIG editors (AceEditor, CodeMirrorEditor, CKEditor, tinymceEditor) are not supported.
- Native tool tips are not visible between the two parties.
- Mouse hover texts do not show in the Agent side.
- Web pages with iframes with different domains are not supported.
- If the web pages open new browser window and the content has Co-browsing, this new window replaces the content in the Agent side.

Supported browsers

See the system requirements for co-browsing supported browsers. Use Case

The following example demonstrates how a given website can be empowered with 8x8 Co-browsing.

Let us review an example of a travel company website visited by customers wanting to book their dream vacations. The website offers many travel packages and options to choose from. It requires customers to identify themselves by filling in a form. If a customer traversing through this website seeks hands-on assistance, he can initiate a remote session with a customer support agent in couple of clicks. Click on a help link on the web page to generate a code. Communicate this code to the representative. The representative uses this code to establish a two-way hands on Co-browsing session.



Co-browsing modes

By setting up a Co-browsing mode, administrators can control the extent to which agents can assist customers remotely. Co-browsing can be enabled in one of the following modes via code snippet. If you do not provide a mode in the code snippet, full-control is the default mode:

- full-control (default): In this mode, agents have full control of the customer's browser session, including synchronized navigation and the ability to highlight and co-fill a form on the web page. The agent's cursor movements and mouse clicks are in sync with the customer, and vice versa. This is the default mode. If you do not provide a mode in the code snippet, full-control is the default mode.
- partial-control: In this mode, agents can highlight and control the browser navigation, but do not have the privileges to fill any forms on the Co-browsed page. All HTML form elements are disabled on the agent side, alerting agents with the message "Forms cannot be edited on the agent side".
- no-control: This is a view-only mode. Agents can observe the customer's navigation, highlight, and offer guidance.



Notes:

-The highlighter works in all modes.

-In the full-control and partial-control modes, we cannot prevent agents from controlling form elements that are not native to the browser, such HTML drop-down.

How do I get remote customer assistance?

Co-browsing in 8x8 Configuration Manager offers 8x8 Contact Center customers using 8x8 Configuration Manager to seek hands-on assistance from 8x8 customer support or deployment team. Let us assume you are on a phone call with 8x8 customer support agent seeking assistance for configuring your tenant.

To initiate a Co-browsing session from 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the header bar, click on **Co-browsing** link.

8x8			ය Secondary Administrator (Acme)	ets) My Profile Co-browsing Help Logout
Home Security	Home » Summa	ary	Co-browsing ×	
, Agent Groups			Click Start to initialize the Co-browsing session and provide the Session ID to your	
Agents Queues/Skills	Summary Profile	Audio Files	agent. Session ID:	
	Incoming Channels			
Scripts	Phone	3	Start sharing Close	
CRM	Email	1		Co-browsing -
Support	Chat	2	Co-browsing session not started	Provide the Session ID to your agent. Click on Stop to end at any time.
	Social	0	Powered by 8x8 Inc.	
Outbound			Acme - Onboarding 1	Session ID: 401348
Setup	Inbound Queues		test 0	Stop sharing End session
Campaigns	Phone	3		
Broadcast	Email	1		 Waiting for agent to connect
Integration	Chat	3		Powered by 8x8 Inc.

3. In the pop-up window, click **Start sharing** to generate a code that helps you initiate a secure connection with the customer support agent.

4. Communicate the code you just generated to the agent.

The agent, on the other hand, selects Co-browsing option from the 8x8 Agent Console menu. This triggers a new browser window prompting for the code. Enter the code received from the customer to initiate Co-browsing. The agent can view the 8x8 Configuration Manager session open by customer, co-browse, and observe the mouse movements and events of customer or offer hands-on assistance if needed. The session also respects the browser size set by the customer. Both parties can observe each other's mouse movements and events.

	Menu 🍷 Sasha (Sasha Smith)
•	Profile 0m:19s
	My Recording
Q	Monitoring
	Report
	External CRM Recents
Q	CRM 🖓
4	Collaborate 🕒 🔶
IN	Co-browsing
4	Help 🕨 Om:00s 🏠
ou	TBOUND PHONE
å S	ales Phone 0 0 0m:00s 🟠
CH	
å S	ales Chat 0 0 0m:00s 🛱 🚽
Q	All Favorites Recents
۵.	Name 🕓 🕇
SAI	LES 🛓
~ s	asha Smith 0m:16s
	Show Status in: One Tab 🔻
	Powered by 8x8

See how you can enable Co-browsing via chat as an administrator in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Summary of the 8x8 Configuration Manager tabs

8x8 Contact Center administrators find the following table summarizing the Configuration Menu, Configuration tabs, and their functionality in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

8x8 Configuration Manager Page	Tabs Directly Accessible from the Page
Home	 View or modify the following information in Home page: Summary: View a summary of your tenant channels, groups, and queues. Profile: Configure account and tenant settings. Audio Files: Upload and manage audio files for greetings, pre-recorded phone menu messages, and Agent whisper audio files. Schedules: Configure the schedules for the contact center. For example, you can have a separate schedules for Support staff and Sales. Dial Plans: Configure the tenant default dial plan or create a custom dial plan. Agent's Idle Timer: Refers to the length of time agents have been idle. By default, an agent is considered idle from the time he ends post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction and becomes available. It can be configured to reset when agents transition from one status to another.
Security	 Security options include: Password Policies: Set up up password policies for Administrator, Agent and Supervisor accounts, and set up account lockup. Roles: Create roles, define privileges or permissions, add and assign administrators to the roles. Administrators: Add or edit administrators and enter their user names and password. SMTP Servers: Configure a custom SMTP server for better security and HIPAA compliance in addition to the tenant SMTP server. IP Address Restriction: To identify secure IP addresses from which agents and administrators can connect to the 8x8 Contact Center network.

8x8 Configuration Manager Page	Tabs Directly Accessible from the Page				
	 DTMF Blacklist: To add, edit, and delete phone numbers as well as SIP URIs in your DTMF blacklist. The DTMF blacklist is an existing service to stop recording a call once connected to a blacklisted destination and mask any key presses in the customer experience call flow. 				
Agent Groups	Groups are organizational categories, such as Sales or Support. A group includes a collection of agents who report to a supervisor. For details, refer to Create Agent Functional Groups.				
Agents	Agents use the 8x8 Agent Console to view and manage customer interactions. 8x8 Contact Center supports agents and supervisors. You can add agents and configure their workplace phone, assign queues, grant supervisor rights, and enable CRM and tab permissions using the Agents tab.				
Queues/Skills	 A queue is an ordered collection of interactions waiting to be served by agents qualified to respond to these interactions. Queues direct incoming interactions to agents. In Queues you can: 				
	 Create, edit, copy, and delete queues of all media types: inbound and outbound phone, chat, email, and voicemail. 				
	 Assign members to queues 				
	 Define targeted service level For details, refer to Create and configure queues. 				
Channels	 Phone: Process inbound and outbound phone interactions using the phone channels. A phone channel is automatically crated when a number is ordered for the tenant through provisioning Email: Process inbound and outbound email interactions using the email channels. Email channels are created by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in 8x8 Contact Center. 				
	 Chat: Process incoming chat requests using the chat channels and direct chat requests from customers to contact center agents. Chat channels are created by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in 8x8 Contact Center. 				
	 Social: Process incoming chat requests from Facebook and Twitter and allow agents to accept and handle chat requests from social media. Social channels are created by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in 8x8 Contact Center. 				
	 SMS: Process messages routed via SMS channels and chat queues to agents, and offered to them as chat interactions for responses. Agents look up customer records from an existing customer. They can look up outstanding cases and history of interactions to handle the 				

8x8 Configuration Manager Page	Tabs Directly Accessible from the Page	
	 conversation effectively. Chat API: Connect directly to an agent from your own system such as enabling your clients to communicate with an agent from mobile app-based chat, Desktop web chatbots, and messaging via integrations with other apps or platforms. See our content on chat workflow for developers. 	
	Phone, web chat, and email interactions arrive at a tenant on a channel. Email and chat channels are created in the Channels page. You can add a new email and chat channels and edit the existing phone channels. For details, refer to Create channels .	
	Note: To create a Phone channel, contact the 8x8, Inc. provisioning department.	
Scripts	IVR scripts define how 8x8 Contact Center processes Phone, Chat, Email, Social, or SMS inter- actions. They provide the capability of guiding incoming interactions to self-direct them to the desired destination within the contact center. Create a user-defined script or use a system default script such as IVR script default .	
CRM	The CRM page allows agents and supervisors to manage customers, cases, follow-ups, and tasks. For details, refer to Configure Local CRM.	
Outbound Setup	For campaigns to function successfully, they need to connect to the 8x8 Contact Center CRM or an External CRM, extract data from a specific CRM object, and generate a target call list. The Outbound Setup allows defining global properties for campaign management. For details, refer to Configure Outbound Setup.	
Campaigns	A campaign is an outbound phone based dialer that enables you to search, generate, and feed a call list to an outbound queue facilitating automated outbound dialing. The Campaigns page allows defin- ing new campaigns, or controlling or managing existing campaigns. For details, refer to Create a Campaign.	
Broadcast	Use the Broadcast page to send a message to one or more Agent Groups. The page contains only the Broadcast tab. For details, refer to Broadcast Messages .	
Integration	8x8 Contact Center offers integration capabilities with Local CRM and third party Customer Resource	

8x8 Configuration Manager Page	Tabs Directly Accessible from the Page	
	Management (CRM) systems. For details, refer to Integrate with External CRM.	
Status Codes	Status codes allow contact center supervisors to track how an agent functions through a workday. For details, refer to Status Codes Overview.	
Transaction Codes	Transaction codes offer a means to apply call disposition to inbound as well as outbound inter- actions. For details, refer to Transaction Codes Overview.	
Outbound Phone Codes	Outbound Phone Codes allows you to define and configure Outbound Phone Code lists. For details, refer to Outbound Phone Codes Overview.	
Wallboard	Wallboard allows you to get the real-time metrics of your contact center operations. For details, refer to Wallboards Overview.	
Chat Design	Chat design allows you to design a custom chat to match your company's requirements and to create a custom chat script to control the chat flow. For details, refer to Configure Embedded chat design.	

Configure accounts and profiles

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, use the 8x8 Configuration Manager Home page to:

- View Channels, Groups, and Queues Summary
- Configure Profile Settings
- Configure Audio Files and Recorded Greetings
- Define Business Hours and Schedules
- Understand Tenant Dial Plans
- Reset Agent's Idle Timer

View 8x8 Contact Center summary

Admins can have a quick view of their 8x8 Contact Center channels, queues, and agent groups by going to Home > Summary. A channel facilitates communication of interactions in and out of a 8x8 Contact Center tenant. A queue is an ordered collection of interactions waiting to be served by agents who are qualified to respond to these interactions. An agent group is a collection of agents who report to a supervisor. A single group may serve your entire call center or may be dedicated to one or more products, services, queues, or to a specific communication channel such as phone, email, or chat. 8x8 Contact Center uses skill-based routing rules to place interactions to the appropriate queues.

Home » S	lome » Summary					
Summary	Profile	Audio Files	Schedules	Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer	
Incoming Cha	innels			Agent Groups		
Phone		0		Ungroup		D
Email		2		Sales		3
Chat		2		Support		3
Social		0		Marketing		2
Inbound Que	105					
Phone	les	2				
Email		2				
Chat		1				
Voice Mail		2				
Outbound Qu						
Phone		2				

The **Summary** page provides a quick statistical summary of:

- Phone, email and chat channels configured for your tenant.
- Inbound and outbound queues for all media, such as phone or email.
- Agent groups, with the number of agents in each group.

Summary page options

The following table summarizes the information you can find under **Home > Summary**. You can view a summary of incoming channels, inbound and outbound queues, and agent groups in this page.

Summary tab option	Description
Incoming Channels	For each type of Channel, summarizes the number of Channel definitions of that type. For details on Channels, refer to Create and configure channels.
Inbound Queues	Summarizes the number of Inbound Queue definitions of that type. For details on Queues, refer to Create and configure queues.
Outbound Queues	Summarizes the number of Outbound Queue definitions of that type. For details on Queues, refer to Create and configure queues.
Agent Groups	For each Group definition, summarizes the number of Agents assigned to that group. For details on Groups, refer to Create agent functional groups. For details on Agents, refer to Add agents.

Configure profile settings

8x8 Contact Center administrators can find their tenant name, tenant language, support level, and other tenant subscription information besides the account preferences under Home > Profile in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

3x8	名 Dana Bergmann (AcmeJets) My Profile Co-browsing Help Logout
•me Home » Profile	0
ecurity gent Groups	
gents Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules	Dial Plans Agent's Idle Timer
Hueues/Skills hannels Tenant Name: Support Support Level: Default Caller ID: 14084571955 Version - Packa cripts Language: English (default) Revision : RM	
Outbound Setup Administration & File Transfer Passwords	Service notifications - email addresses
ampaigns Current Configuration Manager Password Password	service inclinitations - eminal adulesses * Administrator's email(s)* ryan.cox@8x8.com
tegration Configuration Manager - change password	
atus Codes New Password (min. 8 chars.) ansaction Retype New Password odes	* Maintenance email distribution list(s)* ryan.cox@8x8.com
Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password	
hone Codes Password (min. 8 chars.)	Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters
Retype Password Antopart	Spam threshold level 5 🔍
	Spam Black List #
Miscellaneous tenant settings	
Default Time Zone	
(GMT-8) Pacific Time	*
Other Time Zone (Edit)	Spam White List #
No items to show	
	Tenant - Logo
Tenant Label Support	Choose Files No file chosen
Default Agent Display Name "Agent" Reset all agents	The file must be an image(jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.
Allow Agents to Change Name Allow Agents to Change Display Name	
Allow Agents to Change Display Name	0.00
Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	Phone Connection Mode
☑ Enable SSL for Agent GUI	Default Connection Mode ⑦ Persistent
Enable Workplace setting change validation	Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode
Enable Enhanced Ringtone	Z Enable Auto Answer 💿 Reset all
 Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no working agents 	DAR Post-processing Timeout 🕐 1 minute 🔷 Reset all
 Allow agents to configure warning message popup 	
Enable agents to return to available status after pulling emails	ail
Enable sending FAQ as HTML	
Enable Queue/Skill groups	
† separate email addresses with comma (,)	
the separate email addresses with carriage return (Enter)	Save Cancel

The information in the **Profile** page is grouped under the following areas:

 Administration and File Transfer Passwords: The current password required to set a new password for either 8x8 Configuration Manager, or Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES).

- Configuration Manager change password: Allows the Primary administrator to change 8x8 Configuration Manager password. You must enter the current password first and then enter a new password.
- Secure File transfer Protocol (FTPES) set password: Allows the Primary administrator to set up a password to access agent call recordings through FTPES (Secure File Transfer Protocol).
- Miscellaneous tenant settings: Groups information on the tenant time zone, tenant label, and options to allow agents to change name, enable SSL API, change screen pop settings, and enable agent's workplace setting change validation.
- Service Notifications email addresses: Specify email addresses for administrator and maintenance email distribution list.
- Tenant email SPAM filtering parameters: Defines threshold level to filter unwanted emails and allows listing Spam Black Lists¹ and Spam White Lists².
- Tenant Logo: Allows you to upload an image logo for branding 8x8 wallboards. Click Browse and upload an image.
- Phone Connection Mode: With Phone Connection Mode, agents set up their voice connection before they start working on calls and remain connected throughout their working day. Admins can set the tenant's default connection mode to Persistent or On Demand. Admins can also allow agents to change their Phone Connection Mode in 8x8 Agent Console if needed. Admins can enable Auto Answerfor agents and increase the DAR post-processing timeout.

For a detailed summary of your tenant settings, refer to Summary of Profile Settings. See the following topics to learn how to configure your tenant settings:

- Allow multiple time zones
- Enable Phone Connection Mode
- Enable Auto Answer
- Enable Workplace Setting Validation

¹List of email addresses whose communications should be filtered.

²List of email addresses whose communications are classified as legitimate.

Summary of profile settings

8x8 Contact Center administrators find the following table in 8x8 Configuration Manager summarizing the options available under Home > Profile:

Profile tab option	Description				
Tenant Name	Shows the name of your tenant. It can be your company name. 8x8 Con- figuration Manager adds the value of the Company Name text entry area to the top of the 8x8 Configuration Manager browser window.				
Support Level	Indicates your tenant's support level.				
Concurrent Access Limit	ndicates the maximum simultaneous users that can log into 8x8 Agent Console or 8x8 Supervisor Console. Each Concurrent Access equires a Named User. One Concurrent Access and one Named User s synonymous with an agent seat. Named User can also be equivalent o an additional login.				
Default Caller ID	Specifies the default caller ID for the tenant. This number is displayed to the dialed party as the caller's phone number when placing an outbound call from 8x8 Contact Center.				
Version Package	Specifies the version of 8x8 Contact Center.				
Named Users Limit	Indicates the maximum number of named users that can be added to the tenant. This field displays your current subscription plus one or two for authorized customer support users. Named User functionality provides for unique personal identity with roles (agent or supervisor) and permissions.				
	Note: Each Tenant is pre-configured with one or two Named Users at no charge. These are used by authorized customer support personnel for troubleshooting purposes. You can identify the pre- configured users by an assigned group of 8x8 Contact				

Profile tab option	Description
	Center support.
Language	Read-only reminder of the language used to display the 8x8 Con- figuration Manager user interface. This language setting was applied as requested when your 8x8 Contact Center tenant was originally cre- ated, and it cannot be changed.
	Note: Your agents can select their preferred language separately in 8x8 Agent Console.
Revision	Represents the revision number of 8x8 Contact Center.
Configured Users	Indicates the number of Named Users currently setup in the tenant. The difference between the Named Users Limit and Configured Users are the remaining Named Users quantity that can be profiled.
Administration & F	ile Transfer Passwords
Current Configuration Manager Password	Allows the Primary Administrator to change 8x8 Configuration Manager password. The new password must have minimum of 8 characters.
Configuration Mana	ager - Change Password
New Password	Enter a new password for 8x8 Configuration Manager.
Retype New Pass- word	Retype your new password for 8x8 Configuration Manager.
Secure File Transfe	er Protocol (FTPES)- set password
Password (min.8 chars.) Retype Password	Enables setting up a password for Secure File Transfer Protocol of agent call recoding files. For details on agent recording files, refer to Configure Phone Settings. For details on downloading agent recordings, refer to Access Agent Recorded Calls.
Miscellaneous Ten	ant Settings
Default Time Zone	Refers to your contact center's local time zone. Specifying the time zone enables 8x8 Configuration Manager to:

Profile tab option	Description
	 Correctly interpret the hours of operation specified in the Schedule tab. For details on the Schedule tab, refer to Define Business Hours and Schedules.
	 Display time-stamped events in local time.
Other Time Zone	8x8 Contact Center supports time zone for global operation by allowing multiple time zone selections within the same tenant. Multiple time zones helps tenants with offices across the world. Supervisors can monitor queue and agent activities based on the local time zone.
Tenant Label	Refers to the Tenant Label that appears on top of 8x8 Configuration Manager browser window. You can label the tenant differently from the Tenant ID.
Default Agent Display Name	Select whether you want to display the word Agent or the agent's first name such as <robin>. The agent's display name appears in 8x8 Agent Console. Reset all agents, clears all custom display names. You can also select to overwrite the group settings at this time.</robin>
Allow Agents to Change Name	Allows agents to change their login name from My Profile page after they log in to 8x8 Agent Console and save.
Allow Agents to Change Display Name	 Allows agents to change their display name in the 8x8 Agent Console's Profile page. Display Name helps agents save time and effort to introduce themselves to customers every time they start a new chat. The agent's display name appears in the 8x8 Agent Console's control panel, Profile page, chat window, and CRM case created after a chat session. It can be modified by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in the 8x8 Configuration Manager, or if permitted, by the agents in 8x8 Agent Console. The changes immediately show up in both applications. To prevent agents from changing their display name at the tenant level, clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name checkbox under Home > Profile. To prevent agents from changing their display name at the tenant level, clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name
	checkbox under Home > Profile . If disabled, this option does not appear at the agent groups level.

Profile tab option	Description					
	 To prevent agents from changing their display name at the group level, clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name checkbox from the Agent Group. This option only appears if it is enabled at the tenant level. 					
Allow Agents to Change Screenpop	Allows agents to change screen pop window properties, such as open- ing a new screen pop window, and modifying the size and position of the window from 8x8 Agent Console.					
Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	This option is enabled by default allowing agents to reject interactions. If disabled, the Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console is disabled pre- venting agents from rejecting the interactions they are offered. The Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console appears when an interaction is offered to the agent. You can set up this ability for an agent group, or individual agents. If you disable this option at the tenant level, the checkbox will not show up for agent groups or individual agents.					
Enable SSL for Agent GUI	By default, the Enable SSL for Agent GUI check box is selected and 8x8 Configuration Manager uses secure communications. 8x8 strongly recommends that you always use secure com- munications when working with 8x8 Configuration Manager. If you tem- porarily need to disable secure communications for purposes of troubleshooting, clear the check box.					
Enable Workplace set- ting change validation	When changing workplace setting (Workplace Phone and Workplace SIP URI), agents must validate their changes to be able to handle the calls. When they click to validate the change, it triggers a phone call to the updated phone number. For details see our content on how to enable workplace setting change validation.					
Enable Enhanced Ringtone	If enabled, the caller hears continued queue music until an agent accepts the call. Once the call is accepted, a short alerting ringtone is played back to the caller to signal the start of the interaction. At the same time, the agent hears a beep notification to prepare them for the call.					
Enable Agent's My Recording Func- tionality	If enabled agents can access the My Recording feature from the 8x8 Agent Console main menu. This option allows agents to record a voice message for the incoming calls.					

Profile tab option	Description					
Enable transferring to queues with no work- ing agents	If enabled, allows agents to transfer interactions to an unattended queue. If disabled, prevents agents from transferring interactions to an unattended queue.					
Allow agents to con- figure warning mes- sage popup	If enabled, agents can disable the warning message before trans- ferring the interaction to an unattended queue.					
Enable agents to return to available status after pulling email	enabled, agents can go back to the Available status after pulling an mail from the queue. If this option is disabled, agent's status remains rorking offline after pulling emails from the queue.					
Service Notification	n - Email Addresses					
Administrator's Email (s)	Lists the Primary administrator's email address. If an Email Channel attempts to retrieve queued emails, and that retrieval attempt fails, then 8x8 Configuration Manager sends email notification to the administrator. For details on Email Channels, refer to Set up Email Channels.					
Maintenance Email Distribution List(s)	Lists the email distribution list(s) to which maintenance issues regard- ing the tenant are mailed.					
Tenant Email - SPA	AM filtering parameters					
Spam Threshold Level	Choose how strictly 8x8 Configuration Manager filters administrative email messages for unsolicited junk email or spam. By default, 8x8 Configuration Manager sets the Spam Threshold Level equal to 5. Choose a lower number to apply stricter spam filtering. Do not choose a spam threshold setting lower than 3 or higher than 7 unless directed to by 8x8 Contact Center support.					
Spam Black / White List	If the Email Script tab in the Email Channel page includes a Check Spam script object, then:					
	 Spam Black List: Enter the email addresses whose communications should be classified as spam. Spam White List: Enter the email addresses which should not be classified as spam. Both the Spam Black List and Spam White List text entry areas support 					

Profile tab option	Description
	the use of asterisks (*) as wild-card characters.
Tenant Logo	
	Select an image logo for branding 8x8 wallboards. Click Choose Files and upload an image.
Phone Connection M	lode
Default Connection Mode	Administrators can choose one of the following Phone Connection Modes for agents: On Demand or Persistent. For details, see our con- tent on how to enable phone connection mode.
Allow Agents to change Phone Con- nection Mode	Agents are able to change their Phone Connection Mode from within the 8x8 Agent Console. For details, see our content on how to change your phone connection mode.
Enable Auto Answer	With Auto Answer, every phone interaction that is offered to an agent is automatically connected eliminating the need to accept it manually. If Auto Answer is provisioned for your tenant, you can enable it at the tenant level, agent group level, or agent level. For details, see our con- tent on how to enable Auto Answer.

Allow multiple time zones

8x8 Contact Center supports time zones for global operation by allowing multiple time zone selections within the same tenant. Access to multiple time zones in 8x8 Configuration Manager, helps tenants with offices across the world. For example, if a business has offices in the US, the UK, and China, the administrator can select the US Pacific time zone as the default, and select UK and China as additional time zones. Agent supervisors in the UK office can monitor queue and agent activity based on their local time zone, and a wallboard manager in China can apply the Asia Pacific time zone to the desired wallboard.

To allow multiple time zones for a tenant:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to the Profile tab.
- Under Other Time Zone, click Edit. You can add more time zones are in addition to your default time zone as desired.
- 4. Select the desired time zone(s) from the list, and click OK.

A time zone that is being used shows up as highlighted.

Home	Home » Profile		G
Security			
Agent Groups			
	Summary Profile Audio Files	Other Time Zone ×	
		Time Zone Used	
		(GMT-10) Aleutian Time	
	Miscellaneous tenant settings	GMT-10) Hawaii Time	
	Default Time Zone (GMT-8) Pacific Time	(GMT-9) Yukon Time	
Outbound Setup	(GMT-8) Pacific Time	✓ (GMT-8) Pacific Time	
	Other Time Zone (Edit)	GMT-0) Pacific Time	
Campaigns			
	No items to show	GMT-7) Mountain Time (US: Arizona, Canada: Dawson Creek)	
		GMT-6) Central Time	
Status Codes	Tenant Label p32test	GMT-6) Central Time (Canada: Most of Saskatchewan)	
Transaction Codes	Default Agent Display Name "Agent"	GMT-5) Eastern Time (US: Most of Indiana)	
Outbound	Reset all	GMT-5) Eastern Time	
Phone Codes	Allow Agents to Change Name	GMT-4) Atlantic Time	
Wallboard	Allow Agents to Change Display Name	(GMT-4) Brazil Amazon Time (No Daylight Saving Time)	
Chat design	Allow Agents to Change Screenpop	(GMT-4) Brazil Amazon Time (Daylight Saving Time)	
	Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	GMT-3:30) Newfoundland Time	
	Enable SSL for Agent GUI	GMT-3) Argentina Time	
	Enable Enhanced Ringtone	🔲 (GMT-3) Brazil Brasilia Time (No Daylight Saving Time) 🗸	
	Enable Agent's My Recording Functiona		
	Enable transferring to queues with no w		
	Allow agents to configure warning n		
	Enable agents to return to available state		
	Enable sending FAQ as HTML		
	Enable Queue/Skill groups		

5. Click OK.

6. Click Save.

The tenant now has multiple time zones. The time zones can be selected when creating a wallboard, or in 8x8 Agent Console, and by supervisors when monitoring queues and agents. In monitoring, time zone is applicable if you select to view data **from beginning of day**.

Enable Phone Connection Mode

8x8 Contact Center has improved call handling capability via Phone Connection Mode. With this feature, agents set up their voice connection before they start working on calls and remain connected throughout their working day. It allows them to respond to incoming and outbound phone calls with a simple click on the user interface improving their call handling efficiency.

8x8 Contact Center administrators can choose one of the following Phone Connection Modes in 8x8 Configuration Manager for agents:

- On Demand: On Demand Connection Mode creates a temporary connection from the agent's workplace phone to the system. The agents have to manually accept the call in their soft or hard phone.
- Persistent: Previously referred to as off-Hook Connection Mode, Persistent Connection Mode creates a constant connection from the agent's workplace phone to the system. Once the connection is open, it will stay active until logged out. Any changes to the setting will remain in effect for the whole duration of the agent's Persistent connection. Agents set up their voice connection before they start working on calls and remain connected throughout their working day. It allows them to respond to incoming and outbound phone calls with a simple click on the user interface, improving their call handling efficiency.

Renaming off-hook connection mode to Persistent Connection Mode

The Off-hook connection mode that was first introduced in 9.8 has been renamed to Persistent Connection Mode. There is no change to the functionality, just to the naming of the feature.

About Persistent Connection Mode

If your tenant is provisioned with Persistent Connection Mode, you can see this feature under Home > Profile. With Persistent Connection Mode, agents can instantly and seamlessly connect to customers and improve their productivity. Persistent Connection Mode provides a constant connection from the agent's device to 8x8 Contact Center. It removes the need to connect the agent's workplace phone for every call handled. Agents set up their voice connection before they start working on calls and remain connected throughout their working day. It allows them to respond to incoming and outbound phone calls with a simple click on the user interface.

Without the Persistent Connection Mode, after agents log in to 8x8 Contact Center and make themselves available, they have to accept the interaction for every call that comes through the queue. If they miss the ringing phone, they will no longer be available to take the interaction.



Note: There is no audio prompt or audio indication for Persistent Connection Mode.

Features

- Agents can immediately and seamlessly connect to customers.
- Offers a persistent connection from the agent's device to VCC that is ready for outbound dialing.
- Removes the need to connect the agent's workplace phone for every call handled.
- Increases productivity from a higher throughput of calls.

Enable Persistent Connection Mode

If Persistent Connection Mode is provisioned for your tenant, you can enable at the tenant, agent group, or the agent level:

Enable Persistent Connection Mode at the Tenant Level

- 1. In 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to Home > Profile.
- 2. Select **Persistent** under **Phone Connection Mode**. It makes the Persistent Connection Mode available for all agents in that tenant.

Reset all allows you to standardize the default connection mode when there are different settings for this feature within the tenant, for agents and agent groups.

3. Select **Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode**. Agents are able to change their connection mode from within the 8x8 Agent Console.

Reset all allows you to reset all agents and agent groups to the tenant setting.

4. Click Save.





Note: The **Reset all** button shows when there are a mixture of settings for that mode or option at the Tenant level.

Enable Persistent Connection Mode at the Agent Group Level

- 1. In 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to Agent Groups from the main menu.
- 2. Click to edit or create a new agent group.
- 3. Select Persistent under Phone Connection Mode.

Reset all agents allows you to standardize the default connection mode for all agents when there are different settings for it within the agent group. For example, you see Reset all if you have enabled agents to choose their mode. Reset all is not available when all settings are the same.

4. Select **Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode** if you want to enable all agents at the agent group to change their connection mode.

8x8						යි a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	Agent Group » Edit Agent	Group » General							Ū
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills	ops								
Channels	< Back to agent group list								
Scripts	General Outbound Phone Codes								
CRM Outbound Setup	* Group Name	ops							
Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes	Comment								
Transaction Codes	Default Agent Display Name	"Agent" v Reset all agents							
Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard	 Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Allow Agents to Reject Interactions 								
Chat design	Phone Connection Mode								
	Default Connection Mode ⑦ Persisten	t 🔹 Reset all agents							
	 Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Enable Auto Answer ⑦ Reset all agents 	Mode							
		Sa	ave	Cancel]				



Note: The **Reset all agents** button only shows when there are a mixture of settings for that mode or option within the Agent Group.

Enable Persistent Connection Mode at the Agent Level

- 1. In 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to the Agentspage.
- 2. Click to edit or create a new agent and open the General tab.
- 3. Select Persistent under Phone Connection Mode.
- 4. Select **Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode** if you want to enable this agent to change their connection mode.

5. Click Save.

8×8					å a50opstest		
Home Security	Agent » Edit	Agent » General					()
Agent Groups							
Agents							
Queues/Skills	(ankit) Robin Shast	a					
Channels	< Back to agent list						
Scripts	General Phon	e Queues Supervisor	CRM & Tab permissions Interacti	ons Experimental Features			
RM	* Last Name	Shasta	Agent secondary language	Russian			
outbound etup	Display Name	Robin		German			
Campaigns	* Email Address	ankit.khare@8x8.com		Japanese			
Broadcast	 Software language 	English (US)		Spanish			- 1
ntegration	• Usemame	ankit	Status-change Coding	No status-change coding is assigned			- 1
tatus Codes	* Password			able/Disable settings in Assigned Queue	_		- 1
ransaction	 Retype Password 		Allow agent to Pull e-mail		2		- 1
odes		Password123!	Allow agent to Delete per				- 1
Outbound Phone Codes			Allow agent to Reject inte	ractions			- 1
Wallboard	Comment		Enable Collaborate				
Chat design			Enable and show Options				
	* Agent Group	ops 🔻	Enable agent's My Record Phone Connection Mode	ing feature			
	* Current Country						
			Default Connection Mode		•		
			Allow agent to change Ph	one Connection Mode			
			Enable Auto Answer 🕜				
							- 1
			Save	Cancel			
							-

Combinations for Persistent Connection Mode and Auto Answer settings

Auto Answer can be combined with the Persistent feature to create an on/off combination of the two features. Auto Answer settings combined with Persistent can be configured at multiple levels depending on the features availability:

Connection	Behavior
Persistent Off, Auto Answer Off	Phone Connection Mode is On Demand and Auto Answer is off, so the agent needs to answer the phone for every phone interaction.
Persistent Off, Auto Answer On	Phone Connection Mode is On Demand and Auto Answer is on, so the agent phone auto- matically connects, and the interaction is auto answered when offered.
Persistent On, Auto Answer Off	Phone Connection Mode is Persistent, so the agent media path is always connected but for every phone interaction the agent needs to click the Accept button.
Persistent On, Auto Answer On	Phone Connection Mode is Persistent, so the agent media path is always connected, and the interaction is automatically answered when offered.

Enable Auto Answer

8x8 Contact Center has improved the call handling efficiency of agents via Auto Answer. Using Auto Answer in 8x8 Configuration Manager, every phone interaction that is offered to an agent is automatically connected eliminating the need to accept it manually. This new configurable option enhances agents efficiency by quickly connecting the calls and reducing the number of clicks an agent has to make. Auto Answer also helps prevent agents from rejecting or missing calls on their workplace phone. When in Auto Answer mode, agents receive an audio prompt to alert them of a call as it connects.



Note: Auto Answer is currently on limited availability. Contact 8x8 Support for more help.

Considerations when using Auto Answer:

- The agent's audio may be connected before any visual notification is made on the screen for the interaction or any screen pop can be enabled.
- Direct Agent Access (DAA) or Direct Agent Routing (DAR) calls are only sent in an Auto Answer mode to an enabled agent if they are on an Available state.
- An Auto Answer agent with a post-processing time set to zero could potentially find themselves with a non-stop succession of calls.
- If a supervisor is in Auto Answer mode monitoring an agent who is not, the supervisor may be connected first, but the customer will continue to hear queue music or the ring tone until the agent is connected.
- Auto Answer is supported by 8x8 Work for Desktop and 8x8 Work for Mobile. If the device is not supported, then the system defaults to the standard manual answer.

- 8x8
 - The Auto Answer feature is visually indicated with an **A** in the phone tab which persists in all agent states.





Enable Auto Answer for your 8x8 Contact Center

With Auto Answer, every phone interaction that is offered to an agent is automatically connected eliminating the need to accept it manually. If Auto Answer is provisioned for your tenant, you can enable it at the tenant level, agent group level, or agent level:

Enable Auto Answer at the Tenant Level

- 1. In 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to Home > Profile.
- 2. Under **Phone Connection Mode**, select **Enable Auto Answer**. If you are enabling this feature for the first time, a confirmation dialog box prompts notifying you that a mandatory validation will also be turned on for security reasons.



3. Click **Ok** to continue. Auto Answer is enabled at the tenant level for all agents. By accepting the mandatory validation, **Enable Workplace setting change validation** is selected and cannot be changed.

8x8				各 Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101) My Profile Co-browsing	Logout	
Home	Home » Profile					
Security Agent Groups	Оре	ration completed successfu	ılly.			
Users Oueues/Skills	Summary Profile Aud	io Files Schedules	Dial Plans A	Agent's Idle Timer		
Channels Scripts CRM	Password (min. 8 chars.) Retype Password			*Administrator's email(s)† ryan.cox@8x8.com		
Outbound Setup Campaigns	Miscellaneous tenant settings Default Time Zone			* Maintenance email distribution list(s)† ryan.cox@8x8.com		
Broadcast	(GMT-8) Pacific Time		*	Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters		
Integration Status Codes	Other Time Zone (Edit)			Spam threshold level 5		
Transaction	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, B	ritish Summer Time		Spam Black List #		
Codes Outbound	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, No Daylight Saving Time			Span black Eist "		
Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Tenant Label Default Agent Display Name	ryandemo01 First Name Reset all agen				
	 Allow Agents to Change Displa Allow Agents to Change Screet Allow Agents to Reject Interact Enable SSL for Agent GU 	y Name Ipop ions	to enable Workplace setting change validation	Spam White List ** Tenant - Logo		
	Enable Workplace setting chan Enable Enhanced Ringtone	ge validation (?)		Choose Files No file chosen		
	 Enable Enhanced Kingtone Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Enable transferring to queues with no working agents 			The flie must be an image(,jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.		
	Allow agents to configure w Enable agents to return to avail Enable sending FAQ as HTML		ail	8 x 8 to enable Persistent		
	Enable Queue/Skill groups		nable Auto Answer	Phone Connection Mode Connection Mode Default Connection Mode • Persistent Reset all Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode Reset all • Reset all ✓ Enable Auto Answer ⑦ Reset all • Reset all • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1	

4. Click **Save** to activate Auto Answer at the tenant level. You have also enabled the workplace setting validation.

Enable Auto Answer at the Agent Group Level

Note: Auto Answer is visible at the agent group level only if you have enabled it	at the tenant level.

- 1. In 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to Agent Groups from the main menu.
- 2. Click to edit or create a new agent group.
- 3. In the **General** tab, select **Enable Auto Answer** if not enabled already. Auto Answer is now enabled at the agent group level for all agents. A confirmation message notifies you when the operation is completed successfully.

4. Click **Save** to activate Auto Answer at the agent group level.

8×8					å a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help
ne urity	Agent Group » Edit Age	nt Group » General				Co-browsing	нер
i t Groups its ies/Skills nels	ops < Back to agent group list						
ts ound	General Outbound Phone Codes * Group Name	ops					
aigns cast ation	Comment						
	Default Agent Display Name	"Agent" Reset all agents	▼				
ınd Codes	Enable Agent's My Recording Functiona Allow Agents to Reject Interactions						
Vallboard Chat design	Phone Connection Mode Default Connection Mode ⑦ Persist I Allow Agents to Change Phone Connec Enable Auto Answer ⑦ Reset all age	tion Mode	ill agents Save	Cancel			

Enable Auto Answer at the Agent Level

- 1. In 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to the **Agents**page.
- 2. Click to edit or create a new agent and open the General tab.
- 3. Select **Enable Auto Answer** to allow agents answer their calls using the Auto Answer feature. Auto Answer is visible at the Agent level only if it is enabled at the tenant and Agent Group level.
- 4. Click Save to activate Auto Answer at the agent level.

8×8					≗ a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home	Agent » Edit	Agent » General						(j
Security Agent Groups	-	-						
Agents Queues/Skills Channels	(ankit) Robin Shasta	3						
Scripts	General Phon	e Queues Supervisor	CRM & Tab permissions Interactions	Experimental Features				
CRM Outbound Setup	* Last Name Display Name	Shasta Robin	Agent secondary language	man				•
Campaigns	* Email Address	ankit.khare@8x8.com	Japi					
Broadcast	Software language	English (US)	Spa					
Integration	• Username	ankit	Status-change Coding No statu	s-change coding is assigned				
Status Codes	 Password 	•••••	Allow agent to change Enable/Disa	ble settings in Assigned Queue	s			
Transaction Codes	* Retype Password	•••••	Allow agent to Pull e-mails from qu					
Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Comment	Password123!	 Allow agent to Delete pending e-m Allow agent to Reject interactions Enable Collaborate Enable and show Options menu but Enable agent's My Recording feature 	tton				
	Agent Group	ops 🔻	Phone Connection Mode	-				
	* Current Country		Default Connection Mode 🕥	Persistent	•			
			Allow agent to change Phone Conn	ection Mode				
			Z Enable Auto Answer 🕐					
			Save Cano	cel				Ŧ

Combinations for Persistent Connection Mode and Auto Answer settings

Auto Answer can be combined with the Persistent feature to create an on/off combination of the two features. Auto Answer settings combined with Persistent can be configured at multiple levels depending on the features availability:

Connection	Behavior
Persistent Off, Auto Answer Off	Phone Connection Mode is On Demand and Auto Answer is off, so the agent needs to answer the phone for every phone interaction.
Persistent Off, Auto Answer On	Phone Connection Mode is On Demand and Auto Answer is on, so the agent phone automatically connects, and the interaction is auto answered when offered.
Persistent On, Auto Answer Off	Phone Connection Mode is Persistent, so the agent media path is always connected but for every phone interaction the agent needs to click the Accept button.
Persistent On, Auto Answer On	Phone Connection Mode is Persistent, so the agent media path is always connected, and the interaction is automatically answered when offered.

Adjust post-processing time for direct agent calls

8x8 Contact Center post-processing time is the duration agents are allowed, after terminating the calls, to wrap up any pending notes or actions related to the call. Prior to this release, while processing direct-to-agent calls, agents had a limited duration of five seconds for post-processing. Depending on your business needs, agents may require more time to wrap up notes on calls. In this release, we are introducing the ability to adjust post-processing time for direct-to-agent calls from five seconds to a maximum of 60 minutes helping to meet your business needs.

Features

- Allow agents a suitable time to wrap up calls.
- Set up post-processing time at the tenant, agent group, and agent levels.

Configure the post-processing timeout

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can set up the post-processing timeout for direct-to-agent calls in 8x8 Configuration Manager. You can set the post-processing time at the tenant level, agent group level, or agent level.

To set up post-processing time at the tenant level:

- 1. Log into 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Home > Profile.
3. Scroll down and select a desired time for DAR Post-processing Timeout.



- 4. Click Save.
- 5. If you click the **Reset all** link, it alerts you that all existing agent group and agent level settings for DAR postprocessing timeout will reset to the tenant level setting. Click **Ok** to proceed or **Cancel**.

To set up post-processing time at the agent group level:

- 1. From the menu, go to **Agent groups**.
- 2. Under General, select a desired time for DAR Post-processing Timeout.



- 3. Click Save.
- 4. To reset the individual agent setting to agent group-level setting, click the **Reset all agents** link. It alerts you that all existing individual agent-level settings for DAR post-processing timeout will reset to the agent group level setting. Click **Ok** to proceed or **Cancel**.

To set up post-processing time at the agent level:

- 1. From the menu, go to **Users**.
- 2. From the list of users, select a desired user.
- 3. Go to the Phone tab and select a desired time for DAR Post-processing Timeout.

Maria Wheatley						
Back to user list						
General Propert	ies Phone Queues	Supervisor	CRM & Tab permi	issions Intera	actions	
Workplace			Outbo	und Calling		
Workplace phone:	442038411136		Outbou	nd Phone Codes	Default To Group	[OPCL] -
 Workplace SIP UR 	R		Calling	Line ID *	12029788619 - 8×	8, Inc. Ø
Allow agent to cha	nge workplace phone nge workplace SIP URI		Dial Pla	n	Tenant Default	w.
Agent Access #'s and	I Voicemail			Automatic Call	Recording	Agent's Recording Controls
Primary Agent Directo	ry# 6015		Enable in IVR		Recording	Agent's Recording Centrols Agent does not have recording control
Primary Agent Directo	ry# 6015 mail		Enable in IVR	0 % of in 0 % of d	bound queue calls * irect inbound calls *	Agent does not have recording contro Agent is able to start recording*
Primary Agent Directo	ry# 6015 mail	v	Enable in IVR	0 % of in 0 % of d	bound queue calls *	Agent does not have recording control Agent is able to start recording* Agent is able to start and pause recording
Primary Agent Directo	ry# 6015 mail	Ţ	Enable in IVR	0 % of in 0 % of d	bound queue calls * irect inbound calls * utbound calls	Agent does not have recording contro Agent is able to start recording*
Primary Agent Directo	ry# 6015 mail	•	Enable in IVR	0 % of in 0 % of di 0 % of o	bound queue calls * irect inbound calls * utbound calls	Agent does not have recording control Agent is able to start recording* Agent is able to start and pause recording
Primary Agent Directo	ry # 6015 mail Timeout 30 seconds		Enable in IVR	0 % of in 0 % of di 0 % of o	bound queue calls * irect inbound calls * utbound calls	Agent does not have recording control Agent is able to start recording* Agent is able to start and pause recording
Primary Agent Directo Finalie anent voice DAR Post-processing	ry # 6015 mail Timeout 30 seconds	• Public Number]	0 % of in 0 % of di 0 % of o	bound queue calls * irrect inbound calls * urbound calls in by IVR Voice	Agent does not have recording control Agent is able to start recording* Agent is able to start and pause recording

4. Click Save. This sets the post-processing time for the individual user.

Priority rules

By default, here are the priorities for DAR post processing timeout:

- Agent level settings override agent-group, and tenant level settings.
- Agent-group level settings override tenant-level settings.
- If agent-level is not set, the agent inherits the agent-group level setting.
- If agent-level is not set and if agent-group level is not set, agents inherit the tenant-level setting.
- If post-processing timeout is not set at the tenant-level, agent-group level, as well as agent level, then the value is set to five seconds by default.

Introducing workplace setting validation

8x8 Contact Center administrators can enable workplace settings validation for agents via 8x8 Configuration Manager. When changing workplace settings (Workplace Phone and Workplace SIP URI), agents must validate their changes to be able to handle the calls. When they click to validate the change, it triggers a phone call to the updated phone number. A PIN code is then communicated to the agent. The agent must enter the PIN code to validate the changes and continue. If they are unable to confirm the PIN they must exit and revert to their last validated setting. The workplace setting validation is offered as a mandatory security feature with Auto Answer, or it can be deployed as a stand-alone feature.

Features

8x8 Configuration Manager workplace setting validation:

- Is mandatory while Auto Answer is enabled.
- Is offered as stand-alone feature. Admins can remove or disable this feature in 8x8 Configuration Manager with no
 restrictions.
- Reverts to the agent's last validated setting if unable to validate the new workplace setting.

Enable workplace setting validation in 8x8 Configuration Manager

The workplace setting validation is applicable to a tenant for all agents and groups. To validate the workplace setting, agents require a phone and an audio access for the PIN code to be played to them. Moreover, the agents must be in Work offline status to change their workplace setting. Enable workplace setting validation paired with Auto Answer

1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.

- 2. Go to Home > Profile.
- 3. Under Phone Connection Mode, select Enable Auto Answer.

If Auto Answer is enabled for the first time and without enabling the workplace security feature, a confirmation dialog box prompts notifying you that a mandatory validation feature will also be turned on for security reasons:



If you click Ok, Auto Answer is enabled. By accepting the mandatory validation, Enable Workplace setting change validation is also turned on and cannot be changed independently while the Auto Answer feature is enabled. Workplace setting validation is enabled at the tenant level for all agents. You can configure Auto Answer at the agent group or agent level as well.

8x8			名 Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101) My Profile Co-browsing Logo
	Home » Profile		
gent Groups	Operation co	mpleted successfully.	
	Summary Profile Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer
		Schedules Dial Plans	5
	Password (min. 8 chars.)		* Administrator's email(s)† ryan.cox@8x8.com
ripts	Retype Password		ryan.cox@8x6.com
tbound			* Maintenance email distribution list(s)†
	Miscellaneous tenant settings		ryan.cox@8x8.com
mpaigns	Default Time Zone		
oadcast	(GMT-8) Pacific Time		×
egration	(am of bene the		Tenant email - SPAM filtering parameters
- Itus Codes	Other Time Zone (Edit)		Spam threshold level 5 🔻
nsaction	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, British Sur	nmer Time	
	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, No Dayligh	it Saving Time	Spam Black List #
one Codes	Tenant Label	rvandemo0101	
allboard	Default Agent Display Name	First Name	
	sector (generation) i contra	Reset all agents	Spam White List †
	Allow Agents to Change Display Name		Span white List in
	Allow Agents to Change Screenpop	to enable Workplace setting	
	Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	change validation	
	Enable SSL for Agent GUI		
	📥 🖂 Enable Workplace setting change valida	tion (?)	Tenant - Logo
	Enable Enhanced Ringtone		Choose Files No file chosen
	Enable Agent's My Recording Functional	1	The file must be an image(.jpg, .png, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb. It cannot
	Enable transferring to queues with no w		exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.
	Allow agents to configure warning management		
	Enable agents to return to available state	is after pulling email	to enable Persistent
	Enable sending FAQ as HTML		Connection Mode
	Enable Queue/Skill groups		Phone Connection Mode
		to enable Auto	Default Connection Mode 🕥 Persistent Reset all
		Answer	Allow Agents to Change Phone Connection Mode Reset all
			The set all 🗠 The set all The



Note: If you disable Auto Answer. Workplace setting change validation is still enabled but can be disabled if required.

- If you click **Cancel**, Auto Answer is not enabled.
- 4. Click Save.

Enable Workplace Setting Validation as Stand-alone Feature

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to **Home > Profile**.

3. Select Enable workplace setting change validation.



Note: If you have enabled Auto Answer, workplace setting validation is already enabled. You can disable Auto Answer, but keep the workplace setting change validation enabled.

4. Click Save. Workplace setting change validation is now enabled at the tenant level for all agents.

x8			گ	Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	
ome	Home » Profile					
curity ent Groups	Operation	completed successfully.				
ers ieues/Skills	Summary Profile Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer			
annels	(GMT-8) Pacific Time		Tenant email - SPAM filtering p	aramatara		
ots	Other Time Zone (Edit)		Spam threshold level 5 💌	Saranieters		
4	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, British Sur	nmer Time	0.01.111.18			
tbound tup	(GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, No Dayligh	t Saving Time	Spam Black List #			
npaigns						
adcast	Tenant Label	ryandemo0101				
gration	Default Agent Display Name	First Name Reset all agents	v			
itus Codes nsaction des	 Allow Agents to Change Display Name Allow Agents to Change Screenpop 	Reset on agents	Spam White List #			
tbound	Allow Agents to Reject Interactions					
one Codes	Enable SSL for Agent GUI		Tenant - Logo			
llboard	 Enable Workplace setting change validation Enable Enhanced Ringtone 	tion ()	Choose Files No file chosen			
at design	Enable Agent's My Recording Functional	ity	The file must be an image(.jpg, .pn	g, .gif or .bmp) with a size of less than 1mb.	lt cannot	
	Enable transferring to queues with no w	orking agents	exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.			
	Allow agents to configure warning m					
	Enable agents to return to available state Enable sending FAQ as HTML	is after pulling email				
	Enable Queue/Skill groups		Phone Connection Mode			
			Default Connection Mode (?)	On Demand 🔹	Reset all	
			Allow Agents to Change Phe Enable Auto Answer ⑦	one Connection Mode		
	± separate email addresses with comma ()					

Configure audio files and recorded greetings

In a typical phone menu, callers direct themselves to the desired destination using choices from the menu. 8x8 Contact Center phone menu is driven by pre-recorded audio messages. Audio files serve to automate a contact center's phone menu. 8x8 Contact Center offers a number of pre-recorded messages to serve your business needs. You can also upload customized messages to suit your specific needs. Use the Audio Files tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to manage the recorded messages used by your phone channels.

To display the Audio Files:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to the Audio Files tab.

By default, each tenant includes a repository of pre-recorded audio files and user audio files. You may use the readily available messages or record and upload your customized messages.



Upload audio files

In a typical phone menu, callers direct themselves to the desired destination using phone choices from the menu. The 8x8 Contact Center phone menu is driven by pre-recorded audio messages. Audio files serve to automate a contact center's phone menu. 8x8 Contact Center allows you to upload customized messages in 8x8 Configuration Manager to serve your contact center's needs.

To upload audio files:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to the **Audio Files** tab.

The following table summarizes file types listed in Audio Files.

Audio Files Option	Description
User	Lists the customized audio files uploaded by your 8x8 Contact Center administrator into this tenant. When you initially configure a tenant instance, the User folder does not contain any audio files. When you use the Audio Files tab to upload your company's customized audio files into 8x8 Configuration Manager, the uploaded files are stored in the User folder.
Pre-recorded	Lists the set of default audio files available for the tenant. By default, a new tenant includes a set of placeholder audio files. These files provide examples of voice Channel greetings and messages used in a variety of contact center contexts. When you upload the customized audio files required by your contact center, you replace a pre-recorded audio file assignment so that it uses your customized audio file.
User-Agent whisper	Lists the audio files that can be uploaded and assigned by the tenant administrator to an inbound or outbound queue to inform the agent, upon connection, about the connected call. Upon receiving calls, the system plays a brief message stating the nature of the call such as sales or support.

3. Open the User folder under Audio Files.

4. Click **Add** to upload a new audio file.

Home Security	Home » Audio Files	(j)
Agent Groups	Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Agent's Idle Timer	
Queues/Skills Channels	Audio Files	
Scripts	Add Audio File: 💮 Audio File	
CRM	Audio Files 🖉 Add	
Outbound	User Voice file description	
Setup	Pre-recorded	
Campaigns	Agent voice mail invite	
Broadcast	Call monitoring warning * Description	
Integration	Classical music	
Status Codes	Contemporary music Tenter mandatory account number	
Transaction	□ Enter managed y account number	
Codes	Enter optional account number * Upload new Choose Files No file chosen	
Outbound	Enter optional case number Choose Files No file chosen	
Phone Codes	Enter optional party's extension	
Wallboard	Holiday closure Save Reset	
Chat design	Invalid extension	
	Invalid mandatory account number	
	Invalid mandatory case number Invalid mandatory selection	
	Invalid optional account number	
	Invalid optional case number	
	Invalid optional party's extension	
	Invalid selection	
] Jazz music	
	Mandatory nueue selection	

5. Enter a **Name** for the message you wish to upload.

The following table summarizes the options available under Voice file description.

Voice File Description Option	Description
Name	A descriptive name for the contents of the customized audio file.
Description	Enter a meaningful description for the customized audio file to help you remember it later.
Upload new	To upload a customized audio file to your tenant, select a 8 KHz, 16-bit, monaural WAV file. After you upload an audio file, you must verify that 8x8 Contact Center can play the audio file before referencing the file in an IVR script. 8x8 Configuration Manager does not upload the file until you click Save . For details on playing uploaded IVR files, refer to Verify Audio Files Deployment.
Save	To finish uploading the audio file you must click Save . 8x8 Configuration Manager only allows you to save user audio files.
Delete	To delete a customized audio file under User folders, click Edit > Delete .
View	To view details about a customized audio file such as type, file name, date of upload, size and file information, click View .



Note: For best practices, insert a special prefix at the front of the user-created audio names so they can be distinguished from the system audio files.

- 6. Enter a transcript or a brief description of the message in the **Description** box.
- 7. Click Choose Files to select an audio file in WAV format.
- 8. Click Play Audio to play back the uploaded message.
- 9. Click Save.

Edit audio files

You can edit custom audio files at any time. However, you cannot edit the default pre-recorded audio messages.

To edit custom audio files:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to Audio Files.
- Select the desired audio file in the User folder.
 The description of the voice file displays in the View tab.
- 4. Click the Edit tab and make the desired changes. You can also upload a new audio file from Edit mode.

Delete audio files

You can delete custom audio files at any time. However, you cannot delete the default pre-recorded audio messages.

To delete custom audio files:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Home**.
- 2. Go to Audio Files.
- Select the desired audio file in the User folder.
 The description of the voice file displays in the View tab.
- 4. Click the Edit tab and make the desired changes. You can also upload a new audio file from Edit mode

5. Click **Delete** to remove the message from the tenant.



8x8

Note: To order professionally-recorded messages, click the link at the bottom of the **Voice file description** area. You are sent to a service provider in professional voice recordings.

Verify audio files deployment

By default, a new 8x8 Contact Center tenant includes a set of default pre-recorded placeholder audio files. These files provide examples of voice Channel greetings and messages used in a variety of contact center contexts.

When you upload the customized audio files required by your contact center and before you can place your 8x8 Contact Center in production, you must go to **Home > Audio Files** to replace the 8x8 Contact Center placeholder audio files with your own production-quality audio files. Any time you upload an audio file to 8x8 Configuration Manager, you must verify that the embedded audio player can play the file. Playing an uploaded audio file verifies that 8x8 Contact Center has finished deploying the uploaded file to your contact center tenant. Audio files must be deployed before they can be referenced in an IVR script. You must verify the deployment of an uploaded audio file before referencing the file in an IVR¹ script.

For details on IVR scripts, refer to Create a Phone IVR Script.

¹Interactive Voice Response is a technology that automates interactions with phone callers.

Create agent whisper for phone queues

8x8 Contact Center agents can now hear an audio message (whisper) about the context of the call they have dialed or received via a queue. Agent whisper is an audio file that can be uploaded and assigned in the 8x8 Configuration Manager by the tenant administrator to an inbound or outbound queue to inform the agent, upon connection, about the connected call. Let's say John serves support calls as well as sales calls. Upon receiving calls, the system plays a brief message stating if it is a sales or a support call. Agent whisper can be implemented for both inbound and outbound calls such as campaign calls.

Features

- Assign to both inbound and outbound queues.
- Alert agents when a call is being connected.
- Notify the agent on the call, and not the customer.
- Play an uninterrupted prompt for the agents. The whisper can be talked over by both parties.
- Agent whisper is not suppressed when the agent or customer talks.
- Agent whisper can be set up for all queued calls. It is not available for numbers dialed by the agent, direct agent calls (DAA/DAR), or agent-to-agent calls.

Known limitations

- In Auto Answer mode and in the process of validating a Persistent connection, at the very moment a call is offered, an agent will only hear the bleep and not the whisper for this interaction.
- In Persistent Connection Mode alone, if the call terminates before the whisper has finished playing, the agent will still hear the remainder of the whisper. In On Demand Connection Mode the above scenario does not apply.
- Supervisors hear the full whisper when they join an active call to monitor an agent and customer.
- With inbound and outbound calls, the whisper is played to the agent upon connection, however, when working in the preview mode, the whisper is played to the agent just before the call is connected.

Set up Agent whisper

Agent whisper provides a useful prompt to the agent. For example, in Auto Answer mode, agents typically do not have time between calls. The whisper helps them identify the context of the incoming call even before the customer information pops for preview, thus allowing them to prepare for the call. Agent whisper messages can be heard on both inbound and outbound calls.

To set up Agent whisper, you must upload the Agent whisper file first and then assign the file to a queue: **Step 1: Upload Agent whisper files**

Admins must add an audio file to a global folder under **Home > Audio Files > User - Agent whisper**. Any audio files added to that folder can be selected at queue level. Any file added to the standard User folder, is not part of the drop-down for Agent whisper in Queue settings.

To upload a new audio file for Agent whisper:

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Open Home > Audio Files > User Agent whisper.
- 3. With User Agent whisper highlighted, click to add + Audio Files.
- 4. In the Add window, click Choose Files.
- 5. Find and add a file to upload. There is no limitation for the size of the Agent whisper file, however we recommend you to keep the message short. The file format must be .wav or .au.
- 6. Enter a **Name** and **Description** for the file.
- 7. Click to **Save** your changes. The new file is saved under the User Agent whisper folder. You can click to play the audio file.

Step 2: Assign the Agent whisper file to a queue

After uploading an audio file for Agent Whisper, you must assign the audio file to a phone queue.

To assign the Agent whisper file to a queue:

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Queues/Skills.
- 3. Open an outbound or inbound phone queue.
- 4. Under Properties, select an audio from the Agent whisper audio drop-down. By default there is no audio file

107

selected. You can click ^(b) to play the audio.

5. Click to Save your changes.

8x8

Delete Agent whisper audio files

To delete an Agent whisper audio file:

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Home > Audio Files > User- Agent whisper.
- 3. Open an audio file and click Edit.
- 4. Click Delete.

_	
工	
T	-n
Ŧ	_//
÷	
-	-1-1

Note: A warning alerts you if a file is still associated with a queue. Remove the Agent whisper audio file first before you can delete it from the tenant.

Replace Agent whisper audio files for a queue

If you have uploaded other Agent whisper audio files, you can simply change the audio file for the queue:

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Queues/ Skills.
- 3. Open an outbound or inbound phone queue.
- 4. Go to **Properties > Agent whisper audio** and select another audio file from the drop-down.

- 8x8
 - 5. Click Save.

Home		del la basa di Dhae		Durantia		
Security	Queues/Skills » A	aa inbouna Pho	ne	Properties		
Agent Groups						
Users						
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list					
Channels						
Scripts	Properties Members	Voice Mail Interactions		SLA		
CRM	Queue type	Phone				
Outbound	Queue direction	Inbound				
Setup	* Queue name					
Campaigns	Default priority	8	-	1=Low 10=High		
Broadcast	Transfer Incoming Calls to			U. U		
Integration	Post-processing timeout	5 seconds				
Status Codes	Voice Recording	0		96		
Transaction	Waiting Music	Jazz music	•			
Codes	Agent whisper audio	None	•			
Outbound	Ŭ,	None				
Phone Codes		Acme Sales				
Nallboard		AcmeJets Agent-Whisper OisinQ		-	Save	Cancel
Chat design		Orens sale queue Sales Queue Support Whisper Jaudio				

Remove Agent whisper audio files from a queue

To remove an Agent whisper file from a queue:

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Queues/ Skills.
- 3. Open an outbound or inbound phone queue.
- 4. Go to Properties > Agent whisper audio and select None from the drop-down.
- 5. Click Save.

Define business hours and schedules

8x8 Contact Center administrators can define schedules for their contact center staff by going to the 8x8 Configuration Manager Schedules tab. Define business hours, holidays, and special events that are followed by your company's departments. For example, if your sales and support teams have different hours of operation, use the Schedules tab to create separate schedules for each team.

Limitations

- The Date Picker in the Special Events and Holidays calendar allows you to select a date up to three years ahead of the current year. To select a date beyond three years, enter it manually on the date field.
- Scheduling a campaign with an Intra Day Schedule with multiple recurring events follows the first Open schedule only and stops for the rest of the events for the day. If you configure a campaign to follow a schedule as shown in the example below, the campaign executes for the first open schedule from 7 AM to 12 PM, and ceases for the rest of the day. You then need to manually run the campaign for the rest of the day.

 * In the Weekly Schedule below, all undefined intervals default to "Closed". Monday Open 08:00 12:30 III ⊕ Choice #1 12:30 15:00 III ⊕ Open 15:00 16:30 III ⊕ Tuesday Open 08:00 16:30 III ⊕ Wednesday Open 08:00 16:30 III ⊕ Thursday Open 08:00 16:30 III ⊕ Friday Open 08:00 16:30 III ⊕ 	Weekly Schedule *						
Choice #1 12:30 15:00 Im ⊕ Open 15:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Tuesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Wednesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Thursday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Friday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕	* In the Weekly Schedule below, all undefined intervals default to "Closed".						
Open 15:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Tuesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Wednesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Thursday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Friday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕	Monday	Open	08:00	12:30	缸 ⊕		
Tuesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Wednesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Thursday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Friday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕		Choice #1	12:30	15:00	⊕		
Wednesday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Thursday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Friday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕		Open	15:00	16:30	⊕		
Thursday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕ Friday Open 08:00 16:30 Im ⊕	Tuesday	Open	08:00	16:30	@ ⊕		
Friday Open 08:00 16:30 Im Im	Wednesday	Open	08:00	16:30	⊕		
	Thursday	Open	08:00	16:30	⊕		
	Friday	Open	08:00	16:30	面 🕀		
Saturday Closed for the day 00:00 24:00	Saturday	Closed for the day	00:00	24:00	団 🕀		
Sunday Closed for the day 00:00 24:00 🗑 🕀	Sunday	Closed for the day	00:00	24:00	⊡ ⊕		

Add a new schedule

The Intra Day Scheduling feature provides you the flexibility to create multiple schedules within a day, and introduce multiple breaks without having to create nested schedules. You can select multiple call treatment choices to specify the desired call treatment in the IVR tree.

Creating a tenant schedule with the enhanced Intra Day Scheduler is simple and easy. The process involves:

- 1. Gathering your contact center business hours and breaks
- 2. Gathering your Special Events and Holidays schedule
- 3. Defining a weekly schedule calendar
- 4. Defining Special Events and Holidays calendars
- 5. Configuring call routing and call treatment choices

To better understand the process, let us create a sample schedule for our fictitious contact center; AcmeJets. The Sales team at AcmeJets observes the following schedule:

- Monday to Friday: 7 AM to 6 PM
- Monday to Friday: Lunch break 12 PM to 1 PM
- Saturday: 8 AM to 4 PM
- Sunday: Always Closed

Create Weekly Schedule

To create a weekly schedule:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to the **Schedules** tab.
- 3. Click

to add a new schedule, or to edit the **Default Schedule**.

OR

Click Copy to create a duplicate. You can make changes later.

Home Security	Home » S	Schedules »	Add				(j)
Agent Groups Agents	Summary	Profile Audio	Files Scl	nedules Dial	Plans Agent	s Idle Timer	
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to sche	edules list					
cripts RM	* Schedule Nan	ne Callback Schedul	e	Time Zone	(GMT-8) Pacific Ti	ne 💌	
itbound tup	Weekly Sc					Special Events and Holidays	
ampaigns roadcast	* In the Weekly: Monday	Schedule below, all under Open	ined intervals do 08:00	efault to "Closed". 16:30	₫ ⊕	Add Day No items to show	
egration	Tuesday	Open	08:00	16:30	₩ 🕀	No tems to show	
tus Codes nsaction	Wednesday Thursday	Open Open	08:00	16:30 16:30	₩ ⊕		
des tbound	Friday	Open	08:00	16:30	⊕ ⊕		
one Codes Illboard	Saturday Sunday	Closed for the day Closed for the day	00:00	24:00 24:00	₩ ⊕		
at design							
					Save	Cancel	

The Weekly Schedule calendar opens. It also allows you to add a Special Events and Holidays calendar.

4. Enter a Schedule Name and select a Time Zone from the list.

The following table summarizes options under **Home > Schedules**:

Schedules Tab Option	Description
Schedule Name	Type a name that describes the part of your organization using a non-default schedule. You can associate a named schedule with a particular IVR script behavior. For example, if you plan to use your 8x8 Contact Center to manage both sales and support interactions, and those two teams have different hours of operations, you can create two schedules for Sales and Support.
Weekly Schedule (Monday- Sunday, from-to)	 For each day of the week, select a time that operation begins and ends, and a call treatment choice as defined in the script. A call treatment choice refers to a choice within a schedule which allows a time-based selection of treatment choices when interactions enter a tenant. The call treatment choices for a schedule include: Open: Call treatment typically used when the business is open. Choice 1 to Choice 6: Six alternate options that define more refined choices other than Open or Closed for the day.
	 Closed for the day: Call treatment when the business is closed for the entire day. When you design a Voice Channel's IVR script or an Email Channel's Email script, you can associate one or more schedules with the customer-facing behavior of the Channel.

Schedules Tab Option	Description
Add Day	Click Add Day to create exceptions to the days and times specified in the Monday-Sunday, from- to area. Exceptions enable you to specify alternative automated processing of phone and email interactions. More specifically, use schedule exceptions to modify the open and closed hours specified in the From and To areas. For example, for holidays or other periods when the schedules default hours of operation do not apply.
Special Events and Holidays	 Click Add Day to create a new exception: Enter the date of schedule exception. From the drop-down menu, select: Open to specify that the exception uses the contact center's open hours to process phone and email interactions. Closed to specify that the exception uses the contact center's closed hours to process phone and email interactions. Closed to specify that the exception uses the contact center's closed hours to process phone and email interactions. A numeric scheduling label from #1 to #6. Choose the beginning and end day and times for the exception. Click to remove the exception condition from the list of conditions. If you choose a numeric label, in the IVR or Email script that references the schedule, you can specify what the script should do during the period when the exception condition is in effect.

- 5. Under the Weekly Schedule, click each row to edit the call treatment and time.
- 6. Select business hours for the week. For example:
 - a. For Monday, enter <7:00 to 12:00> and choose **Open** from the drop-down menu of call treatment choices.



c. Add lunch break hours from 12:00 to 13:00, specify an option from choice 1 through 6, and set up this choice with desired call treatment in the IVR. You can play a message for callers during the lunch hour: <Welcome to AcmeJets. We are currently closed for lunch between 12 pm and 1 pm. Please leave a message with your name and account number and we will get back to you as soon as possible. Thank you for your patience.>

8x8

The following IVR image shows an IVR tree with a call treatment choice #1 for the Sales schedule.



- d. Click to add another row.
- e. Add after lunch hours from 13:00 to 18:00.
- f. Repeat steps a to e to define the daily schedule until Friday.
- g. Specify hours for Saturday with no lunch break.
- h. For Sunday, a weekly holiday, choose Closed for the day.
- 7. Save your settings.

You have now successfully created your weekly schedule. The next step is to define exceptions to your weekly schedule in the Holidays and Special Events calendar on the right-hand panel of the Schedules tab. A holiday indicates the business closure, while a special event observes a schedule different from the regular weekly schedule. Create Holidays and Exceptions

To create holidays and exceptions:

- 1. In the Holidays and Special Events calendar on the right-hand panel of the Schedules tab, select the desired date and specify the exception.
 - For holidays, select the date and create an event with exit point CLOSED from 0:00 to 24:00.

- Home » Schedules » Edit lome (j) Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Agent's Idle Timer < Back to schedules list * Schedule Name Callback Schedule Time Zone (GMT-8) Pacific Time V Holidays Weekly Schedule * Special Events and Holidays ł * In the Weekly Schedule below, all undefined intervals default to "Closed". 🕀 Add Day Campaigns Broadcast
 Monday
 Open
 08:00
 16:30
 □
 ⊕

 Tuesday
 Open
 08:00
 16:30
 □
 ⊕

 10/01/2018 Mon
 Closed

 10/02/2018 Tue
 Closed

 10/03/2018 Wed
 Open
 24:00 ₩ ↔ ₩ ↔ 08:00 16:30 @ ↔ 08:00 16:30 @ ↔ 08:00 16:30 @ ↔ 00:00 24:00 08:00 @ ⊕ Wednesday Open Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard t Thursday Open
 Thursday
 Open
 05:00
 16:30
 III (*)

 Friday
 Open
 05:00
 16:30
 III (*)

 Saturday
 Closed for the day
 00:00
 24:00
 III (*)

 Sunday
 Closed for the day
 00:00
 24:00
 III (*)
 Special Event Save Cancel Apply
- For an exception to the schedule, specify the desired time intervals and the appropriate call treatment choices.

2. Save your settings.

Understand tenant dial plans

An 8x8 Contact Center dial plan specifies how to interpret phone number sequences dialed by an agent using the phone tab, click-to-dial (or through API), and how to convert them into an ITU-T E.164 normalized outbound dial string. Dial plans can be used to include country codes and area codes, support extension-based dialing, correct the numbers from an external entity, and more.

Dial plans take numbers dialed by users, or numbers originating from other 8x8 Contact Center components such as: IVR callback, web callback, click-to-dial, workplace phone, etc., and apply editing rules to yield one of the following:

- A valid global public phone number (known as E.164)
- A valid PBX number
- A call disallowed message number
- A warning tone generating number

Dial plans change the interpretation of dialed digits within a tenant to correspond to familiar national, local, or private phone switch dialing conventions. A dial plan establishes the expected number and pattern of digits for an outbound phone call, and validates the agent-dialed sequence. It consists of a collection of calling number patterns and treatment pairs. When a user dials a series of digits, each calling number pattern in the dial plan is tested as a possible match. If the agent-dialed sequence matches a pattern, corresponding treatment applies. The treated sequence is then transmitted to initiate a call or rejected as invalid.

For example, the dialing sequences to reach the Crystal Jade Restaurant in Shanghai, China from home phones in the United States, United Kingdom, Nigeria, and Beijing use different leading digits:

- New York City, USA dials 011862163858752 → North American Dial Plan = +862163858752
- London, England dials 008621 6385 8752 → UK National Dial Plan = +862163858752

- Abuja, Nigeria dials 009862163858752 → Nigerian National Dial Plan = +862163858752
- Beijing, China dials 02163858752 → Peoples Republic National Dial Plan = +862163858752

In each case, a different national dial plan is used to remove the local prefix digits and restore the country code when necessary to yield an unambiguous international number.

Previous releases

8.4 Release

The following features and capabilities are added in this release:

- Ability to use private PBX numbers
- Ability to change the order of the custom rules
- Ability to use system variables and user-defined variables
- Dial plan editing results are no longer automatically prefixed with a plus (+) sign. All prior dial plans are automatically adjusted to compensate for the plus (+) sign change.

Backward Compatibility:



-All prior dial plans are automatically adjusted to compensate for the plus (+) sign change. -The original International Numbering Plan (ITU-T E.164) allowed any digit sequence starting with a plus (+) sign to pass through without any digit modifications. The updated equivalent dial plan now includes E.164 number validity checks along with some special and premium number blocking. In some cases, users of this plan may experience a change of behavior if their customary dialing included non-E.164 number patterns.

8.1 Release

The following features and capabilities are added in this release:

• Ability to create and apply multiple dial plans within the same tenant:

You can apply dial plans for each agent based on their location. If your contact center employs agents in different countries, you can create custom dial plans suitable for each country and apply the appropriate plan to agents. Each agent can dial from their familiar national dialing plan. Until now, you were limited to applying a single tenant-based dial plan to all agents based in different countries forcing them to manually dial out. Similarly agents in different domestic offices may have different dialing privileges or different in-house PBX, or in-state local dialing preferences which can be addressed using per agent dial plans.

 Ability to apply dial plans to an agent's dial out, verification call, forward to external call, and more: Tenant Dial Plans apply to the Make Verification call, web callback, or IVR forwarding a call to external number scenarios. In these scenarios, the outbound calls must be dialed as defined in the ITU-T E.164 specification. For example, in the United States, the number +1 (650) 292-8618 can be dialed as 6502928618, and in the United Kingdom, the number +44 (0) 2088524140, can be dialed as 2088524140.

- Ability to apply dial plan editing to calls beginning with +:
 Dialing inputs regardless of the originating calling method (agent, agent profile, click-to-dial, campaigns, and web callback) are subject to dial plan editing including those beginning with "+".
- Ability to select a desired dial plan during click-to-dial or web callback: The click-to-dial and web callback APIs accept a new optional parameter to select a particular dial plan or if omitted applies the tenant default dial plan. These APIs cannot dial numbers without, at a minimum, filtering the number through the tenant default dial plan or a specific dial plan. No more API exposure to allow any number to be dialed without restrictions.

Call Type	Default Dial Plan	Overriding Dial Plan
Agent dial	Tenant dial plan	Agent dial plan
Click-to-dial	Tenant dial plan	Dial Plan specified as API parameter
Web callback	Tenant dial plan	Dial Plan specified as API parameter
Verification call	Tenant dial plan	Agent dial plan
Forward to external	Tenant dial plan	N/A
Campaign call	Tenant dial plan	Dial Plan specified in properties

• The dial plan now applies to all outbound calls:

Ability to associate agents with a custom dial plan based on their location

Types of dial plans

8x8 Contact Center offers two types of dial plans accessible via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- System Pre-Configured Dial Plans: Predefined national and international dial plans available to all tenants. They allow PBX dialing and local, long distance, and international calls. You cannot make any changes to these plans except for opting a default plan. You can select a national plan that best suits your needs or use the standard international plan. The System Pre-Configured dial plans are predefined and do not allow changes. Every tenant is required to select one and only one dial plan to suit their location. By default, your contact center may come with some system pre-configured dial plans, such as:
 - International Numbering Plan (ITU-T E.164): Allows tenants across the globe to place domestic and international calls. The International Numbering Plan does not allow unfiltered pass-through dialing.
 - US North American Numbering Plan (US NANP): Allows tenants across North America to place domestic and international calls. NANP identifies various calling number patterns and applies corresponding treatment to user-dialed numbers.
- Custom Dial Plans: In addition to system pre-configured dial plans, you can create your own custom dial plan if you have subscribed to this feature. Custom dial plans, in many situations, can mimic the abbreviated dialing conventions of a private office phone system or internal corporate dialing plan. You can configure multiple custom dial plans.



Notes:

-You can activate only one dial plan per tenant at a time. -8x8 Contact Center reports present dialed numbers in the standard international format.

About the North American Numbering Plan (US NANP)

The North American Numbering Plan identifies various calling number patterns and applies the following treatment to user-dialed numbers:

Filters international calls with country codes incorrectly entered starting from "0".



8x8

Note: Country codes do not begin with 0.

- Removes the North American access code 011 if added to a North American phone number. For example, the number 01116505551212 is dialed out as 16505551212, removing 011.
- Filters local and long-distance calls with incorrect area codes starting from "0".



Note: North American area codes do not begin with 0.

- Filters calls to emergency and special services, such as 911 in the US and 112 in the UK.
- Prefixes the country code "1" to all local and long-distance calls within North America.
- Requires country codes and area codes for international calls.
- Allows input of spelled-out numbers, and converts alphabetic characters to the telephone keypad equivalent digits according to North American Telephone standards.

Access a system dial plan

System Pre-Configured dial plans are provided to 8x8 Contact Center administrators via 8x8 Configuration Manager. You can use the view option to change a default plan on your tenant.

To view or edit a system dial plan:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 3. Go to the **Dial Plans** tab.

me H	ome » Dial Plans				(j
ent Groups ents eues/Skills	ummary Profile Audio Files Schedules <u>Dial Plans</u> Agent's Idle Timer				
	vailable Dial Plans		> Fil	ter Available Dial	Plans
pts 🛛	ld New Dial Plan: 🕘 New Plan		Configure	Sort 🤯 Clear Al	I Sort
4 bound	Dial Plan Name ^	Plan Type	Default Plan		
ound 2	System Dial Plan: Swiss Numbering Plan (SNP) with VOVCC	System Pre-Configured	•	0	-
igns 3	System Dial Plan: Swiss Numbering Plan (SNP) with VOVCC	System Pre-Configured	۲	0	
ast 4	System Dial Plan: US and Canada Custom	Custom	۲	000	
on 4	System Dial Plan: US Custom	Custom	•	000	
odes 2	System Dial Plan: US North American Numbering Plan (US NANP)	System Pre-Configured	۲	0	
ion 3	System Dial Plan: US North American Numbering Plan (US NANP)	System Pre-Configured	۲	0	
3	System Dial Plan: US North American Numbering Plan (US NANP) with VOVCC	System Pre-Configured	۲	60	
nd 2	System Dial Plan: US North American Numbering Plan (US NANP) with VOVCC	System Pre-Configured	۲	0	-
Codes	Save Cancel				

- 4. Select a dial plan and double-click to view the details.
- 5. In the details view, you can see the following information:

Dial Plans	Description
Dial Plan Name	Enter a name for the new dial plan.
Test Number	Enter a telephone number to test your plan. A 🥏 indicates which rule is being applied.
Default Plan	Check the option to mark this as the default dial plan.
Order	Indicates the order of the rules applied to each number. You can change the order of the rules in

Dial Plans	Description
	custom plans by dragging and dropping them in the desired location.
Dialed String Match Pattern	Define a calling number pattern to apply the dial plan using regular expressions. A regular expression provides a concise and flexible means for matching strings of text, or patterns of characters. Most commonly used regular expressions are: ^ - Matches the starting position of the string. Matches any single character. * - Matches the preceding element 0 or more times. \$ - Matches the ending position of the string. [] - Matches a single character contained within the brackets. For example, [2-9] specifies any digit from 2 through 9. () - A marked sub-expression within which you define a string to match. For example, the pattern ^([2-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9]]0-9][0-9][
	Note: Defining a dial plan requires sound knowledge of regular expressions.
Rewrite Translation	Define the treatment for the number that matches the specified calling number pattern. For example, the pattern ^([2-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9]]0-9])\$ and treatment 1650\$1 prepends a 7-digit input with "1650". \$1 represents pattern within the (). If you input 5551212, the treatment converts the number to 16505551212.
Rule Comment	Gives a brief description of the treatment received by the rule.
Delete Rule	Allows you to delete the rule. This applies to user-defined rules only.
Test Match	Indicates if the rule applies to the test number.

How do I copy a system pre-configured rule?

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Home**.
- 2. Go to the **Dial Plans** tab.
 - ſ

3. Click next to a default system rule that you wish to modify.

A message appears asking you to click **Save** to keep a copy.

4. Click OK.

The dial plan creates a copy of the default plan.

- 5. Enter a new name for the **Dial Plan**.
- 6. Click Save.

A copy of the default dial plan is created and added to the list of available dial plans. You can modify the new dial plan according to your tenant needs.

How do I test a dial plan?

You can test a dial plan to check how the plan treats user-dialed sequences, and to learn the sequences identified by the dial plan.

To test a dial plan:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to the **Dial Plans** tab.
- 3. Select a dial plan and click to edit.
- 4. In the edit screen, enter a phone number sequence in the Test Number text box and click Test to validate.

Home Security	Home » Dial Plans		0
Agent Groups	Test Complete		
Agents Queues/Skills	Summary Profile Audio Files Sch	dules Dial Plans Agent's Idle Timer	
Channels Scripts	< Return To Dial Plan List		
CRM	* Dial Plan Name System Dial Plan: US North Ame	ican Numbering Test Number 5555555555 Test +15555555555	5
Outbound	Default Plan	Enter a phone number and then press 'Test' to apply dial plan for testing.	
Setup	Order Dialed String Match Pattern	Rewrite Translation Rule Comment	Test Match
Campaigns	1 ^911\$	+00084084039001-\$TEN Block Emergency	 A
Broadcast	2 ^[2-8]11\$	+00084039002-STENANT Block Services	0
Integration	3 ^101[0-9][4,]\$	+00084039003-STENANT Block Carrier Access Codes (CAC) ex. 10-10-321	0
Status Codes	4 ^\+1900[2-9][0-9]{6}\$	+00084039004-STENANT Block Premium Rate 11 Digit US NANP in E.164 format	0
Transaction	5 ^1900[2-9][0-9]{6]\$	+00084039004-STENANT Block Premium Rate 11 Digit US NANP Format	0
Codes	6 ^900[2-9][0-9]{6}\$	+00084039004-STENANT Block Premium Rate 10 Digit US NANP Format	0
Outbound	7 ^(1[2-9][0-9]{2}[2-9][0-9]{6})\$	+\$1 11 Digit US NANP Format	0
Phone Codes	8 ^([2-9][0-9]{2}[2-9][0-9]{6})\$	+1\$1 10 Digit US NANP Plan	 Image: A second s
Wallboard	9 ^011(1[2-9][0-9]{2}[2-9][0-9]{6})\$	+\$1 International using Access Code 011 for +1	
Chat design	10 ^011([2-9][0-9]{7,14})\$	+\$1 International using Access Code 011 not +1	
	11 ^\+(1[2-9][0-9]{2}[2-9][0-9]{6})\$	+\$1 E.164 with plus sign for +1	
	12 ^\+([2-9][0-9]{7,14})\$	+\$1 E.164 with plus sign not +1	
	13 ^(441 442 443)\$	+00084040403-\$TENANT Block VCC calls to VO System 4xx Extensions	
	14 ^(500 555 556 557 559 570 577 587 5	+00084040403-\$TENANT Block VCC calls to VO System 5xx Extensions	
	15 ^(610 612 614 615)\$	+00084040403-\$TENANT Block VCC calls to VO System 6xx Extensions	-
	· · · · · · · · · · · ·	Save Cancel	

A indicates what dial plan is being used. If the dialed phone number matches a calling number pattern, the corresponding treatment is applied.

Create custom dial plans

Creating a custom dial plan in 8x8 Contact Center requires a good understanding of regular expressions. This section gives a brief overview of creating a custom plan. You may seek guidance from professional services for creating a custom plan from scratch.

To create a custom dial plan via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 3. Go to the **Dial Plans** tab.
- 4. Click $\textcircled{}^{\textcircled{}}$ to add a new dial plan.

Home Security	Home » Dial Plans		0
Agent Groups			
Agents	Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans A	gent's Idle Timer	
Queues/Skills			
Channels	< Return To Dial Plan List		
Scripts CRM	* Dial Plan Name	Test Number Test	
Outbound	Default Plan	inter a phone number and then press 'Test' to apply dial plan for te	sting.
Setup	Add New Rule		
Campaigns	Order Dialed String Match Pattern Rewrite Translation	Rule Comment	Delete Rule Test Match
Broadcast	1 ^0\$ 1		1
Integration			
Status Codes			
Transaction Codes			
Outbound Phone Codes			
Wallboard			
Chat design			
	Drag and drop to change order of Dial plan rules.		
		Save Cancel	

5. In the Add New Dial Plan window, enter the following information:

Dial Plans	Description
Dial Plan	Enter a name for the new dial plan.
Name	

Dial Plans	Description
Test Number	Enter a telephone number to test your plan. A 🥏 indicates which rule is being applied.
Default Plan	Check the option to mark this as the default dial plan.
Order	Indicates the order of the rules applied to each number. You can change the order of the rules in custom plans by dragging and dropping them in the desired location.
Dialed String Match Pattern	 Define a calling number pattern to apply the dial plan using regular expressions. A regular expression provides a concise and flexible means for matching strings of text, or patterns of characters. Most commonly used regular expressions are: ^ Matches the starting position of the string. Matches any single character. * Matches the preceding element 0 or more times. \$ Matches the ending position of the string. Matches a single character contained within the brackets. For example, [2-9] specifies any digit from 2 through 9. () - A marked sub-expression within which you define a string to match. For example, the pattern ^([2-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9])\$ defines a 7-digit sequence where the first digit is not 0 or 1.
Rewrite	Note: Defining a dial plan requires sound knowledge of regular expressions. Define the treatment for the number that matches the specified calling number pattern. For
Translation	example, the pattern ^([2-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9])\$ and treatment 1650\$1 prepends a 7-digit input with "1650". \$1 represents pattern within the (). If you input 5551212, the treatment converts the number to 16505551212.
Rule Comment	Gives a brief description of the treatment received by the rule.
Delete Rule	Allows you to delete the rule. This applies to user-defined rules only.
Test Match	Indicates if the rule applies to the test number.

6. Click

to add a new rule. Click to delete a rule.

Examples of dial plan rules shown above can be interpreted as follows:

- For example, if you input 5551212, the number gets prefixed with the area code and converts to 16505551212.
- b. The pattern ^(55[0-9][0-9])\$ and treatment 1650292\$1 converts all 4 digit extension number starting with 55 to 165029255XX, where X is a mandatory single digit.
- 7. Enter a sequence of digits and click Test to validate the calling number pattern and treatment you defined. The

to indicate a match. first matched rule shows

8. Click Save.

Variables

We have two types of variables in dial plans:

System variables

The following set of new variables are introduced in dial plan. The system variables cannot be edited.

System Variable	Used for
\$TENANT	Tenant name
\$AGENTLOGIN	Agent username, if available for the call
\$ORIGNUMBER	Original dialed number



Note: The E.164 system dial plan is no longer a pass-through. A new rule is added to validate the dialing number.

User-Defined variables

Users can create variables based on their specific needs. For example, a user defines the variable SET MYAREACODE for their area code. When they enter a telephone number, the system dials the area code (1510) first, and then dials the number.

Dialed String Match Pattern	Rewrite Translation	Rule Comment
SET MYAREACODE	1510	my area code
^([1-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9][0-9])\$	\$MYAREACODE\$1	add area code

Change the order of custom rules

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Home**.
- 2. Go to the **Dial Plans** tab.
- 3. Click or **Edit** to open a rule.
- 4. Click to select the custom rule, and drag it to the desired location.

Home Security	Home » Dial Plans				()
Agent Groups					
Agents	Summary Profile Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer		
Queues/Skills Channels	< Return To Dial Plan List				
Scripts CRM	* Dial Plan Name System Dial Plan: US Cust	om	Test Number	Test	
Outbound Setup	Add New Rule		Enter a phone number and then press 'Test' to apply	dial plan for testing.	
Campaigns	Order Dialed String Match Pattern	Rewrite Translation	Rule Comment	Delete Rule To	est Match
Broadcast	1 ^(1[2-9][0-9]{2}[2-9][0-9]{6})\$	+\$1	11 Digit US NANP Format	⊕	
Integration	2 +011([1-9][0-9]{6,14})\$	+\$1 3	International Using Access Code 011	Ü	
Status Codes	3 ^\+([1-9][0-9]{6,14})\$	+\$1	E.164 with Plus Sign	団	
Transaction Codes					
Outbound Phone Codes					
Wallboard					
Chat design					
	Drag and drop to change order of Dial plan rules.		Save Cancel		

5. Click Save.



Note: You cannot edit system dial plans.

Select a default dial plan

One of the pre-configured dial plans in 8x8 Contact Center is selected as default for your contact center tenant. As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you cannot edit the default dial plan unless you have created a custom dial plan and would like to select it as the default instead. To revert to a pre-configured dial plan, select the desired plan in 8x8 Configuration Manager and edit it.

To select a default dial plan in the tenant:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Home.
- 2. Go to the **Dial Plans** tab.
- 3. Choose the dial plan you want to make the default, and double-click to open.
- 4. Select the Default Plan check box to mark it as the default.

Home Security	Home » Dial Plans				(j)
Agent Groups					
Agents	Summary Profile Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer		
Queues/Skills			-		
Channels	< Return To Dial Plan List				
Scripts	* Dial Plan Name System Dial Plan: US Custo	m	Test Number	Test	
CRM	Default Plan		Enter a phone number and then press 'Test' to app	oly dial plan for testing.	
Outbound Setup	Add New Rule				
Campaigns	Order Dialed String Match Pattern	Rewrite Translation	Rule Comment	Delete Rule Test Mat	ch
Broadcast	1 ^(1[2-9][0-9]{2}[2-9][0-9]{6})\$	+\$1	11 Digit US NANP Format	田	
Integration	2 +011([1-9][0-9]{6,14})\$	+\$1	International Using Access Code 011	甸	
Status Codes	3 ^\+([1-9][0-9]{6,14})\$	+\$1	E.164 with Plus Sign	田	
Transaction Codes					
Outbound Phone Codes					
Wallboard					
Chat design					
	Drag and drop to change order of Dial plan rules.				
			Save Cancel		

5. Click Save.

8x8

Reset idle timer for agents

In 8x8 Contact Center, idle time refers to the length of time agents have been idle, and is measured for each agent by the agent's idle timer. When multiple agents with the same queue and skill level assignments are idle, the system routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. The agent's idle timer is reset every time the agent ends post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction. Agent-initiated interactions do not reset the idle timer.

To supplement the default behavior, a tenant-wide setting allows resetting the idle timer when agents transition from one status to another. By default, an agent is considered idle from the time he ends post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction and becomes available. However, you can customize the contact center to reset your agent's idle timer based on a combination of agent and system-initiated status changes. For example, in addition to the default reset, you can configure the idle timer in 8x8 Configuration Manager to reset when agents change their status from On Break to Available.

Assumptions

In 8x8 Contact Center we assume:

- Resetting idle timer does not change the underlying default behavior, it simply adds an overlay and when selected they additionally update the timer setting when an agent changes status. An example is when the agent returns from On Break to Available or from Login to On Break each morning.
- Resetting idle timer does not change the interactions that reset in the default behavior, or inbound and outbound that are system-generated. Calls that are excluded from the reset, such as manual dials and agent-to-agent calls, remain excluded.
- Agent skill level is a default behavior. An agent with a higher skill level takes precedence over any lower-skill-level agent with a more recent status transition that has reset their timer.

Set up idle timer for agents

To set up the supplementary settings for agent idle timer:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to Home > Agent's Idle Timer.
- 2. Select the transitions for which you want the timer to reset, such as when an agent goes On Break from Available. You can also select a combination of agent-generated and system-generated actions. These changes are
immediate and do not require agents to log out and log back in.

8×8							은 Rob	in Shasta (ry	vandemo010	1) My Profile		Logout
Home Security	Home » Agen	t's Idle Time	er									0
Agent Groups Users												
Queues/Skills	Summary Profile	Audio Files	Schedules	Dial Plans	Agent's Idl	e Timer						
Channels	Agent's Idle Tim	er Reset Setti	ngs									
Scripts CRM	When multiple agents are available with the same queue and skill level assignments, the system routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. By default, the agent's idle timer is reset every time they end post processing from a system delivered interaction.* This reset persists until the same scenario is repeated. Agent initiated interactions do not reset their idle timer.											
Outbound Setup	Additionally, you can customize your contact center to reset your agent's idle timer based upon a combination of agent and system initiated status changes.											
Campaigns			to the	e following status via AGENT actionto the following status via SYSTE						itus via SYSTEM a	action	
Broadcast Integration	Reset idle timer when	coming from	Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout		Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout	
Status Codes	Post Processing											
Transaction	Status Change											
Codes	Login								~			
Outbound	On Break		~									
Phone Codes	Work Offline											
Wallboard Chat design	* The timer also resets at t	te end of a non-busy Dir	ect Agent Routing		to Default	Save	c	ancel				

Note: The agent's idle timer is reset at the end of a non-busy Direct Agent Routing (DAR) call. By default, the agent's status changes to Busy when a call is transferred to the agent unless this option is disabled by the tenant administrator inside the Phone script IVR.

8×8		😩 Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile Co-browsing Help Logout
Home Security Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM Support Center Outbound Status Codes Tonsaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	working offline working w	bject to Agent	View Variables

- 8x8
 - 3. Click Save.
 - 4. If you click Reset to Default, it removes all your custom settings and goes back to the default Post Processing.

Use cases

The following use cases provide an insight into the default behavior as well as the new extended capability.

Use Case 1: Idle timer resets after an interaction ends (Agents with varying skill levels) The default behavior resets the idle timer after an interaction ends. In the following scenario, Agent John has a higher skill level than Mary. They both process an inbound call, end the call and make themselves available. Mary ends the call two minutes before John. Mary is idle for 12 hours and 10 minutes while John is idle for 12 hours and 8 minutes. Even though Mary is idle 2 minutes longer than John, the next inbound call is offered to John since he has a higher skill level.



• Use Case 2: Reset idle timer after an interaction ends (Agents with identical skill levels)

In this scenario, Fred, Mary, John, and Sarah serving the same queue have identical skill levels. After processing the inbound calls at varying times, they all log out. Mary and John log in first followed by Fred and Sarah. John goes on break while the rest of the team get on calls. Sarah ends the call and becomes available. A few minutes later, John returns from break. The incoming call is now offered to John, but not Sarah since John has been idle the longest. The default behavior resets the idle timer after an interaction ends.



Use Case 3: Reset idle timer after a status change

In this case, the idle timer resets after an interaction ends and again after an agent logs in.

to the following status via AGENT action					to the following status via SYSTEM action			
Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout	Avai	ilable	On Break	Work Offline	Logout
		2					2	
						✓		
	Available	Available On Break	Available On Break Work Offline	Available On Break Work Offline Logout	Available On Break Work Offline Logout Ava	Available On Break Work Offline Logout Available	Available On Break Work Offline Logout Available On Break	Available On Break Work Offline Logout Available On Break Work Offline

Sarah and Fred, with the same skill level, process an incoming call and end the call at varying times. The idle timer resets. Later they log out. Fred logs back in (Idle timer is reset). He goes on break and then changes his status to available. Later Sarah logs in and changes her status to available. The next incoming interaction is offered to Fred since he logged in before Sarah and the idle timer is reset at login.



Use Case 4: Reset idle timer after a status change

The idle timer is reset after an interaction ends by default. Additionally, the idle timer is configured to reset when an agent logs out from On Break status.

Denot bills the environment of form	to the	following sta	atus via AGENT	action	to the following status via SYSTEM action				
Reset idle timer when coming from	Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout	Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout	
Post Processing									
Status Change									
Login									
On Break									
Work Offline									

Mary and Fred process an inbound call. Fred ends the call first (the idle timer is reset) followed by Mary. Mary goes on break and logs out shortly after (the idle timer is reset). Fred follows suit. Later in the day Fred logs back in followed by Mary. The incoming interaction is now offered to Mary, since she logged out before Fred and the idle timer is reset at logout.



Use Case 5: Reset idle timer after a status change

The idle timer is reset after an interaction ends by default. Additionally, it resets when agents change their status from work offline to On Break.

Reset idle timer when coming from	to the	following sta	atus via AGENT	action	to the	following sta	itus via SYS
Reset late timer when coming from	Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout	Available	On Break	Work Of
Post Processing							
Status Change							
Login							
On Break							
Work Offline							

Fred and John, with the same skill level, process an inbound call, end the call. The idle time is reset. They then log out at the same time. John logs back followed by Fred. Fred is offered an incoming call while John changes his

status to working offline. Fred ends the call (Idle timer is reset). Shortly after John goes On Break (idle timer is reset). The next incoming call is offered to Fred who is idle the longest.



• Use Case 6: Reset idle timer after a status change

The idle timer is reset after an interaction ends by default. Additionally, it resets when agents change their status from working offline to available.

	to the following status via AGENT action					to the following status via SY			
Reset idle timer when coming from	Available	On Break	Work Offline	Logout		Available	On Break	Work Off	
Post Processing									
Status Change									
Login									
On Break									
Work Offline									
* The timer also resets at the end of a non-busy Di	rect Agent Rou	ting (DAR) call.							

Mary and John process an inbound call, end the call at varying times. The idle timer is reset for Mary followed by John. They both log out and log back in. The next incoming call is offered to Mary since she has been idle the longest. John then goes to work offline, makes himself available (Idle time is reset) shortly after. Mary who is on a call ends the call, makes herself available. The next incoming call is offered to John who has been available the

longest.



Work with agent's idle timer

As an 8x8 Contact Center agent, you are ready to process new interactions when you change your status to Available. If you are assigned to a queue, you are offered the interactions waiting to be served in that queue.

To accept an interaction:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Agent Console and change your status to Available.
- 2. When you accept an interaction, your status changes to Busy.
- 3. Process the interaction and then click End.
- 4. If required, select the Transaction Code before ending the transaction.
- 5. Click **End Post Processing** to make your status **Available**, or click **Work Offline** if you need more time to complete any post processing tasks.

The system routes the next interaction to the agent who has been idle the longest. By default, agents are considered idle from the time they end post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction. Depending on the back-end configuration, the idle time can also be reset when the agents change their status. For example, in addition to the default reset, the idle timer can be reset when agents change their status from On Break to Available.



Note: The agent's idle timer is reset every time: - An interaction comes to an agent via a queue

- An agent ends post processing of a system-delivered, queued interaction (default).
- An agent changes their status (if configured by the tenant administrator).
- An agent transfers an interaction that comes via a queue to another agent, it resets the timer for

Agent A but not for Agent B.

- DAR/DAA interactions reset the idle timer by default, if not disabled by the tenant administrator inside the Phone script IVR.

See the following table for the complete list of activities that may or may not reset the agent's idle timer.

An agent's idle timer is reset by:	An agent's idle timer is not reset by:
Inbound call via an inbound voice queue	Accepting Direct-to-Agent (DAR or DAA) calls Note: The agent's idle timer is reset at the end of a non-busy Direct Agent Routing (DAR) call. By default, the agent's status changes to Busy when a
	call is transferred to the agent unless this option is disabled by the tenant administrator inside the Phone script IVR.



IVR callback call via an outbound queue	Dialing a manual outbound call even if it makes the agent busy using an Outbound Phone Code (OPC) queue
Web callback call via an outbound queue	Making a click-to-dial outbound call
Campaign call via an outbound queue	Agent-to-agent chat

An agent's idle timer is reset by:	An agent's idle timer is not reset by:
an inbound chat queue	reset by default unless it is configured by the tenant administrator)
Inbound email via an inbound email queue	Log in or log out (not reset by default unless it is configured by the tenant administrator)

Define password policies

8x8 Contact Center password policies allow the contact center administrator to define rules to enhance tenant security by encouraging users (administrators, agents, and supervisors) to employ strong passwords and ensure proper usage. Password policies define a mechanism to secure user accounts.



Note: 8x8 Contact Center administrators cannot create passwords for new users. Account information such as the system-generated password is automatically communicated with new users via email. Administrators, however, can help users reset their passwords during lockout by sending a system-generated email that contains the password reset link.

Features

The following features in password policies of 8x8 Configuration Manager allow users to define passwords and increase their account security:

- Timed password expiration forcing a periodic password change.
- Password history to remember a specified number of previously used passwords and prevents re-use.
- Minimum password length of 5, 8, or 10 characters.
- Password complexity requirements, such as a mix of alphanumeric characters or a mix of upper and lowercase alpha with numeric characters.
- Security questions to reset a forgotten password. You can prevent agents from answering the security question with a password.

- Password reset for any user at any time. An administrator can initiate the password reset that is automatically communicated with users via email.
- Account lockout for a specific time or until unlocked by administrator in case of invalid login attempts.
- Lockout alert notification for administrator.

8x8

Configure password policies

The Security page in 8x8 Configuration Manager allows you to define password policies. As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can set rules on password length, formation, password duration, and common password practice for users to follow while creating their passwords. These rules are enforced on users to protect their accounts from being hacked.

To configure password policies:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the **Password Policies** tab.
- 3. Configure the desired settings.

The following options are available for password policies:

Password Policies - General	Description	Policy Options
Password Expires (In days)	Defines how long a password is alive. After the specified duration, the password expires and needs to be changed. Note: Selecting Never Expires keeps the password alive as	 30 days 60 days 90 days 180 days
	long as you desire.	 One Year Never expires
Enforce Password History	Defines the number of previous passwords (or no passwords) to be remembered by the system. It prevents users from using the previous passwords when creating a new one.	 No passwords remember ed 3 passwords remember ed

Policy Options

_

Password Policies - General	Description

		 5 passwords remember ed 10 passwords remember ed
Minimum Password Length	Defines a minimum length for a password. Restricts agents from choosing a password less than the specified length.	 8 characters 10 characters 12 characters
Password Complexity Requirement	Defines if a password must be set with a certain complexity.	 Must mix alpha and numeric Must mix upper and lower case alpha and numeric Must contain 3 out of 4: upper case alpha lower case alpha lower case

Password Policies - General	Description	Policy Options
Email system generated passwords for new agents/admins and reset	Determines if a system-generated password is sent to the agents or Secondary administrators to reset their passwords. The system default is No. If you select Yes , the Reset Password button appears under Agents > General . If you click Reset Password, an email containing a temporary username and password is sent to the user.	 alpha nume ric symb ols (*@& #!?) Yes No
Password Question Requirement	Defines if the answer to a security question in the agent profile can be the same as the password or not. Note: Selecting None lets an agent answer the security question same as the password.	 Answer cannot be same as password None

4. Click Save.

For Lockout policy, see Lock and Unlock User Accounts.

Note: The minimum password length is 8 characters. Existing agents and supe with passwords shorter than 8 characters are not impacted until the next passw	
---	--

Note: The minimum password length is 8 characters. Existing agents and supervisor accounts with passwords shorter than 8 characters are not impacted until the next password change.

Lock and unlock user accounts

The Security page in 8x8 Configuration Manager allows you to define lockout policy. As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can set rules for maximum invalid login attempts before the system locks you out. These rules are enforced on users to protect their accounts from being hacked. An administrator can also unlock a user account to give immediate access to the locked-out user. This prevents the user from being idle during an accidental lockout.

Lock a User Account

Locking out a user account is a mechanism to ensure account security. When you set password lockout policies, you can specify:

- the number of invalid login attempts that locks out an account.
- the duration of the lockout.
- an email lockout alert to the administrator.

Specifying the number of invalid logins and lockout duration locks an account for the specified duration when the number of invalid login attempts is reached. For example, you can set lockout policy to lock an account with three invalid login attempts for a period of 30 minutes.

To define agent Lockout settings:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the Password Policies tab.
- 3. Configure the desired settings under Lockout.

Lockout				
Maximum Invalid Login Attempts	5 🔻			
Lockout interval after max invalid login attempts	5 minutes	•		
Send Lockout alert to administrator	Yes	•		
			I	
			Save	Cancel

The following options are provided by the password lockout policies:

Password Policies - Lockout	Description	Policy Options
Maximum Invalid Login Attempts Lockout interval after max invalid login attempts	Defines the number of invalid login attempts to lockout an administrator/agent/supervisor account. Specifies the duration for which an account is locked out after invalid login attempts. After the specified time, the agent is allowed to login. Note: Selecting Forever (must be reset by admin) requires the administrator to unlock an account and/or reset the password.	60 Minutes
		 Forever (must be reset by admin) (default)
Send Lockout alert to administrator	Enables sending an email alert of an account lockout to the administrator.	YesNo (default)

Lockout behavior disables the login and password fields and prevents user's further attempts to log in. After the lockout duration, the login screen allows the user to log in again with the right credentials, or to reset the password. The reset password is communicated to the email address specified in the account.

Unlock a User Account

During a lockout, a user is prevented from logging in to the account for a specified period of time. An administrator can unlock a user account to give immediate access to the locked-out user. This prevents the user from being idle during an accidental lockout.

- Any administrator in the Super User role or a role with full privileges to Agents object is capable of unlocking an agent/supervisor account.
- Any administrator in the Super User role or a role with full privileges to the Security tab is capable of unlocking an administrator role.



Note: To unlock the Primary administrator role, you must contact 8x8 Contact Center support staff.

To unlock a user account:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Locate the user account with that requires unlocking.
- 3. Click to open user details.
- 4. Open the **General** tab. Depending on whether you have enabled **Email system generated passwords for new** agents/admins and reset under **Security > Password Policies**, you must do the following:
 - If enabled: Click Reset Password. An automatic email is generated and sent to the user's email address on file. The user then has to click the link in the email to reset the password.
 - If disabled: Enter a new password for the user, and save. From the list of users, click next to the user to unlock them. Notify the user of their new password so that they can log back in.

Roles and administrators

8x8 Contact Center role-based management allows a tenant to distribute the configuration management functionality among multiple roles. Role-based management allows you to create roles, define privileges or permissions to manage varying scope of tenant configuration, and add and assign administrators to the roles. For example, you can define a campaign manager role with exclusive permissions to create, edit, delete, and control campaigns, and restrict access to any other functionality in 8x8 Configuration Manager. To create a campaign role, you must grant permissions to Campaigns only.

Features

Role-based management offers the following features in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- Ability to distribute tenant configuration among multiple roles and administrators.
- Ability to create and manage multiple administrator roles.
- Availability of predefined Super User role with unrestricted access to the tenant configuration. The tenant's Primary
 administrator inherits the Super User role.
- Ability to assign multiple administrators to the Super User role.
- Ability to assign administrative privileges to selective groups, or queues, or channels.
- Each administrator can assume a single role at a given time.
- Each role can have multiple administrators assigned to it.
- Password security policies common to agents and administrators.
- Ability to filter and sort roles list by different fields facilitating quick access to data.
- Ability to filter and sort administrators list by different fields.

Type of roles

The following administrator roles exist in 8x8 Contact Center. The roles are accessed and configured via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- Super User: Every 8x8 Contact Center tenant has a predefined Super User role that has unrestricted administrative rights to configure and manage all objects in 8x8 Configuration Manager. The Primary administrator assumes the Super User role. You cannot edit or revoke permissions of the Super User role, but you can assign multiple administrators to the role. Any administrator in the Super User role inherits configuration rights to all administrative areas. When they log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager, they have access to all the functionality available to the tenant.
- Custom Role: Any administrator with permissions to the Security tab is capable of creating roles and administrators. You can create a custom role with custom privileges and assign administrators to that role. A custom role is any role defined by an administrator, while the Super User role is system-defined. An administrator assigned to a custom role may be referred to as the Secondary administrator. Based on the permissions, a Secondary administrator may have full or partial configuration rights. When this administrator logs in to 8x8 Configuration Manager, they have access to areas granted for the role only. For example, a campaign manager who is granted privileges to create campaigns only sees Campaigns in the Configuration Menu.

Create roles and assign administrators

To take advantage of role-based management in 8x8 Configuration Manager, the 8x8 Contact Center Primary administrator must create a role, define permissions, add administrators, and assign one or more administrators to the role.

The process involves the following steps:

Step 1: Create a role and define permissions

A role allows administrative privileges or permissions in 8x8 Configuration Manager. Creating a role requires definition of permissions to list, view, create, edit, delete, and/or control a specified configuration object. For example, you can define a Campaign Manager role with permissions to create, manage, and supervise wallboards or campaign functionality. Go to **Security > Roles** to add or edit roles.

By default, every tenant is bundled with a Super User role assigned to the tenant's Primary administrator. A Super User role provides all permissions to configure tenant functionality. You can assign any number of administrators to the Super User role.

To add a custom role:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Security**.
- 2. Go to the Roles tab.



Note: You can assign the role of an administrator when creating a new user. As soon as you choose a user to be an administrator, the option to select a specific role appears. You can continue to define the Roles and Administrators in Security tab.

3. Click Add Role.



Note: By default, every tenant is bundled with a **Super User** role. A Super User has all permissions to configure tenant functionality. You can assign any number of administrators to the Super User role.

4. Enter a Role Name.

x8					ර	John Smith (rr1q9a2	1) My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logou
me curity	Security » Add Role »	Permiss	sions							î
ent Groups ents eues/Skills	Password Policies Roles	Administrator	s SMTP Serve	rs IP Addres	s Restriction					
annels	Create New Role									
ripts M	< Back to roles list									
	* Role name AcmeJets Wallboard A	Admin								
up npaigns	Permissions Assignment									
	Apply to all: Ust Details Create Edit Delete Control									
gration tus Codes	Name TRANSACTION CODES	List	Details	Create	Edit	Delete	Control	Use Individual S	Settings	
action s	Transaction Code									
	OUTBOUND PHONE CODE LI									
	Outbound Phone Codes									
	WALLBOARDS	 Image: A set of the set of the							() lividual Settings	
	Wallboard		Z	~	~	~	~			
	CHAT DESIGN									
	Form									
	Button									
	Invitation									
	Window									-
				Save						

- 5. Determine the permissions to be given to the role.
- Select functionality objects such as Wallboards and check the appropriate permissions. The available permissions are: list, details, create, edit, delete, and control a functionality. The following table summarizes the role permissions:

Role Permission	Description
List	Lists all the entities pertaining to an object. For example, List permission in the Agents tab allows an administrator to list all existing agents in the tenant.
Details	Allows to view details of each entity. For example, with the permission to view details, you can view agent account details.
Create	Allows you to create a specific subset of a Menu Object functionality or an entire Menu Object. For example, you may create a role with permissions to create Inbound and Outbound queues, but not Email and Chat queues within the Queues Menu Object.

Role Permission	Description
Edit	Allows you to edit a specific subset of a Menu Object functionality or an entire Menu Object.
Delete	Allows you to delete a specific subset of a Menu Object functionality or an entire Menu Object.
Control	Allows you to control a Menu Object based on its functionality. Control permissions are available to:
	 Start, schedule, stop, pause, purge, and resume campaigns Import CRM data Broadcast messages to agents and Supervisors

7. Click **Save** to add the new role.

The next step is to assign an administrator.

Step 2: Add administrators

An administrator inherits permissions assigned to a role and can assume a single role at a time. You cannot assign multiple roles to an administrator, but multiple administrators may function in a single role.

To add an administrator:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the Administrators tab.

łome	Security » Admir	nistrators List				G
ecurity	,					-
gents	Password Policies Rol	les Administrators	SMTP Servers IP Address Re	striction		
	A destated and a set that					> Filter Administrators Lis
	Administrators List					Filter Administrators Lis
	Add Administrator			<< < 1 > >	>> 20 records 6 Conf	igure Sort i 🏑 Clear All So
	Name	Username	Role	Enabled	Locked	
tbound tup	Support, Acmelets	AcmeJets	Super User	yes	no	1
mpaigns	Shah, Suman	Suman	Super User	yes	no	1
oadcast	Marcy, Alex	Alex	Super User	yes	no	1 1
egration	Bergmann, Dana	Dana	Super User	yes	no	0 1
atus Codes						
ansaction ides						
tbound one Codes						
illboard						
at design						



4. Fill in the following mandatory fields:

Field Name	Description						
First Name	nter the first name of the Administrator.						
Last Name	Enter the last name of the Administrator.						
Email Address	Enter an Email ID to communicate with the Administrator.						
Role	Select a role from the list of defined roles.						
User Name	Enter a username used to log in to the administrator role.						
Password	Enter a password. Note: Password should match the password policy requirements.						
Retype Password	Confirm the password.						
Language	Enter a language of choice for the Administrator user interface.						
Enabled	Select the check box to activate the Administrator.						
Comment	Enter any comments.						

5. Click Save to create an administrator.

Step 3: Assign administrators to the role

After creating a role, you can assign an administrator to the role. The administrator inherits all permissions assigned to the role. By logging in to 8x8 Configuration Manager, the Secondary administrator gets access to the functionality permitted for the role. You can also reassign an administrator to a new role.

To assign an administrator to a role:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Security**.
- 2. Go to the Roles tab.
- 3. From the Roles List, select a role to assign an administrator to.



5. Click the Assignment tab.

- 8x8
 - 6. From the list of administrators, select and assign an administrator to the role. Click here to learn how to create administrators.

Home Security	Secur	rity » Edit Ro	le » Assign Ad	ministrators				(j)
Agent Groups								
Agents	Passwo	ord Policies Role	s Administrators	SMTP Servers II	P Address Restriction			
Queues/Skills Channels	Edit	Wallboard Adr	min					
Scripts	< Back	to roles list						
CRM Outbound	* Role n	ame Wallboard Adm	in					
Setup Campaigns	Permi	ssions Assignmen	nt					
Broadcast	Adm	inistrator List					> Filter Administ	trator List
Integration					<< < 1	▼ > >> 20 recor	rds 🛯 🖓 Configure Sort 🤯 Clea	ar All Sort
Status Codes	Assign	Username	Name	Email	Туре	Role	Enabled	
Transaction Codes		AcmeJets	Support, Acmelets	contract prod	Secondary	Super User	yes	
Outbound		Suman	Shah, Suman		Secondary	Super User	yes	
Phone Codes		Marcy	Marcy, Alex	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Secondary	Super User	yes	
Wallboard		Dana	Bergmann, Dana		Secondary	Super User	yes	
Chat design								
					Save Cancel			



7. Save your changes.

Step 4: Log in and validate role permissions (optional)

After assigning an administrator to a role, you can log in and validate that the Secondary administrator account has the intended permissions. For details, refer to Log In.

Change the administrator password

A Secondary administrator can change password and set up a security question by clicking **Profile** on the top bar of the 8x8 Contact Center application.

8x8				▲ Dana Bergmann (AcmeJet	ts) My Profile
Home Security	My Profile				
Agent Groups					
Agents	General Settings		Security Settings		
Queues/Skills	* User Name :	Dana	Old Password :		
Channels Scripts	* First Name :	Dana	New Password :		
CRM	* Last Name :	Bergmann	Retype Password :		
Outbound	* Email :	Dana.Bergmann@acmejets.com	Security Question :	▼	
Setup	* Language :	English (US)	Security Answer :		
		Save	Cancel		

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Click **My Profile** at the top of the screen.
- 3. Enter a new password or security question.
- 4. Click Save.

Define a role with granular control

Managing a large number of agents and queues in a contact center can be challenging. 8x8 Contact Center admins can define administrator roles with granular control to administer and manage an individual agents group, a queue, or a channel. For example, if the contact center experience large inbound call volume to the support queue, admins can create an administrator role to configure and manage the support queue exclusively.

The following objects in 8x8 Configuration Manager offer individual settings for role permissions:

- Agents: allows you to control agents belonging to individual or selective groups
- Queues: allows you to control an individual queue or selective queues
- Scripts: allows you to control an individual script or selective scripts
- Channels: allows you to control an individual channel or selective channels

To define a role with granular control:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the Roles tab.
- 3. Create a new role, or edit an existing role.

- Security » Add Role » Permissions (j) Roles Administrators SMTP Servers IP Address Restriction Password Policies Create New Role < Back to roles list * Role name Permissions Assignment Apply to all: List Details Create Edit Delete Control Name List Details Create Edit Delete Control Use Individual Settings IP Address Restriction ~ ~ AGENT GROUPS ~ Agent Group ~ ~ AGENTS ~ Agent Group 🔽 🥒 Edit Individual S QUEUES ~ Inbound Phone ~ ~ ~ ~ Outbound Phone ~ ~ ~ ~ Email ~ ~ ~ ~ Chat ~ ~ ~ ~ Voice Mail ~ Queue Group ~ ~ SCRIPTS Save Cancel
- 4. In the Permissions tab of the role settings, select the **Edit Individual Settings** check box for Agents, Queues, Scripts, or Channels.

5. From the list of available items, assign individual permissions such as details, edit, or delete. The **Individual Permissions Assignment** window opens.

Agent Groups	'	Individual Perm Individual Permiss	-	j_	•	> Filter Individu	ual Permissions Assignment
Agents	Password		ions Assignment				aar Permissions Assignment
	Edit \	Apply to all: List	Details 🗌 Create 📃 Eo	lit 🗌 Delete 🛛 << <	1 🔻 > >>	20 records (§) Config	gure Sort 🥳 Clear All Sort
		Group	List	Details	Create	Edit	Delete
	< Back to	Ungroup					
	* Role nam	Sales	~	✓	~	~	
Support Center		Support		2	~		
	Permiss	Marketing					
	Apply to a						
Campaigns Broadcast	Name AGENTS						gs
	Agent G						etting
	QUEUES						
ransaction odes	Inbound						
outbound	Outbou						
hone Codes	Email						
Vallboard	Chat						
Chat design	100 10			ОК	Cancel		

- 6. Click **OK**. The definition of individual settings is complete for the role.
- 7. Click **Save** to save the role and assign an administrator.

Change roles for an administrator

An 8x8 Contact Center Secondary administrator can assume a single role at a given time. However, that role can be changed by the Primary administrator in the 8x8 Configuration Manager at any time. Assigning a new role to an administrator removes them from the previous role.

To change roles for an administrator:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the Roles tab.
- 3. From the roles list, select a role.
- 4. Click Edit, or double-click to open the role details.
- 5. Go to the Assignment tab.
- 6. From the administrators list, find an administrator and assign to the role.

Home Security	Security » Edit Role »	Assign Adminis	trators			Ĵ
Agent Groups						
Agents	Password Policies Roles	Administrators SMTP Se	ervers IP Address Restri	ction		
Queues/Skills Channels	Edit Wallboard Admin					
Scripts	< Back to roles list					
CRM Support	* Role name Wallboard Admin					
Center Outbound	Permissions Assignment					
Setup	Administrator List					> Filter Administrator List
Campaigns				<< 1 >>>>	20 records 🚳	Configure Sort 🥁 Clear All Sort
Broadcast	Assign Username	Name	Email	Type	Role	Enabled
Integration	Assign Osername Acmelets	Support, Acmelets	Email	Secondary	Super User	
Status Codes		11.1	nates (1) and	1	1.	yes
Transaction	Suman	Shah, Suman		Secondary	Super User	yes
Codes	Alex	Marcy, Alex	enfuntaria@flaft.com	Secondary	Super User	yes
Outbound Phone Codes	Dana	Bergmann, Dana	ու ուսերին անդարարին հետ ար	Secondary	Super User	yes
Wallboard						
Chat design						
			Save	Cancel		



Note: You can assign multiple administrators to a role, but assign only one role per administrator. Assigning a new role to an administrator removes them from the previous role.

Filter and sort roles

If your 8x8 Contact Center defines numerous roles and administrators, you may find it hard to track them in a scrollable list. Role-based management allows you to search and filter roles and administrators lists in 8x8 Configuration Manager by specific criteria, such as Role ID, Role Name, and administrators.

To filter roles:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the Roles tab.
- 3. Click Filter Roles List.
- 4. Specify the criteria to filter the roles from the drop-down menu.
- 5. Add the desired filtering criteria and select an appropriate parameter.
- 6. Click Filter.

The search result shows.

Sorting roles list

You can sort the Roles list in the desired order by applying sort parameters. You can sort by Role Name, Role ID, and the number of administrators assigned to a role by applying suitable parameters. You can sort the list in ascending or descending order with just a single click on the header bar. You have the option to sort by multiple fields by clicking **Configure Sort**.

To sort by a single field:

Click the header bar for the desired field to sort in the ascending or descending order automatically.

- To sort by multiple fields:
 - a. Click the Configure Sort link.

The Sort dialog box appears.

b. Click Add Level to specify a field name and the order to sort by.

c. Click **Delete Level** to eliminate the desired sorting criteria.

Sort						
🕀 Add L	⊕ Add Level ⊖ Delete Level		Copy Level) ^ Y		
Column			Order			
Sort By	Name	•	/	Ascending		
Then By	Adm	inistrators	•	Ascending	•	
			Ap	ply Cano	cel	

d. Click Apply.

The sorted list appears.

Filter and sort administrators

If your 8x8 Contact Center defines numerous roles and administrators, you may find it hard to track them in a scrollable list. Role-based management allows you to search and filter the list of Secondary administrators by specific fields, such as Name, Username, Role, Email, Language, and locked or enabled administrators inside 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To filter the list of administrators:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Security**.
- 2. Go to the Administrators tab.
- 3. Click Filter Administrators List.

Home	Security » Adminis	trators List				(i)
Security Agent Groups						
Agent Groups	Password Policies Roles	Administrators	SMTP Servers IP Address R	astriction		
Queues/Skills	Fassword Policles Roles	Administrators	SMIF Servers IF Address R	estriction		
Channels	Administrators List			_		
Scripts	⊖ Name	 Contains 	v			
CRM	and					
Outbound Setup	Filter Role Enabled				∧ Clos	e Filter Administrators List
Campaigns	Add Administra Locked Email			<< < 1 >>	>> 20 records 🚯 Config	ure Sort 🥳 Clear All Sort
Broadcast	Language	osemanie	Roie	Enabled	Locked	
Integration	Support, AcmeJets	AcmeJets	Super User	yes	no	1
Status Codes	Shah, Suman	Suman	Super User	yes	no	1
ransaction odes	Marcy, Alex	Alex	Super User	yes	no	1
Dutbound	Bergmann, Dana	Dana	Super User	yes	no	1 1
Phone Codes						
Wallboard						
Chat design						

- 4. Specify the criteria to filter the administrators from the drop-down menu.
- Add the desired filtering criteria and select an appropriate parameter, such as the combination <Role, Equals, Super User>.
- 6. Click Filter.

The search result appears.

Sorting roles list

You can sort the administrators list in the desired order by applying sort parameters. You can sort by name, username, role, email, language, and enabled or locked administrators. You can sort the list in the ascending or descending order

with just a single click on the header bar. You have the option to sort by multiple fields using the Configure Sort option.

To sort by a single field, click once on the header bar above that field to sort in the ascending or descending order automatically.

Home Security	Security » Adr	ninistrators List				6
Agent Groups						
Agents	Password Policies	Roles Administrators	SMTP Servers IP Address	Restriction		
Queues/Skills Channels	Administrators L	ist				> Filter Administrators List
Scripts	Add Administrator			<< 1 >>>	> 20 records (§)	Configure Sort 🤯 Clear All Sort
CRM	Name ^	Username	Role	Enabled	Locked	
Outbound Setup	Bergmann, Dana	Dana	Super User	yes	no	1 🗇
Campaigns	Marcy, Alex	Alex	Super User	yes	no	0 1
Broadcast	Shah, Suman	Suman	Super User	yes	no	0 1
Integration	Support, AcmeJets	AcmeJets	Super User	yes	no	0 🗊
Status Codes						
ransaction Codes						
Outbound Phone Codes						
Wallboard						
Chat design						

To sort by multiple fields:

- 1. Click Configure Sort. The Sorting dialog box appears.
- 2. Click Add Level to specify a field name and the order to sort by.
- 3. Add or delete levels to sort as you desire.

Sort					
🕀 Add	Level	⊖ Delete Level	Copy Level	^ v	
	Colum	ın		Order	
Sort By	Role			Ascending	
Then By	Name	2	×	Ascending	·
			A	pply Cano	el

4. Click Apply.

The sorted list shows.

Enhance system access authentication

8x8 Contact Center allows users to connect to the tenant from anywhere in the world. We offer the ability to limit the access to a white list of IP addresses. A white list identifies secure IP addresses from which agents, supervisors, and administrators can connect to the 8x8 Contact Center network. Any login attempt outside of the white list is denied access and triggers a notification to the administrator about the unauthorized access attempt.

Features

- Ability to authorize specific IP addresses.
- Ability to list, add, edit, and delete allowed IP ranges.
- Ability to validate IP ranges (non-duplicate, valid start and end IP addresses, and non-negative range).
- Ability to enable/disable an individual IP address or a range of IPs.
- Ability to enforce IP address restriction to access 8x8 Configuration Manager, 8x8 Agent Console, and Wallboard.
- Ability to create an admin role and assign the IP address restriction permission to the administrator.
- Ability to notify administrators of an unauthorized access attempt by email. By default, this option is disabled.
- Extended support for Single Sign-On (SSO) in Salesforce, Zendesk, and NetSuite.

Limitations

8x8 supports IP version 4.0 (IPv4).

Create an authorized IP addresses

8x8 Configuration Manager allows administrators to create, edit, and delete white list entries using the Security page.

To add a white list entry:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the IP Address Restriction tab.
- 3. Click Add Allowed IP Range.



Note: This feature only works with public IP addresses. If no IP address is selected, all IP addresses are allowed to access the tenant.

- 4. Enter Start IP and End IP address and type a Description.
- Select This IP address is enabled to enable an individual IP address or a range of addresses.
 This feature is helpful if you need to grant access to an agent in a remote location or a temporary consultant.
- 6. Click Save.

If the agent tries to log in with a different IP address, a message appears showing that access is denied.

7. Click or to edit and delete the IP addresses.

Access 8x8 Contact Center when locked out

Contact the support team at 8x8, Inc. to help you regain access to your 8x8 Contact Center.

Authorize IP access via email

8x8 Contact Center administrator is able to add or authorize an agent's IP address via email authorization. This feature enables agents using a new and unidentified IP address to connect to their tenant. The administrator controls the ability to send or block this email notification via 8x8 Configuration Manager.



Note: The authorization is supported for 8x8 Configuration Manager, 8x8 Agent Console, and Wallboard access tokens.

Features

- Automatic email: The administrator receives an automatic email when an agent is denied access.
- Quick access: The agent gains access as soon as the administrator clicks a URL in the email.
- Prevent email spam: Only one notification email is sent to the administrator per hour, irrespective of the number of login attempts.
- Improved security: The authorization URL expires in 24 hours, whether the administrator has authorized the address or not.
- Description: A description added for the IP address allows the administrator to keep a reminder for future references.

How the authorization process works

- 1. The agent tries to access 8x8 Contact Center from an unauthorized IP address, but access is denied.
- 2. An email notification is sent to the administrator, containing information such as the agent's username, IP address, and the date of attempted access. The email also contains a URL.


- 3. The administrator clicks the URL link in the email to authorize the IP address.
- 4. The administrator receives a confirmation that the IP address is authorized successfully.



Note: For security reasons, the URL expires after 24 hours. If the administrator uses the URL the second time or after the expiry, a message indicates the token has expired.

5. The agent can now log in using the IP address.

Set up DTMF blacklist

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can now manage your DTMF blacklist by adding, editing, and deleting phone numbers as well as SIP URIs.. The DTMF blacklist is an existing service to stop recording a call once connected to a blacklisted destination. It also masks any key presses in the customer experience call flow, so that payment card data is kept private. Prior to this release, adding an entry to the DTMF blacklist required raising a ticket with 8x8 support team.

Features

- Puts the customers in charge of their own DTMF blacklist needs.
- Accelerates the process of adding a new entry to the DTMF blacklist.
- Covers various call routing and looping scenarios to make sure that all recordings stop, and the key presses are
 masked when connected to the blacklisted number.
- Improves the speed of blacklist entry identification by making the detection within the call routing process.

Add phone numbers to the blacklist

8x8 Contact Center administrators can now add numbers to the DTMF blacklist via 8x8 Configuration Manager and the new tab on the Security page.

To add a phone number to the blacklist

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Security > DTMF Blacklist tab.
- 3. Click Add blacklist entry.
- Add a Telephone number or a SIP URI. The entries will be added to the blacklist. The telephone number is validated against E.164 format such as +14151231234 for the US or +442071838750 for the UK. A message notifies you if the format is wrong before you save.

Notes:



- There is no validation for SIP URI.

- You cannot update a saved entry. To change an existing entry you must remove it first then add the revised entry.

- 5. Add a **Comment** to describe the entry. It can be up to 256 characters long. You can update the comment later.
- 6. Save your changes. The entry is added to the blacklist.
- 7. To edit the comment only, click Edit next to the entry.
- 8. To delete the entry, click **Delete** next to the entry and **Confirm**.

Changes in 8x8 Customer Experience Call Flow

With the ability to blacklist DTMF, any key presses captured during the call flow are masked and represented by (?) in the 8x8 Customer Experience call flow so that the payment card data is kept secure. This is a change of behavior from our previous release where the numbers were masked by showing (#).



Create agent functional groups

In 8x8 Contact Center, an agent group is a collection of agents who report to a supervisor. A single group may serve your entire call center or may be dedicated to one or more products, services, queues, or to a specific communication channel such as phone, email, or chat. Use groups to organize agents on the basis of function, skill set, or media they use.

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can see the groups, number of agents in each group, outbound phone codes assigned to each group, and if the agent's recording is enabled. Outbound Phone Codes offer a means to set a specific calling line identifier (caller ID) and to set an optional outbound queue for outbound calls from your tenant. Outbound Phone Codes may also be used to track the purpose of an outbound call. For details on the functionality and configuration of Outbound Phone Codes, refer to Outbound Phone Codes Overview.

Administrators go to the Agent Groups tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to:

- Add a group and assign it to outbound phone codes
- Edit or delete a group



Note: As a member of an agents group, you can view the status and availability of fellow group members in the status tab of your 8x8 Agent Console.

Add an agent group and assign to outbound phone codes

To add an agent group you need to complete a two-step process: define group properties, and assign outbound phone codes.

To add a new agent group:

0

1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agent Groups. You can mark and select your default agent group. You can also clone, edit, or delete the agent groups from this page.

2.	Click	/	dd an Age	ent Group						
	Home	Agent	» Agent List							
	Security	rigent	a / igenit Liot							
	Agent Groups									
	Agents Oueues/Skills	Agent Li	ist							
	Queues/Skills Channels	Add Agent:	(+) Agent				<< < 1 🔻	> >>	20 record	ds 🕼 Config
	Scripts	Supervisor	First Name	Last Name	Display Name	Username	Agent Group	Enabled	Locked My	Recordings E
	CRM	ê	wpj	wpj	-	wpj	Sales	yes	no	yes
	Support	Å	Ankit	К		ankit	Support	no	no	yes
	Center	ക	David	w	-	david	Support	yes	no	yes
	Outbound Setup	ê	qa	qa		qa	Support	yes	no	yes
	Campaigns	ê	atul	sharma		sourabh	Support	no	no	yes
	Broadcast	ê	sou	shri	-	sou	Support	yes	no	yes
	Integration	ළ	test	test	-	test	Sales	yes	no	yes
	Status Codes		new	agent	-	new	Sales	no	no	yes
	Transaction	ê	Yi	Chang	-	yisup	Sales	yes	no	yes
	Codes	ê	rrane	rrane1	-	rrane	Support	yes	no	yes
	Outbound	ê	Kara	Allen	-	kallen94	Support	yes	no	yes
	Phone Codes		Valerie	EB	-	agt1	val support	yes	no	yes
	Wallboard	ê	Robin	Alkein	-	robin94	Sales	yes	no	yes
	Chat design	ê	Sally	Upervisor	-	supervisor	val support	yes	no	yes
		ê	valerie sup	espie	-	agt2	val support	yes	no	yes
		ê	john	smith	-	josmith	Support	yes	no	yes

3. In the General tab enter a Group Name. Enter the required information and click Save. The Outbound Phone Codes tab opens.

The following table summarizes the options found under Agent Groups > General and Agent Groups > **Outbound Phone Codes:**

Option	Description
General tab	
Group Name	Indicates the descriptive name for the group such as Sales or Support groups. Members of one group are not able to view members of any other group.
Comment	A description of the group's purpose of specialty.
Default Agent Display Name	Select whether you want to display the word Agent or the agent's first name such as <robin>. The agent's display name appears in 8x8 Agent Console. Reset all agents, clears all custom display names. This group setting can be overwritten at the tenant level.</robin>
Allow Agents to Change Display	Allows agents to change their display name in the 8x8 Agent Console's Profile page. Display Name helps agents save time and effort to introduce themselves to customers every time they start a new chat. The agent's display name appears in the 8x8 Agent Console's control panel, Profile page, chat window, and CRM case created after a chat session. It can be modified by the

Version 9.14

Option	Description
Name	8x8 Contact Center administrator in the 8x8 Configuration Manager, or if permitted, by the agents in 8x8 Agent Console. The changes immediately show up in both applications. To prevent agents from changing their display name at the tenant level, clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name checkbox under Home > Profile .
	 To prevent agents from changing their display name at the tenant level, Clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name checkbox under Home > Profile. If disabled, this option does not appear at the agent groups level.
	 To prevent agents from changing their display name at the group level, clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name checkbox from the Agent Group. This option only appears if it is enabled at the tenant level.
Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality	Indicates if the agent can record the conversation. This option allows agents to record a voice message for the incoming calls.
Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	This option is enabled by default allowing agents to reject interactions. If disabled, the Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console is disabled preventing agents from rejecting the interactions they are offered. The Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console appears when an interaction is offered to the agent. You can set up this ability for an agent group, or individual agents. If you disable this option at the tenant level, the checkbox will not show up for agent groups or individual agents.
Phone	Default Connection Mode can be On Demand or Persistent:
Connection Mode	 On Demand connection mode: On Demand Connection Mode creates a temporary connection from the agent's workplace phone to the system. The agents have to manually accept the call in their soft or hard phone.
	 Persistent Connection mode: Persistent Connection Mode creates a constant connection from the agent's workplace phone to the system. Once the connection is open, it will stay active until logged out. Any changes to the setting will remain in effect for the whole duration of the agent's persistent connection.
Enable Auto Answer	If enabled, every phone interaction that is offered to an agent is automatically connected eliminating the need to accept it manually.
Outbound	
Phone Codes tab	

Option	Description
Assign	Select a check box to assign an outbound phone code to your tenant. Note that you need to create an outbound code list before being able to assign it.
Active	Displays a read-only indication of the active outbound phone codes.
Outbound Phone list	Indicates the outbound phone name assigned to that group.
Number of Agents	Number of agents in that group.

4. Click **Save** to successfully create a new agent group.

Clone agent groups

Administrators can copy the group name, default agent display name, recording functionality, ability to reject interactions, Phone Connection Mode, and Auto Answer settings with a simple click. Cloning agent groups allows 8x8 Contact Center administrators to create multiple agent groups in a short time. The assigned outbound code list is also copied for the new group. The default agent group remains the same until changed.

To clone an agent group:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Agent Groups to display the list of groups.

8×8				名 Robin	Shasta (ryandemo0101) My Prof	file Co-browsing	Logout		
Home	Agent Group » Agent Group List 0								
Security Agent Groups	Operation completed successfully.								
Users Queues/Skills	Agent Group List > Filter Agent								
Channels	Add Agent Group: (+) Agent Group	p		<< < 1	▼ > >> 20 records @	Configure Sort 🤘	Clear All Sort		
Scripts CRM	Group Name ^	Comment	# of Agents	Assigned OutPhone List	My Recordings Enabled	Set As Default	-		
Outbound	Acme-Billing	For Billing agents	2	JOutboundPhoneCodes	yes	0	00		
Setup	Acme-Billing - 1	For Billing agents	° Assis	undPhoneCodes	yes	0	00		
Campaigns	AcmeJets Sales	- 1	1 agents are not transferred.	e not	yes	0	00		
Broadcast	QE				yes	0			
Integration	ungroup	•	40	S_UPCL	yes	۲			
Status Codes									
Transaction Codes									
Outbound Phone Codes									
Wallboard									
Chat design									
			Save	e Cancel					

3. Select an agent group and click **Copy**.

A single copy is generated. The cloned group has the original group name plus a number appended to the name. For example, Acme-Billing agent group becomes Acme-Billing -1, Acme-Billing -2, and so on. You can rename the group by going to the **Agent Group > General > Group Name**. The agent groups are listed in the alphabetical order, but you can sort and change their order.



Note:

- Agents assigned to an agent group do not automatically transfer to the cloned agent group.
- The cloned agent groups show up in the Agent Group reports.
- Agents with Supervisor access can see all cloned agent groups assigned to them.
- 4. If required, modify the agent group properties and **Save**.
- 5. Make sure the right agent group is Set As Default.



6. Click to delete the queue. A confirmation message appears for you to confirm.

Edit agent groups

To edit a group:

- 1. Double-click the desired group from the list view or click
- 2. Make the desired changes and Save.

Delete agent groups

Deleting a group with assigned members requires you to reassign the members of the group to another group.

To delete a group:

1. Select a group, and click

You are prompted to confirm your action. If the group has members, a message indicates the inability to delete the group.

	Agent Group »	Agent Group List				(j)
Security Agent Groups		The Group cannot be deleted, one or	r more agents assigned to this g	roup.		
Agents Queues/Skills	Agent Group List				> Filter /	Agent Group List
	Add Agent Group: Age	nt Group		<< 1 >>>	20 records 🖓 Configure Sort 👔	🖌 Clear All Sort
	Group Name ^	Comment	# of Agents	Assigned OutPhone List	My Recordings Enabled	
	Marketing	-	0	Sales Outbound	yes	1
Support Center	Sales		3	Sales Outbound	yes	0
Outbound	Support	-	3	-	yes	0 🖬
Setup	Ungroup		0		yes	∅ 🗇
Transaction Codes						
Outbound Phone Codes						
Chat design						

- 2. Reassign the members to another group and then delete the group.
- Click OK to confirm the deletion.
 For details on how to reassign an agent to a different group, refer to Reassign an Agent's Group Membership.

Reassign an Agent Group Membership

To reassign an agent to a different group:

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
 A list of agents and their groups appears.
- 3. Look for the group you are planning to delete, and click
- 4. In the General tab, go to Agent Group.

- 8x8
 - 5. Select a different group from the drop-down menu.

Home Security	Agent » Edit	Agent » General			0
Agent Groups					
Agents Queues/Skills Channels	(Sasha) Sasha Solor < Back to agent list	vey			
Scripts	General Phon	e Queues Supervisor	CRM & Tab permissions Interac	tions	
CRM	Enabled		* Agent Group	Support 🗸	
Support Center Outbound	* First Name * Last Name Display Name	Sasha Solovey Sasha	Interaction offer timeout * Agent primary language Agent secondary language	Ungroup Sales Support Marketing	
Setup Campaigns	* Email Address	sasha.solovey@acmejets.com		German	
Broadcast Integration	 Software language Username 	English (US)		☐ Japanese	
Status Codes	* Password	•••••	Status-change Coding	Support Codes	
Transaction Codes	* Retype Password	•••••		 Allow agent to change Enable/Disable settings in Assigned Queues Allow agent to Pull e-mails from queue 	
Outbound Phone Codes	Comment			 Allow agent to Delete pending e-mails Allow agent to Reject interactions 	
Wallboard				Enable Collaborate	
Chat design				Enable and show Options menu button	
		✓ Enable agent's My Recording for a second result.	eature * Current Country	United States of America 💌	

- 6. Click **Save** to assign the agent to the new group.
- 7. Continue the above search and reassignment for all the agents belonging to the group you are planning to delete.

Filter group list

If your 8x8 Contact Center has numerous groups, you may find it hard to track them in a single scrollable list. You can search and filter the Group list in 8x8 Configuration Manager by specific fields such as Group Name, Comment, Number of Agents, and Assigned OutPhone List.

To filter the Group list:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- From the Configuration Menu, open Agent Groups.
 A list of existing agent groups appears.

Home Security	Agent Group »	Agent Group List				(j
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels	Agent Group List	nt Group		<< < 1 > >>	> Filter 20 records	Agent Group Lis
	Group Name ^	Comment	# of Agents	Assigned OutPhone List	My Recordings Enabled	
	Marketing		0		yes	0 🗇
	Sales	-	3	-	yes	0 🗇
	Support	-	3	-	yes	0 1
utbound etup	Ungroup		0	•	yes	1
ampaigns						
tegration						
ansaction odes						
utbound Ione Codes						
allboard						
at design						
			Save	Cancel		

- 3. Click Filter Agent Group List.
- 4. Choose the desired filtering criteria from the drop-down menu to filter the group.
- 5. Click Filter.

The filtered list appears.

Sorting group list

You can sort the Group list in the 8x8 Configuration Manager by desired order and applying sort parameters. You can sort by Group Name, Comment, Number of Agents, and Assigned OutPhone List by applying suitable parameters. You

can sort the list in the ascending or descending order with just a click on the header bar. You have the option to sort by multiple fields using Configure Sort.

To sort by a single field:

Click the header bar of a field. The list sorts automatically in ascending or descending order based on the content of the field.

	Agent Group »	Agent Group List				(j)
ecurity Agent Groups						
\gents Queues/Skills	Agent Group List				> Filter	Agent Group Li
	Add Agent Group: Ag	ent Group		<< < 1 >>>	20 records 🚯 Configure Sort	🧭 Clear All So
	Group Name ^	Comment	# of Agents	Assigned OutPhone List	My Recordings Enabled	
	Marketing		0		yes	V U
	Sales	-	3		yes	0 1
	Support	-	3		yes	1
Outbound Getup	Ungroup		0	-	yes	0 1
Campaigns						
ransaction Codes						
Outbound Phone Codes						
Vallboard						
Chat design						
			Save	Cancel		

To sort by multiple fields:

- 1. Click Configure Sort.
 - The Sorting dialog box appears.
- 2. Click Add Level to specify a field name and the order to sort by.

3. Add or delete levels to sort as you desire.

Sort					
🕀 Add	Level 🛛 🔾 D	elete Level	Copy Level	~ ~	
Column				Order	
Sort By	Sort By Group Name			Ascending	
Then By	Then By # of Agents		T	Ascending 🔹	·
			Ар	oply Canc	el

4. Click Apply. The sorted list shows.

Add agents

To add or define a new agent in 8x8 Configuration Manager, as a 8x8 Contact Center administrators, you require to set up an account, phone connectivity details, and outbound calling preferences. You also need to assign queues, supervisor privileges, and ability to view case and contact management data.

Use the Agents tab in the Configuration Menu to:

- Add new agents
- Edit and delete existing agents

Adding an agent involves:

- 1. Creating accounts and configuring properties
- 2. Configuring phone settings
- 3. Assigning agents to queues
- 4. Granting supervisor rights
- 5. Granting Local CRM and Tab permissions
- 6. Defining the number of concurrent chats

Create agent accounts

8x8 Contact Center agents require login credentials to log in to 8x8 Agent Console. The General tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager allows the 8x8 Contact Center administrator to specify an agent's user information including login credentials, email address, group assignment, and more.

To create an agent account:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Click **Agent** to add a new agent.

The **General** tab opens.

8×8				Secondary Administrator (AcmeJets)		
Home	Agent » Edit Ag	gent » General				
Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM	(jdoe) John Doe < Back to agent list General Phone Enabled	Queues Supervisor CRM & Tab permissions	Interaction offer timeout 30 👻			
Outbound Setup	* First Name * Last Name	John Doe	* Agent primary language Agent secondary language	English v		
Campaigns	Display Name	Doe		German		
Broadcast Integration	* Email Address	jdoe@gmail.com		Japanese		
Status Codes	Outgoing Mail Server ⑦	Acmejets SMTP Server v Override Server Configuration English (US) v idoe wer1234 Acme - Support v Auto select v		Spanish		
Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Software language Username Password Retype Password Comment Agent Group Current Country		Status-change Coding No status-change coding is assigned Allow agent to change Enable/Disable settings in Assigned Queues Allow agent to Delete pendingmails Allow agent to Delete pendingmails Allow agent to Reject interactions Cauble and show Options meru button Cauble and show Options meru button Change Connection Mode Default Connection Mode Default to change Phone Connection Mode			
			Save	Cancel		

3. Enter the required information.

The following table summarizes the options in 8x8 Configuration Manager under Agent > General:

General Tab Option	Description
Enabled	If selected, allows the agent to log in to 8x8 Agent Console using the agent's username and password.
First Name	Enter the agent's first name.
Last Name	Enter the agent's last name.
Display Name	Allows agents to present themselves with a customized display name. The display name can be modified by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator here, or if permitted, by the agents in 8x8 Agent Console. The changes immediately appear in the other application. To prevent agents from changing their display name at the tenant level, clear the Allow Agents to Change the Display Name checkbox under Home > Profile .
Email Address	Enter the email address 8x8 Contact Center uses to send agents copies of their direct access voicemail messages. You can save email addresses with up to 254 characters.
Outgoing Mail Server	A user's outgoing mail server is automatically populated with the tenant's default SMTP server. The default server can be either a VCC Internal server or a custom server. You can change the SMTP server. The changes are kept unless a new default server is set.
	8x8 Contact Center administrators can configure users outgoing mail servers in three ways:Using the VCC Internal server
	 Using a custom server
	 Using a custom server but overriding with the specific account's user name and password (recommended)
	If you use the VCC Internal server, you cannot override the server's default configuration, therefore, using the email address of the server. The emails sent by this user originate from the tenant's default address which is not recommended.
	Whereas a user that is configured to use a custom server configuration, such as [AcmeJets SMTP Server], overrides the default server configuration . The emails sent by this user originate from the address of the new server. By overriding the server's default configuration you make it more specific to the agent.
Override Server Configuration	This option gives you the ability to direct your emails via the user specific email address. If you do not choose to override, the emails are directed via the custom SMTP server address and not the default server configured for this specific user. To ensure the secure email delivery sent by the user, we recommend you to choose override.

General Tab Option	Description				
Software Language	Choose the language used by the 8x8 Agent Console interface.				
Username	Enter the account name the agent must use to log in to 8x8 Agent Console. Agent usernames are case sensitive: When an agent logs into their 8x8 Agent Console, they must use the same combination of upper and lowercase characters as those in the Username text entry area.				
	Note: The username must be unique within the same tenant, but not across all tenants and globally.				
Password, Retype Password	If enabled, enter the password the agent must use to log in to 8x8 Agent Console. After logging in to 8x8 Agent Console for the first time, an agent can use My Profile to change their password. Contact center administrators can use the Password text entry areas to change or reset an agent's password. Note: This field is disabled if you have turned on Email system generated passwords for new agents/admins and reset under Security >Password Policies . For details, refer to Configure Password Policies.				
Comment	Enter a description for the agent account.				
Agent Group Current	Select the agent's group assignment, such as Sales, Support, Marketing, etc. By selecting the country of an agent, you can optimize call quality and routing. It hints the				
Country	system about the agent's location, and offers improved call quality.				
Interaction Offer Timeout	Specify the duration (in seconds) for which an agent is offered an interaction before the interaction times out. After the specified time, the agent status changes to Take Break automatically. Note: If the interaction offer timer runs out for an agent and the caller is back to the queue, the caller's position in the queue will remain the same and not changed or reset.				
Agent Primary	Select the agent primary language. If the agent speaks the same language as the customer				

General Tab Option	Description				
Language	does, they can choose to handle the conversation without the aid of the translation tool.				
Agent Secondary Language	Select the agent secondary languages. If the chat request is in one of these languages, the agent can chat in the requested language.				
Status-change Coding	Indicates the agent has no status code list assigned while defining a new agent. Note: If an existing agent is assigned with a code list, the code list name shows here.				
Allow agents to change Enable/Disable settings in Assigned Queues	Control an agent's ability to change queue assignment from the agent profile.				
Allow agents to pull e-mails from queue	By default, 8x8 Contact Center presents emails to agents on the basis of first-in-first-out. To enable agents to selectively pull email messages from their email queues, select Allow agents to pull e-mails from queue .				
Allow agents to Delete pending e- mails	If disabled, agents are prevented from deleting pending email in 8x8 Agent Console. By default, agents have the privileges to delete pending email.				
Allow Agents to Reject Interactions	This option is enabled by default allowing agents to reject interactions. If disabled, the Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console is disabled preventing agents from rejecting the interactions they are offered. The Reject button in 8x8 Agent Console appears when an interaction is offered to the agent. You can set up this ability for an agent group, or individual agents. If you disable this option at the tenant level, the check box will not show up for agent groups or individual agents.				
Enable and	The Options menu in 8x8 Agent Console gives access to transaction codes, dial pad, and call				

recording options during a call. Select Enable and show options menu button. If selected,

the Options menu shows during a call.

show options menu button

General Tab Option	Description
Hide Customer Email and Voice (Phone Number) in CRM	
Default Connection Mode	Administrators can choose one of the following Phone Connection Modes for agents: On Demand or Persistent. For details, see our content on enable phone connection mode.
Allow Agents to change Phone Connection Mode	Agents are able to change their connection mode from within the 8x8 Agent Console. For details, see our content on how to change your phone connection mode.
Enable Auto Answer	With Auto Answer, every phone interaction that is offered to an agent is automatically connected eliminating the need to accept it manually. If Auto Answer is provisioned for your tenant, you can enable it at the tenant level, agent group level, or agent level. For details, see our content on how to enable Auto Answer.

4. Click **Save** before you move away from this tab.



Note: You can view the outgoing email server for each user under the **Agents > User list**. To show this column, open **Users**, right-click the header bar of the Users list and select **Columns >**

Outgoing Mail Server.

	User »	lsor l i	ict											G
	0301 #	JUSCI L	50				~	Supervisor						
					right-click th		~	Agent						
	User List				header bar		~	Admin						> Filter User Li
						~	~	First Name		<< < 2	> >>	20 re	cords 🚯 Configure Sort	🛛 🏑 Clear All Sc
l	Supervisor	Agent	Admin	First Name	Last Name	_		Last Name	Ŀ	Agent Group	Enabled	Locked	My Recordings Enabled	
	1	1	✓ (2)	Dario	Duenas	↑ Sort Ascending	L	Display Name		ungroup	yes	no	yes	18
		1		Surra	Des	↓ Sort Descending	Ľ			Acme-Billing	yes	no	yes	18
	1	1		Prasanna	Vadala		Ł	Internal Id	0	UK-QE	yes	no	yes	18
	1	1		Sravanthi	Bhapathi	() Columns	1	Username	RA	Acme-Billing	yes	no	yes	12
	1	1	J (2)	Oren	batchelor		Ł	Vo Contact Id		ungroup	yes	no	yes	12
	1	1	J (2)	Boplan	Czako	📰 Group By	L	Agent Group	OG	ungroup	yes	no	yes	18
		1		Dek	Diggler		1	5 ,		ungroup	yes	no	yes	12
	1	1	✓ (2)	Andrei	Local			Skill Group	ND	. aluca-group	yes	no	yes	12
	1	~	J (2)	Olain	Glynn		~	Enabled		ungroup	yes	no	yes	08
		~	J (2)	Alton	Harmannd		~	Locked	DOD	ungroup	yes	no	yes	12
	~	~	J (2)	Robin	Sharta			My Recordings Enabled		Acme-Billing	yes	no	yes	12
		1	✓ (2)	Sravanthi	Bhipathi	-		Language	т	QE	yes	no	yes	18
	~	~	J (2)	Andrei	Loca2	-			ND	. aluca-group	yes	no	yes	18
		1		swel	vectorily		_	Email	RA	Acme-Billing	yes	no	yes	12
	1	~	J (2)	Tony	Purmal	-	Г	Outgoing Mail Server		ungroup	yes	no	yes	18
		~	✓ (2)	Aarati	Mankar	-		Workplace Phone	AR	ungroup	yes	no	yes	18
		1		John	Doe	-		PBX#	<u> - </u>	Acme-Billing	yes	no	yes	08
		1	√ (2)	ateleuca	002	-			_	Acme-Billing	yes	no	yes	12
		~		Richard	Morton	-		Direct Access Number	ON	ungroup	yes	no	yes	18
l	1	~		Tony	Stark	-		Calling Line ID		ungroup	yes	no	yes	12
								Status-change Coding						

Configure phone settings

8x8 Contact Center administrators can define agent workplace phone settings and outbound calling preferences, and specify direct agent access details and call recording settings in 8x8 Configuration Manager via Agents > Phone.

The following table summarizes the Phone settings categories:

Phone Settings Category	Description				
Workplace	Enter the agent's Workplace phone or Workplace SIP URI at which agent wishes to be reached. An agent requires a standard wired, cellular, or VoIP phone to pro- cess phone interactions. The workplace phone number can be set to any ded- icated extension number or a DID number as needed. The workplace SIP URI is used when the agent has a soft phone approved by 8x8 installed on their work- station. Note that the agent's extension number appears in the Workplace Phone field when you first assign an extension to a user. You can also control the ability of agents to change their phone number or SIP Phone URI from the Pro- file tab in 8x8 Agent Console. The agents are granted the permission to change their workplace phone or SIP URI by default.				
Outbound Calling	Outbound Calling preferences let you select a dial plan per agent to translate out- bound dialing numbers. It allows you to define a custom Calling Line ID for all calls placed by the agent.				
Agent Access Number and Voicemail	The settings allow you to activate direct agent access for an agent, enter an extension number to reach an agent directly by passing the IVR, and activate the agent's voicemail.				
Automatic Call Recording	If call recording is permitted for the tenant, you can specify the desired per- centage of inbound, outbound, and direct agent access calls to record.				
Agent's Record- ing Controls	These settings determine whether or not an agent can record calls. Note: As the 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can choose to stop call recording on the third-party transfers when your last				

Phone Settings Category	Description	
		contact center agent leaves the call. This setting is enabled at the tenant level and cannot be modified per agent. Contact 8x8 Support to enable the feature and for more information. For details see Control call recording on third-party transfers.

To configure phone settings:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.

2. Click or to add or edit an agent's account.

Home Security	Agent » Edit Agent » Phone	(i)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	(Kaoru) Kaoru Minami < Back to agent list General <u>Phone</u> Queues Supervisor CRM & Tab permissions Interactions	
CRM	Workplace Outbound Calling	
Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound	Workplace slP UR: Outbound Phone Codes Calling Line ID * 1888888888 Calling Line ID * 1888888888 Calling Line ID * 1888888888 * can be overridden by Outbound Phone Codes * can be overridden by Outbound calls * • for the code overridden by Over over overridden by Over over over overridden by Over over over overridden by Over over over over over over over over o	
Phone Codes Wallboard	Agent's Recording Controls	
Chat design	Agent does not have recording controls Agent is able to start recording * Agent is able to start and pause recording * * can be overridden by IVR Voke recording settings Save Cancel	

3. Enter or select the desired settings from the available options.

The following table summarizes the options under **Agents > Phone**:

Phone Tab Option	Description			
Workplace				
Workplace	If the agent uses a standard wired or cellular telephone, then in the Workplace phone enter the			
phone	full telephone number. 8x8 Contact Center uses that number to connect Phone interactions to the			

Phone Tab Option	Description
	 agent's telephone: In the United States, phone numbers must be 1+(three-digit area code)+(seven-digit phone number). When typing numbers in 8x8 Agent Console text entry areas, always preface the area code with 1. Note: The NANP dial plan translates phone numbers without the prefix as well. Outside the United States, phone numbers must be (Country Code)+(phone number). If enabled by the administrator, agents may use the My Profile tab in 8x8 Agent Console to change their phone number later.
Workplace SIP URI	If the agent uses a VoIP telephone, then in the SIP phone URI text entry area, type the VoIP phone's full URI. 8x8 Contact Center uses that URI to connect phone interactions to the agent's VoIP telephone. If enabled by the administrator, agents may use the My Profile tab in 8x8 Agent Console to change their phone number later.
Allow agent to change phone Number	Control agents' ability to change their phone number. If selected, agents can change their workplace phone number in the My Profile page of 8x8 Agent Console.
Allow agent to change SIP Phone URI	Control agents' ability to change their phone number. If selected, agents can change their SIP Phone URI phone number in the My Profile page of 8x8 Agent Console.
Outbound C	alling
Outbound Phone Codes	By default, an agent inherits the Outbound Phone Code List assigned to the group they belong to. You can change the selection here.
Calling Line ID	Select an Outbound Phone Code list or None from the drop-down menu to indicate a calling Line ID for outbound calls. Select a Calling Line ID for all outbound calls placed by the agent. You can select from:

Phone Tab Option	Description
	 Channel numbers Agent's phone number Anonymous
	Note: The agent's Calling Line ID is overridden by Calling Line ID set by Outbound Phone Codes.
Dial Plan	Choose a Dial Plan to translate outbound dialing numbers. Select from the International Numbering Plan, North American Numbering Plan, or any custom plan defined for the tenant. For details on dial plans, refer to Understand Tenant Dial Plans.
Agent Acce	ss # and Voicemail
Enable in IVR	If enabled, allows the agent extension number to be recognized in the IVR during a Menu or Get Value input operation. You can reach the agent directly by entering a two- to eight-digit extension.
Enable Agent Voicemail	If enabled, activates an agent's voicemail and routes direct agent access calls to the agent's voicemail if the agent fails to accept an interaction within the interaction offer timeout period. 8x8 Contact Center uses the email address specified under Agents > General to email Direct Agent Access voicemails to the agent.
	Note: If the agent's telephone has a private voicemail box, ensure that the 8x8 Contact Center voicemail timeout threshold occurs before the agent's voicemail box seizes the call.
IVR Direct Agent Access # (Maximum 8 digits)	Allow a caller to use an extension number to directly contact this agent. Enter a two- to eight-digit extension number that callers can use to reach the agent directly.
Automatic	Call Recording
% of	 % of inbound calls: Specify the percentage of automatic call recording for the agent. Enter a percentage of inbound calls.

Phone Tab Option	Description			
inbound/ outbound/ direct agent access calls	 % of inbound calls: Specify the percentage of automatic call recording for the agent. Enter a percentage of outbound calls. % of direct agent access calls: Specify the percentage of automatic call recording for the agent. Enter a percentage of direct agent access calls. 			
Agent Reco	rding Controls			
Agent does not have recording controls	Prevents an agent from recording a call by taking away the recording control in the Control Panel. A call may still be recorded based on the automatic call recording settings.			
Agent is able to start recording	While on a call, an agent can start recording the call anytime. The recording ends on terminating the call, or when the agent leaves a call that is transferred to a third-party user. Note: As the 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can choose to stop call recording on the third-party transfers when your last contact center agent leaves the call. This setting is enabled at the tenant level and cannot be modified per agent. Contact 8x8 Support to enable the feature and for more information. For details see Control call recording on third-party transfers.			
Agent is able to start and pause recording	An agent can start and pause recording a call any number of times. An agent may be denied recording rights with certain IVR settings. Visual feedback in the 8x8 Agent Console Control Panel always reflects the true recording status.			

4. Click **Save** to save the settings.

The next step is to assign queues to the agent.

Access agent recorded calls

8x8 Contact Center administrators can use any secure FTP client that is compliant with Transport Layer Security (TLS) 1.2 or higher to download agent's recorded calls from the tenant. You can determine the percentage of the automatic call recording via 8x8 Configuration Manager under **Agents > Phone**. If the last agent leaves the conference call or a call that has been transferred to the customer via warm transfer, the call recording may have been stopped automatically.

For details, refer to Configure Phone Settings. Configure a Secure FTP Client

You can use the secure FTP client to download agents' recorded calls. The following FTP clients are available for download at no charge:

- FileZilla: available from http://filezilla-project.org/
- Core FTP LE: available from http://www.coreftp.com/

The following table summarizes the secure FTP configuration requirements for an FTP client to access the audio files directory on your tenant:

FTP Setting	Description
Host	 In US-West, enter <vcc-ftps-us1.8x8.com>.</vcc-ftps-us1.8x8.com>
name	 In US-East, enter <vcc-ftps-us2.8x8.com>.</vcc-ftps-us2.8x8.com>
	 In Canada, enter <vcc-ftps-ca1.8x8.com>.</vcc-ftps-ca1.8x8.com>
	 In United Kingdom EU2, enter <vcc-ftps-uk2.8x8.com>.</vcc-ftps-uk2.8x8.com>
	 In United Kingdom EU3, enter <vcc-ftps-uk3.8x8.com></vcc-ftps-uk3.8x8.com>
	For a complete list of the available platform URLs, refer to the Platform URL Guide.
Username	
	used by the tenant's Primary administrator to log in the 8x8 Contact Center. You may access this inform-
	ation from the initial communication email that shares the tenant login credentials. For example, if the
	Primary administrator logs in to 8x8 Configuration Manager with the username <acmejets>, then type</acmejets>
	the same username in your FTP client.
Password	Enter the same password you entered in Home > Profile > SFTP Password . For details, refer to Sum-
	mary of Profile Settings.

Using FileZilla to Download Audio Files

The following figure illustrates the FileZilla 3 settings used to connect to the 8x8 Configuration Manager agent recording directory.

Site Manager	×
Select Entry:	General Advanced Transfer Settings Charset Host: ftps.mycontactual.c Port: Server Type: FTPES - FTP over explicit TLS/SSL
	Logon Type: Normal User: pstest Password:
New Site New Folder	Account: Comments:
New Bookmark Rename Delete Copy Connect	OK Cancel

Refer to the above table for information about the User and Password text entry areas in your FileZilla Site Manager. Using Core FTP LE to Download Audio Files

The following figure illustrates the Core FTP LE 2 settings used to connect to 8x8 Configuration Manager agent recordings directory.

Site Manager	x
AcmeJets, Inc	Site Name AcmeJets, Ind Host / IP / URL vcc-ftps-us2.8x8.com Advanced Username AcmeJets AcmeJets AcmeJets AcmeJets Anonymous Password ************************************
New Site New Category	Connect Connect Manager Close

Refer to the above table for information about the **User** and **Password** text entry areas in your Core FTP LE 2 Site Manager.

Browse and Locate Recording Files

You can browse and locate your contact center's recorded calls stored under your tenant directory. Your 8x8 Contact Center tenant saves and stores each day's recording files in a time-stamped directory named **Syyyymmdd**, where **yyyy**specifies the year, **mm** specifies the month, and **dd** specifies the day. In addition, a date-stamped index file is generated at the local tenant time between 12 AM and 1 AM at the end of each day. Each index file contains metadata about the call recordings.

At the root level, the tenant directory contains:

 An Index directory which contains one or more date-stamped, comma-separated values (CSV) index files named lyyyymmdd.csv, where I indicates index. Time stamped sub-directories grouped by day. Each sub-directory contains one or more time-stamped WAV audio files and index files with metadata about the audio files. Audio files are named Ryyyymmddttttttssss.wav, where R indicates recording, and the timestamp includes the date (yyyymmdd) and 24-hour Coordinated Universal Time (UTC) tttttt when the file was recorded by hour, minute and second, and ssss indicates a sequence to differentiate multiple files recorded at the same second. The directory structure of call recordings may be represented as follows:



Note: The filenames and sub-directory names are time stamped by UTC and not by the local tenant time.

Locating Call Recordings

Locating your recorded calls requires understanding the time difference between your local tenant time and UTC. For example, if your tenant is located in the Pacific Daylight Time zone (PDT), you are behind the UTC by 7 hours. At 12 AM UTC, you local tenant time is 5 PM PDT.



To obtain recordings of your tenant for 06/06/2016, download recordings in subdirectories S20160606 and S20160607. The calls recorded after 5 PM PDT on 06/06 are stored under the sub-directory S20160607.



Note: The daily recording batch index file created between 00:00 and 01:00 local tenant time references calls in two different UTC daily sub-directories unless your local tenant time happens to be UTC.

To access the Index files:

1. Double-click the Index directory. The directory consists of index files time stamped by day. You may view or download the index files in the directory.



Note: Index files for a specific day are stored under the relevant sub-directory as well as the index directory. Two types of index files exist. One file contains more details than the other.

Core FTP LE - ftps.mycontactual.com:21	
ile View Sites Manage Help	
💄 두 💉 🏃 🖧 🕻 🔛 🖬 🕅 🏶 🏷	🖬 💿 🦛 🗱 💋 🙎
WD 7'7 8'7 2'7 5'7 5'7 5'7 5'7 5'7 5'7 5'7 5	
Q = = ≝ × ± 🔽 C & w 🖗 🖋 Ø	Q II 😬 X 🛓 🔽 O 💷 V 🖗 🖋 🕼
🖺 🗈 CNUsers\nain\AcmaJetsAudicRecordings\	
Filename Size Date	Filename Size Date Permissions
	Index 11/04/13 08:00 deveryome igmith 03/27/13 17:51 deveryome S20110823 09/22/11 00:00 deveryome S20110824 09/22/11 00:00 deveryome S2011002 10/01/11 00:00 deveryome S2011003 10/07/11 00:00 deveryome S2011004 10/02/11 00:00 deveryome S2011005 10/04/11 00:00 deveryome S2011006 10/04/11 00:00 deveryome S2011005 10/04/11 00:00 deveryome S2011006 10/05/11 00:00 deveryome S20111005 10/06/11 00:00 deveryome S20111005 10/06/11 00:00 deveryome S20111005 10/06/11 00:00 deveryome S2011101 10/06/11 00:00 deveryome S2011101 10/06/11 00:00 deveryome S20111011 10/06/11 00:00 deveryome S20111012 10/10/11 00:00 deveryome S20111013 10/11/11 00:00 deveryome S20111014 10/12/11 00:00
Host Destination Bytes Size Rate	Type Status Source
	ownioad Failed /index/20120608.csv vwnioad Failed /index/120120608.csv
eady	1 Key Ser

Each CSV index file lists the following information about that day's agent recording files:

- CALL TYPE: Inbound Outbound, or Direct Agent Access call
- START TIME, STOP TIME: Local Tenant Time at which the call was answered and terminated by the agent
- AGENT NAME: Name of the agent who took the call
- CUSTOMER NUMBER: Phone number associated with the customer
- PHONE CHANNEL: Phone Channel number processing the call
- CALLED NUMBER: A phone number to which a call was placed (applicable to outbound calls)
- CASEID: Case number associated with the caller
- DURATION: Duration of the phone call
- FILENAME: Filename of the audio recording of the call
- DIRECTORY: The sub-directory in which the audio recording of the call is stored
- ACCOUNT: Account number associated with the caller
- START TIME UTC: Time represented in UTC at which the call was answered by the agent
- STOP TIME UTC: Time represented in UTC at which the call was terminated by the agent

- QUEUE: Queue type indicates outbound or inbound queue
- QUEUE NAME: Name of the queue the call was channeled to
- TRANSACTION ID: Unique number that identifies the phone call
- EXTERNAL VARIABLE 1&2: Data collected during the Interactive Voice Response
- OUTDIAL CODE: Codes associated with outbound calls
- WRAP UP CODE: Codes representing the call outcome
- 2. Go to the specified directory and download the call recording files.

You can view the CSV index file in most spreadsheet programs including Microsoft Excel or OpenOffice Calc. Download Agent Call Recordings

You can download the index files and the call recordings by folders or by individual files.

To download call recordings or index files:

- 1. Select a directory, and right-click to open the menu.
- 2. Select Download from the right-click menu.

Ø Core FTP LE -	ftps.mycontactual.com:21							
File View Site	s Manage Help							
L 5	ø 5 b C			🄅 🗟 (1	🔹 🗱 🚺	?	
226 Transfer comple R201311041758260 MDTM R2013110417 213 2013110417585 Transfer time: 00:00	158. wav – 465324 bytes transferred 58260158. wav 7							^
Q 😨 📑	× ≛ × 0	🎩 🖌 🎸 💉	ы ^ч - Ю	Q 🖬 🖻	× [*	e 🐷 🗸	<i>4 s</i>	s 🔊
🎼 🖻 🕅	Isers\nalini\AcmeJetsAudioRecordings\	•		🦪 🖻	/S20131104/			- 1
^ Filename	Size Date			^ Filename		Size Date	Permission	ns
)	10/25/13 10	:26		 ▲ <> ▲ R20131104175 ▲ R20131104175 		541 KB 11/04/13 17:56 454 KB 11/04/13 17:58	-fW+f+f++ -fW+f++f++	
				•		m		•
Host	Destination	Bytes	Size	Rate Typ		Source		
	. C:\Users\nalini\AppData\Local\Temp\ . C:\Users\nalini\AppData\Local\Temp\		1,072 1,072	Down Down		/index/120120608.csv /index/120120608.csv		
R20131104175826	0158.wav (465,324 bytes) 11/04/13	17:58					1	RCV XHT

The SFTP client indicates a successful transfer.

3. To play downloaded call recordings, select a WAV file, and double-click to play the recording.

Assign agents to queues

All interactions flowing to 8x8 Contact Center are channeled through queues. The queues in turn direct them to agents based on their skill level and availability. An 8x8 Contact Center agent has to be a member of a queue to receive any interaction from the queue.

8x8 Contact Center provides sophisticated logic for matching customers to the agent who can best solve their problem. Queues direct interactions based on the skill level of agents serving the queue. If you have an agent with high skill level vs. an agent with low skill level, the interaction will be directed to the high-skilled agent based on their availability.

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can assign the selected agents to previously defined phone, email, chat, and voicemail queues. Once assigned, the agent receives interactions channeled through these queues. You can access queues in 8x8 Configuration Manager via Agents > Queues.

To define queue assignments:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Find an agent and click
- 3. Open the Queues tab.
- Select a Skill Level for the agent serving the queue.
 The skill level can be selected from 10 to 100 (lowest to highest).
- 5. Click **Assign All** to assign the agent to all queues, or select individual queues and click the check box to assign. You can disable any queues by clearing the **Enabled** check box.

Security	Agent » Edit Agent »	440400			
gent Groups					
gents lueues/Skills hannels cripts	(Kaoru) Kaoru Minami < Back to agent list General Phone Queues	Supervisor CRM & Tab per	rmissions Interactions .		
RM	Queue List				> Filter Queue L
upport ienter	Assign All Enable All		<< < 1 💌	> >> 20 records 🕸 0	Configure Sort 🥳 Clear All Sc
Outbound Setup	Media ^	Queue name	Skill Level (click to change)	Agents enabled	Assigned Enable
ampaigns	Chat	Support Chat	80 - High	3	
oadcast	Email	Sales Email	80 - High	3	
egration	Email	Support Email	80 - High	3	
itus Codes	Outbound Phone	Sales Outbound	80 - High	✓ 3	
nsaction	Outbound Phone	Support Outbound	10 20 - Low	3	
ies	Inbound Phone	Sales Inbound	30	3	~
bound	Inbound Phone	Support Inbound	40 50 - Medium	3	
one Codes	Voice Mail	Sales Voicemail	60	3	
allboard	Voice Mail	Support Voicemail	70 80 - High	3	
at design			90 100		
	Note: - On save, Skill level and Enabled will be n	eset to High and false respectively, for all u	unassigned Queues. Save Cancel		

The following table summarizes the options available under the **Queues** tab:

Queues Tab Option	Description
Assign All	Select the option to assign an agent to all the available queues defined in the tenant. For custom queue assignments, select individual queues, specify the agent's skill level, and assign. You can also assign agents to queues at the same time you create the queue. For details on assigning agents to a phone queue as part of queue creation, refer to Assign Inbound Phone Queue Members. The same concept applies to all other types of 8x8 Contact Center queues.
Enable All	Enables interactions from all queues automatically on assigning.
Media	Displays the type of media queue such as Chat, Email, Outbound Phone, Inbound Phone, or Voicemail.
Queue Name	Displays the name of queue, such as Support or Sales.
Skill Level (Click to change)	Indicates the skill level of the agent for that queue. The skill level determines the routing of interactions within a queue. 8x8 Contact Center attempts to direct interactions to an agent with a higher skill level before directing them to an agent with a lower skill level. Skill levels are now indicated by ten numerical values ranging from 10 to 100 with an increment of 10, with 10 being the lowest value and 100 being the highest. Assign the agent's skill level from the drop-down menu of

Queues Tab Option	Description
	options.
Agents Enabled	Indicates the total number of agents in each queue whose accounts are enabled.
Assigned	If selected, assigns an agent to the selected queue and automatically enables interactions from that queue. You can assign agents to queues at the same time you create the queue. For details on assigning agents to a phone queue as part of queue creation, refer to Assign Inbound Phone Queue Members. The same concept applies to all other types of 8x8 Contact Center queues.
Enabled	Allows the agent to receive interactions from a selected queue. You can assign a queue but choose to temporarily disable it.

6. Click **Save** to save your settings.

The next step is to define supervisor privileges for the agent.

Grant supervisor rights

8x8 Contact Center administrators can grant special privileges to an agent, and allow agents to perform as 8x8 Contact Center supervisors. A supervisor has all the rights of an agent in addition to the ability to:

- Create and delete FAQ categories and answers.
- Monitor agents, queues, groups, and campaigns.
- Create and run historical reports for contact center metrics.

In addition to supervisory features, supervisors may choose to perform, or at least guide and validate the use of certain operations that agents have access to, such as agent profile configuration. These include the following optional features:

- Delete customer and case records from the Local CRM.
- Pull and delete pending email interactions from a queue.
- Use the Monitoring tab to remove agents from queue assignments.

8x8 Contact Center administrators grant supervisor privileges to an agent and allow permissions to monitor groups, queues, and campaigns in 8x8 Configuration Manager and via **Agents > Supervisor**.

To enable supervising ability for an agent:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Find an agent and click
3. Open the **Supervisor** tab.

gent Groups				
gents ueues/Skills	(Kaoru) Kaoru Minami			
hannels	< Back to agent list			
cripts	General Phone Queues	Supervisor CRM & Tab permissions Interact	tions	
RM	This user is supervisor	Allow this supervisor to monitor of	alls Restrict report privileges	
pport nter	Monitoring			
utbound ≥tup	Queues Agent Groups Campai	gns		
mpaigns	Queue List			 Filter Queue Lis
oadcast	Assign All		<< < 1 💌 > >> 20 records 🚳 (Configure Sort 🥳 Clear All Sor
egration	Media ^ 1	Name	Default Priority	Assigned
	Chat	Support Chat	6	
tus Codes		Sales Email	2	
nsaction	Email		-	
nsaction les	Email Email	Support Email	2	
nsaction Jes tbound		Support Email Sales Outbound		
tus Codes nsaction des tbound one Codes illboard	Email		2	
nsaction des tbound one Codes	Email Outbound Phone	Sales Outbound	2 8	

- 4. Select **This user is supervisor**.
- 5. Open the Queues, Groups, and Campaigns tabs for more configuration.

The following table summarizes the options available under the **Supervisor** tab in the Queues, Groups, and Campaigns pages:

Supervisor Tab Option	Description
This user is supervisor	If enabled, the user is granted supervisor rights.
Allow this supervisor to monitor calls	If enabled, the supervisor can join agents phone calls in progress for monitoring purposes.
Restrict report privileges	If enabled, restricts the data a supervisor views in historical reports. The supervisor views the groups and queues they monitor, or are a member of.
Assign All	If enabled, the agent is assigned to all available queues, groups, or campaigns defined in the tenant.
Media	Displays the type of media queue such as Chat, Email, Outbound Phone, Inbound Phone, or Voicemail.
Name	Displays the name of a queue, group, or campaign, such as Chat Channel or Support Queue.

Supervisor Tab Option	Description
Default Priority	Indicates the priority number of the queue as set under Queues > Properties > Default Priority . This number determines the priority of all interactions for a queue where 1 specifies lowest priority and 10 specifies highest priority. For details, refer to Define Inbound Phone Queue Properties.
Agent Count	Indicates the number of agents in a group.
Comment	Displays the description or comment of a group entered when creating a group and under Group > General .
Status	Shows the campaign status, such as completed, running, or stopped.
Enabled	Shows if the campaign is enabled.
Queue	Displays the queue associated to a campaign. You can specify the queue in Campaign > Properties .
Caller ID	Displays the campaign's caller ID specified when defining a campaign. The campaign's caller ID can be a channel number.
CRM Object	Displays the campaign's CRM Object, such as customer, specified when defining a campaign.
Assigned	If selected, assigns an agent to the selected queue, group, and campaign.

6. Click Save.

Grant Local CRM permissions

8x8 Contact Center administrators grant Local CRM permissions to agents and supervisors to manage customer data such as cases, customers, and tasks accessible to agents via 8x8 Agent Console. 8x8 Contact Center administrators grant the permissions to view, create, edit, or delete customer data in 8x8 Configuration Manager via **Users > CRM**.

To grant Local CRM permissions to an agent or supervisor:

or

1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.

2. Find an agent and click

- Agent » Edit Agent » CRM & Tab permissions **(**) Agents (Kaoru) Kaoru Minami < Back to agent list General Phone Queues Supervisor CRM & Tab pe Interactions Script: CRM Create Edit Delete Create a Follow-up Change Status Create a Report Download a Report View Case ~ \sim \sim Task ~ ~ ~ N/A ~ ~ ~ Custome ~ ~ ~ N/A N/A ~ ~ Monitoring N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Note: Case privileges can only be changed when the agent has no assigned queue: Only supervisors can view the Monitoring tab. Save Cancel
- 3. Grant the desired permissions to the agent.

The following table summarizes the permissions:

CRM Tab	Description
Case	Select or change from the following permissions to define an agent's access to case data:
	View
	Create
	■ Edit

CRM Tab	Description							
	Delete							
	 Create a Follow-up 							
	Change status							
	Create a report							
	 Download a report: Agents can continue to run the report even if the ability to download a report is disclosed. 							
	report is disabled. If you disable any of the above controls, the agent cannot see the corresponding feature in							
	8x8 Agent Console.							
	_							
	Note: To revoke or edit the case permissions, you have to unsubscribe the agent							
	from all queues to avoid any conflict. Only supervisors can view a Monitoring tab.							
Task	Select or change from the following permissions to define an agent's access to Task data:							
	View							
	Create							
	Edit							
	 Delete 							
	Change status							
	Create a report							
	 Download a report 							
	If you disable any of the above controls, the agent cannot see the corresponding feature in							
	8x8 Agent Console.							
	Note: An agent is able to clone tasks in 8x8 Agent Console if the administrator grants the permission to create and edit tasks to that agent.							
Customer	Select or change permissions to view, modify, and delete customers data.							
	 View 							
	Create							

CRM Tab	Description
	Edit
	 Delete
	Create a report
	 Download a report
	If you disable any of the above controls, the agent cannot see the corresponding feature in
	8x8 Agent Console.
Monitoring	Select the permission to view monitoring.

Configure multi-chats

8x8 Contact Center multi-chat allows an agent to handle up to six concurrent chats with customers at any time. There is no limit on the number of concurrent chats among agents. Using the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can configure the maximum number of concurrent chats with customers for each agent. They can also enable agent-to-agent chat from within the Interactions tab. There is no limit on the number of agent-toagent chats.

To define maximum number of concurrent chats with customers:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Find an agent and click
- 3. Open the Interactions tab.

Home Security	Agent » Edit Agent » Interactions	(i)
Agent Groups		
Agents	(Kaoru) Kaoru Minami	
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to agent list	
Scripts	General Phone Queues Supervisor CRM & Tab permissions Interactions	
CRM Support	* Max # of concurrent chats 1 v	
Center	✓ Enable agent to agent chat	
Outbound Setup	2 3 4 Save Cancel	
Campaigns	5	
Broadcast	v	

- 4. Select Max # of concurrent chats from the list.
- 5. Select Enable agent to agent chat.

It allows this agent to chat with other agents. There is no limit on the number of concurrent chats among agents.

6. Click Save.

Create and configure queues

An 8x8 Contact Center queue is an ordered collection of interactions waiting to be served by agents who are qualified to respond to these interactions. The 8x8 Contact Center administrator can customize how incoming interactions are prioritized and routed in 8x8 Configuration Manager. Queues ensure that interactions are never lost or discarded.

Queues serve to present interactions flowing into 8x8 Contact Center to agents based on skill set and availability. 8x8 Contact Center provides sophisticated logic for matching customers to the agent who can best solve their problem. Queues direct interactions based on the skill level of agents serving the queue. If you have an agent with high skill level vs. an agent with low skill level, the interaction will be directed to the high skilled agent based on their availability.

By going to the Queues/Skills tab, you can:

- Create, edit, copy, and delete queues of all media
- Assign members to queues
- Define targeted service level

To access Queues:

1. In the Configuration Menu, click Queues/Skills to display a list of queues.

ne urity	Queues/Skills	» Queue List						(
		I	Operation completed succes	sfully.				
nts ues/Skills	Queue List							
nels	Queue List						:	Filter Queue Lis
	Add Queue: 🕀 Inbour	nd Phone 💮 Outbound Phone	(+) Chat (+) Email (+) Void	e Mail 🛛 <<	< 1 > >	>> 20 recor	rds @ Configure Sort	🥳 Clear All So
	Media ^ 1	Queue name		ld ^ 2	Default Priorit	y Agents assigned	Agents enabled	
	Chat	AcmeSalesChatQ		111	6	4	3	0 0 0
	Chat	AcmeSupportChat		148	6	3	2	0 🖬
	Chat	AcmeSupportTier2		149	6	4	3	06
yns ist	Chat	AcmeSalesChatQ - 1		167	6	4	3	00
	Email	AcmeSalesEmail		110	2	3	0	00
odes	Outbound Phone	Sales_Outbound		113	8	4	3	16
on	Outbound Phone	Support_Outbound		143	8	5	5	10 🖬
	Outbound Phone	Outbound_Queue		144	8	7	7	00
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Services		103	8	3	2	00
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Support		109	8	7	7	10 🖬
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Sales		114	8	4	3	0 🖬
	Voice Mail	AcmeSales∨M		112	1	2	2	1 6
	Voice Mail	Acme_VM-Q		166	4	1	1	000

- 2. In the list view:
 - Click **Add** to create a new queue for Inbound Phone, Chat, or Email.
 - Click **Edit** to view or modify an existing queue.
 - Click **Copy** to clone an existing queue.
 - Click Delete to delete an existing queue.
- 3. Configure the queue settings, and Save.

Clone queues

Aministrators can copy inbound phone queues, outbound phone queues, chat queues, email queues, as well as voicemail queues with a simple click. Cloning queues allows Contact Center administrators to create multiple queues in a short time.

When you clone a queue, the queue properties, members, interactions, SLA, and email settings are copied. A queue name is automatically generated. You can modify or make changes to the new queue, if required.

To clone a queue:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager
- 2. Go to Queues/Skills to display a list of queues.

3x8				گ Secor	ıdary Administ	rator (AcmeJets)	ly Profile Co-browsin	g Help L	Logou
lome Security	Queues/Skills	» Queue List							6
, Agent Groups Agents		Oper	ration completed succes	sfully.					
ueues/Skills)	Queue List								
Channels Scripts	Queue List							> Filter Queue	e List
RM	Add Queue: 🕀 Inbour	nd Phone 🕀 Outbound Phone 🕀 C	hat 🕀 Email 🕀 Void	e Mail 🛛 <<	< 1 💌	> >> 20 re	cords 🚳 Configure So	t 🥳 Clear All	Sort
	Media ^ 1	Queue name		ld ^ 2	Default Pr	iority Agents assigne	d Agents enabled	_	
	Chat	AcmeSalesChatQ		111	6	4	3	Ø 🗅 1	0
utbound atup	Chat	AcmeSupportChat		148	6	3	2		0
mpaigns	Chat	AcmeSupportTier2	\frown	149	6	4	3	Ø 🖸 1	
padcast	Chat	AcmeSalesChatQ - 1	Queue name is generated	167	6	4	3	Ø 🖸 1	
egration	Email	AcmeSalesEmail	automatically	110	2	3	0	Ø 🖸 1	
tus Codes	Outbound Phone	Sales_Outbound		113	8	4	3	1	
nsaction	Outbound Phone	Support_Outbound		143	8	5	5	0	1
les	Outbound Phone	Outbound_Queue		144	8	7	7	Ø 🗅 1	
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Services		103	8	3	2	0	1
	Inbound Phone	Acme_Support		109	8	7	7	Ø 🗅 1	Ū
allboard	Inbound Phone	Acme_Sales		114	8	4	3	Ø 🗅 1	Ū
	Voice Mail	AcmeSales∨M		112	1	2	2	1 🗹 🖉	Ū
	Voice Mail	Acme_VM-Q		166	4	1	1	Ø 🖸 1	0

3. Select a queue and click Copy.

A single copy is generated. The cloned queue has the original queue name plus a number appended to the name. For example, AcmeSalesChatQ becomes AcmeSalesChatQ -1, AcmeSalesChatQ -2, and so on. You can rename the queue by going to the **Queues/Skills > Properties > Queue name**. The queues are listed in alphabetical order, but you can sort and change their order.

- 4. If required, modify the queue properties and **Save**.
- 5. Click to delete the queue.

Note: To delete a queue, you must remove the agents from the queue first.

Configuring a queue varies based on the media of the queue. The following sections describe:

- Creating inbound phone queues
- Creating outbound phone queues

Creating chat queues

8x8

- Creating email queues
- Creating voicemail queues

Create inbound phone queues

Configuring an 8x8 Contact Center inbound phone queue in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- Defining inbound phone queue properties
- Assigning inbound phone queue members
- Configuring inbound phone queue voicemail
- Setting up inbound phone queue call priority
- Defining inbound phone queue SLA

Define inbound phone queue properties

8x8 Contact Center categorizes phone queues by the direction of the phone calls.

- An inbound phone queue accepts incoming phone calls and directs them to skilled agents. Agents either process these phone calls, or reject them, routing them back to the queue, thus ensuring calls are not discarded.
- An outbound phone queue processes all outgoing interactions including campaign calls, click-to-dial calls, and web callback calls.

To define an inbound phone queue, 8x8 Contact Center administrators need to define the primary properties, such as queue name, default priority, post-processing timeout, and more. Open the **Properties** tab to define the properties.

To define inbound phone queue properties in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Click or Inbound Phone.
- 3. Enter the desired properties in the Properties tab.

8×8				≗ Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Home Security	Queues/Skills » E	dit Inbound Phone	» » Properties				(j
Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM	Sales whisper IN Sales to queue list Properties Members	Voice Mail Interactions	SLA				
Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Queue type Queue direction * Queue name Default priority Transfer Incoming Calls to Post-processing timeout Voice Recording Waiting Music Agent whisper audio	Phone Inbound Sales whisper IN Sales whisper IN Soles whisper IN Soles and Soles None Acreme Sales Acreme Sales Acreme Sales Acreme Sales Construction of the Sales Constructi	r 1=Low 10=High r 96 Save	Cancel			
	4	Geolganiziver OfisinQ Orens sale queue Sales Queue Support Whisper Jaudio					,

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Inbound Phone > Properties:

Properties Tab Option	Description
Queue type	Read-only reminder of the type of queue.
Queue direction	Read-only reminder of the phone queue direction. Specifies if it is inbound or outbound. It is applicable to phone media only.
Queue name	Type a name for the queue.
Default Priority	Choose the priority for this queue, where <1> specifies the lowest priority and <10> specifies the highest priority. This defines the priority for interactions of all media. By default, 8x8 Contact Center prioritizes the queues as follows:
	 Phone queue = 8 (highest default priority) Obst groups = 6
	 Chat queue = 6 Voicemail queue = 4
	 Email queue = 2 (lowest default priority) Based on your business needs, you can assign the desired priority for each queue.
Transfer Incoming Calls To	If enabled, 8x8 Contact Center transfers phone interactions from this queue to an external telephone number (that is not managed by the contact center). The external telephone number must have the following format:
	 In the United States: 1 + three-digit area code + seven-digit phone number
	 Outside the United States: Country Code +phone number The telephone number may contain optional dashes, spaces, or parentheses.
Post- Processing	Choose how long 8x8 Contact Center must wait before assigning a new interaction from the queue to an agent who has just completed an interaction.
Timeout	The post-processing timeout enables agents servicing the selected queue to perform any necessary post-interaction tasks before receiving a new interaction. Choose Manual to enable agents assigned to this queue to use their 8x8 Agent Console to explicitly make themselves
	available for new interactions. When there are multiple agents available with the same queue and skill level assignment waiting to receive the next interaction, 8x8 Contact Center routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. For details, see our content on how to reset idle timer for
	agents.

Properties Tab Option	Description
Voice Recording %	Specify the percentage of interactions from this queue recorded by 8x8 Contact Center.
Waiting Music	Choose the audio file played when a caller must wait for an agent to become available. The Waiting Music lists all files defined in the Audio Files tab. For details on the Audio Files tab, refer to Configure Recorded Greetings.
Agent whisper audio	Select an audio file from the drop-down for Agent whisper. By default there is no audio file selected. You can click ^(*) to play the audio. Agent whisper helps agents identify the context of the incoming call even before the customer information pops for preview, thus allowing them to prepare for the call. Agent whisper messages can be heard on both inbound and outbound calls. To set up Agent whisper, you must upload the Agent whisper file first and then assign the file to a queue. For details Agent whisper files see details on how to create agent whisper for phone queues.

4. Click Save. After you define the queue properties, you are ready to assign members to the queue.

Assign inbound phone queue members

When 8x8 Contact Center administrators assign members to an inbound phone queue, they allow them to process the phone interactions that enter the queue. The queue uses skill-based routing to route the inbound phone calls based on the agent's skill set. An agent with a higher skill level receives an interaction before an agent with a lower skill level.

Go to Queues/Skills > Inbound Phone > Members in 8x8 Configuration Manager to add, modify, or remove agents.

To assign members to an inbound phone queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the inbound phone queue you wish to assign members to, and click
- 3. Go to the **Members** tab.

Agent Groups						-
Agents	Sales Inbound					
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list					
Channels						
Scripts	Properties Members	Voice Mail Interactions	SLA			
CRM	Agent List					> Filter Agent List
Support Center	Assign All Enable All			<< < 1 v > >> 20 m	ecords ෯ Configure Sor	t 🥳 Clear All Sort
Outbound	First name	Last name	Username	Skill level (click to change)	Agents assig	Agents enabl
Setup	Casey	Kilborn	Casey	80 - High		
Campaigns	Corrin	Alvarez	Corrin	80 - High	▼ 2	
Broadcast	Kaoru	Minami	Kaoru	10 20 - Low		 ✓
ntegration	Robin	Shasta	Robin	30		~
Status Codes	Sasha	Solovey	Sasha	40 50 - Medium		
Fransaction Codes	Zufi	Singh	Zufi	60		
Dutbound				80 - High		
Phone Codes	Notes:			90 100		
Wallboard			e respectively, for all unassigned Agents		han firm an dahan an handha	
Chat design	 Agents who are grayed out can no agents to the queue. 	t be subscribed to the queue, since	they have no CRW access rights to crea	te cases and add follow-ups. Please set CRM access rig	nts first and then subscribe	
			Save	Cancel		

4. Select **Assign All** to assign all agents to the queue.

OR

Select Agents assigned to choose the desired agents only.

5. Click the Skill level for the agent serving the queue.
 The skill level can be selected from 10 to 100 (lowest to highest).
 The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Inbound Phone > Members:

8x8

Members Tab Option	Description
Assign All	Assigns all existing agents to this queue.
Enable All	To activate routing of interactions from this queue to all agents assigned to the queue.
Agents	For the selected queue, in the list of agents:
	 Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue.
	 Select an individual agent to add that agent to the queue.
Skill Level	Indicates the skill level of the agent for that queue. The skill level determines the routing of interactions within a queue. 8x8 Contact Center attempts to direct interactions to an agent with a higher skill level before directing them to an agent with a lower skill level. Skill levels are now indicated by ten numerical values ranging from 10 to 100 with an increment of 10, with 10 being the lowest value and 100 being the highest. Assign the agent's skill level from the drop-down menu of options.
Agents Assigned	Assigns the selected agents to this queue.
Agents Enabled	Activates routing of interactions from this queue to selected agents assigned to the queue. You can assign but temporarily disable an agent.

6. Select Agents enabled or Enable All to activate routing of interactions from this queue to the selected agents.

7. Click Save.

Configure inbound phone queue voicemail

Stagnating calls in an 8x8 Contact Center queue for too long is not desirable to callers. 8x8 Contact Center admins can direct calls that have been waiting in a queue longer than a specified time to voicemail, allowing callers to leave a message. By going to the voicemail tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager, you can also:

- Enable voicemail for a queue.
- Specify a duration after which to direct the waiting calls to voicemail.
- Select a message for voicemail.
- Select a voicemail queue to direct the calls to.

To configure voicemail for a queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the inbound phone queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Voice Mail tab and select or enable voicemail settings.

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Inbound Phone > Voicemail.

Voicemail Tab Option	Description
Enable Voice Mail	Select to enable voicemail for this phone queue.
Force Voice Mail after	Choose how much time 8x8 Contact Center permits a caller to wait before redirecting the call to a 8x8 Contact Center voicemail queue.
Voice Mail Message (played to customer)	Choose the recorded message 8x8 Contact Center plays when redirecting a caller to a voicemail queue.
	 Upload Custom: You can replace the current message with an existing WAV file from your picklist.
	 Play Audio: Click to listen to the audio voice message.
Route Voice Mail to queue	Choose a 8x8 Contact Center voicemail queue.

4. Click Save.

Set up inbound phone queue call priority

8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up custom priority for interactions in the queue based on the conditions they define. If an interaction meets the condition, it takes a higher or a lower priority than the default priority of the queue. To take advantage of this feature, you must use the Local CRM. Go to the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to customize how the selected queue prioritizes specific types of interactions.

For example, AcmeJets has an inbound support queue with a default priority set to 6.

This queue handles support inquiries from all customers. To better serve its premium customers before others, AcmeJets can define a higher interaction priority for interactions from premium customers by setting a condition to determine the customer type. When an interaction meets the condition, the interaction priority overrides the default priority of the queue, allowing agents to serve the premium customers faster.

To define custom priority for interactions:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the inbound phone queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the **Interactions** tab.
- Select a value for Set Default Interaction Priority within the Queue.
 The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Inbound Phone > Interactions:

Interactions Tab Option	Description
Set default interaction priority within the queue	To customize the priority for specific types of interactions within this queue, choose a non-default priority level, then in the condition area, specify the conditions that receive the non-default priority. In the list, 1 equals the lowest default interaction priority, and 100 equals the highest interaction priority.
Add Interaction Rule	Click \bigoplus to create an interaction priority rule.
If the value of the field	Choose a Local CRM field to enable the options available in the equals list such as Case: Priority.

Interactions Tab Option	Description	
	For details, refer to Configure CRM Fields.	
equals	The values in this field varies based on what field you choose for Local CRM. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.	
Set interaction priority to	Choose a priority level for the interaction from 1 (lowest) to 100 (highest).	
Enable priority routing rule	Select to enable the routing rule in your 8x8 Contact Center.	

- 5. Define an interaction rule to specify a matching condition.
 - a. Click or Interaction Rule.
 - b. Select a CRM field for If value of the field, such as Case: Priority.
 - c. Select a value for **equals**. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
 - d. Choose a value for Set interaction priority to from 1 to 100.

This number sets the priority of the interactions that match the rule. For example, a platinum support customer gets a high priority, such as 90.

- e. Select the Enable priority routing rule check box to activate the rule.
- f. Click Add this Rule.

The interaction rule appears in the list.

- 6. Repeat the above procedure to add more rules.
- 7. Click Save.

Define inbound phone queue SLA

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) of an 8x8 Contact Center queue defines the target performance metrics of the queue. It includes the percentage of interactions processed within a specified time interval. You can set a target service level for each queue via 8x8 Configuration Manager, and periodically evaluate the service level. You can also set up an alert notification to show if the service level falls below the specified threshold.

To define SLA for an inbound phone queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the inbound phone queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the SLA tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Inbound Phone » SLA	(j)			
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Sales Inbound < Back to queue list Properties Members Voice Mail Interactions SLA				
CRM	Target Service Level - in a queue				
Support	80 % of interactions should be processed within 10 minutes -				
Center	Evaluate service level every 30 minutes 💌				
Outbound Setup	Send email notification to				
Campaigns	Note: Multiple email addresses can be entered in Send email notification to separated by comma (') or semi-colon (').				
Broadcast	Save Cancel				
Integration					
Status Codes					
Transaction Codes					
Outbound Phone Codes					
Wallboard					
Chat design					

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Inbound Phone > SLA:

SLA Tab Option	Description
% of interactions should be processed within	 To specify the Service Level Agreement (SLA) threshold for the selected queue: Type a percentage value as an integer from 0 to 100 percent, such as 40. Type an integer number to indicate the time interval. Choose the units of time specified by this value. The valid time intervals are:

SLA Tab Option	Description		
	 For Phone and Chat queues: Seconds, Minutes, or Hours For Email and Voicemail queues: Minutes or Hours 		
Evaluate service	Choose how frequently 8x8 Contact Center compares the queue's performance to the SLA		
level every	threshold defined for the queue.		
Send email	Type one or more comma-separated email addresses that should receive email notifications		
notification to	from 8x8 Contact Center. The email is sent when the queue's performance level falls below		
	the performance threshold specified for the queue.		

4. Click Save.

With this step, the queue configuration is complete.

Create outbound phone queues

8x8 Contact Center outbound queue is used to channel agent-initiated outbound calls to the destination. These calls may be:

- Agent-dialed from the Control Panel: Must be configured via Outbound Phone Codes.
- Requests for web callback: API accepts Queue ID as a parameter.
- Via click-to-dial: API accepts Queue ID as a parameter.
- Campaign calls: Must be directed via an Outbound Phone queue.

When an outbound call is directed through an 8x8 Contact Center queue, an agent's status changes to busy preventing any calls being offered to the agent.

Configuring an outbound phone queue in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- Defining outbound phone queue properties
- Assigning outbound phone queue members
- Setting up outbound phone queue call priority
- Defining outbound phone queue SLA
- Viewing campaign assignments

Define outbound phone queue properties

8x8 Contact Center categorizes phone queues by the direction of the phone calls.

- An inbound phone queue accepts incoming phone calls and directs them to skilled agents. Agents either process these phone calls, or reject them, routing them back to the queue, thus ensuring calls are not discarded.
- An outbound phone queue processes all outgoing interactions including campaign calls, click-to-dial calls, and web callback calls.

To define an outbound phone queue, you need to specify the primary properties, such as queue name, default priority, post-processing timeout, and more. The Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager under Outbound Phone queues allows you to define these properties.

To define outbound phone queue properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Click or **Outbound Phone**.
- 3. Enter the desired properties in the **Properties** tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills >	» Add Outbound Phone » Properties	Ū
Agent Groups			
Agents			
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list		
Channels		lateration CLA Consider	
Scripts	Properties Agents	Interactions SLA Campaigns	
CRM		Phone Outbound	
Support Center	Queue direction • Queue name	Marketing Outbound	
Outbound	Outbound Phone script	None 💌	
Setup	Default priority	8 T=Low 10=High	
Campaigns	Post-processing timeout	5 seconds 🔹	
Broadcast	Voice Recording	96	
Integration		Save Cancel	
Status Codes			
Transaction Codes			
Outbound Phone Codes			
Wallboard			
Chat design			

Properties Tab Option	Description		
Queue type	Read-only reminder of the type of queue.		
Queue direction	Read-only reminder of the phone queue direction. Specifies if it is inbound or outbound. It is applicable to phone media only.		
Queue name	Enter a name for the queue.		
Default Priority	 Choose the priority for this queue, where 1 specifies the lowest priority and 10 specifies the highest priority. This defines the priority for interactions of all media. By default, 8x8 Contact Center prioritizes the queues as follows: Phone queue = 8 (highest default priority) Chat queue = 6 Voicemail queue = 4 Email queue = 2 (lowest default priority) Based on your business needs, you can assign the desired priority for each queue. 		
Post- Processing Timeout	Choose how long 8x8 Contact Center must wait before assigning a new interaction from the queue to an agent who has just completed an interaction. The post-processing timeout enables agents servicing the selected queue to perform any necessary post-interaction tasks before receiving a new interaction. Choose Manual to enable agents assigned to this queue to use their 8x8 Agent Console to explicitly make themselves available for new interactions. When there are multiple agents available with the same queue and skill level assignment waiting to receive the next interaction, 8x8 Contact Center routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. For details, see our content on how to reset idle timer for agents .		
Voice Recording %	Specify the percentage of interactions from this queue recorded by 8x8 Contact Center.		

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Outbound Phone > Properties:

4. Click Save.

After you define the queue properties, you are ready to assign members to the queue.

Assign outbound phone queue members

When 8x8 Contact Center admins assign members to an outbound phone queue, they allow the members to process campaign calls and web callback requests that enter the queue. The queue uses skill-based routing to route the outbound phone calls based on the agent's skill set. An agent with a higher skill level receives an interaction before an agent with a lower skill level.

Go to Queues/Skills > Outbound Phone > Agents in 8x8 Configuration Manager to add, modify, or remove agents.

As a member of an outbound queue, an agent is offered:

- Campaign calls
- Customer requests for web callback

To assign members to an outbound phone queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the outbound phone queue you wish to assign members to, and click
- 3. Go to the Agents tab.

A list of existing agents appears.

Home Security	Queues/Skills »	Edit Outbound Pho	one » Agents		0
Agent Groups					
Agents	Sales Outbound				
Queues/Skills	< Back to gueue list				
Channels					
Scripts	Properties Agents	Interactions SLA	Campaigns		
CRM	Agent List				> Filter Agent List
Support Center	Assign All Enable A	All	<	< < 1 💌 > >> 20 record	s 🐵 Configure Sort 🧭 Clear All Sort
Outbound	First name	Last name	Username	Skill level (click to change)	Agents assig Agents enabl
Setup	Casey	Kilborn	Casey	80 - High	
Campaigns	Corrin	Alvarez	Corrin	80 - High	✓ ☑ ☑
Broadcast	Kaoru	Minami	Kaoru	10 20 - Low	
Integration	Robin	Shasta	Robin	30	
Status Codes	Sasha	Solovey	Sasha	40 50 - Medium	
Transaction Codes	Zufi	Singh	Zufi	60 70	
Outbound Phone Codes				80 - High 90 100	
Wallboard Chat design			e respectively, for all unassigned Agents. e they have no CRM access rights to create cas	es and add follow-ups. Please set CRM access rights fin Cancel	and then subscribe

4. Select **Assign All** to assign all agents to the queue. OR

Select Agents assigned to choose the desired agents only.

5. Click the Skill level for the agent serving the queue.

The skill level can be selected from 10 to 100 (lowest to highest).

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Outbound Phone > Agents:

Members Tab Option	Description		
Assign All	Assigns all existing agents to this queue.		
Enable All	To activate routing of interactions from this queue to all agents assigned to the queue.		
Agents	 For the selected queue, in the list of agents: Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue. Select an individual agent to add that agent to the queue. 		
Skill Level	Indicates the skill level of the agent for that queue. The skill level determines the routing of interactions within a queue. 8x8 Contact Center attempts to direct interactions to an agent with a higher skill level before directing them to an agent with a lower skill level. Skill levels are now indicated by ten numerical values ranging from 10 to 100 with an increment of 10, with 10 being the lowest value and 100 being the highest. Assign the agent's skill level from the drop-down menu of options.		
Agents Assigned	Assigns the selected agents to this queue.		
Agents Enabled	Activates routing of interactions from this queue to selected agents assigned to the queue. You can assign but temporarily disable an agent.		

- 6. Select Agents enabled or Enable All to activate routing of interactions for the selected agents.
- 7. Click Save.

Set up outbound phone queue call priority

8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up custom priority for interactions in the queue based on the conditions they define. If an interaction meets the condition, it takes a higher or a lower priority than the default priority of the queue. To take advantage of this feature, you must use the Local CRM. Go to the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to customize how the selected queue prioritizes specific types of interactions.

For example, AcmeJets has a web callback outbound phone queue with a default priority set to 20.

This queue handles support inquiries from all customers. To better serve its premium customers before others, AcmeJets can define a higher interaction priority for interactions from premium customers by setting a condition to determine the customer type. When an interaction meets the condition, the interaction priority overrides the default priority of the queue, allowing agents to serve the premium customers faster.

To define custom priority for interactions:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the outbound phone queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Interactions tab.

	Queues/Skills » Edit Outbo	und Phone » Interactions	Ĵ
Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Script CRM Support Center Outbound	Queues/Skills » Edit Outbo Sales Outbound < Back to queue list	SLA Campaigns 50 v 50 * 50 * 53 *	○ Filter Interaction Rule List ⊗ Configure Sort ⊘ Clear All Sort
Setup Campaigns	Condition	54 55 56 Priority 56	Enabled
Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design		57 No items to show 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 7 •	
		Save Cancel	

4. Select a value for Set Default Interaction Priority within the Queue.

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Outbound Phone > Interactions.

Interactions Tab Option	Description
Set default interaction priority within the queue	To customize the priority for specific types of interactions within this queue, choose a non-default priority level, then in the condition area, specify the conditions that receive the non-default priority. In the list, 1 equals the lowest default interaction priority, and 100 equals the highest interaction priority.
Add Interaction Rule	Click \bigoplus to create an interaction priority rule.
If the value of the field	Choose a Local CRM field to enable the options available in the equals list such as Case: Priority. For details, refer to Configure CRM Fields.
equals	The values in this field varies based on what field you choose for Local CRM. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
Set interaction priority to	Choose a priority level for the interaction from 1 (lowest) to 100 (highest).
Enable priority	Select to enable the routing rule in your 8x8 Contact Center.

- 5. Define an interaction rule to specify a matching condition.
 - a. Click or Interaction Rule.

routing rule

- b. Select a CRM field for If value of the field, such as Case: Priority.
- c. Select a value for **equals**. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
- d. Choose a value for Set interaction priority to from 1 to 100.

This number sets the priority of the interactions that match the rule. For example, a platinum support customer gets a high priority, such as 90.

- e. Select the Enable priority routing rule check box to activate the rule.
- f. Click Add this Rule.

The interaction rule appears in the list.

- 6. Repeat the above procedure to add more rules.
- 7. Click Save.

Define outbound phone queue SLA

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) of an 8x8 Contact Center queue defines the target performance metrics of the queue. It includes the percentage of interactions processed within a specified time interval. You can set a target service level for each queue via 8x8 Configuration Manager, and periodically evaluate the service level. You can also set up an alert notification to show if the service level falls below the specified threshold.

To define SLA for an outbound phone queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the outbound phone queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the SLA tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Outbound Phone » SLA	(i)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Sales Outbound < Back to queue list Properties Agents Interactions SLA Campaigns	
CRM	Target Service Level - in a queue	
Support Center Outbound	80 % of interactions should be processed within 10 minutes Evaluate service level every 30 minutes w Send email notification to	
Setup Campaigns	Send email addresses can be entered in Send email notification to separated by comma (',') or semi-colon (',').	
Broadcast	Save Cancel	
Integration		
Status Codes		
Transaction Codes		
Outbound Phone Codes		
Wallboard		
Chat design		

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Outbound Phone > SLA.

SLA Tab Option	Description
% of interactions should be processed within	 To specify the Service Level Agreement (SLA) threshold for the selected queue: Type a percentage value as an integer from 0 to 100 percent, such as 40. Type an integer number to indicate the time interval. Choose the units of time specified by this value. The valid time intervals are:

SLA Tab Option	Description
	 For Phone and Chat queues: Seconds, Minutes, or Hours For Email and Voicemail queues: Minutes or Hours
Evaluate service level every	Choose how frequently 8x8 Contact Center compares the queue's performance to the SLA threshold defined for the queue.
Send email notification to	Type one or more comma-separated email addresses that should receive email notifications from 8x8 Contact Center. The email is sent when the queue's performance level falls below the performance threshold specified for the queue.

4. Click Save.

View campaign assignments

8x8 Contact Center requires you to direct all campaign calls through outbound queues. While defining a campaign, you must specify an outbound queue to direct the calls to. When a campaign executes, a target call list fetched from the Local CRM is fed to an outbound phone queue. The queue offers calls to its members based on their skill set and availability.

The Campaigns tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager for an existing outbound phone queue shows the campaigns assigned to the queue. The list shows all new, running, completed, purged, and stopped campaigns.

To view campaign assignments:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the outbound phone queue with a campaign assignment you wish to view, and click
- 3. Go to the Campaigns tab.

Home	Queues/Skills »	Edit Outbo	und Phone »	Campaigns 0
Security	Queueo, entito »			ounpuigno o
Agent Groups				
Agents	Sales Outbound			
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list			
Channels Scripts	Properties Agents	Interactions	SLA Campaig	15
CRM	Campaigns			> Filter Campaigns
Support Center				<< < 1 >>>> 20 records @ Configure Sort 🤯 Clear All Sort
Outbound	Campaign ^		Enabled	Status
Setup	AcmeSales		yes	New
Campaigns	AcmeSales New		yes	New
Broadcast				
Integration				
Status Codes				
Transaction Codes				
Outbound Phone Codes				
Wallboard				
Chat design				

All campaigns assigned to this outbound queue are listed. For details on creating and assigning campaigns to a queue, refer to Create a Campaign.

Create chat queues

8x8 Contact Center supports chat media, allowing agents to process chat interactions with its customers in a timely manner similar to processing phone calls. Chat interactions directed to your contact center enter a chat queue. In turn, the queue offers these interactions to its members based on their skill set and availability.

Configuring a chat queue in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- Defining chat queue properties
- Assigning chat queue members
- Configuring chat queue greetings
- Setting up chat queue message priority
- Defining chat queue SLA
- Configuring chat queue email fallback

Define chat queue properties

8x8 Contact Center administrators define chat queues by specifying primary properties such as queue name, default priority, post-processing timeout, and more. The Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager under Queues/Skills > Chat allows administrators to specify these properties.

To define chat queue properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Click or **Chat**.
- 3. Enter the desired properties in the Properties tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills	» Edit Chat » Prop	erties		(j)
Agent Groups					
	Support Chat				
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list				
	Properties Member	s ICR Interactions	SLA	Email	
	Queue type	Chat			
	* Queue name	Support Chat			
	Default priority		1=Low 10=High		
Outbound Setup		Queue to receive customer support			
	* Queue description	requests.			
Integration	Post-processing timeout	5 seconds 🔹			
	Incoming Channels				
Transaction Codes	Note: Change/add chats for this queue in Channels configuration.				
Outbound Phone Codes				Save Cancel	
Wallboard					

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Chat > Properties:

Properties Tab Option	Description
Queue type	Read-only reminder of the type of queue.
Queue name	Type a name for the queue.
Default Priority	Choose the priority for this queue, where 1 specifies the lowest priority and 10 specifies the highest priority. This defines the priority for interactions of all media.

Properties Tab Option	Description
	By default, 8x8 Contact Center prioritizes the queues as follows:
	 Phone queue = 8 (highest default priority)
	 Chat queue = 6
	 Voicemail queue = 4
	 Email queue = 2 (lowest default priority)
	Based on your business needs, you can assign the desired priority for each queue.
Queue Description	Enter a description or note to remind you of the purpose of this queue.
Post- Processing Timeout	Choose how long 8x8 Contact Center must wait before assigning a new interaction from the queue to an agent who has just completed an interaction. The post-processing timeout enables agents servicing the selected queue to perform any necessary post-interaction tasks before receiving a new interaction. Choose Manual to enable agents assigned to this queue to use their 8x8 Agent Console to explicitly make themselves available for new interactions. When there are multiple agents available with the same queue and skill level assignment waiting to receive the next interaction, 8x8 Contact Center routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. For details, see our content on how to reset idle timer for agents.

4. Click Save.

After you define the queue properties, you are ready to assign members to the queue.

Assign chat queue members

When 8x8 Contact Center administrators assign members to a chat queue, they allow them to process chat interactions that are initiated by customers and enter the queue. The queue uses skill-based routing to route the chat interactions based on the agent's skill sets. An agent with a higher skill level receives an interaction before an agent with a lower skill level does.

Go to Queues/Skills > Chat > Members in 8x8 Configuration Manager to add, modify, or remove agents.

To assign members to a chat queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the chat queue you wish to assign members to, and click
- 3. Go to the Members tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edi	t Chat » Members				(j)
Agent Groups						
Agents	Support Chat					
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list					
Channels Scripts	Properties Members	ICR Interactions SLA	Email			
CRM	Agent List				>	Filter Agent List
Support Center	Assign All Enable All		<< < 1	▼ > >> 20 records	🚯 Configure Sort	🧹 Clear All Sort
Outbound	First name	Last name	Username	Skill level (click to change)	Agents assig	Agents enabl
Setup	Casey	Kilborn	Casey	80 - High	▼ 🔽	2
Campaigns	Corrin	Alvarez	Corrin	10 20 - Low		
Broadcast	Kaoru	Minami	Kaoru	30		
Integration	Robin	Shasta	Robin	40 50 - Medium		
Status Codes	Sasha	Solovey	Sasha	60		~
Transaction Codes	Zufi	Singh	Zufi	70 80 - High		~
Codes Outbound Phone Codes				90 100		
Wallboard Chat design		led will be reset to High and false respectively, e subscribed to the queue, since they have no I		low-ups. Please set CRM access rights first a	nd then subscribe	

4. Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue.

OR

Select **Agents assigned** to choose the desired agents only.

- 5. Click the **Skill level** for the agent serving the queue.
 - The skill level can be selected from 10 to 100 (lowest to highest).

The followir	ng table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Chat > Members :
Members	
Tab	Description
Option	
Assign	Assigns all existing agents to this queue.
All	
Enable All	To activate routing of interactions from this queue to all agents assigned to the queue.

For the selected queue, in the list of agents:

• Select **Assign All** to assign all agents to the queue.

	 Select an individual agent to add that agent to the queue.
Skill	Indicates the skill level of the agent for that queue. The skill level determines the routing of
Level	interactions within a queue. 8x8 Contact Center attempts to direct interactions to an agent with a higher skill level before directing them to an agent with a lower skill level. Skill levels are now indicated by ten numerical values ranging from 10 to 100 with an increment of 10, with 10 being the lowest value and 100 being the highest. Assign the agent's skill level from the drop-down menu of options.
Agents Assigned	Assigns the selected agents to this queue.
Agents Enabled	Activates routing of interactions from this queue to selected agents assigned to the queue. You can assign but temporarily disable an agent.

6. Click Save.

Agents
Configure chat queue greetings via ICR

Interactive Chat Response (ICR) refers to an automatic response from 8x8 Contact Center to a customer's new chat request. Alternatively, you can use a chat script to design and control the chat flow. For details, refer to Enhanced Chat Script.

You can configure your chat response to collect some key data that identifies the customer before channeling the chat request to the chat queue. For example, you can gather a customer's unique account number and pass this information to agents while offering the chat interaction. Based on the account number, an agent can quickly view the customer information, and then accept the request. If an agent rejects a chat request, the request enters the queue again to be offered to the next available agent.

If a customer submits a chat request during closed hours, you can configure an alternative greeting to inform the customer of business hours.

The ICR capability allows you to specify:

- CRM data to collect from a choice of options.
- A greeting to welcome customers, and a question to collect the desired CRM data.
- An open hour schedule for the chat media.
- An optional alternative greeting based on the specified schedule.

Go to Queues/Skills > Chat > ICR to specify a unique message for the chat interactions received during the open and closed hours.

To configure chat queue greetings:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the chat queue you wish to modify, and click

3. Go to the ICR tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Chat » ICR	(j)
Agent Groups		
Agents	Support Chat	
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list	
Channels	Properties Members ICR Interactions SLA Email	
Scripts	Properties Memoers	
CRM	Data Collection Screen	
Support Center	Data to collect Main Greeting (displayed during open hours) Account Number (Required)	
Outbound Setup	number.	
Campaigns		
Broadcast		
Integration		
Status Codes	Open hour schedule	
Transaction	Open hour schedule Monday From ne-ron To 2,4-00 Alternative Greeting (displayed during closed hours)	
Codes	We are currently closed in lease contact us during our	
Outbound Phone Codes	Tuesday From 08:00 To 24:00 v Wednesday From 08:00 To 24:00 v	
Wallboard	Thursday From 08:00 To 24:00 To 24:00 To	
Chat design	Friday From 03:00 To 24:00 To	
	Saturday From Discours to 124.00 V	
	Sunday From 08:00 V To 18:00 V	
		ļ
	Save Cancel	

4. (Optional) Click **Data to collect** to select a field from the CRM customer data.

You can allow a chat request to enter the queue without collecting any customer data.

- 5. (Optional) Type your **Main Greeting** to welcome customers. You can also add a question to collect the desired CRM data.
- 6. Enable **Open hour schedule** to specify a custom schedule and process chat interactions.
- 7. Enter an **Alternative Greeting** for the closed business hours. Alternative greetings do not apply to businesses that operate 24/7.

The following table summarizes the options under **Queues/Skills > Chat > ICR**:

ICR Tab Option	Description
Data to Collect	Choose the CRM data 8x8 Contact Center prompts the user to submit before originating a new chat interaction. Choosing an entry enables the Main Greeting text entry area.
Main Greeting	To enable the Main Greeting text entry area, select a value for Data to Collect. In the Main Greeting, type a greeting message sent by 8x8 Contact Center at the start of a new chat interaction. By default, 8x8 Contact Center responds to a new chat interaction with the contents of the Main Greeting text entry area during both open and closed hours. To enable 8x8 Contact Center to respond with an alternative greeting during closed hours of operation, select Open Hour Schedule,

ICR Tab Option	Description
	described later in this table.
Open Hour Schedule	If enabled, both scheduling and Alternative Greeting are activated. Choose the hours of operation for the chat queue. 8x8 Contact Center responds to new chat interactions with the greeting from the Main Greeting text entry area during open hours, and from the Alternative Greeting area during closed hours.
Alternative Greeting	To enable Alternative Greeting, you must enable Open Hour Schedule. In Alternative Greeting, type a greeting message sent by 8x8 Contact Center in response to a new chat interaction received during closed hours.

Set up chat queue message priority

8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up custom priority for interactions in the queue based on the conditions they define. If an interaction meets the condition, it takes a higher or a lower priority than the default priority of the queue. To take advantage of this feature, you must use the Local CRM. Go to the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to customize how the selected queue prioritizes specific types of interactions.

For example, AcmeJets has a support chat queue with a default priority set to 6.

This queue handles support inquiries from all customers. To better serve its premium customers before others, AcmeJets can define a higher interaction priority for interactions from premium customers by setting a condition to determine the customer type. When an interaction meets the condition, the interaction priority overrides the default priority of the queue, allowing agents to serve the premium customers faster.

To define custom priority for interactions:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the chat queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Interactions tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Chat »	Interactions			Ū
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM	Support Chat < Back to queue list Properties Members ICR Set default interaction priority within the queue	Interactions SLA	Email		
Support Center	Interaction Rule List	50 A 51 52			> Filter Interaction Rule List
Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Add Interaction Rule: Online Condition	333 54 55 56 57 58 59 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 64 65 66 67 77 78 *	No items to show	Priority	@ Configure Sort 🧭 Clear All Sort Enabled
			Save Cancel		

4. Select a value for Set Default Interaction Priority within the Queue.

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Chat > Interaction:

8x8

Interactions Tab Option	Description
Set default interaction priority within the queue	To customize the priority for specific types of interactions within this queue, choose a non-default priority level, then in the condition area, specify the conditions that receive the non-default priority. In the list, 1 equals the lowest default interaction priority, and 100 equals the highest interaction priority.
Add Interaction Rule	Click \bigoplus to create an interaction priority rule.
If the value of the field	Choose a Local CRM field to enable the options available in the equals list such as Case: Priority. For details, refer to Configure CRM Fields.
equals	The values in this field varies based on what field you choose for Local CRM. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
Set interaction priority to	Choose a priority level for the interaction from 1 (lowest) to 100 (highest).
Enable priority routing rule	Select to enable the routing rule in your 8x8 Contact Center.

- 5. Define an interaction rule to specify a matching condition.
 - a. Click or Interaction Rule.
 - b. Select a CRM field for If value of the field, such as Case: Priority.
 - c. Select a value for **equals**. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
 - d. Choose a value for Set interaction priority to from 1 to 100.

This number sets the priority of the interactions that match the rule. For example, a platinum support customer gets a high priority, such as 90.

- e. Select the Enable priority routing rule check box to activate the rule.
- f. Click Add this Rule.

The interaction rule appears in the list.

- 6. Repeat the above procedure to add more rules.
- 7. Click Save.

Define chat queue SLA

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) of an 8x8 Contact Center queue defines the target performance metrics of the queue. It includes the percentage of interactions processed within a specified time interval. You can set a target service level for each queue via 8x8 Configuration Manager, and periodically evaluate the service level. You can also set up an alert notification to show if the service level falls below the specified threshold.

To define Service Level Agreement for a chat queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the chat queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the SLA tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Chat » SLA	(j)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Support Chat < Back to queue list Properties Members ICR Interactions SLA Email	
CRM	Target Service Level - in a queue	
Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns	80 % of interactions should be processed within 10 minutes Evaluate service level every 30 minutes Send email notification to	
Broadcast	Target Service Level - during an interaction	
Integration Status Codes	Send an agent alert if customer has been waiting for a reply more than 10 second • Save Cancel	
Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes		
Wallboard Chat design		

The following table summarizes the options under **Queues/Skills > Chat > SLA**: You can also choose to alert an agent if a customer has been waiting for a reply in chat for a certain amount of time.

SLA Tab Option	Description
% of interactions	To specify the Service Level Agreement (SLA) threshold for the selected queue:
should be	1. Type a percentage value as an integer from 0 to 100 percent, such as 40.
processed within	2. Type an integer number to indicate the time interval.
within	3. Choose the units of time specified by this value.

SLA Tab Option	Description
	The valid time intervals are:
	 For Phone and Chat queues: Seconds, Minutes, or Hours
	 For Email and Voicemail queues: Minutes or Hours
Evaluate service level every	Choose how frequently 8x8 Contact Center compares the queue's performance to the SLA threshold defined for the queue.
Send email notification to	Type one or more comma-separated email addresses that should receive email notifications from 8x8 Contact Center. The email is sent when the queue's performance level falls below the performance threshold specified for the queue.

Configure chat queue email fallback

Stagnating chat requests in a queue for too long is not desirable to customers. If an 8x8 Contact Center chat request has been waiting in the queue for too long, as a fallback option, you can offer to send it as an email rather than continue waiting for a chat agent.

in 8x8 Configuration Manager, admins can:

- Enable email fallback for a chat queue.
- Specify a duration after which to offer the waiting chat requests the option to send an email.
- Select a message prompting for email, and a message confirming the sent mail.
- Specify after-hours email settings.

To configure email fallback for a chat queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the chat queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Email tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » E	dit Chat » Email	(j)
Agent Groups			
Agents	Support Chat		
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list		
Channels			
Scripts	Properties Members	ICR Interactions SLA Email	
CRM			
Support		Z Enable Email	
Center	Offer Email after	1 minute	
Outbound Setup	Email Prompt Msg	No agents are currently available. Would you like to send a	
-	Email Sent Msg	Thank you; your email has been sent.	
Campaigns	* Send Email to Channel	v	
Broadcast		Z Force email after office hours	
Integration		☑ Enable survey when forcing after office hours email	
Status Codes	Forced email header message	Your chat could not be serviced at this time since you reach	
Transaction		Save	
Codes		Save Cancer	
Outbound Phone Codes			
Wallboard			
Chat design			

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Chat > Email:

Email Tab Option	Description
Enable Email	If selected, 8x8 Contact Center offers the option of sending an email message for the overflow chat interactions instead of waiting.
Offer Email after	Select a time period from the menu to indicate how long a chat interaction must wait in the chat queue before being offered the option of sending an email.
Email Prompt Msg	Type the question 8x8 Contact Center asks the users when offering the overflow chat interactions the option of sending email. For example: "All our agents are busy. Would you like to send an email?"
Email Sent Msg	Type the confirmation message sent by 8x8 Contact Center after receiving an email message from an overflow chat interaction. For example: "Thank you; your email has been sent."
Send Email to Channel	Select the destination email channel to send messages sent from an overflow chat interaction.
Force email after office hours	Select to automatically direct the user to send an email message whenever the chat queue is closed for business. For details on configuring chat queue hours of operation, refer to Configure Chat Queue Greetings via ICR.
Enable survey when forcing after office hours email	This option is enabled only if you select Force email after office hour first. If enabled, the overflow chat interaction is offered the opportunity to complete a customer chat survey. This requires the chat survey to be set up in the Support Center. For details on setting up chat survey in the Support Center, refer to Summary of Support Center Properties Tab Options.
Force email header message	This option is enabled only if you select Force email after office hour first. Type the header of the email messages you want to send. For example: "A chat interaction could not be serviced because it was received during the closed hours."

With this step, the chat queue configuration is complete.

Create email queues

8x8 Contact Center supports email media allowing agents to process email interactions in a timely manner similar to processing phone calls. Emails directed to a specified email address of your contact center enter an email queue. In turn, the queue offers these interactions to its members based on their skill set and availability. You can set up any email address to serve as your email channel.

Configuring an email queue in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- Defining email queue properties
- Assigning email queue members
- Setting up email queue message priority
- Defining email queue SLA

Define email queue properties

8x8 Contact Center administrators define an email queue with the primary properties, such as queue name, default priority, email processing timeout, and more. The Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager under Queues/Skills > Email allows administrators to define these properties.

To define email queue properties:

1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.

2. Click or **Email**.

Enter the desired properties in the Properties tab.
 The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Email > Properties:

Properties Tab Option	Description
Queue Type	Read-only reminder of the type of queue.
Queue Name	Enter a name for the queue.
Default Priority	 Choose the priority for this queue, where 1 specifies the lowest priority and 10 specifies the highest priority. This defines the priority for interactions of all media. By default, 8x8 Contact Center prioritizes the queues as follows: Phone queue = 8 (highest default priority) Chat queue = 6 Voicemail queue = 4 Email queue = 2 (lowest default priority) Based on your business needs, you can assign the desired priority for each queue.
Email	Choose how long 8x8 Contact Center must wait before assigning a new interaction from the queue
Processing Timeout	to an agent who has just completed an interaction. The post-processing timeout enables agents servicing the selected queue to perform any

Properties Tab Option	Description
	necessary post-interaction tasks before receiving a new interaction. Choose Manual to enable agents assigned to this queue to use their 8x8 Agent Console to explicitly make themselves available for new interactions. When there are multiple agents available with the same queue and skill level assignment waiting to receive the next interaction, 8x8 Contact Center routes the call to the agent who has been idle the longest. For details, see our content on how to reset idle timer for agents.
Queue Signature	Type the default signature appended to all email responses sent by an agent in response to an email interaction.

Home Security	Wallboard » Edit Wallboard - AcmeJets Sales » URL	()
Agent Groups		
Agents	< Back to Wallboard list	
Queues/Skills	General Fields Thresholds Queues URL	
Channels		
Scripts	URL https://vcc-vm4b.8x8.com/CM/run_wallboard.php?wallboard_id=18access_token=6D5F76BE2ABF494FE053254A140AA1B1&tenant=vcctechpubs	
CRM		
Support Center	Revoke and Recreate Share	
Outbound Setup	Share wallboard: AcmeJets Sales $ imes$	
Campaigns	alex.marcy@acmejets.com	
Broadcast	E-mails	
Integration	URL https://vcc-vm4b.8x8.com/CM/run_wallboard_php?wallboard_id=1&	
Status Codes	Unc impair and the contract of	
Transaction Codes	Send Cancel	
Outbound Phone Codes		
Wallboard		
Chat design		

After you define the queue properties, you are ready to assign members to the queue.

Assign email queue members

When 8x8 Contact Center administrators assign members to an email queue, they allow the members to receive emails that enter the queue. The queue uses skill-based routing to route the emails based on the agent's skill set. An agent with a higher skill level receives an interaction before an agent with a lower skill level does.

Go to Queues/Skills > Email > Members in 8x8 Configuration Manager to add, modify, or remove agents.

To assign members to an email queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the email queue you wish to assign members to, and click
- 3. Go to the **Members** tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » [Edit Email » Members				(i)
Agent Groups						
	Support Email					
Queues/Skills	< Back to gueue list					
Channels		1				
	Properties Members	Interactions SLA				
	Agent List				>	Filter Agent List
Support Center	Assign All Enable Al		<	< 1 v > >> 20 reco	rds ෯ Configure Sort	🧭 Clear All Sort
Dutbound	First name	Last name	Username	Skill level (click to change)	Agents assig	Agents enabl
	Casey	Kilborn	Casey	80 - High	▼ 🛃	
ampaigns	Corrin	Alvarez	Corrin	10 20 - Low		
	Kaoru	Minami	Kaoru	30		
	Robin	Shasta	Robin	40 50 - Medium		
tatus Codes	Sasha	Solovey	Sasha	60 70		<
ransaction Codes	Zufi	Singh	Zufi	70 80 - High		
Outbound				90 100		
Vallboard						
		Enabled will be reset to High and false resp not be subscribed to the queue, since they !		es and add follow-ups. Please set CRM access rights	first and then subscribe	
			Save	Cancel		

4. Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue.

OR

Select Agents assigned to choose the desired agents only.

5. Click the Skill level for the agent serving the queue.

The skill level can be selected from 10 to 100 (lowest to highest).

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Email > Members:

Members Tab Option	Description
Assign All	Assigns all existing agents to this queue.
Enable All	To activate routing of interactions from this queue to all agents assigned to the queue.
Agents	 For the selected queue, in the list of agents: Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue. Select an individual agent to add that agent to the queue.
Skill Level	Indicates the skill level of the agent for that queue. The skill level determines the routing of interactions within a queue. 8x8 Contact Center attempts to direct interactions to an agent with a higher skill level before directing them to an agent with a lower skill level. Skill levels are now indicated by ten numerical values ranging from 10 to 100 with an increment of 10, with 10 being the lowest value and 100 being the highest. Assign the agent's skill level from the drop-down menu of options.
Agents Assigned	Assigns the selected agents to this queue.
Agents Enabled	Activates routing of interactions from this queue to selected agents assigned to the queue. You can assign but temporarily disable an agent.

6. Select Agents enabled or Enable All to activate routing of interactions from this queue to the selected agents.

7. Click Save.

Set up email queue message priority

8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up custom priority for interactions in the queue based on the conditions they define. If an interaction meets the condition, it takes a higher or a lower priority than the default priority of the queue. To take advantage of this feature, you must use the Local CRM. Go to the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to customize how the selected queue prioritizes specific types of interactions.

For example, AcmeJets has an email support queue with a default priority set to 2.

This queue handles support inquiries from all customers. To better serve its premium customers before others, AcmeJets can define a higher interaction priority for interactions from premium customers by setting a condition to determine the customer type. When an interaction meets the condition, the interaction priority overrides the default priority of the queue, allowing agents to serve the premium customers faster.

To define custom priority for interactions:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the email queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Interactions tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Email »	Interactions	0
Agent Groups			
Agents	Support Email		
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to queue list		
Scripts	Properties Members Interactions	SLA	
CRM	Set default interaction priority within the queue	50 🔻 1=Low 100=High	
Support Center	Interaction Rule List	50 × 51 52	> Filter Interaction Rule List
Outbound Setup	Add Interaction Rule:	53 54	🍪 Configure Sort 🤯 Clear All Sort
Campaigns	Condition	55 Prior	rity Enabled
Broadcast		57 No items to show	
Integration		58	
		60 61	
Transaction Codes		62 63	
Outbound		64 65	
Phone Codes		66	
Wallboard		67 68	
Chat design			
		Save Cancel	

Select a value for Set Default Interaction Priority within the Queue.
 The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Outbound Phone > Interactions:

Interactions Tab Option	Description
Set default	To customize the priority for specific types of interactions within this queue, choose a
interaction priority	non-default priority level, then in the condition area, specify the conditions that receive
within the queue	the non-default priority.
	In the list, 1 equals the lowest default interaction priority, and 100 equals the highest
	interaction priority.
Add Interaction Rule	Click \bigoplus to create an interaction priority rule.
If the value of the	Choose a Local CRM field to enable the options available in the equals list such as Case:
field	Priority.
	For details, refer to Configure CRM Fields.
equals	The values in this field varies based on what field you choose for Local CRM. For
	example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
Set interaction	Choose a priority level for the interaction from 1 (lowest) to 100 (highest).
priority to	
Enable priority	Select to enable the routing rule in your 8x8 Contact Center.
routing rule	

- 5. Define an interaction rule to specify a matching condition.
 - a. Click or Interaction Rule.
 - b. Select a CRM field for If value of the field, such as Case: Priority.
 - c. Select a value for **equals**. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
 - d. Choose a value for Set interaction priority to from 1 to 100.

This number sets the priority of the interactions that match the rule. For example, a platinum support customer gets a high priority, such as 90.

- e. Select the Enable priority routing rule check box to activate the rule.
- f. Click Add this Rule.

The interaction rule appears in the list.

- 6. Repeat the above procedure to add more rules.
- 7. Click Save.

Define email queue SLA

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) of an 8x8 Contact Center queue defines the target performance metrics of the queue. It includes the percentage of interactions processed within a specified time interval. You can set a target service level for each queue via 8x8 Configuration Manager, and periodically evaluate the service level. You can also set up an alert notification to show if the service level falls below the specified threshold.

To define SLA for an email queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the email queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the SLA tab.

lome ecurity	Queues/Skills » Edit Email » SLA		
Security Agent Groups			
gents	Support Email		
ueues/Skills	< Back to queue list		
nannels rripts	Properties Members Interactions SLA		
RM	Target Service Level - in a queue		
Support	80 % of interactions should be processed within	10 minutes	•
Center Outbound	Evaluate service level every	30 minutes	-
utoouna etup	Send email notification to		
ampaigns	Note: Multiple email addresses can be entered in Send email notification to s	eparated by comma (',') or semi-colon (';') .	
Broadcast		Save Can	ncel
itegration			
Status Codes			
Transaction Codes			
Outbound Phone Codes			
Wallboard			
Chat design			

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Email > SLA:

SLA Tab Option	Description
% of interactions should be	To specify the Service Level Agreement (SLA) threshold for the selected queue: 1. Type a percentage value as an integer from 0 to 100 percent, such as 40.
processed within	 Type an integer number to indicate the time interval. Choose the units of time specified by this value. The valid time intervals are:

SLA Tab Option	Description					
	 For Phone and Chat queues: Seconds, Minutes, or Hours For Email and Voicemail queues: Minutes or Hours 					
Evaluate service level every	Choose how frequently 8x8 Contact Center compares the queue's performance to the SLA threshold defined for the queue.					
Send email notification to	Type one or more comma-separated email addresses that should receive email notifications from 8x8 Contact Center. The email is sent when the queue's performance level falls below the performance threshold specified for the queue.					

With this step, the queue configuration is complete.

Create voicemail queues

8x8 Contact Center supports processing voicemails similar to phone calls. Voicemails left for 8x8 Contact Center are directed to a voicemail queue. In turn, the queue offers voicemails to agents based on their skill set and availability.

Configuring a Voicemail queue in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- Defining voicemail queue properties
- Assigning voicemail queue members
- Configuring voicemail delivery message
- Setting up voicemail queue message priority
- Defining voicemail queue SLA
- Configuring voicemail notification

Define voicemail queue properties

8x8 Contact Center administrators define a voicemail queue by specifying the primary properties such as queue name, default priority, post-processing timeout, and more. The Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager under Queues/Skills > Voice Mail allows administrators to specify the primary properties of the voicemail queue.

To define voicemail queue properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Click or Voice Mail.
- 3. Enter the desired properties in the Properties tab.

Home	0 /01.111		<u> </u>			
	Queues/Skills	Add Voice Mail »	Propert	ties		(i)
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list					
	Properties Member	s IVR Interactions	SLA	Notification		
	Queue type	Voice Mail				
Support	 Queue name 	Support Voicemail				
Center	Default priority	4 💌	1=Low 10=Hi	gh		
	Post-processing timeout	5 seconds 🔹 🔻				
Setup						
Campaigns				Save	Cancel	

Properties Tab option	Description
Queue type	Read-only reminder of the type of queue.
Queue name	Enter a name for the queue.
Default Priority	 Choose the priority for this queue, where 1 specifies the lowest priority and 10 specifies the highest priority. This defines the priority for interactions of all media. By default, 8x8 Contact Center prioritizes the queues as follows: Phone queue = 8 (highest default priority) Chat queue = 6

Properties Tab option	Description
	 Voicemail queue = 4 Email queue = 2 (lowest default priority)
	Based on your business needs, you can assign the desired priority for each queue.
Post-	Choose how long 8x8 Contact Center must wait before assigning a new interaction from the queue
Processing	to an agent who has just completed an interaction.
Timeout	The post-processing timeout enables agents servicing the selected queue to perform any
	necessary post-interaction tasks before receiving a new interaction. Choose Manual to enable
	agents assigned to this queue to use their 8x8 Agent Console to explicitly make themselves
	available for new interactions. When there are multiple agents available with the same queue and
	skill level assignment waiting to receive the next interaction, 8x8 Contact Center routes the call to
	the agent who has been idle the longest. For details, see our content on how to reset idle timer for
	agents.

After you define the queue properties, you are ready to assign members to the queue.

Assign voicemail queue members

When 8x8 Contact Center administrators assign members to a voicemail queue, they allow them to process voicemail interactions that enter the queue. The queue uses skill-based routing to route the voicemail based on the agent's skill set. An agent with a higher skill level receives an interaction before an agent with a lower skill level does.

Go to Queues/Skills > Voice Mail > Members in 8x8 Configuration Manager to add, modify, or remove agents.

To assign members to a voicemail queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the voicemail queue you wish to assign members to, and click
- 3. Go to the **Members** tab.

	Queues/Skills » E	dit Voice Mail » Me	embers			(j)
Agent Groups						
Agents	Support Voicemail					
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list					
Channels		1				
	Properties Members	IVR Interactions	SLA Notification			
	Agent List				> F	ilter Agent List
Support Center	Assign All Enable All			<< < 1 v > >> 20 record	s 🚳 Configure Sort 🍃	Clear All Sort
	First name	Last name	Username	Skill level (click to change)	Agents assig	Agents enabl
Setup	Casey	Kilborn	Casey	80 - High	▼ 2	
Campaigns	Corrin	Alvarez	Corrin	10 20 - Low		
Broadcast	Kaoru	Minami	Kaoru	30		
	Robin	Shasta	Robin	40 50 - Medium		
	Sasha	Solovey	Sasha	60		~
	Zufi	Singh	Zufi	70 80 - High		
Codes		5		90	_	-
Outbound Phone Codes				100		
Wallboard						
		Enabled will be reset to High and false not be subscribed to the queue, since t		cases and add follow-ups. Please set CRM access rights fin	st and then subscribe	
			Save	Cancel		

4. Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue.

OR

Select Agents assigned to choose the desired agents only.

5. Click the Skill level for the agent serving the queue.

The skill level can be selected from 10 to 100 (lowest to highest).

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Voicemail > Members:

Members Tab Option	Description
Assign All	Assigns all existing agents to this queue.
Enable All	To activate routing of interactions from this queue to all agents assigned to the queue.
Agents	 For the selected queue, in the list of agents: Select Assign All to assign all agents to the queue. Select an individual agent to add that agent to the queue.
Skill Level	Indicates the skill level of the agent for that queue. The skill level determines the routing of interactions within a queue. 8x8 Contact Center attempts to direct interactions to an agent with a higher skill level before directing them to an agent with a lower skill level. Skill levels are now indicated by ten numerical values ranging from 10 to 100 with an increment of 10, with 10 being the lowest value and 100 being the highest. Assign the agent's skill level from the drop-down menu of options.
Agents Assigned	Assigns the selected agents to this queue.
Agents Enabled	Activates routing of interactions from this queue to selected agents assigned to the queue. You can assign but temporarily disable an agent.

6. Select Agents enabled or Enable All to activate routing of interactions from this queue to the selected agents.

7. Click Save.

Configure voicemail delivery message

When an 8x8 Contact Center agent accepts a voicemail interaction, a voicemail delivery message is played to inform the agent that a voicemail message is being offered. With the default setting, a prompt is offered to the agent to press 1 to receive the voicemail as an email attachment, or hang up to delete the voicemail. However, you can upload a custom voicemail delivery message and configure it to suit your contact center's needs. You can also configure to email the voicemail to one or multiple email addresses using 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To define interactive voicemail in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the voicemail queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the IVR tab.

Home	Queues/Skills » Edit Voice Mail » IVR	í
	Support Voicemail	
Queues/Skills	< Back to queue list	
Channels		
	Properties Members IVR Interactions SLA Notification	
	Voice Mail Configuration	
	Voice Mail Delivery Message (Played to Agent) Press 1 to Receive Voice Volce Volce Delay Audio	
Center	Delete Voice Mail On hang up	
Outbound Setup	Email Configuration	
Campaigns	Send Voice Mail by E-mail On request	
Broadcast	🖻 to agent email address	
Integration	to the following email address(es)	
Transaction Codes	Note: Multiple email addresses can be entered separated by comme (;) or semi-colon (;). Save Cancel	
Outbound Phone Codes		

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Voicemail > IVR:

IVR Tab Option	Description
Voice Mail	Select a message to be played by 8x8 Contact Center to inform the agent of a voicemail
Delivery	message waiting in the queue.
Message	
(Played to	
Agent)	

IVR Tab Option	Description
Upload Custom	Click Upload Custom to upload a custom voicemail delivery message.
Play Audio	Click Play Audio to play the currently selected voicemail delivery message.
Delete Voice Mail	 To enable Delete Voice Mail, you must upload a custom voicemail delivery message first. Select On hang up to delete a queued voicemail message after the agent hangs up. Select On agent confirmation to delete a queued voicemail message after the agent presses the telephone's * key.
Send Voice Mail by E-mail	 To enable Send Voice Mail by Email, you must upload a custom voicemail delivery message first. You can enter the agent's email address, or send it to more than one email by entering multiple addresses separated by comma (,) or semicolon (;). Select Never to never send a queued voicemail message to an agent as an email attachment. Select On request to enable an agent to request that 8x8 Contact Center send a queued voicemail message as an email attachment. Select Always to always send a queued voicemail message to an agent as an email attachment.

Set up voicemail queue message priority

8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up custom priority for interactions in the queue based on the conditions they define. If an interaction meets the condition, it takes a higher or a lower priority than the default priority of the queue. To take advantage of this feature, you must use the Local CRM. Go to the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to customize how the selected queue prioritizes specific types of interactions.

For example, AcmeJets has a support voicemail queue with a default priority set to 50.

This queue handles support inquiries from all customers. To better serve its premium customers before others, AcmeJets can define a higher interaction priority for interactions from premium customers by setting a condition to determine the customer type. When an interaction meets the condition, the interaction priority overrides the default priority of the queue, allowing agents to serve the premium customers faster.

To define custom priority for interactions:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the voicemail queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Interactions tab.

Home Security	Queues/Skills » Edit Email » Interactio	ons				⁽)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Support Email < Back to queue list Properties Members Interactions SLA					
CRM	Set default interaction priority within the queue 50 💌 1=Low 1	00=High				
Support Center	Interaction Rule List				>	Filter Interaction Rule List
Outbound Setup	Add Interaction Rule: H Interaction Rule					ure Sort 🤯 Clear All Sort
Campaigns	Condition			Priority	Enabled	
Broadcast	If value of the field Priority equals High			90	yes	1 1
Integration	If value of the field Priority equals Medium			60	yes	1 団
	If value of the field Priority equals Low			30	yes	1 団
Transaction Codes						
Outbound Phone Codes						
Wallboard						
Chat design						
		Save	Cancel			

4. Select a value for **Set Default Interaction Priority within the Queue**.

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Voicemail > Interactions:

Interactions Tab Option	Description
Set default interaction priority within the queue	To customize the priority for specific types of interactions within this queue, choose a non-default priority level, then in the condition area, specify the conditions that receive the non-default priority. In the list, 1 equals the lowest default interaction priority, and 100 equals the highest interaction priority.
Add Interaction Rule	Click \bigoplus to create an interaction priority rule.
If the value of the field	Choose a Local CRM field to enable the options available in the equals list such as Case: Priority. For details, refer to Configure CRM Fields.
equals	The values in this field varies based on what field you choose for Local CRM. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
Set interaction priority to	Choose a priority level for the interaction from 1 (lowest) to 100 (highest).
Enable priority routing rule	Select to enable the routing rule in your 8x8 Contact Center.

- 5. Define an interaction rule to specify a matching condition.
 - a. Click or Interaction Rule.
 - b. Select a CRM field for If value of the field, such as Case: Priority.
 - c. Select a value for **equals**. For example, for Case: Priority in the CRM field, you can choose Low, Medium, or High.
 - d. Choose a value for Set interaction priority to from 1 to 100.

This number sets the priority of the interactions that match the rule. For example, a platinum support customer gets a high priority, such as 90.

- e. Select the Enable priority routing rule check box to activate the rule.
- f. Click Add this Rule.

The interaction rule appears in the list.

- 6. Repeat the above procedure to add more rules.
- 7. Click Save.

Define voicemail queue SLA

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) of an 8x8 Contact Center queue defines the target performance metrics of the queue. It includes the percentage of interactions processed within a specified time interval. You can set a target service level for each queue via 8x8 Configuration Manager, and periodically evaluate the service level. You can also set up an alert notification to show if the service level falls below the specified threshold.

To define Service Level Agreement for a voicemail queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the voicemail queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the SLA tab.
- 4. Enter values for SLA.

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Voicemail > SLA:

SLA Tab Option	Description
% of interactions should be processed within	 To specify the Service Level Agreement (SLA) threshold for the selected queue: 1. Type a percentage value as an integer from 0 to 100 percent, such as 40. 2. Type an integer number to indicate the time interval. 3. Choose the units of time specified by this value. The valid time intervals are: For Phone and Chat queues: Seconds, Minutes, or Hours For Email and Voicemail queues: Minutes or Hours
Evaluate service level every	Choose how frequently 8x8 Contact Center compares the queue's performance to the SLA threshold defined for the queue.
Send email notification to	Type one or more comma-separated email addresses that should receive email notifications from 8x8 Contact Center. The email is sent when the queue's performance level falls below the performance threshold specified for the queue.

5. Click Save.

Configure voicemail notification

By default, 8x8 Contact Center voicemails are sent to the queues and offered to the next available agent. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can configure voicemail to be sent as WAV file attachments directly to an email address. With this setup, agents do not have to retrieve voicemails from a queue. Or, you can configure voicemail in 8x8 Configuration Manager to be automatically removed from a queue. An email notification for a voicemail is generated as a result of:

- Voicemail Queue Notification: When a caller leaves a voicemail via a voicemail queue, an email notification is sent to the email address configured for the voicemail queue.
- IVR Settings for Voicemail: A voicemail being sent to an agent from the voicemail queue. The agent requests an email to be sent to the agent.
- Transferring to Agent Voicemail: A voicemail being sent to an agent after the caller calls and leaves a voicemail in the agent's voice box.

The voicemail email notification provides the transaction ID, allowing you to track the queued voicemails better. Additionally, you can retrieve the following information from a voicemail notification sent by email:

- Tenant name
- Cluster ID
- Phone queue ID
- Voicemail queue ID
- Calling name
- Interaction GUID of the inbound phone queue
- Transaction ID of the inbound phone interaction
- Voicemail begin offset
- Filename
- Agent name

Voicemail retrieval delay

no-reply@8x8.com			C 1:24 PM (35 minutes a
Channel Script Queue VM Queue Agent	cmy tenant label>/ <my name="" tenant="">/<cluster id=""> cstannel name>/<schannel number=""> < sscript name>/<script id=""> cqueue name>/<queue id> <my queue name>/<queue id> <last, first name>/<agent username> < agent email address></th><th>The information captured in a voicemail email notification</th><th></th></tr><tr><td>Calling Name</td><td><pre><CNAM></pre></td><td></td><td></td></tr><tr><td>Calling Line ID</td><td>: <CLID (in E.164 fmt when applicable)></td><td></td><td></td></tr><tr><td>Contact Name</td><td>e: <show this row only if available></td><td></td><td></td></tr><tr><td>Interaction Arrival Time Transaction Id Voicemail Begin Offset Voicemail Duration Voicemail Retrival Delay</td><td>t: <xxx> seconds t: <yyy> seconds</td><td></td><td></td></tr></tbody></table></script></schannel></cluster></my>		

To configure voicemail notification:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Queues/Skills.
- 2. Find the voicemail queue you wish to modify, and click
- 3. Go to the Notification tab.
- 4. Select Enabled to enable the notification.
- 5. Specify the **Email Address(es)** to which voicemail attachments must be sent.

The following table summarizes the options under Queues/Skills > Voicemail > Notification:

Notification Tab Option	Description
Enabled	To enable voicemail notification sent by email regardless of the agent status.
Email Addresses	To send voicemail in an email attachment to the specified email addresses.
Delete from	If enabled, it automatically removes the voicemail from the queue after sending an email attachment.

Notification Tab Option	Description
Queue	If disabled, it sends a voicemail to the specified email address and forwards it to the voicemail queue. When the agent logs in to 8x8 Agent Console, the voicemail is presented in the queue.

6. Check **Delete from queue** to delete the voicemail from the voicemail queue after sending the email attachments.

7. Click Save.

With this step, the configuration of a voicemail queue is complete.

Create and configure channels

An 8x8 Contact Center channel facilitates communication of interactions in and out of a 8x8 Contact Center tenant. When an interaction comes to the channel via phone, email, chat, or social media, it is directed to the appropriate queues via skill-based routing rules. For example, a phone channel directs inbound phone calls from customers to contact center agents, or an email channel is an email address that your customers use to send email requests to the contact center.

8x8 Contact Center supports interactions of all media via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- Phone: Process inbound and outbound phone interactions using the phone channels. A phone channel is automatically crated when a number is ordered for the tenant through provisioning
- **Email**: Process inbound and outbound email interactions using the email channels. Email channels are created by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in 8x8 Contact Center.
- Chat: Process incoming chat requests using the chat channels and direct chat requests from customers to contact center agents. Chat channels are created by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in 8x8 Contact Center.
- Social: Process incoming chat requests from Facebook and Twitter and allow agents to accept and handle chat requests from social media. Social channels are created by the 8x8 Contact Center administrator in 8x8 Contact Center.
- SMS: Process messages routed via SMS channels and chat queues to agents, and offered to them as chat interactions for responses. Agents look up customer records from an existing customer. They can look up outstanding cases and history of interactions to handle the conversation effectively.
- Chat API: Connect directly to an agent from your own system such as enabling your clients to communicate with an agent from mobile app-based chat, Desktop web chatbots, and messaging via integrations with other apps or platforms. See our content on chat workflow for developers.

Features

- Facilitate communication of interactions in and out of a 8x8 Contact Center tenant.
- Interact directly with the appropriate queues via skill-based routing rules.
- Create automatic phone channels through provisioning with every new order of telephone numbers.
- Configure existing phone numbers and email addresses to function as 8x8 Contact Center channels.
- Direct messages received in Facebook and Twitter to the chat channels in 8x8 Contact Center.
- Create, edit, and delete email, chat, and social channels, while the phone channels can only be edited.

Creating channels involves:

- Setting up phone channels
- Setting up email channels
- Setting up chat channels
- Setting up social channels
- Setting up SMS channels
- Assigning scripts to channels



Note: You can add email and chat channels from 8x8 Configuration Manager, but not any phone channels.

Set up phone channels

An 8x8 Contact Center phone channel processes inbound phone interactions in an 8x8 Contact Center tenant via Service Channels. A **Service channel** is a regular phone channel associated with a telephone number. It is automatically created when a number is ordered for the tenant through provisioning. You can edit a service channel, and enable or disable it in 8x8 Configuration Manager. An IVR script is linked to the service channel by default.

Phone channels in the 8x8 Contact Center define phone numbers that your customers use to call your contact center.

Home Security	Chann	nels » Chann	nel list							(j
	Phone	Chat I	Email	Social						
Queues/Skills Channels	Channe	el list							>	Filter Channel list
Scripts						<< <	1 🔻 > >>	20 records	🕸 Configure Sort	🥳 Clear All Sort
	Status	Channel Name	Type	Linked to agent	Calling Name Di	Public Number ^	Script Name - P	PBX #	Script Name - PB.	
Support	enabled	1-669-247-6245	service			16692476245	Test Script			Ø
Center Outbound Setup	enabled	1-855-547-4746	service	-	-	18555474746	Test Script			Ø
Campaigns										

Service phone channels can only be added or removed from your 8x8 Contact Center tenant by a 8x8 Contact Center representative. The representative coordinates the acquisition and routing of the phone number to the 8x8 platform that hosts your tenant.

Features

- Facilitate inbound phone interactions in a 8x8 Contact Center tenant via Service channels.
- Interact directly with the appropriate phone queues via skill-based routing rules.
- Automatic creation of Service channels with numbers ordered for the tenant through provisioning.
- Ability to edit enable, and disable Service channels via 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- Access to a default IVR script linked to the Service channel.

Setting up a phone channel involves:

- Configuring phone channel properties
- Creating a phone IVR script
- Assigning a script to the phone channel

Configure phone channel properties

Configuring an 8x8 Contact Center phone channel involves:

- Configuring channel properties.
- Creating a phone IVR script.

To configure the properties for a phone channel in 8x8 Configuration Manager, you must specify the channel name, choose a phone format, and select the phone script for the channel. You can define a new script or copy an existing one in the tenant. A script refers to instructions that specify call treatment choices.

Go to **Channels > Phone > Properties** to specify the primary properties of the phone channel. 8x8 Configuration Manager displays a list of Service Channels under Channels > Phone.

To configure phone channel properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the Phone tab.

	Channels » Channel list										0
Agent Groups Agents	Phone	Chat I	Email	Social							
Queues/Skills Channels	Channel list > Filter							Filter Channel list			
						<< <	1 🔻 > >>	20	records	Configure Sort	🧭 Clear All Sort
	Status	Channel Name	Type	Linked to agent	Calling Name Di	Public Number ^	Script Name - P	PBX #		Script Name - PB	
	enabled	1-669-247-6245	service			16692476245	Test Script				Ø
	enabled	1-855-547-4746	service	-	-	18555474746	Test Script				Ø
Outbound Setup											
Campaigns											

- From the list of channels, select a Service phone channel, and click The Properties tab opens.
- 4. Enter or select values for the channel.The following table summarizes the options under Channels > Phone > Properties:

Service Phone Channel Property	Description							
Channel Type	Read-only reminder of the type of channel.							
Number	Read-only reminder of the channel's phone number. 8x8 defines your phone numbers when it provisions your 8x8 Contact Center tenant.							
Calling Name Display	Read-only reminder. Refers to the Calling Name Display (CNAM) that is used when the outbound calls use the associated public number as outgoing Calling Line ID (CLI).							
Channel name	Type the name of this phone channel. Read-only agent name; also represents the channel name that is linked to the agent's public or PBX number. 8x8 Agent Console displays the channel name when the agent receives an incoming phone interaction.							
Display phone format	 Select the phone display format. 8x8 Agent Console uses this format to display the inbound phone numbers: US standard [x-xxx-xxx-xxxx] (the default display mode) US short [xxx-xxx] Australian (6 digits) [xx-xx-xx] Australian (8 digits) [xxxx-xxx] Australian (10 digits) [xx-xxx-xxx] French standard [xx-xx-xx-xx] No format [*] 							
IVR Script	You can select the default IVR script from the drop-down menu or select any existing IVR script in the tenant. Image: Note: for best practice, create an IVR script first, and then configure the channel.							
Link Channel to an agent	Allows you to link this phone channel to an agent. By clicking the link, a list of agents shows up You can select an agent and click Assign to create a personal channel to the agent.							
This channel is enabled	Select to enable this channel for service. Enable a channel only after your contact center is ready to receive interactions on the channel.							
5. Click Save.

Set up email channels

An 8x8 Contact Center email channel defines an email address that your customers use to send email requests to the contact center, such as support@acmejets.com. When you configure an email channel in 8x8 Configuration Manager, you specify the POP3 or IMAP protocols for receiving email or use modern authentication methods like OAuth2 for users of Microsoft.

Features

- Facilitate communication of email interactions in and out of a 8x8 Contact Center tenant.
- Interact directly with the appropriate queues via skill-based routing rules.
- Configure existing email addresses to function as 8x8 Contact Center channels.
- Create, edit, and delete email channels.
- Email channel's script specifies which 8x8 Contact Center queues receive the retrieved messages

Use dedicated contact center email channels

The email accounts used in conjunction with your 8x8 Contact Center must be used only for that purpose. Do not log in or access your contact center's email channel from outside of 8x8 Contact Center.

The email channel's email script specifies which 8x8 Contact Center queues receive those retrieved messages.

Setting up an email channel involves:

- 1. Configuring email channel properties
- 2. Creating an email script
- 3. Assigning a script to the email channel

Configure email channel properties

Configuring an 8x8 Contact Center email channel involves:

- Configuring an email channel properties
- Creating an email script

To configure properties for an email channel go to **Channels > Email > Properties** in 8x8 Configuration Manager. You must enter a channel name, an incoming email address, authentication type, the incoming mail server properties, POP3 or IMAP protocol, user ID and password for the email account, and the email script used for the channel. An email script directs emails entering 8x8 Contact Center to agents via email queues.

For details, see our content about Enhance outgoing email settings for channels and agents via SMTP.

To configure email channel properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the Email tab.

A new column shows the Outgoing Mail Server. You can sort or filter your channels list.

- 3. In the list of email channels, click \bigcirc Add new email channel click \checkmark to edit.
- 4. Enter or select values for the channel.

The following table summarizes the options under **Channels > Email > Properties**:

Email Channel Property	Description
Channel type	Read-only reminder of the type of channel.
Channel name	Type the name of this email channel such as [AcmeJets Email Channel]. 8x8 Agent Console displays the channel name when the agent receives an email.
Email Address	Enter the full email address used by customers to submit interactions to this email channel. Note: When setting up an email channel with Gmail address, you must enter an App password in 8x8 Configuration Manager. Without the App password you will

Email Channel Property	Description
	get an authentication failure.
Email script	If you have more than one email channel, choose another channel's previously defined IVR script. Choose an email script from the drop-down menu. If you do not select any scripts, the default email script is automatically assigned to your email channel.
This Channel is enabled	Select to enable this email channel for service. Enable a channel only after your contact center is ready to receive interactions for this channel.
Incoming Mail	Configuration
Authentication	 Microsoft Exchange: supports OAuth2 authentication for users of Microsoft.
type	• Normal: supports basic authentication for other email channels such as gmail, etc.
Incoming Mail Server	Enter the network address of the mail server such as [imap.gmail.com]. This mail server receives the email messages sent to the address entered for Incoming Email Address.
Protocol	Choose the email protocol supported by the server. The mail protocol valid choices are: POP3, POP3 over SSL
	 IMAP, IMAP over SSL When you choose an email protocol, 8x8 Configuration Manager automatically enters the protocol's default port number under Port.
Port	By default, 8x8 Configuration Manager uses the following default port numbers based on the email protocol you select from the list:
	 110 if you select POP3
	 995 if you select POP3 over SSL
	 143 if you select IMAP
	 993 if you select IMAP over SSL
	You can enter a non-default port number if your email server uses one.
User ID	Enter the username required to retrieve the email address entered for Incoming Mail Server.
Password	Enter the password required to retrieve the email address entered for Incoming Mail Server. For

Email Channel Property	Description					
	email channels with a Gmail address, see how to generate and use App passwords.					
Retype Password	Verify the password required to retrieve the email address entered for Incoming Mail Server.					
Outgoing Mail	Configuration					
Outgoing Mail Server	A user's outgoing mail server is automatically populated with the tenant's default SMTP server. The default server can be either a VCC Internal server or a custom server. You can change the SMTP server. The changes are kept unless a new default server is set.					
	 8x8 Contact Center administrators can configure users outgoing mail servers in three ways: Using the VCC Internal server Using a custom server 					
	 Using a custom server but overriding with the specific account's user name and password (recommended) 					
	If you use the VCC Internal server, you cannot override the server's default configuration, therefore, using the email address of the server. The emails sent by this user originate from the tenant's default address which is not recommended.					
	Whereas a user that is configured to use a custom server configuration, such as [AcmeJets SMTP Server], overrides the default server configuration. The emails sent by this user originate from the address of the new server. By overriding the server's default configuration you make it more specific to the agent.					
Override Server Configuration	This option gives you the ability to direct your emails via the specific email channel address. If not selected, it will direct your emails via the custom SMTP server address.					
	Note: To ensure delivery of emails sent by agents, 8x8 Contact Center recommends admins to use a custom SMTP server and select to override the server configurations. The channel's user name and password is required for this option.					
Password	Enter the password required to retrieve the email address entered for Outgoing Mail Server.					
Retype Password	Verify the password required to retrieve the email address entered for Outgoing Mail Server.					

5. Click Test connection to check the connection with the mail server.

If the connection to the server is successful, a message appears to show the connection to the outgoing mail server is successful.

6. Click Save.

8x8			ය Robin :	Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	Channels » Em	ail » Properties						
Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	AcmeJetsInc@gmail.com C Back to channel list Properties							
CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast	Channel type • Channel Name • Email Address • Email Script	Email Acmelets Email Channel AcmeletsInc@gmail.com Acmelets Email Script This channel is enabled						
Integration	Incoming Mail Configurat	ion	Outgoing Mail Configur	ration				
Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes	* Incoming Mail Server Protocol * Port * User ID * Password	imap.gmail.com IMAP over SSL * 993 AcmeletsInc@gmail.com	Outgoing Mail Server * User ID * Password	Acmejets SMTP Server Override Server Configurati robin.shasta Test connection	▼ ion			
Wallboard Chat design	* Retype Password	Test connection	Save Ca	ancel				

The outgoing email channel is now configured and the emails sent via this channel originate from the configured address in your outgoing mail server. The default outgoing email channel appears under Channel list > Email. In 8x8 Agent Console, when sending an email to the customers, the agent can select this outgoing email channel.

Set up App passwords

For email channels with a Gmail address, you need to set up an App password.

To generate and use App passwords

- 1. Open your browser and Google Account.
- 2. Click Manage your Google Account.
- 3. On the left navigation panel, select Security.
- 4. On the Signing in to Google, select App passwords. If you don't see this option, check one of the following:
 - 2-Step verification is not set up for your account.
 - 2-Step verification is set up for security keys only.
 - Your account is through work, school, or other organization.
 - You have turned on Advanced Protection for your account.

- 5. In the App password window:
 - Click **Select app** and choose the app you are using such as Mail.
 - Click Select device and choose the device you are using such as Windows Computer.
- 6. Click Generate. The App password, the 16-character code is generated.

Generated app password	
	Your app password for Windows Computer
	ubud pbib aknp ajfa
	How to use it
Add your Google account Enter the information below to connect to your Google account. Email address securesally@gmail.com Password Include your Google contacts and calendars	 Open the "Mail" app. Open the "Settings" menu. Select "Accounts" and then select your Google Account. Replace your password with the 16- character password shown above. Just like your normal password, this app password grants complete access to your Google Account. You won't need to remember it, so don't write it down or share it with anyone. Learn more
	DONE

- 7. Follow the instructions to enter the App password.
- 8. Click Done.

Enter the App password as the Gmail account password for your email channel and click **Save** before testing your connection.

8×8				යි Secondar	y Administrator (AcmeJets)	My Profile Co-brow	sing Help Logout
Home	Channels » Ema	ail » Properties					0
Security Agent Groups Agents Oueues/Skills	acmejetsinc@gmail.com						
Channels	< Back to channel list						
Scripts	Properties						
Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration	Channel type * Channel Name * Email Address * Email Script	Email test email acmejetsinc@gmail.com email script default I This channel is enabled	v				
Status Codes	Incoming Mail Configurat	tion		Outgoing Mail Configuration	on		
Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	* Incoming Mail Server Protocol * Port * User ID * Password * Retype Password	imag gmail.com IMAP over SSL 933 acmejetsinc@gmail.com Test connection	v	Outgoing Mail Server		¥	
				Save Cancel			

Support OAuth2 authentication for email channels

The 8x8 Contact Center authenticates email channels via basic authentication, using the simple username and password. Email service providers like Microsoft announced plans to stop supporting basic authentication for Post Office Protocol (POP), Internet Message Access Protocol (IMAP), and potentially for outgoing server setups (SMTP). This requires integrators to migrate their current email client to use modern authentication methods like OAuth2. To prepare for this security improvement, 8x8 Contact Center now supports OAuth2 authentication for users of Microsoft. We continue to support basic authentication for existing users.

Features

- Improved security without compromising the performance on the fetching and processing of emails.
- Ability to change basic authentication to OAuth2 without any impact on the service.
- Ability to switch from OAuth2 to basic authentication if required.

Limitations

- The OAuth2 authentication is not yet implemented for SMTP.
- The OAuth2 authentication is not implemented for shared mailboxes (Microsoft)

Set up OAuth2 authentication for Microsoft Exchange

The OAuth2 authentication requires changes in the email channel configuration via 8x8 Configuration Manager. As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you need to select Microsoft Exchange for the incoming mail server and save.

This new feature does not impact agents. Administrators need to modify the email channels for the existing users to implement this change. 8x8 Contact Center agents will continue to receive emails as before.

To set up OAuth2 authentication for Microsoft Exchange:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Channels > Email.
- 3. In the list of email channels, click Add new email channel.

- 4. Enter a Channel Name.
- 5. If you have a Microsoft Email Address, enter it here.
- 6. For Authentication type, click the drop-down list.
- 7. Select Microsoft Exchange.

8×8								å a01epstenant01	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	Channels » Nev	w email channel » Pro	operties								0
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM	New email channel < Back to channel list Properties	Email									
Broadcast	Channel type Channel Name	Email Microsoft email channel									
Integration	* Email Address	rob.shasta@outlook.com									
Wallboard	* Email Script	email script default	Ŧ								
Chat design	Incoming Mail Configura	ation		Outgoing Mail Configu	ration						
	Authentication type * Account	Microsoft Exchange Normai Microsoft Exchange Test connection	Select Mic Exchange f drop-dr	from the	Default		v				
				Sav	re Ca	ncel					

8. Click Connect.

9. Click Yes to allow the 8x8 app to access your Microsoft email account.





- 10. If connected to your Microsoft account successfully, your email address appears in the **Account** field of 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 11. Click **Save**. Your email channel with OAuth2 authentication is now saved for your tenant without any impact on the service or agents workflow.
- 12. To test if your email account is connected, click **Test connection**. A message shows the connection was successful along with the number of received messages on the server.

8x8				å a01epstenant01	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
l Home Security Agent Groups	Channels » Em	ail » Properties					<u></u>
Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	rob.shasta@outlook.cor < Back to channel list Properties						
CRM Broadcast Integration Wallboard Chat design	Channel type * Channel Name * Email Address * Email Script	Email Microsoft email channel rob.shasta@outlook.com email script default email script default This channel is enabled	Information	×			
	Incoming Mail Configure Authentication type * Account	ation Microsoft Exchange Index hardrid qualitatic come Connection Click Test Connection	The connection to the server "outlook office365.com" as user 'robshasta@outlook.com" was successful. Current number of messages on the server: 2. Ok				
			Save Cancel				

If there is a connection problem, an error message notifies you. Enter the correct email address and try again.

8x8 Home	Channels » Emai	I » Properties		å a01epstenant01	Co-browsing	Help Logo	out
		The following errors were found: • Account : • The logged-in 'Account' is not the sar • Field is required	ne as the channel's 'Email Address'. Are	you sure you want to continue?			
Channels Scripts CRM Broadcast	rob.shasta@outlook.com < Back to channel list Properties						
ntegration Wallboard Chat design	Channel type * Channel Name * Email Address * Email Script	Email Microsoft email channel rob.shast@outlook.com email script default v This channel is enabled					
	Incoming Mail Configuratio	n	Outgoing Mail Configuratio	n			
	Authentication type * Account	Microsoft Exchange		vefault 💌	₽ ₽		
			Save Cancel				



You can edit or delete the email channel from the main email Channel list.

Enhance outgoing email settings for channels and agents via SMTP

As an 8x8 Contact Center agent, when you email customers via email channel, you want to ensure that customers receive the emails without being blocked by your outbound email servers, or the spam filters of the customer's email servers.

To ensure the delivery of emails sent by agents, 8x8 Contact Center now supports an enhanced configuration for outbound mailing systems, only available for custom SMTP servers. This enhancement allows specific configuration for each and every channel or agent, so that emails actually get signed and sent using the individual accounts. When sending out emails, the "From" section in the email header must match the actual address used for sending out that email, which implies using correct accounts and credentials, and the actual sender. When an agent sends an email via a channel, it uses the channel address. When an agent sends an email via their own address, it uses the agent's individual email address.

Prior to this release, emails were sent from a unique address and user account configured on the SMTP server. The email address on the email header did not match the email address used to send the email, causing emails to be blocked by spam filters.

Features

- Prevents the agent's emails from being blocked by the outbound email servers.
- Prevents the agent's emails from going to the customer's spam and junk folder, or being blocked by spoofing filters.
- Uses one or more custom SMTP servers specifically configured for each email channel or agent.
- Uses the channel email address when agents send emails via a channel.
- Uses the agent email address when agents send email via agent's email.

Set up custom SMTP servers and configure email channels

Setting up a custom outgoing SMTP email server involves four steps. The first three steps are performed by 8x8 Contact Center administrators in the 8x8 Configuration Manager application. The fourth step is performed by the agents in 8x8 Agent Console to complete the setup and utilize their custom email server for sending emails: Step 1: Set up a custom outgoing SMTP email server

SMTP servers control the email delivery process of your contact center. You may use the 8x8 default VCC Internal SMTP Server, or configure a custom server. Having a default server ensures that all outgoing emails originating from

email channels or agents will be using the default server and a single default account. Having a custom SMTP server, however, allows email channels and agents to use distinct accounts for outgoing emails, as configured individually.

For details on server set up, see how to define a custom SMTP server. Step 2: Configure a custom outbound server for the email channel

An email channel can be set up to use either the VCC Internal server or a custom server. A channel that is configured to use the VCC Internal server cannot override the server's default configuration and uses the email address of the server. Whereas a channel that is configured to use a custom server can override the default server configuration. In this case, a user name and password is required for the channel.

We can configure email channels in three ways:

- Using the VCC Internal server
- Using a custom server
- Using a custom server but overriding with the individual agent username and password

To create and configure a custom outgoing email channel, go to Channels > Emails.

For details on setting up a custom outbound server for the email channel, see our content on configure email channel properties.

Step 3: Configure a custom outbound server for the users

You can also configure an outgoing mail server for each user in 8x8 Configuration Manager and under **Users** > **General**. A user's outgoing mail server can be either a VCC Internal server or a custom server. If you use the VCC Internal server, you cannot override the server's default configuration, therefore, using the email address of the server. The emails sent by this user originate from the tenant's default address. This configuration is NOT recommended.

Whereas a user that is configured to use a custom server configuration, such as [AcmeJets SMTP Server], overrides the default server configuration. The emails sent by this user originate from the address of the new server. By overriding the server's default configuration, you make it more specific to the agent.

8x8 Contact Center administrators can configure users outgoing mail servers in three ways:

- Using the VCC Internal server
- Using a custom server
- Using a custom server but overriding with the specific account's user name and password

To create and configure a custom outgoing mail server for each user, go to Users > General.

8x8				<u>~ & R</u>	obin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	User » Edit Use	r » General			obin Shasta (Fyandemooror)	- My Profile	Corbrowsing	Theip	Logout
Agent Groups Users	Robin Shasta								
Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	< Back to user list General Properties	Phone Queues	Supervisor	CRM & Tab permissio	ons Interactions				
CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast	Enabled First Name Last Name Display Name	Robin Shasta		 Software language Agent Group Role 	English (US) Acme-Billing Super User				
Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes	Email Address Outgoing Mail Server ⑦ Username Internal Id	eightbyeight.test@gmail.com Acmejets SMTP Server Override Server Configurat ROBIN.SHASTA agKevT5j4ZQ9uD1ST04b23	tion	Comment	User's custom email channe				
Wallboard Chat design	* Current Country	United States of America	¥	Save	Cancel				

For details on setting up a custom outbound server for agents, see our content on how to create agent accounts. Step 4: Complete configuration in Agent Console (by agents)

This final step is performed by agents in 8x8 Agent Console. If an 8x8 Contact Center administrator has configured the user's outbound email servers to override the server configuration, the user is required to enter their individual email address and password in the Profile page. For details, see our content for agents on how to configure workplace email.

\leftarrow \rightarrow O \textcircled{a}	A https://wcc-na30b.8x8.com/AGUI/load.php?lo	ginmode=vo			
Available	0m:32s	Profile ×			
	My Profile	(ryandemo0	101) ryandemo0101	(ROBIN.SHAST	TA) Shasta, Robin
2 2 2	 Direct Agent Access :enabled 	Prompt Timeout :	30 sec	Cluster id :	na30:2:1
All Favorites Recents	Agent Voicemail : enabled	Language :	English (US)	5	9.13.0.0.20210608103332524
Q Search	Default CLId : 140845715	Direct access num	aber :6025	Dial Plan :	International Numbering Plan (ITU-T E.164) with VOVCC
L Queue & C O	Revision : 9893 PBX # : 6025	Primary language Agent DID :	: English	Secondary language	:
Acmejets-S 0 0 0m:00s	A Personal				
	First Name : Robin		ate to change Workplace Phone/SIP URI		
	* Last Name : Shasta	Workplace Phone :	1-408-625-7725	VALIDATED	
	Display Name :	 Workplace SIP URI : 	robin@8x8.com		
	Current Country : United S	tates of America Make Verification Call	Use the call to setup agent voicemail		
All Favorites Recents	Workplace Email : eightbye	ght.test@gmail.com Phone Connection Mode :		0	
Q Search	• User ID :		Auto Answer is enabled.		
	* Email Password :				
Name O	Send me a test email				
Robin Shasta 0m:35s	÷				
* David Mackenzie 1h:50m:	☆ Personalization				
	Date Format : MM/DE	D/YYYY Email Signature :			
	Default Signature : (No De	fault Signature) v Sue H.			
	- Default "From" : (No Def	fault From)			
Show Status in: One					
Powered	* 8x8				

If there is no password set up, a message prompts notifying the agent that there is no email password configured for your email account. To send an email from the custom email server, the agent must select their individual email address to send emails from.

-							
Menu Robin Shasta	🛗 උපි 💿 🗟 My Pro	file × Wong, Sue(#217) ×					
Available 4m:47s		wong, sue(#217) **					
Work Offline Take Break	Back to Case						
🚴 🖓 🖻 🧕 🛈 Cr	reate New Follow-	-up					Customer Queued Emails
All Favorites Recents V P	Properties						
Q Search 🔽	Follow-up Number:	217.(will be set upon save)		Created By:	Robin Shasta		
👗 Queue 😤 😌 🌟	Case Assigned To:	Robin Shasta *	v	Status:	Closed	Ψ.	
OUTBOUND PHONE	Priority:	Medium	*	Project:	12	The second secon	
📥 Acmejets-S 0 0 0m:00s 😭	Severity:	Information	*	Media Type:	Chat	Ψ.	
	Category:	Default	*				
	Visibility:	Internal	*				
~ N	Notification						
× Re	eply 🔿 Reply All 🔿 Forward	O None					
* From		User selects his			*		
All Favorites Recents	Please Select	email address fro	om the list.		_		
Q Search	Robin Shasta	Channel(AcmejetsInc@gmail.co	m)		S Cc Bcc		
	David_2nd_ema	il_channel(david.mackenzie@8x	(8.com)				
	My Channel(my	annel(david.ryandemo0101@gr .channel@en1gesmtp03.en1.wh					
• • · · · · · · · · · ·	Presentation	Ehannel(test@test.com) @gmail.com(sushmodena30@g					
オ David Mackenzie 1h:54m: ☆	scription: sushmodena30 B I U	A - A - Format - F	ont - Size	- X ₂ X ²			
	2.2.2	■ 1= := 14 + 1 Ø 1	8 5 4 1				
							~
×							
Show Status in: One Tab 🗸	Send Save	Save as Draft Can	cel				
Powered by 8x8							



Note: This step is necessary only when the user's outbound server is set to a custom SMTP server and configuration override. For default configuration, the agent is not prompted for their email credentials.

Define a custom SMTP server

SMTP servers control the email delivery process of your contact center. You may use the 8x8 default VCC Internal SMTP Server, or configure a custom server. By default your tenant outbound email communication is routed via the pre-configured 8x8 Contact Center Internal SMTP Server. 8x8 Contact Center also offers the flexibility to configure a custom SMTP server for better security and HIPAA compliance. The tenants can leverage their own infrastructure and ensure the delivery of emails to the final recipient. 8x8 Contact Center establishes a secure connection with the tenant SMTP server. Having a default server ensures that all outgoing emails originating from email channels or agents will be using the default server and a single default account. Having a custom SMTP server, however, allows email channels and agents to use distinct accounts for outgoing emails, as configured individually. The SMTP server must be configured with authentication and STARTTLS protocol to ensure emails are not hijacked on their way to the tenant facilities. Follow the instructions below to configure a custom SMTP server.

To configure a custom SMTP server in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Security.
- 2. Go to the SMTP Servers tab.



Note: By default, your outbound email communication is routed via the pre-configured 8x8 Contact Center Internal SMTP Server.

3. Click SMTP Server.

4. Enter the following information:

SMTP Server Definition	Description			
Name	Label for the SMTP server; a name for your custom SMTP server such as [AcmeJets SMTP Server].			
Default	Select this option to make this SMTP server the default server of your tenant.			
Server Name	Name of the SMTP server as registered such as [smtp.gmail.com].			
Port	Specific port number that varies with the choice of connection security method (the default port for SMTP server is 25). For STARTTLS, the port number is 587, and for SSL/TLS the port number is 465.			
Connection Security	Preferred way to encrypt communication, using SSL/TLS or STARTTLS protocols.			
Authentication Method	 Authentication method that decides how to bundle the password: Password, transmitted insecurely (PLAIN): Offers a less secure (PLAIN) password authentication method without encryption. Password, transmitted insecurely (LOGIN): Offers a less secure (LOGIN) password authentication method without encryption. Encrypted password (CRAM-MD5): Offers a secure password authentication method with encryption. 			
User Name	User name is usually the email address. For example, the username for Gmail SMTP is your Gmail address.			
Password	Password for the email address. Enter the Gmail password for your Gmail account.			
Enter an email address to test the SMPT server configuration	Enter a working email address to send a test mail. The test verifies if the SMTP server is configured correctly.			

5. Click **Test** to verify the setup. If the configuration is correct, you receive a test email in the test email account.



- 6. If you have not already, set up the SMTP server as the **Default** server. You can also set the server as default later once you save the new SMTP server.
- 7. Click Save.

Check your inbox to see if the test message has been successfully delivered.

The default server is marked under the SMTP servers. If you have not selected your new SMTP server as default, you can select it under the **Set as default** column.

				å Robin Shasta (ryanden	no0101) 🛛 My Profil	e Co-browsing	Help	Logou
	Security » SMTP Ser	ver List						
5	Operat	tion completed su	ccessfully.					
	Roles SMTP Servers IP Address Restriction							
	SMTP Server List							
	SMTP Servers control the email delive Email Channels and Agents will use t	he selected serve						g to pick
	Add SMTP Server: SMTP Server SMTP Server Name	er Id	Туре	Used by Channels	Used by Users	Set as default		
	AcmeHealth SMTP Server	ia	Custom	0 Osed by Channels	0	Set as default	_	0 1
	Acmelets SMTP Server		Custom	0	0 Set s		_	20
	My Gmail Server		Custom	0	0 as de	efault	_	00
	My Server		Custom	1	1	0		0 1
	My yahoo server		Custom	0	0	0		0 1
	Outlook		Custom	4 🛶	51 🔶	0		0 🗊
			Custom	0	3	0		0 🗊
	PSMTP					0		0 🗇
	PSMTP S_TestSMTP		Custom	0	0	0		0 1

When you change the default server, all email channels and agents that are not configured to override the default server with their individual configurations, will change to the new default server.



8x8

Note: You cannot delete the default server unless you set another server as default first.

8. To see the channels and users currently using the server, click the number under **Used by Users** or **Used by Channels** lists.



Note: If 8x8 Contact Center fails to deliver emails when the remote SMTP server is down or when configuration parameters are invalid, 8x8 Contact Center attempts to determine the reason for failure, and retries a few times before sending a failure notification.

Set up chat channels

8x8 Contact Center chat channels serve to direct chat requests from customers to contact center agents via chat queues. 8x8 Contact Center provides options to embed links to chat channels on your website. Customers can initiate a live chat session with the agents by clicking the link.

Features

- Facilitate communication of chat interactions in and out of a 8x8 Contact Center tenant.
- Process incoming chat requests using the chat channels and direct chat requests from customers to contact center agents.
- Interact directly with the appropriate queues via skill-based routing rules.
- Ability to embed links to chat channels on your website or on the Support Center.
- Create, edit, and delete chat channels.

Setting up a chat channel in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- 1. Configuring chat channel properties
- 2. Configuring embedded chat design
- 3. Creating a chat script
- 4. Assigning a script to the chat channel

Configure chat channel properties

Configuring a chat channel in 8x8 Contact Center involves:

- Configuring chat channel properties.
- Creating a chat script to define chat flow.

To configure properties for a chat channel, you must specify the channel name, description, and chat script. A chat script defines the chat behavior from the time a website visitor enters the website, and initiates and completes a chat. Use Channels > Chat > Properties to specify the primary properties of the chat channel.

To configure chat channel properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the Chat tab.

3. In the list of chat channels, click to edit, or $\textcircled{\oplus}$ to add a new chat channel.

The Properties tab opens.

Home Security	Channels » Chat » Properties	(j)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Support Chat C Back to channel list Properties	
CRM Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes	Chanel type Chat Support Chat Chat Chat With customers who have support requests. * Description Chat Script ▼ This channel is enabled	
Wallboard Chat design	Save Cancel	
	The newly created chat channel will only be available to chat script. Please go to script section and, once there, create a new chat script. After it you will be able to assign to this chat channel from there.	

4. Enter or select values for the channel.

Chat Channel Property	Description
Channel type	Read-only reminder of the type of channel.
Name	Type the name of this chat channel. 8x8 Agent Console displays the channel name when the agent receives an email.
Description	Enter a summary or purpose of the chat channel.
Chat Script	If you have already defined a chat script, select the script from the list. If not, proceed to save the properties without a chat script. Next, create a chat script and add the channel you just created. For details on chat scripts, refer to Create a Chat Script. The script defines the chat behavior from the time a website visitor enters the website, and initiates and completes a chat.
This Channel is enabled	Select to enable this chat channel for service. Enable a channel only after your contact center is ready to receive interactions on the channel.

The following table summarizes the options under **Channels > Chat > Properties**:

5. Click Save.

8x8 Contact Center: Social media integration

Take advantage of Facebook and Twitter to service customers directly and increase customer satisfaction with 8x8 Contact Center Social Integration. By unifying the agent experience, 8x8 Social allows users to channel their messages from social media into 8x8 Contact Center. Customers can contact the businesses and receive support from within their social platform.

8x8 Contact Center social supports messaging via Facebook and Twitter in this release.

Features

With 8x8 Contact Center social integration, you can:

- Set up social channels in your contact center application.
- Direct messages received in Facebook and Twitter to the chat channels in 8x8 Contact Center.
- Allow agents to accept and handle chat requests from social media.
- Set up social scripts to identify existing customers using the social ID and greet them accordingly.
- Learn more about the customer and direct them to the agents with the right skills.
- Create new customer records in the Local CRM.
- Access chat transcripts in the Local CRM.
- Access chat history during a live chat.

Limitations

- Support for an external CRM is not offered in this release.
- Agent cannot initiate outbound chats to the social media.
- Multimedia messaging is not within the scope, only text messaging is supported.
- Chat auto translate is not supported for Twitter interactions.
- Messaging from guest users via the Facebook Chat Plugin is not supported, but messaging only from users logged in to their Facebook accounts is supported.

Use case

Let's say your business has set up Facebook and Twitter accounts to communicate with your customers effectively. Customers visiting your Facebook page can simply initiate a chat with a live agent in your contact center via the Facebook Messenger. Agents in your contact center receive the chat request via the contact center chat queue. Upon accepting the chat request, agents can interact with the customer and assist them immediately.

To provide the business context, we will use the example of Robin's Fashions, a fictitious company. This company specializes in selling shoes, handbags, and cosmetics. They offer membership based services to help serve their customers better. They have set up business pages on Facebook and Twitter. The company connects with their customers through their social media pages and wishes to serve them more efficiently via their chat channels. We refer to this business use case throughout this guide.

Configure social media integration

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator of your business, you can set up the social channels, configure a social scripts and assign the channel via 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Preparation

- Gather the social media account details of your business (login ID and password).
- Plan how you want to route interactions from social media. The following questions may provide you tips.
 - Does your business support live chat 24/7 or based on schedule?
 - Do you have a lot of traffic to your social media pages?
 - o Do you want to direct all your social interactions to the same queue or to skill based queues?
 - Do you want to identify existing customers and provide context to agents?
 - Do you want to automatically create customer records for new customers in the Local CRM?
- Create chat queues to direct the social chat requests.

Configuring the 8x8 Contact Center social media integration

STEP 1: Set up 8x8 Contact Center social channels in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

- 1. Log into 8x8 Configuration Manager for 8x8 Contact Center.
 - a. Go to https://login.8x8.com.
 - b. Enter your login credentials to launch the application panel.
 - c. Select 8x8 Contact Center 8x8 Configuration Managericon to launch the application.
- 2. Go to Channels in the navigation menu.
- 3. Select the Social tab.
- 4. Click + Add new Facebook channel or +Add new Twitter channel to add a new social channel.



5. At the prompt, enter the email address and the respective password associated with the social account. Click **Login** (In Facebook) or **Authorize App** (In Twitter).

You have now successfully created the social channel. The social channel appears in the list of Social channels on your tenant.



Note: You can connect an 8x8 Contact Center tenant with a single Facebook or Twitter channel only.

STEP 2: Define the social chat routing by configuring a social script.

A social script allows you to define the routing of chats received on social media. You can define when and how to interact with customers using the specific IVR objects. 8x8 Contact Center social introduces the following core social objects to facilitate interaction routing.

Social Object	Description				
Check Social ID	Allows you to check the social ID of the customer and identify if it is an existing customer in the Local CRM and trigger screen pop. If it is a new customer, it automatically creates a new customer record in the Local CRM. The following exit points are available for this IVR object. Contact Found : If this is an existing customer record in the CRM, the system , presents the Agent the customer record for preview. Allows agent to edit and update case associated with customer. Contact Not Found : If it is a new customer's first visit, the CRM, automatically creates a new customer record in the Local CRM. Add first name and last name based on their social media ID.				
Send Prompt	Allows you to display predefined	greetings or messages in the chat window.			
	Edit object ×				
	Send Prompt				
	Object tag :	Greeting			
	Send Prompt :	Hello, Welcome to Robin's Fashions. How may we help you?			
	ОК	Cancel			
	Example: Welcome to Robin's Fashions. How may I help you?				
Get Customer Info	 Requests additional information such as Customer ID, Case ID, email, phone number to learn more details about the customer. Example: Robin's Fashions serves membership based services offering early access to their product lines and better discounts to their members. To offer premium quality service to their members, the company collects the membership ID information, identify premium customer and direct them to a fast serving queue. 				

Social Object	Description		
	Edit object		×
	Get Customer Info		
	Object tag : Get_Customer_ID		
	Message prompt :	To help you serve better,	*
	Data to collect :	contacts: Customer ID	•
	Not found message :	You have entered an invalid ID. Please try again.	÷
	Not found retries :	2 (0 - 4)	
	Invalid message :	You have entered an invalid ID. Please try again.	÷
	Invalid retries :	2 (0 - 4)	
	Timeout message :	You have timed out. Please try again.	* *
	Timeout retries :	2 (0 - 4)	
	Timeout :	30 (30 - 300) seconds	
	OK Note: Custom field	Cancel	pported for data dip.
Question	Allows you to pop a question to the customer on the social media. You can design these ques- tions to get more information about the customer's needs. The following question types are supported: • Open ended		
	 Single Answer only 		
	 Yes/No 		
	 Yes/No Let's say, Robin's fashions has set up dedicated queues to specific line of products - hand- bags, shoes, and cosmetics. When a customer initiates a chat, you want to know the product for which the customer is seeking assistance. Add a question to collect this information from 		

Social Object	Description			
	the customer. Based on the res	ponse recei	ived, direct the chat to	o the respective queue.
	Edit object		3	×
	Question			
	Object tag :	Existing_Order		
	Type :	Yes/No		*
	Message prompt :	Do you need assistance with an existing order? Max 125 chars		* *
	Specific settings			
	Invalid message :	You have entered an invalid answer. Please enter a valid		÷
	Invalid retries :	2	(0 - 4)	
	Timeout message :	You have timed out. Please try again.		÷
	Timeout retries :	2	(0 - 4)	
	Timeout :	30	(30 - 300) seconds	
	ОК	С	ancel	
Skip Queue	Use this object to allow custom offline. Upon initiating a chat, if simply send an email. Emails can be sent via an email You can even predefine the em	the custom	er chooses not to wa as plain emails to the	it for an agent, then they can e specified email address.

Description		
Insert object		
Social object : Skip	Queue	
Object tag : Skip	_Waiting	
Message prompt : All o	All our agents are currently busy Email	
Send email button : Ema		
Resend prompt message interval : 30	(5 - 1800 seconds)	
Submit email inactivity timeout : 180	(5 - 1800 seconds)	
Send e-mail by : E-ma	E-mail channel SupportEmail [techpubs201 Order Inquiry	
E-mail channel : Sup		
E-mail subject : Orde		

At Robin's Fashions, customers visit the social media pages to learn about the new deals, new products, sale offers, and inquire about their current orders. The following steps model a typical workflow:

- 1. Customer initiates a chat in the Messenger during their business hours.
- 2. Customer is greeted with a welcome message.
- 3. Customer is prompted to enter the membership ID to validate if it's an existing member.
- 4. If it is a member, they are then prompted: you need assistance with an existing order?
 - If **Yes**, direct them to the Sales Orders queue.
 - If **No**, direct them to the General Inquiries queue.
- 5. If it is a non-member, customers are directed to the new customers queue.

Crafting the social script

- 1. In the 8x8 Contact Center 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to Scripts.
- 2. Select the **Social** tab.
- 3. Click Add new social media script.

4. Enter the general properties and save.

Scripts » S	Social » Properties	
AcmeJets_Soc < Back to script Properties		
Script type * Script name Category	Social RobinsFashionsSocial Click to view or edit This script directs chat interactions from the Facebook page to agents in the contact center!	Assigned channels Warning: Please restrict your assignment to 100 channels
Comment	This script is enabled	

- 5. In the Script tab, you are now ready to craft the script.
 - a. Customer initiates a chat in the Messenger during their business hours. Add and select an existing [Schedule].
 - b. Using the social ID, validate the customer and check if it's an existing customer. [Check Social ID]
 - c. Customer is greeted with a welcome message. Under the **Contact Found** exit point, add a message using [**Send Prompt** Welcome back to Robin's Fashions. How may I help you?].
 - d. Customer is prompted to enter the member ID to validate business membership. [Get Customer Info Collect Customer ID]
 - e. If it is a member, customer is prompted: Do you need assistance with an existing order? [Question Yes/No]
 - If Yes, direct them to the Sales Orders queue. [Forward to Queue]
 - If No, direct them to the New Order queue. [Forward to Queue]
 - f. Upon checking the social ID in step b, if it is found to be a new customer, customer is directed to the new customers queue.
- 6. Save the script.

The following images show two sample IVR social scripts.



8x8



309
8x8 Contact Center SMS

8x8 Contact Center introduces communication via SMS inbound channels. SMS has become a popular channel of communication in customer service. Let's say customers of a car insurance company want to check their claim status or send related inquiries, they can simply send SMS messages to an SMS number published by the insurance company. These messages are routed via SMS channels and chat queues to agents, and offered to them as chat interactions for responses. Agents can look up customer records if the message is from an existing customer. They can look up outstanding cases and history of interactions to handle the conversation effectively.

Availability

The 8x8 Contact Center SMS feature is available to X Series customers (X7/X8) only. SMS channels for receiving SMS messages can be configured in 30 countries (see appendix). SMS messages can be sent to most countries in the world (note that the cost of sending messages to different countries varies based on the country, with the US and Canada being the least expensive).

Features

- Connect and Communicate: As contact center agents, receive SMS messages from customers and communicate in real time.
- Publish SMS numbers: Publish phone numbers having SMS-only or voice+SMS capabilities (voice+SMS is available only in the US and Canada) which can be provisioned as SMS inbound channels by 8x8.
- Route messages: Based on agent skills, route SMS messages via chat queues to available agents. Direct these
 messages to available agents based on rules/schedules/skills.
- Engage with customers effectively: Allow agents to multitask and maximize their productivity by handling messages from up to six customers at a time.
- Handle interactions more efficiently by accessing the customer record via screen pop. When an existing
 customer sends a message, quickly look up the popped customer record and learn about recent cases.
- Track past activity: Save the SMS interactions in a chat transcript and automatically link it as a case to the right customer record for future reference. Agents always end SMS interactions.

Limitations

- SMS conversations must be initiated by the customer (the external party). At this time, the agent cannot initiate an SMS conversation with a customer (or other external party).
- We do not support SMS messaging to short code numbers currently. We support messaging to toll-free and regular phone numbers.
- The messaging does not support images or emojis. It is plain text only.

Use case

Acme Insure is a car insurance company that processes claims from insurers for traffic incidents. Their clients often reach out to their agents to file claims, inquire about the status of their claims, and other related questions. An insurance agent at Acme Insure, Robin, receives SMS messages from clients and responds to them in real time. During business hours, Robin and other agents interact with multiple customers simultaneously, increasing their productivity. For messages received during offline hours, Acme Insure sends an automatic response notifying the sender of Acme Insure's business hours and requests them to connect during business hours. The company also wants to keep track of the communication trail with their clients. Hence, agents save their chat transcript before ending the conversation and link it to the customer record. This helps all agents to review the cases, understand the status, and assist the returning customers effectively.

Learn more about how to configure SMS channels.

Configure SMS channels



Note: This section is applicable to 8x8 Contact Center administrators only.

8x8 provisions SMS as well as voice+SMS channels. Note that SMS phone numbers that support both voice and SMS are only available in the US and Canada. Once the channels are provisioned, you see them in the Contact Center Configuration Manager application. As a next step, you need to configure these channels to receive SMS messages from customers and route them to available agents based on interactive response rules and agent skills.

Follow the steps to configure an SMS channel:

Step 1: View SMS channels in the 8x8 Contact Center Configuration Manager

- 1. Log in to your 8x8 account.
- 2. In the application panel, select Virtual Contact Center Configuration Manager. The application launches.
- 3. Go to **Channels** from the navigation menu.
- 4. Select to view SMS channels.
- 5. From the list of SMS channels, select to edit an SMS channel.

6. Add the properties, and save.

8x8

Home Security	Home » Sumr	nary			
Agent Groups					
Users	Summary Profile	Audio Files	Schedules Dial Plan	s Agent's Idle Tim	ier
Queues/Skills				5	
Channels	Incoming Channels		Agent Groups	;	
cripts	Phone	3	ungroup		2
CRM	Email	0			
Support	Chat	0			
Center	Social	0			
Outbound Setup	d∕as	2			
ampaigns	Inbound Queues				
Broadcast	Phone	0			
ntegration	Email	0			
itatus Codes	Chat	3			
Transaction Codes	Voice Mail	0			
utbound	Outbound Queues				
hone Codes	Phone	0			
/allboard					
Chat design					

Step 2: Add an SMS script

Use SMS scripts to prompt customers for more information, match against Local or External CRM customer records, forward the conversation to a queue of agents based on specific rules, or queue metrics.

The following IVR nodes are available:

- Schedule: Use the Schedule node to determine if the business is open or closed, and add appropriate actions.
- Send Prompt: Use to auto-respond with predetermined greetings and messages.
- Check ANI: Use to identify customers based on phone numbers in the customer records.
- Get Customer Info: Use to collect information about the customer, such as Customer ID and Case ID, which helps in routing the interaction.
- Test Condition of Queue: Use to check the condition of a queue before directing messages to the queue. Test queue provides a set of conditions which, when met, triggers specified actions.
- Forward to Queue: Use to forward SMS messages to a specific chat queue (SMS messages must be routed via chat queues).

To add an SMS script:

- 1. Go to **Scripts** from the navigation menu.
- 2. Go to SMS, click to add a new SMS script.
- 3. Add a name for the script, a comment, and select a category.
- 4. Enable the script by checking the box.
- 5. Click Save. It launches the script definition window.
- 6. Use the following steps to create a simple script that checks if a message is received during the business hours, checks if it is from an existing customer, forwards them to an available agent via a chat queue, pops the matching customer record for review. If the message is received during closed hours, sends a response indicating the same.

IVR Node		Description
Add Schedule		Check if the business is open or closed. Add appropriate action nodes.
If (Schedule) is Open, add Ser	d Prompt.	If the message is received during business hours, send a greeting.
Edit object	×	Example: Welcome to Acme Insure.
Send Prompt		How may I help you?
Object tag :	Greeting	
Send Prompt : OK	Hello, Thank you for contacting Acme Insure. Cancel	
Add Get Customer Info		The Get Customer Info collects data such as customer ID and case ID, retrieves the matching CRM record and presents it to the agent allowing them to handle the interactions better. Check if the message received is from an existing customer by prompting them for a customer ID.

VR Node			Description
Edit object	>	<	Example: Collect information about a pending case ID to quickly open and review the case details.
Get Customer Info			review the case details.
Object tag :	Who-is-it		
Message prompt :	Enter your customer ID	* *	
Data to collect :	contacts: Customer ID	•	
Not found message :	Invalid ID. Please enter a valid customer ID.		
Not found retries :	2 (0 - 4)		
Invalid message :	Invalid ID. Please enter again.		
Invalid retries :	2 (0 - 4)		
Timeout message :	Invalid ID		
Timeout retries :	0 (0 - 4)		
Timeout :	30 (30 - 300) seconds		
OK	Cancel		
dd Send Prompt			The Send Prompt node allows you to send predefined greetings or messages
			Send a message that an agent will respond shortly.
			Example: Thank you for contacting us. We will be with you shortly.
d Forward to Queue			Direct the message to a chat queue. It is then presented to an available agent serving the queue.
f (Schedule) is closed, add Send Prompt to indicate the business s closed.			If the message is received when the business is closed, send a response indicating the same.

IVR Node	Description	
Insert object	×	Example: Thank you for contacting Acme Insure. We are currently closed. Please contact us during our business
SMS object :	Send Prompt 🔹	hours 9 AM to 5 PM PST.
Object tag :	Closed	
Send Prompt :	We are currently closed. Please contact us during our business hours 9 am to 5 pm. We apologize for the inconvenience	
ОК	Cancel	

Step 3: Assign the SMS script to the SMS channel

You can assign the SMS script to a channel in two ways:

Via Channels: Go to Channels > SMS. Select to edit a channel. Under Properties, select the SMS script from the list of available scripts.

Channels » SMS » Properties				
VCC SMS channel2				
< Back to channel list				
Properties				
Channel type SMS				
Public Number 8328				
* Channel Name VCC SMS channel2				
* SMS Script Route-SMS-Messages				
This channel is enabled				
	Save	Cancel		





Via Scripts: Go to Scripts > SMS. Select to edit an SMS script. Under Properties, click Assign new channels and follow the prompts to select channels to assign the script.

Step 4: Add users to the chat queue

SMS messages sent to a channel are directed to a chat queue to be processed by agents serving the queue. In this step, you can add agents to the chat queue used in the script.

- 1. Go to Queues/Skills from the navigation menu.
- 2. Select to edit the chat queue to which the SMS interactions are forwarded.
- 3. Under Members, assign and enable agents to the queue.

Queues/Skills » Edit (Chat » Members	s				()
SMSQUEUE1970 Back to queue list Properties <u>Members</u> ICI	R Interactions	SLA Email				
Agent List					>	Filter Agent List
🔽 Unassign All 🔽 Disable All			<< <	1 > >> 20 records	🚯 Configure Sort	🧭 Clear All Sort
First name	Last name		Username	Skill level (click to change)	Agents assig	Agents enabl
Matt	Lee		ag5aBAgLuqRRSPvVL4stjVlw	80 - High		<
Robin	Smith		agb4MXLd6CT1KcGYAMSEDEww	80 - High	~	✓

With these steps complete, the SMS channel in your contact center is now set up to process SMS interactions.

SMS: list of supported countries

The 8x8 Contact Center SMS service is currently supported in the following countries.



Note: 8x8 Contact Center SMS can send SMS messages to most countries in the world. However, SMS channels for receiving SMS messages into the contact center can only be configured in the countries listed below.

- Australia
- Austria
- Belgium
- Brazil
- Canada
- Chile
- Croatia
- Czech Republic
- Denmark
- Estonia
- Germany
- Hong Kong
- Hungary
- Israel
- Latvia
- Lithuania
- Malaysia
- Netherlands
- Norway
- Poland

- 8x8
 - Portugal
 - Puerto Rico
 - Spain
 - Republic of Korea
 - Philippines
 - Singapore
 - Sweden
 - Switzerland
 - United Kingdom
 - United States

Create and configure scripts

8x8 Contact Center phone, chat, and email scripts allow administrators to design and control the interaction flow in a contact center via 8x8 Configuration Manager. Quickly connect callers with agents and streamline customer flow with the 8x8 Interactive Voice Response (IVR) scripts.

IVR is a critical component of any contact center, allowing customers to get quick answers to simple questions and helping companies identify the right resource to help a customer with a given issue.

Features

8x8 has powerful IVR capabilities that help in a number of ways:

- Improve the customer service experience
 - Help customers find the information they need through self-service functions.
 - Identify who is calling and route them to the best available agent.
 - Give callers access to information even after business hours.
- Provide value to your organization
 - Lower costs by automatically answering common questions.
 - Easily manage your IVRs online for complete control.
 - Create custom schedules for holidays and special events.
 - Make changes to your IVR on the fly.
- 8x8 Contact Center can use CRM information to personalize customer interactions and significantly increase the efficiency of every call center interaction.
- 8x8 provides our customers with three options for IVR:

- Basic IVR: Easy-to-create menus, and simple self service capabilities that allow the contact center manager the agility to keep up with changing requirements through simple edits to the IVR flow.
- **eIVR**: A powerful, full-function IVR that can access data from multiple sources and support speech driven applications.
- Intelligent IVR: 8x8 provides speech recognition and natural language processing on all incoming calls. To learn more, refer to our content on how to create intelligent IVR.

Designing a script can be simple or complex, depending on your business operation. Before sitting down to design your script, you need to prepare your plan for the interaction routing.

Go to the **Scripts** tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to create or edit scripts. Phone scripts are grouped under the **Phone** tab, and chat and email scripts are each grouped under their respective tabs. Scripts can be associated with one or more channels. You can create a user-defined script, or use our system default script.

To learn how to create or edit phone, email, and chat scripts, refer to:

- Create a Phone IVR Script
- Create an Email Script
- Create a Chat Script

To learn how to create social scripts, refer to our Social chapter.

Create a phone IVR script

An 8x8 Contact Center phone Interactive Voice Response (IVR) script can be an inbound phone script, outbound phone script, or Post Call Survey script. Here are the types of phone scripts accessed via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- Inbound phone script: Guides the inbound callers through the options to self-direct themselves to the desired destination within the contact center. You can create a new script and assign it to any number of channels.
- Outbound phone script: Improves handling process of inbound phone queues when the inbound queue agents are also members of an outbound phone queue, such as campaign calls. Whenever the inbound phone queues have higher priority over your outbound phone queues, you can reserve agents for the inbound phone queue so that they handle inbound calls first before handling outbound calls.
- Post Call Survey: A questionnaire presented to the caller at the end of a call, typically to collect feedback about the quality of service offered by the company. You can plan and build a Post Call Survey script using IVR-controlled survey, agent-assisted survey, and stand-alone survey. To build a Post Call Survey script, go to Scripts > Phone and add a new phone script. Select Post call survey for the script type and enter parameters. Follow the instructions on Post Call Survey User Guide to learn about types, use cases, and how to configure a Post Call Survey.

Overview of IVR script objects and operation

8x8 Contact Center IVR scripts define how 8x8 Contact Center processes an inbound phone interaction. The contact center administrator, guided by the center's business requirements, constructs an IVR script by choosing scripting objects to define the automated processing of your inbound calls.

Types of IVR script objects

IVR scripts consist of an ordered series of script objects. Each script object includes parameters and exit points.

- Parameters: Parameters are an object instruction set. Depending on the purpose of the object, parameters define what schedule to use, voice prompt to play, or Local CRM data to evaluate. The first parameter of all objects is the Object Tag, which uniquely identifies that object within the IVR script.
- Exit points: Exit points are an object response to the conditions detected by the object parameters. Exit points enable an object to perform different actions in response to different conditions. For example, an object can route or otherwise process an interaction in one way when the contact center is open, and process the interaction a different way when the contact center is closed. When designing an IVR script, note that if a script logic routes a phone interaction to a script object's exit point, and that exit point does not contain any script objects, then the 8x8 Contact Center disconnects the interaction.

IVR script operation

When a new phone interaction arrives, the channel hands the call off to the top-level MainIVR script object. Beginning at MainIVR, the interaction begins flowing through the IVR script objects. Each script object parameters and exit points perform real-time processing of an interaction in response to conditions. For a basic IVR script that plays a greeting message and forwards the call to a queue when the call center is open, see IVR Phone Script Examples for building a simple greeting and routing a call to a queue. If the call center is closed, the script notifies the caller and routes the interaction to an off-hours voicemail queue.

Summary of phone IVR script objects

The following table summarizes the objects available in 8x8 Contact Center phone scripts accessed via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

Phone Script	Description
Object Schedule	Use the Schedule object to perform a particular sequence of script operations when the contact cen- ter is either open or closed. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script.
	 Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script.
	In the Select schedule list, choose a schedule definition.
	Exit points:
	The Schedule object uses the Select schedule value to transfer control to the script sequence spe- cified within the following exit points:
	 open equals true if the phone interaction has been received within the selected schedule's open hours.
	 close equals true if the phone interaction has been received outside the selected schedule's open hours.
	 #1 through #6 equal true if the schedule specified in Select Schedule includes an exception condition, numbered 1 through 6, and today's date is within the exceptions from and to dates. For details on creating schedules, refer to Define Business Hours and Schedules.
Check ANI	Use the Check ANI object to use the phone number of the inbound caller to perform a lookup in the customers file. If a matching phone number is found in the Customer file, the record is loaded in memory and can be used to check the value of picklist fields to determine how to route the call. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.

Phone Script Object	Description
	 In the contact found item, define the call processing steps to be performed if a Local CRM customer record was found.
	 In the contact not found item, define script call processing steps to be performed if a Local CRM customer record was not found. Exit points:
	The Check ANI object uses the value of the caller's ANI phone number to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points:
	 contact found equals true if the caller's phone number matches one in the Local CRM.
	 contact not found equals true if the caller's phone number does not match one in the customer file.
	When using the Check ANI object, both exit points should be configured. An exit point does not have any processing steps, and the object exits on that exit point the caller will be disconnected.
Get Value	Use the Get Value object to request or require the caller to use their telephone's keypad to provide the following Local CRM data:
	 A Local CRM customer AccountNumber
	 A Local CRM CaseID
	 An agent's extension number: On selecting this option, the Entry is mandatory check box is checked automatically and grayed out. You are given the option to set the maximum length of the extension. By default, the maximum is eight digits.
	 A numeric Customer or Case custom field.
	 An external Variable1 or Variable2 that can then be passed to an external program for screen pops or integration with third-party or custom systems.
	For details on screen pop, refer to Define Screen Pop Settings for External CRM. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR Script.
	Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
	In the Invite message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays to prompt the caller to enter
	specific numerical information.
	In the Invalid message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays if the caller responds to the

Phone Script Object	Description
	 invite message prompt with an invalid entry. In the Empty message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays if the caller does not respond to the invite message prompt within 10 seconds. In the Data to collect list, select the CRM data to request or require from the user. Select Entry is mandatory to require that the user supply a valid response to the prompt before enabling them to proceed beyond the Get Value object. Exit points: The Get Value object uses the value of the caller's response to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points: found equals true if the caller's numerical entry matches the CRM data that was specified in the Data to Collect list. If Entry is Mandatory is disabled, or the value to be matched is stored in an external variable, the script exits. empty equals true if Entry is Mandatory is enabled, and the caller does not supply a value.
	• too many invalid equals true if Entry is Mandatory is enabled and the caller made three incorrect attempts to supply a valid response.
Get Digit	This object is used after Play and Say messages that prompt for digit tone input. Get Digit is a menu optimized for the input of a single digit. Use Get Digit to receive the caller's DTMF input after prompting the caller for input. Parameters: None Exit Points: • 0-9, *, # label the script operations performed after the caller has pressed the corresponding key
	 on their telephone's keypad. Unassigned digit: Actions defined under Unassigned digit are followed when the caller enters a
	 digit that has no assigned action. empty contains the script operations performed if the caller does not respond to an IVR menu prompt within 10 seconds, and the empty exit point is not configured.
Check Pick- list	Use the Check Picklist object to evaluate the value of a particular item from the CRM database. Perform a Check Picklist comparison after you have used the Check ANI or Get Value object to load a customer or case record into memory.

Phone Script Object	Description
	Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR Script.
	Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
	In the Data to test list, choose the picklist field to evaluate.
	 In the Select operator list, choose the equal to or not equal to comparison operator.
	 In the Select values list, choose the picklist values for the data element specified above by the Data to test list. Exit points:
	The Check Picklist object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points:
	matched equals true if one of the selected values equals the value of a record in the Local CRM.
	 not matched equals true if one of the selected values does not equal the value of a record in the Local CRM.
Play	Use the Play object to play an audio file in a particular location in the IVR script. Parameters:
	Object Tag: Enter the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR Script.
	• Audio File: Select from the default audio files or from the choice of custom uploaded files.
	 Playback Options: The playback option can be interrupted by a DTMF input or not. Select from one of the following options:
	• Uninterruptible (Input ignored): The playback continues, ignoring the DTMF input.
	 Interruptible (Input captured): The playback is interrupted, and the DTMF input is captured. Exit points: None
Say	This object converts programmed text and variable objects such as phone number and queue position into speech. The Say object is also interruptible or not. For details, see our content on Text To Speech. Parameters:
	• Object Tag : Enter the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script.

Phone Script Object	Description
	 Language: Select the language from the available choices. Available Languages are: ¹
	 Voice: Select a suitable voice from the library of digital voices. These voices are available in female and male tone.
	• Value to Play: Select to play free text or variables, such as phone number and queue position.
	 Callback phone number: Plays the call back number entered by the caller. It is retrieved via Get Value.
	• Caller phone number: Plays the calling line ID of the caller fetched automatically.
	 Queue position: Plays the queue position of the call.
	• Text to Play: Enter the text string to be played.
	 Data type: Select from the available data types: Text, Number, Phone number, Date, Time, and Currency. For example, if you select Date as the data type, the system announces the data in the date format.
	 Playback rate: Select a value: Slow, Normal, or Fast. The default rate is Normal. You can define the playback speed of IVR Text-To-Speech (TTS) prompts when using the Say object. The Say object converts programmed text and variable objects such as phone number and queue position into speech. You can play these prompts slowly, at a normal speed, or at a faster pace. Using the playback rate option, you can control the speed of the speech that reads your text so your callers do not miss the important information such as names, numbers, or account balances. The default speed is Normal. The playback speed is set per IVR Say node.
	 Playback Options: The playback option can be interrupted by a DTMF input or not. Select from one of the following options:
	 Uninterruptible (Input ignored): The playback continues, ignoring the DTMF input. Interruptible (Input captured): The playback is interrupted, and the DTMF input is captured.

¹Arabic, Bahasa, Basque, Cantonese, Catalan, Czech, Danish, Dutch, English (AU), English (GB), English (India), English (Ireland), English (Scotland), English (South Africa), English (US), Finnish, French (Canada), Galician, German, Greek, Hebrew, Hindi, Hungarian, Italian, Japanese, Korean, Mandarin (China), Mandarin (Taiwan), Norwegian, Polish, Portugese (Brazil), Portugese (Portugal), Romanian, Russian, Slovak, Spanish (Castillan), Spanish (Colombia), Spanish (Mexico), Swedish, Thai, Turkish, and Valencian.

Phone Script Object	Description
Menu	Use the Menu object to present a list of options to the caller. Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script.
	Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
	In the Invite message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays to offer menu options to a caller.
	In the Invalid message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays if the caller responds to the prompt with an invalid entry.
	In the Empty message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays if the caller does not respond to an IVR menu prompt within 10 seconds.
	In a Menu script object, the Empty message parameter and the empty exit point (described below) are mutually exclusive: If you configure the empty exit point, then the Menu object will not play the audio file specified in the Empty message list.
	Exit points:
	The Menu object contains the following labeled exit points:
	 0-9, *, # label the script operations performed after the caller has pressed the corresponding key on their telephone's keypad.
	 extension contains the script operations performed if the caller supplies a valid three-digit extension number.
	The 8x8 Contact Center permits only agents with the Direct Agent Access Feature enabled to be directly accessed by extension number.
	Note: Extension (Obsolete) is a legacy feature that will be deprecated. We recommend using the enhanced method for direct agent routing.
	 empty contains the script operations performed if the caller does not respond to an IVR menu prompt within 10 seconds, and the empty exit point of the Menu object is not configured. In a Menu script object, the empty exit point and the Empty message parameter (described above) are mutually exclusive; if you configure the empty exit point, then the Menu object will not play the

Phone Script Object	Description
	 audio file specified in the Empty message list. too many invalid labels the script operations performed if the caller makes three invalid responses to the menu prompts. Invalid responses include three incorrect keypad entries or no response to the menu within 10 seconds.
Voice Recording Settings	If your 8x8 Contact Center operates in jurisdictions which require seeking the caller's permission before recording a call, the caller's choice must be able to override the queue and agent level recording settings as well as the agent's record on demand capability. Use the Voice Recording Settings object to determine the circumstances under which a call may be recorded. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. In the Permission to record, select one of the four options: Keep prior setting: Keep prior setting for automatic and agent-initiated recording Not asked: No automatic recording, but allows an agent to initiate recording. Granted: Follows Agent & Queue recording settings for automatic recording, and allows an agent to initiate recording Denied: No automatic recording, and does not allow an agent to initiate recording When Record % of calls is applicable, then IVR, Queue, and Agent voice recording percentages are applied. In the Automatic Call Recording, based on the settings in Permission to record, one of the following four options get automatically selected, or you can select an option to override the default: Keep prior setting: Keep prior setting for automatic recording Record this call: The current call is recorded
	 Do not record this call: The current call is not automatically recorded Record % of calls: IVR %, Queue %, and Agent % probabilities are used to determine if the call is recorded automatically or not In the Allow agent to initiate recording, based on the settings in Permission to record, one

Phone Script Object	Description
	of the following three options get automatically selected, or you can select an option to override the default.
	• Keep prior setting: Keep prior setting for agent-initiated recording
	• Yes: Allow the agent to initiate recording of this call
	• No : Do not allow the agent to initiate recording of this call
Set Agent	 The Set Agent object facilitates direct agent access. Set Agent checks if the ANI or case number associated with an incoming call has corresponded with an agent on previous calls, and provides call routing choices based on the search result. For details, see our content on Direct Agent Routing. Set Agent allows you to look up agents based on the following parameters: Case created by: Find the agent who created the case. Case last worked by: Find the agent who last worked on the case.
	 Case assigned to: Find the agent who is assigned to the case.
	 Channel linked to: Find the agent who is linked to the channel the call was channeled through.
	 None: Find an agent by name. By selecting this option, the option to Choose Agent shows up. Click the link, and select an agent from the list. Set Agent may return empty if there is no agent associated with ANI or case number. Exit points:
	The Set Agent object uses the returning value from the search above to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points:
	 agent found equals true if the caller's phone number or the case lookup retrieves an agent who previously corresponded with the contact.
	 agent not found equals true if the caller's phone number or the case number does not retrieve any agent who worked with the contact.
Transfer to	The Transfer to Agent object connects the caller to the agent.
Agent	 Use this object with Set Agent to find agents based on case lookup, and then transfer the call.
	 Use this object without Set Agent to transfer calls directly to the agent with a personal channel. The agent must be assigned with a personal channel. Transfer to Agent object provides options which support transferring a call to an agent even if their
	status is:

Phone Script Object	Description
	■ busy
	 on break
	 working offline
	logged off
	If you do not select any option, then the call is transferred only if the agent status is Available.
	If transfer is successful, change agent status to busy: this option is enabled by default. The agent
	is offered the post processing state after terminating the call.
	The object supports separate logic as to why a call may not reach the target agent depending on the agent's real-time state. Exit points:
	The Transfer to Agent object uses the following exit points:
	 Busy equals true if the agent status is busy.
	 on break equals true if the agent is on break.
	 working offline equals true if the agent is working offline.
	 logged off equals true if the agent is logged off.
	 rejected by agent equals true if the agent rejected the call.
	 invalid agent id equals true if the agent found from ANI or case lookup is found invalid.
	ring no answer equals true if the agent's phone rang but the agent failed to answer.
Transfer to Agent Voice Mail	The Transfer to Agent Voicemail object allows a caller to deposit a voicemail for an agent. It assumes the agent is already set through the Set Agent object or Get Value object. The following parameters dic- tate the call flow. Parameters:
	 Name: In the Name text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script for the Forward to agent element. It can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
	 Personal Invite: You can set different greetings to inform the caller the available options. The options available under Personal Invite indicate the agent-specific greeting that will be played back to the caller when the call routes through this primitive. The following options act as templates for the actual prompts:
	• AgentPersonalGreeting: Plays the personal recording made by the agent through a

Phone Script Object	Description
	 verification call. AgentPersonalrecording_1 to AgentPersonalrecording_6: An agent can also record a maximum of 10 personal recordings using the 8x8 Agent Console and any one of the first six of these personal recordings can be played back to the caller. This is done when the administrator sets the Personal Invite to one of these options. The agent's recording functionality in 8x8 Agent Console is accessible via Menu > My Recording. Agents can record personal greetings using the My Recording functionality. Impersonal Invite: If the personal recording of the agent is not available, the IVR system falls back on the Impersonal Invite message. These are the audio prompts that are available to 8x8 Contact Center through the Home > Audio Files interface. Digit to opt out: A caller is forced to deposit a voice mail when the "Digit to opt out" is set to false. When it is set to true then the caller has the option of leaving a voicemail or going back to the IVR system via the "opt out exit" point. This is similar to "resume" in the "ForwardToAgent" primitive in the legacy 8x8 Contact Center. When opt out is set to true, the caller can press any DTMF key to navigate to the "opt out" exit point. Exit Points: opt out: allows the caller to opt out of voicemail. agent not configured for VM: If the Activate agent's voice mail check box in the Phone tab of
	 the Agent configuration in 8x8 Configuration Manager is not checked, then the caller is directed to the agent not configured for VM exit point even when the agent ID is set. invalid agent id: If the agent ID is not set before this primitive is encountered, the caller is directed to this exit point.
Forward to agent	Note: Due to the constraints of the Forward to Agent object, we recommend using the Set Agent and Transfer to Agent objects to set up direct access to agents. Please note the Forward to Agent object will be obsolete on new 8x8 Contact Center subscriptions past the 8.1 release.

If your 8x8 Contact Center uses the direct agent access feature, in the Menu script object described earlier in this table, you can use the Forward to Agent object to forward the caller to an agent's phone. The Forward to Agent object does not function unless contained in the extension exit point of a Menu

Phone Script Object	Description
	object. 8x8 Contact Center rings the agent's phone for the number of seconds specified in the Interaction offer timeout. For details, refer to Create Accounts and Configure Properties. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script for the Forward to agent element. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. In the Message list, if agent voicemail is activated, then choose the audio file the IVR script plays immediately before forwarding the caller to the agent's voicemail.
	 In the Invalid Extension Message list, choose the audio file the IVR script plays if the caller supplies an invalid three-digit agent extension. Exit points:
	The Forward to agent object uses the value of the extension entered by the caller to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points:
	 resume equals true if the caller enters <*> instead of leaving a voice message. Use the resume label to transfer a caller who does not leave a message to another location in the IVR script.
	too many invalid equals true if the caller dials an invalid agent extension three times.
Test Condi- tion of Queue	Use this object to check the condition of a queue before entering a queue. Test queue provides a set of conditions which, when met, triggers specified actions. The test queue object gives the IVR designer much more routing flexibility by allowing testing queue status repeatedly. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script.
	Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
	 In the Queue name list, choose the phone queue to test the condition. Use the Queue Conditions area to determine routing choices based on agent availability or queue performance. For Queue Conditions, select one or more options below. The following options are presented when you enable There are NO agents:
	• Available : Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices

Phone Script Object	Description
	 when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. Available or Busy: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. The agents may be temporarily busy and cannot immediately take the call. Available, busy, or working offline: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately take the call. Available, busy, or working offline: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. The agents may be temporarily busy or working offline and cannot immediately take the call. Available, busy, working offline, or on break: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately take the call. Available, busy, working offline, or on break: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. The agents may be temporarily busy, working offline, or on break and cannot immediately take the call. Logged in (assigned but may not be enabled): Select this option to route the call
	 differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent logged in (assigned but may not be enabled) to immediately accept the interaction. Qualified agents refer to agents set up to receive interactions from the queue specified in the Queue name list. To evaluate the condition of a selected queue and then route the call based on the test results of that performance, perform one or all of the following tests: Select The number of calls waiting ahead of this call is greater than, then enter the maximum number of calls that can be ahead of the current call. Select Current call has been waiting in this queue for more than (seconds), then enter a time the current call has spent in its queue exceeds a configurable threshold. Each incoming call gets its own copy of an IVR script to receive treatments. The call being treated is referred to as the Current call.
	 Select The longest wait time for any call in this queue is greater than (seconds), then enter the maximum time that a call in the queue has waited in the queue. Select The instantaneous expected-wait-time calculation exceeds (seconds), then enter a time duration in seconds. Exit points:

Phone Script Object	Description
	Test Queue has two exit points:
	Condition Matched
	 Condition not Matched The Test Queue object transfers control to the script sequence specified under the exit points based on the following test results:
	 There are no qualified agents available in the queue.
	 There are no qualified agents available or busy in the queue.
	 There are no qualified agents available, busy, or working offline in the queue.
	 There are no qualified agents available, busy, working offline, or on break in the queue.
	 There are no qualified agents logged in.
	• There are <i>n</i> number of calls in the queue ahead of this call, where <i>n</i> is the number specified in the test.
	 The current call has been waiting in this queue for more than specified time.
	 There is a call waiting longer than the specified time in the queue.
	 The instantaneous expected wait time calculation for a call exceeds the specified time. The expected wait-time calculation is useful only when there are more than 20 qualified agents assigned to the queue and active. Mathematical uncertainty with fewer than 20 active, similarly-skilled agents may produce unexpected results. One of the many ways the condition matched and condition not matched exit points can be used is to either trigger another test, provide the caller with a choice of waiting in the queue when no agent is available, leave a voicemail, or inform the caller of an approximate waiting time, and then forward to the queue. For example, if there is a call in the queue that has waited longer than 120 seconds, you can insert the Play object under the Condition matched exit point to play a message informing the caller of an expected waiting time for the call to be answered. You can then use the Forward to Queue object to route the call to a queue.
Forward to queue	 Use the Forward to Queue object to forward a phone interaction to a specific phone queue. Parameters: In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script.

Phone Script Object	Description
	 The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. In the Queue name list, choose the target phone queue to receive the call. For more information about modifying the default queue forwarding behavior, see the information about the Take the Overload path if area below.
	 In the Queue timeout enter the number of seconds that call waits in the queue (5 to 20000). Use the Queue Conditions area to determine routing choices based on agent availability or queue performance. For Queue Conditions, select one or more options below. The following options are presented when you enable There are NO agents: Available: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices
	 when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. Available or Busy: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. The agents may be temporarily busy and cannot immediately take the call. Available, busy, or working offline: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately take the call. Available, busy, or working offline: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. The agents may be temporarily busy or working offline and cannot immediately take the call.
	 Available, busy, working offline, or on break: Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction. The agents may be temporarily busy, working offline, or on break and cannot immediately take the call.
	 Logged in (assigned but may not be enabled): Select this option to route the call differently, or to provide the caller with choices when there is no qualified agent logged in (assigned but may not be enabled) to immediately accept the interaction. Qualified agents refer to agents set up to receive interactions from the queue specified in the Queue name list.
	 To evaluate the condition of a selected queue and then route the call based on the test results of that performance, perform one or all of the following tests: Select The number of calls waiting ahead of this call is greater than, then enter the maximum number of calls that can be ahead of the current call.

Phone Script Object	Description
	 Select The longest wait time for any call in this queue is greater than (seconds), then enter the maximum time that a call in the queue has waited in the queue. Select The instantaneous expected-wait-time calculation exceeds (seconds), then enter a time duration in seconds. Exit points:
	 In Queue is true if a call has entered the queue. You can define the in-queue treatments for each queue. Callers are served with the treatments and options defined under each queue while waiting to be served. You can add Loop and initial action under In Queue:
	 Initial Action: Under In Queue, select to add an initial action, such as announcing the Flu clinic details. Add a Play object and select an audio file to be played to callers once they enter the queue.
	 Loop: Under In Queue, add a Loop object. Inside a loop, you can define multiple in-queue treatments using time intervals. These treatments are repeated for a specified number of times, or for a given duration.
	 Queue Timeout is true if the call waiting exceeds the timeout period set. Overload is true if any of the overload paths are met. The Forward to Queue object transfers control to the script sequence specified under the overload exit point as follows:
	 There are no qualified agents available in the queue. There are no qualified agents available or busy in the queue.
	 There are no qualified agents available, busy, or working offline in the queue. There are no qualified agents available, busy, working offline, or on break in the queue. There are no qualified agents logged in.
	 There are <i>n</i> number of calls in the queue ahead of this call, where <i>n</i> is the number specified in the test. There is a call waiting longer than the specified time in the queue.
	 The instantaneous expected wait time calculation for a call exceeds the specified time. The expected wait-time calculation is useful only when there are more than 20 qualified

Phone Script Object	Description
	agents assigned to the queue and active. Mathematical uncertainty with fewer than 20 active, similarly skilled agents may produce unexpected results. The overload exit point can be used to provide the caller with a choice of waiting in the queue when no agent is available, or to leave a voicemail. For example, in the Forward to Queue object's overload exit point, insert the Forward to voice mail object to route the call based on the caller's response to a prompt of the form "Press 1 to leave a message or remain on the line to speak to the next available agent"; if the caller does not press 1, the script transfers the call to the queue specified in the Queue Name list.
Loop and Time Inter-	These new in-queue-only objects control the pattern of announcements, queue music, and conditional contact center tests while waiting in queue.
val	 Loop: Under In Queue, add a Loop object. Inside a loop, you can define multiple in-queue treatments using time intervals. These treatments are repeated for a specified number of times, or for a given duration. Parameters:
	• Object tag : Enter the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR Script.
	 Loop repeat count: Select the number of times to repeat the treatments defined in the loop. Exit Points:
	Time Interval : The Intervals inside a Loop can be used to define multiple prompts. Use a Time Interval to define the length of an in-queue action. For example, define an interval to be 60 seconds long and select to play an in-queue prompt for 20 seconds. The queue music plays for the rest of the interval duration.
Callback	The Callback object allows callers waiting in a call queue to opt out of the queue and be called back when an agent becomes available. This feature fetches the caller's phone number from the calling line ID, the absence of which requires the caller to input the callback number before exiting the queue. The system retains the queue position of the call and offers an outbound call to an available agent serving the queue. When the agent accepts the call, the call is dialed out to the caller using the callback num- ber. The call is routed through an outbound queue. For details, see our content on queued callback. Parameters:
	 Queue name: Select an existing outbound queue to route the call.
	 Call back CLI/CN: Select a channel number for outbound caller ID. Using the option [Current Channel], you can display the original channel number, which the caller used as the caller ID for

Phone Script Object	Description
	 the callback. This option is selected by default. If you wish to display any other channel number during the callback, you can select from the list of available channels. Dial plan: Select from an existing dial plan.
	 In Callback parameters, select the number of callback tries, specify the delay time between tries in seconds or minutes, and enter the duration (in seconds, minutes, or hours) after which the callback request needs to be canceled.
	• Callback tries: Select the number of attempts to call back. The call failure is determined by the following factors:
	 Agent did not answer the call.
	 Agent answered, but the outbound leg dials out and experiences a busy network. RNA (Ring no answer)
	• Callback retry delay: Specify the callback retry attempts in seconds or minutes.
	 Cancel callback after: Enter the duration in seconds, minutes, or hours. The requested callback remains in an outbound queue for the duration of that time (up to maximum six hours). Any callback attempt is prevented after the time expires. The callback request is removed from the outbound queue after Cancel Callback duration has expired. Exit Points:
	• Callback Queued : Informs the caller that the callback request is queued for further processing.
	 Invalid Phone Number: Informs the caller that the number entered is invalid, and can offer options for further corrective actions.
Forward to voice mail Queue	Use the Forward to voice mail object to transfer phone interactions to a selected voicemail queue. If the Forward to voice mail object is inserted under the overload exit point of a Forward to Queue object, the caller can choose between waiting in the queue or transferring to voicemail. Parameters:
	 In the Object Tag text entry area, type the label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
	 In the Invite Message list, choose the audio file that directs the caller to press 1 to leave a voicemail message.
	The audio file must direct the caller to press 1 to leave a voicemail; no other number will work.

Phone Script Object	Description
	 If the Access to voice mail is mandatory option, described below, is selected, then the IVR script forcibly transfers the call to voicemail. In the Queue name list, choose the voicemail queue that receives calls transferred to voicemail. Select Access to voice mail is mandatory to have the IVR script forcibly transfer calls to the voicemail queue. Exit points: None
Forward to External IVR	 Use the Forward to External IVR object to forward a phone interaction to an external IVR server. This redirects an incoming call to an external SIP URI address, or a phone number, which lands on an external IVR system. You can complete a self-service authentication on an external IVR server, and resume the call as desired by the customer. The entry point for an incoming call remains the 8x8 Contact Center IVR, with external IVR as an additional tree node within it. The object allows data exchange between the external IVR server and the 8x8 Contact Center server through a RESTful API interface. The data flow requires a SIP connection. Parameters: In the Object tag text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. In the Phone number text entry area, type the complete phone number the IVR script dials when transferring a phone interaction. The Phone number text entry area accepts only the numeric characters 0-9. In the United States, phone numbers, must be of the form (1 + three-digit area code + sevendigit phone number). In the United States, when typing numbers into text entry areas, always preface the area code with 1. Outside the United States, must be of the form (Country Code + phone number). Exit points: Resume: Provides the capability to resume within the 8x8 Contact Center IVR tree on detecting a hangup event on the External IVR server, and tedirects a call to a predefined or assigned destination.
Forward to External Number	Use the Forward to external number object to forward a phone interaction to a phone number that is not managed by 8x8 Contact Center. Parameters:

Phone Script Object	Description
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. In the Phone number text entry area, type the complete phone number the IVR script dials when transferring a phone interaction. The Phone number text entry area accepts only the numeric characters 0-9. In the United States, phone numbers, must be of the form (1 + three-digit area code + sevendigit phone number). In the United States, when typing numbers into text entry areas, always preface the area code with 1. Outside the United States, must be of the form (Country Code + phone number). Exit points: None
Label	Use the Label object in combination with the Goto object, described later in this table, to redirect call processing to any location in the IVR script. The Goto object redirects the interaction to the parameter of a Label object. Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. Exit points: None.
Goto	Use the Goto object to redirect the script to continue running at some labeled location in the script. Parameters: In the Destination list, choose a labeled script location. Exit point: None
Set Variable	 The ability to set variables allows programming abilities within IVR scripts, enabling better caller experience. You can use variables to remember the user input and use them to drive the call flow. You can create variables to store values of string and number types, and reference them anywhere and any number of times in the script. 8x8 Contact Center allows two types of variables in IVR: System Variables: These are predefined variables which cannot be edited: \$QueuePosition: Returns the current position of a call within the queue.

_

Phone	
Script	Description
Object	 \$callerPhoneNumber: Returns the caller's phone number based on caller ID. \$callbackPhoneNumber: Returns the call back number input by the caller. User-Defined Variables: These are variables defined by users. You can initialize these variables with a certain value, and modify them later. Parameters: Object Tag: Enter a label to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Variable: Select a predefined variable from the drop-down list, or create a new variable.
	 Value: Select a desired value for the variable. For example, to offer callers suitable choices based on the queue position, set a variable and check: If the queue position is greater than 10, offer to call back when an agent is available. If the queue position is less than 10, play promotional messages and retain callers in the queue. Exit Points: None
Test Vari- able	The Test Variable object allows you to test an already defined variable and test it against a set value. To test a variable, select either a system variable or a user-defined variable, and test it against a spe- cific value. For example, test how many calls are ahead of a call using the system variable \$QueuePos- ition. If there are more than ten calls ahead of this call, announce the position to the caller, and offer the caller to receive a call back. If there are fewer than 10 calls ahead of this call, keep the caller in the queue. To access the Test Variable object within the script, click Add next to a node, and select the Test Vari- able object from the Insert Object list. Exit Points:
	 True: equals true if it meets the condition set for the variable
	 False: equals true If it does not meet the set condition
Randomize	The Randomize object allows us to randomly pick callers and offer a different treatment from the norm. For example, in a customer survey program, you may want to randomly select 50% of callers, and direct them to a survey. You will need to use the randomize object that randomly picks callers and offers a specific treatment based on the path chosen. Parameters:
	Object tag: Enter the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR Script.
	Path A Percentage: Slide the pointer on the scale to indicate the percentage of callers to be

Phone Script Object	Description
	directed to the Path A treatment. Exit Points:
	 Path A: Allows you define the treatment for callers randomly directed to path A. Path B: Allows you to define the treatment for callers not chosen for path A.
Hang up	Use the Hang up object to disconnect a phone interaction. The IVR disconnects a phone interaction if the call has not been forwarded to a queue, voicemail, or an external number, and the script flow contains no further script objects. In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script. Exit points: None
Default Ter- mination	 The IVR tree has two objects: Main IVR Default Terminating Node The default terminating node is the last node in the IVR tree, and cannot be deleted from the tree. You can only add and remove IVR objects between the first and last nodes. The Default Terminating node catches all calls that would drop on reaching a non-terminating exit criterion, such as Play or Label in the IVR script, and routes them with four exit options: Forward to Queue: Directs the call to a queue Forward to Voice Mail: Directs the call to a voicemail queue
	 Forward to External Number: Forwards the call to an external phone number Hang up: Terminates the call
IVR phone script examples

An 8x8 Contact Center IVR script plays audio files to prompt a caller for information and uses the caller's responses to route the interaction to a specific phone queue.

The following procedure illustrates scripts in 8x8 Configuration Manager that contain increasingly complex combinations of IVR script objects and control flow features:

- Build a Simple Greeting and Routing Script
- Create Menus of Options
- Use Caller Information to Process Interactions
- Enable a Phone Channel and Associated IVR Script

Before you begin

The procedure in this section assumes that you have used 8x8 Configuration Manager to create:

- At least one phone queue; for details on creating phone queues, refer to Create Inbound Phone Queues.
- At least one voicemail queue; for details on creating voicemail queues, refer to Create Voicemail Queues.
- At least one contact center schedule; for details on creating schedules, refer to Define Business Hours and Schedules.



Best Practice: Before editing a 8x8 Contact Center IVR script, disable the IVR channel.

To disable the phone channel:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the Phone tab.
- 3. Find the desired channel, and click
- 4. In the Properties tab, clear This channel is enabled.
- 5. Click Save.

Build a Simple Greeting and Routing Script

Perform the procedure in this section to build a simple IVR script that:

- Checks a schedule for the contact center's current hours of operation.
- Plays a greeting message to the caller.
- Routes the call to a queue if the contact center is open.
- Offers the caller the chance to leave a voicemail message if the contact center is closed.

To select a schedule, play a greeting, and route a call to a queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to the Phone tab.
- 3. Find the desired script, and click
- 4. Open the Script tab.
- 5. Click an object to see [add].
- 6. In the object add list, select **Schedule**.
- 7. In the object configuration area:
 - a. For the Label text entry area, type <BusHours>.
 - b. For the Select Schedule list, choose a previously defined schedule.

c. Click Save.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Schedule object below the MainIVR label.



- 8. If a call arrives when the contact center is open, play a greeting message:
 - a. In the Schedule object, select the open exit point.
 - b. In the object Add list, choose Play.
 - c. In the **Name** text entry area, type <PlayWait01>.
 - d. In the Played Message list, choose Wait for next agent.

The procedure refers to audio files from the 8x8 Contact Center default set of audio files. Your IVR scripts may reference one or more default audio files, or reference the customized audio files you uploaded to 8x8 Configuration Manager.

e. Click OK.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Play object below the open exit point.

- 9. Choose the queue that the caller is routed to.
 - a. Select the Play object under schedule.
 - b. Click add.
 - c. Select Forward to Queue.
 - d. In the Label text entry area, type < PhoneQ01>.

- e. In the Queue name list, choose a phone queue.
- f. Click OK.

8x8

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Forward to Queue object below the Play object.

- 10. If the call arrives when the contact center is closed, route the call to a voicemail queue.
 - a. In the Schedule object, select the closed exit point, then in the object selection list, choose Forward to Voice Mail Queue.
 - b. In the Label text entry area, type <Vmail01>.
 - c. In the Invite Message list, choose Voice mail invite.
 - d. In the Queue name list, choose a voicemail queue.
 - e. Select Access to voice mail is mandatory.
 - f. Click OK.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Forward to Voice Mail Queue object below the Close label.

Home Security	Scripts » Phone » Script		
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Support Script < Back to script list Properties Script		
CRM Support	Script	Save	Revert Cancel
Center	ė̃⊷ «∕> MainIVR		
Center Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes	 Definition of the second secon	Edit object Forward to Voice Mai	X Queue
Transaction Codes	#1 #2	Object tag :	VMQ
	#3	Invite message :	Agent voice mail invite 🔍
Outbound Phone Codes	#4 #5	This message will permit not set.	t to stay in previous queue if mandatory is
Wallboard	#6	Queue name :	Support Voicemail 🔹
Chat design	<>> DefaultTermination [Hang Up]		Access to voice mail is mandatory
		C	OK Cancel

Create Menus of Options

The procedure in this section illustrates how to implement menus of options, and builds on the IVR script example in Build a Simple Greeting and Routing Script.

To script a set of menu options:

- 1. In the script you created in the procedure in Build a Simple Greeting and Routing Script, delete the current open hours script logic. In the script:
 - a. Select the **Forward to queue** object <PhoneQ01>, then click **Remove**.
 - b. Select the **Play** object <PlayWait01>, then click **Remove**.
- 2. When the contact center is open, play a menu of options.
 - a. In the schedules object, select the open exit point.
 - b. In the object add list, choose Menu.
 - c. In the Label text entry area, type <OpenMenu01>.
 - d. In the Invite Message list, choose Optional queue Selection.

When a caller first connects to the contact center, the Menu object's Invite message audio file orients them to the set of menu choices. In most cases, this implies the need for an invite message that has been customized for your contact center.

e. In the Invalid message list, choose Invalid selection.

If a caller provides an invalid response to the invite message, the Invalid message audio file informs them that 8x8 Contact Center cannot interpret their response.

f. In the Empty message list, choose Wait for next agent.

If a caller does not respond to the prompt within ten seconds, the Empty message audio file informs them to respond.

g. Click OK.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Menu object below the Open label.



- 3. Configure the message played when the caller responds to the initial menu by pressing 1:
 - a. In the **Menu** object, select the **1** exit point.
 - b. In the object selection list, choose Play.
 - c. In the Label text entry area, type <CallRecordWarn>.
 - d. In the Played message list choose the Call monitoring warning audio file.
 - e. Click Save.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Play object below exit point labeled 1.

- 4. Configure the queue the caller is routed to if they respond to the initial menu by pressing 1:
 - a. In the Menu object and under the 1 exit point, select the Play object.
 - b. In the object add list, choose Forward to queue.
 - c. In the Name text entry area, type < PhoneQ02>.
 - d. In the Queue name list, select a phone queue.

e. Click OK.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Forward to Queue object below exit point labeled 1.



5. Continue to the next example, Use Caller Information to Process Interactions, to build on this script.

Use Caller Information to Process Interactions

Use the procedure in this section to prompt a caller for information that is used to find a caller's record in the Local CRM database, then use information contained in that record to determine how to route the call. The following procedure builds on the IVR script example in Create Menus of Options.

To create an IVR script that prompts a caller, tests for the caller's Local CRM record, and routes the call:

1. Prompt the caller for information, such as an account number. In the **Menu** script object, select the exit point labeled **2**, then in the object selection list, choose **Get Value**.

8x8 Contact Center displays the parameters for the GetValue object in the object configuration area:

- a. In the Label text entry area, type <GetAccountNumber>.
- b. In the Invite Message list, choose Enter mandatory account number.
- c. In the Invalid message list, choose Invalid selection.
- d. In the Empty message list, choose Invalid selection.

- e. In the Data to collect list, choose Customers: Account Number.
- f. Select Entry is mandatory.
- g. Click OK.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Get Value object below the exit point labeled 2.

Home Security	Scripts » Phone » Script		
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Support Script < Back to script list Properties Script		
CRM	Script	Save	Revert Cancel
Support Center	ė		
Outbound Setup	 □-	Edit object	×
Campaigns	- 0	Get Value	
Broadcast	⊡- 1 — ▶ Play [CallRecordWarn]	Object tag :	GetAcctNumber
Integration	in gueue [SupportQ]	Invite message :	Enter mandatory account 🔻
Status Codes	queue timeout	This message will be played wh	
Transaction	overload	Invalid message :	Invalid mandatory accoun 🔻
Codes	i⊡ 2 i⊡ I≣ Get Value [GetAcctNumber] [edit ad	This message will be played if t	
Outbound	- contact found	Empty message :	Enter mandatory account 🔻
Phone Codes	empty too many invalid	This message will be played if t	
Wallboard	- 3	Data to collect :	customers: Account Num 🔻
Chat design	4		Entry is mandatory
		OK	Cancel
	7		
	- 8		

You can also use the GetANI script object to look in the Local CRM for existing customers.

- 2. Add a **Label** object to the portion of the script that processes customer accounts.
 - a. In the GetValue object, select the Contact found exit point.
 - b. In the object add list, choose Label.
 - c. In the Label text entry area, type <AcctFound>.
 - d. Click OK.

Labeling the portion of the script that processes customer account interactions enables other script objects to use the Goto script object to transfer control jump to that portion of the IVR script.

- Check the customer's status. Select the Label object, then in the object selection list choose Picklist.
 8x8 Contact Center displays the parameters for the Picklist object. In the object configuration area:
 - a. In the Label text entry area, type <ChkCustID>.
 - b. In the Data to test list, choose Record Type.
 - c. In the Select operator list, choose Is equal to.

- d. In the Select values list, choose Customer.
- e. Click OK.

8x8

The 8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Picklist object below the found label.

- The configuration of your Local CRM determines the types of data the Picklist script object can test for.
- Use the Picklist script object's matched and unmatched labels to use the result of the Picklist's comparison
 operation to route the call.
- The Label script object enables other objects to use a Goto script object to transfer control to the Picklist script sequence.
- You can also use the GetANI function to use the caller's Automatic Number Identification (ANI) to look for existing Local CRM data.

Enable a Phone Channel and Associated IVR Script

Perform the following procedure to enable a phone channel and the channel's IVR script.

To enable the Phone channel:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the Phone tab.
- 3. Find the desired channel, and click
- In the Properties tab, select This channel is enabled.
 For details, refer to Configure Phone Channel Properties.
- 5. Click Save.

8x8 Contact Center puts the IVR channel and associated script into service.

You can now make test phone calls to the phone channel to validate the operation of the IVR script.

Copy and paste IVR script objects

While defining or editing an 8x8 Contact Center IVR script in 8x8 Configuration Manager, 8x8 Contact Center administrators have the flexibility to copy and paste IVR script objects, reducing the time spent writing the script. You can use the copy and paste icons to copy any part of the IVR tree and paste it to a desired area. You must then apply the changes for them to take effect. The copy-and-paste feature is especially useful if you introduce similar call treatments with slight variations. You can write once, and copy as many times as you desire within the script.

To copy and paste a part of the IVR object:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to the Phone tab.
- 3. Find a script and click
- 4. Go to the **Script** tab.

Home	Scripts » Phone » Script
Security	
Agent Groups	
Agents	Support Script
Queues/Skills	
Channels	< Back to script list
Scripts	Properties Script
CRM	Context
Support	Script Save Revert
Center	⇔ «> MainIVR
Outbound	i⊟-
Setup	ion ≡ Menu [OpenMenu]
Campaigns	0
Broadcast	⊖- 1 > Play [CallRecordWarn]
Integration	🖻 🎎 Forward to Queue [SupportQ] [edit add copy move up remove]
Status Codes	in queue
Transaction	overload
Codes	
Outbound	⊡- III Get Value [GetAcctNumber]
Phone Codes	- empty

5. Select an object, and click **Copy**.

- 6. Select an IVR tree node you wish to paste the copied object to.
- 7. Click Paste. The segment is pasted immediately.
- 8. Click **Save** to apply the changes.

OR

Click **Revert** to remove all changes since the last save.

Create inbound phone scripts

8x8 Contact Center inbound phone scripts are grouped under **Scripts > Phone** in 8x8 Configuration Manager. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can create a user-defined script or use the system default script:

System default script

IVR script default: The default phone script provided by the system. You can copy and then edit the default script when creating a new user-defined script.

User-defined script

A phone script created by the user. It can be Inbound phone, Outbound phone, or Post Call Survey script. You can create, edit, or delete a user-defined phone script by going to **Scripts > Phone**.

To create or edit a user-defined phone IVR script:

- From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
 Scripts are grouped by media in separate tabs: Phone, Chat, Email, and Social.
- 2. Go to the **Phone** tab.
- 3. Click or Add new phone script.
- Enter the properties for the phone script.
 The following table summarizes the options under Scripts > Phone > Properties:

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
Script Type	 Phone: Select a script type: Inbound phone, Post Call Survey, or Outbound phone. Chat and Email: A read-only reminder of the script type. It displays if it is a phone, chat, or email script.

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
Script Name	Enter a unique name for the script.
Category	A category helps you organize your scripts better. For example, if you have multiple scripts serving Support and Sales needs, you can group scripts under separate categories. You can select an existing category or create a new one. To create a new category:
	 Select Edit Categories from the drop-down menu. In the Category dialog box, add a new category by clicking .
Copy script from	Choose this option to place a copy of the default or an existing IVR script into this channel. This option appears when you are creating a new script.
Comment	Add comments or additional notes, if desired.
This script is enabled	Select to place this script definition into service.
Assigned Channels /Assigned Queues	 When you select Script Type > Outbound Phone, you must assign one or more new outbound phone queues. When you select Script Type > Post Call Survey or Script Type > Inbound phone, you must assign one or more channels to the script.
	Note: It is not mandatory to assign a channel while creating a script.
	To assign new channels:
	1. Click on the link to bring up the list of channels.
	2. Select the desired channels from the list.
	3. Click Assign .

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description	
		Note: All channels in the list are associated with a script whether default or user-defined. If you assign and save a new script, the old script is permanently replaced by the new selected script.
		Note: It is recommended to restrict your assignment to 100 channels at a time.

5. Click Save.

Upon saving the properties, 8x8 Configuration Manager takes you to the Script tab, where you can define the script.

6. In the **Script** tab, click **MainIVR**.

The [add] option appears.

- Add the desired IVR Objects such as Schedule, Check ANI, and Get Value.
 See Summary of Phone IVR Script Objects for the complete list of available objects and their description.
- 8. Click Save.
- 9. To edit the details, click any object and select **edit**. An edit window opens up. To view the details, double-click any object. The View details window appears. You can also click **edit** from inside the View details window.
- To undo the changes click **Revert**.
 For a primer on writing IVR scripts, refer to the guide on Interactive Voice Response for samples, refer to IVR Phone Script Examples.
- 11. Click the on the script page to generate a PDF image and save it locally. The PDF printout is generated containing the script name, date, and time of print. Supervisors and administrators can review and modify the script as needed.



Note: When creating or modifying a script, disable the script by clearing **This script is enabled** in the channel's **Properties** tab. This ensures that 8x8 Contact Center does not run an incomplete script. After completing the script, enable it again.

Create outbound phone scripts

In many contact centers, queued inbound calls are more important than queued outbound calls. In situations where there is an ample supply of 8x8 Contact Center queued outbound calls waiting, all agents are kept busy all of the time. When a new inbound call comes in, chances are, the caller has to wait for an agent to finish their less important outbound call. Using an outbound phone script, you can now reserve a number of agents, in the available and idle state, to improve the probability of quickly attending to a new inbound call. While there are fewer than the assigned number of reserved available and idle agents, no queued outbound calls will be presented to agents. Whenever the available and idle agent idle agent will receive a queued outbound call.

Reserve idle agents for inbound queues

In 8x8 Contact Center, to improve handling of inbound queues when queued outbound calls are less important, administrators must define an outbound phone script in 8x8 Configuration Manager and assign it to an outbound phone queue. In the outbound phone script, specify the inbound queue you wish to prioritize and the number of reserved agents at a time to be prevented from handling queued outbound calls.

÷//

.

Note: This feature only applies to outbound calls that are assigned to go through an outbound queue. a click-to-dial call is a direct outbound call that does not go through a real outbound queue.

To reserve agents for an inbound queue:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Scripts**. Scripts are grouped by media in separate tabs: Phone, Chat, and Email.
- 2. Go to the Phone tab and click Add new phone script.

3. In Script type drop-down menu, select Outbound phone.



- 4. Enter a Script name for the script.
- 5. In **Assigned Queues**, link the outbound phone script to the outbound phone queue the agents are going to serve, and click **Save**.
- 6. Go to the Script tab.
- 7. In Test Queue, select the inbound phone queue you like to protect and test the availability of its agents.
- 8. Specify the Number of agents to reserve and save.

Home	Scripts » Friorie » Script						
Security Agent Groups							
Agents Queues/Skills Channels	Sales Phone Outbound						
Scripts	Properties Script						
CRM Support	Script Save Cancel						
Center	* Test queue	Sales Inbound 🔍					
Outbound Setup	Select the phone queue you would like to test the availability of agents						
Campaigns	* Number of agents to reserve	10 (0-100)					
Broadcast	Outbound interactions will be offered						
Integration	to the longest idle agent only if there are more than the number of						
Status Codes	reserved agents available						
Transaction Codes							

Whenever an outbound interaction such as a customer callback needs to be made, it will be offered to the longest idle agent only if there are enough reserved idle agents for that queue. For example, if you designate four agents as reserved in an inbound queue, the outbound interaction will be offered to the longest idle agent whenever the fifth agent becomes available in the queue.

Assign scripts to channels

An 8x8 Contact Center chat script defines the behavior from the time a website visitor enters the website, initiates and completes a chat. For details on chat scripts, refer to Create a Chat Script. For a chat channel to be operational, 8x8 Contact Center administrators must link it to a chat script that defines the chat flow process.

You can assign a script to the channel in 8x8 Configuration Manager in two ways:

- From the Scripts page
- From the Channels page

From the scripts page

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to a media tab, such as Phone, Email, or Chat.
- 3. Select a script from the list, and double-click to open.
- In the Properties tab, click Assigned Channels. The list of existing channels appears.
- 5. Select a desired channel, and click **Assign**.

From the channels page

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to a media tab, such as Phone, Email, or Chat.
- 3. Select a channel from the list, and double-click to open.
- 4. In the **Properties** tab, select a script from the list of scripts.



Note: In phone and email channels, a default script is automatically assigned if you do not select any user-defined scripts.

5. Click Save.

Enable Direct Agent Routing (DAR)

8x8 Contact Center's Direct Agent Routing (DAR) is a powerful and flexible set of script functions to allow agent's call handling. In addition to legacy DAA call handling, DAR provides a powerful and flexible set of script functions which allows refined selection and control of calls to be directed to an individual agent. The following new Direct Agent Routing (DAR) objects and enhancements are introduced in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- Get Value is extended to be able to capture an agent's assigned DAA number. The caller is prompted to input a valid DAA number which is then validated.
- Set Agent finds agents based on:
 - Channel linked to Direct-In-Dial (DID) number
 - Look up Local CRM for case created by, case last worked by, and case assigned to
 - Set a fix agent selection
- Transfer to Agent directs a call to an agent. It can be used in conjunction with Set Agent to find an agent or by itself. This supports separate logic as why a call may not reach the target agent depending on the agent's real-time state.
- Transfer to Agent Voicemail transfers call to an agent's voicemail typically if Transfer to Agent is not successful.

DAA call handling constraints

The following list presents the DAA constraints which are now overcome by the new DAR.

- DAA requires callers to enter an agent's DAA number exclusively during IVR Menu treatments.
- DAA calls are always presented to an agent regardless of the agent's current state.
- Unanswered DAA calls may be directed to an agent's voicemail with primitive opt-out controls.
- Queue calls are presented to agents who are Available even if they are on a DAA call.
- Forward to Agent logic is difficult to comprehend due to its implied action within IVR Menus.

Features

- Identify the agent the customer should talk to based on:
 - Who created the case associated with the customer
 - Who is assigned to the case
 - Who last worked on the case
 - Agent DID number that was shared with the customer
- Transfer the customer call to the right agent based on agent status, and change agent status to busy after accepting the call
- Control agent's status during a DAR Call
- Allow the caller to leave a voicemail for the agent if the agent is not available
- Allow caller to take an option to divert if they prefer not to leave a voicemail
- Ability to adjust post-processing time for direct-to-agent calls from five seconds to a maximum of 60 minutes

Limitations

DAR calls do not yet support Transaction Codes.

Requirements

The 8x8 Contact Center agent must be assigned a Direct Access Number to be eligible for Direct Agent Routing. For details on setting up Direct Agent Routing, see our content on creating user-defined phone IVR scripts.

Process flow for direct agent routing

A typical process flow for Direct Agent Routing involves the following steps:

- Get input such as case ID or Account number (GetValue) from the caller or caller ID (Check ANI). The system then searches CRM for matching records.
- 2. On finding a matching customer or case record, pick agent who worked on the case or created the case or is assigned to the case. For details on options, refer to Set Agent object.
- 3. If agent is found, transfer the call to the agent. You can transfer to agent irrespective of agent's current status

OR



4. If agent is not available, transfer to agent's voicemail.

The following table summarizes the new DAR objects:

DAR Object	Description
Set Agent	Set Agent object facilitates direct agent routing. Before using Set Agent object in your script, you must
	get value (account number or case number) from the caller or check ANI. If these objects succeed in
	finding a match, you can then use Set Agent object to pick the agent you wish to reach based on the
	following parameters.
	 Case created by: Find the agent who created the case.
	 Case last worked by: Find the agent who last worked on the case.
	 Case assigned to: Find the agent who is assigned to the case.
	 Channel linked to: Find the agent who is linked to the channel the call was channeled through. Use this option to direct an incoming call to an agent directly.
	 None: Find an agent by name. By selecting this option, you can select a specific agent to direct the call to using Fix Agent.
	 Fix Agent: Click the Choose Agent link and select an agent from the list.
Transfer	The Transfer to Agent object connects the caller to the agent.

DAR Object	Description
to Agent	-Use this object with Set Agent. For this to work, you must have picked an agent using Set Agent.

to Agent	-ose this object with set Agent. For this to work, you must have picked an agent using set Agent.
	-Use this object without Set Agent to transfer calls directly to the agent with a personal channel. The agent must be assigned with a personal channel.
	Transfer to Agent object provides options which support transferring a call to agent even if status is:
	busy
	 on break
	 working offline
	 logged off
	If you do not select any option, then the call is transferred only if the agent status is Available.
Transfer to Agent Voicemail	This object allows a caller to leave a voicemail for an agent. It assumes the agent is already chosen using Set Agent object or Get Value object.
Get Value	Use the Get Value object to request the caller to provide an agent's extension number. On selecting this option, the checkbox 'Entry is mandatory' is checked automatically and greyed out. You will be given the option to set the maximum length of extension. By default, it takes 8 digits.

Generate report on direct agent calls

The agent is not offered any post-processing activity for a DAA call. 8x8 Contact Center supervisors can track DAA calls through the Detailed Transactions Activity report.

To generate the Detailed Transactions Activity report:

- 1. In 8x8 Agent Console, select Report from the menu.
- 2. Generate a report using the existing reporting template.
- 3. Select New Report on the top right corner.
- 4. Select Detailed Transaction Activity master report from the list.
- 5. Click Next.
- 6. Enter the desired data and time range.
- 7. Click Selection Window and select the desired queues.

8. Select Save and Run.

A new report generates and opens in Excel. Look under **Type** to find DAA calls.

Detailed tran	sactions activit	W.							
Period: 08/2:	L/2014 - 08/27/	2014							
Granularity: day Report Generated on: 08/28/2014 15:34:47									
Period		Original Transaction	Media	Create time	Direction	Туре	Channel	Queue	
8/22/2014	57		Phone	8/22/2014 22:36	inbound		5	52111 phq1in	
8/22/2014	58		Phone	8/22/2014 22:37	inbound		5	52111 phq1in	
8/22/2014	59		Phone	8/22/2014 22:37	inbound	DAA	5	52111	
8/24/2014	69		Phone	8/24/2014 21:18	inbound	DAA	5	52111	
8/24/2014	70		Phone	8/24/2014 21:19	inbound		5	52111 phq1in	
8/24/2014	71		Phone	8/24/2014 21:20	outbound				

Enable Text to speech

The 8x8 Contact Center IVR engine converts text to speech using the Say object in 8x8 Configuration Manager. The Say object relays static free text or dynamic value of a variable (phone number, queue position) to the caller. These text to speech announcements can play dynamic or static data in multiple languages.

Features

- Convert static text or dynamic value of a variable to speech using the Say object in IVR.
- Announce text to speech in multiple languages.
- Offer basic and prime text to speech services.

8x8 Contact Center offers two levels of Text to Speech service with the following options:

- Basic Text to Speech
- Prime Text to Speech

Text to Speech Options	Basic	Prime
Languages	English (US), French, Italian, German, Span- ish	40+ For a list of language supported, click here.
Voices	1	60+
Datatype	Not supported	digit, number, phone, currency,date, time
Character limit	130	210
Number of Say instances allowed in IVR	unlimited	unlimited

Languages Supported in Prime

- Arabic
- Bahasa
- Basque
- Cantonese

- Catalan
- Czech
- Danish
- Dutch
- English (AU)
- English (GB)
- English (India)
- English (Ireland)
- English (Scotland)
- English (South Africa)
- English (US)
- Finnish
- French (Canada)
- Galician
- German
- Greek
- Hebrew
- Hindi
- Hungarian
- Italian
- Japanese
- Korean
- Mandarin (China)
- Mandarin (Taiwan)
- Norwegian
- Polish
- Portugese (Brazil)
- Portugese (Portugal)
- Romanian
- Russian

- 8x8
 - Slovak
 - Spanish (Castillan)
 - Spanish (Columbia)
 - Spanish (Mexico)
 - Swedish
 - Thai
 - Turkish
 - Valencian

Enable Queued Callback

The 8x8 Contact Center Queued Callback allows callers waiting in a call queue to opt out of the queue and be called back when an agent becomes available. This feature which is configured in 8x8 Configuration Manager, detects the caller phone number or allows the caller to input the callback number before exiting the queue. The system offers an outbound call to an available agent serving the queue. When the agent accepts the call, the call is dialed out to the caller using the callback number. The call is routed through an outbound queue.

Features

- Allows callers to opt out of the queue and be called back when an agent becomes available.
- Detects the caller phone number, or allows the caller to input the callback number before exiting the queue.
- Caller can input the desired callback number or caller's phone number (ANI) is used.
- Callback is initiated as soon as an agent is available.

Use case

At AcmeHealth, callers have an option to avoid long call waiting times and receive a call back from the advise nurse team for a better experience. In addition to the exit choices of operator assistance and leaving a message for the care team, the caller is given a choice to be called back by the advise nurse team. If a caller opts to be called back, they are prompted to input the call back phone number. This number is then restated for confirmation. The following diagram shows the updated call flow for Queued Callback.



To enable call back, 8x8 Contact Center IVR offers the following scripting capabilities.

- Get Value supports an additional parameter to collect caller's phone number
- Callback object supports calling the customer back after the caller exits the queue, by initiating an outbound call when an agent serving the queue is available.

Add Callback option to IVR

To add a callback option to the existing IVR script:

- 1. Follow the steps 1 through 3 explained in In-Queue Treatments and Controls.
- 2. Modify the Say statement that announces the exit queue choices to include the option for callback.

3. Under Get Digit, add an option to Get Value. For Data to Collect, select customers: Phone Number.



- 4. Add a few Say statements to announce the call back number input by the caller.
- 5. With Get Digit choices, allow the caller to confirm the phone number or prompt to enter the phone number again.
- 6. Add a label for callback execution.
- 7. Under the label for Callback, add the Call back object and select the following parameters:
 - Queue name: Select an existing outbound queue to route the call.
 - Call back ANI: Select a channel number for outbound caller ID.
 - Dial plan: Select from an existing dial plan.
 - **Expiration time**: Set an expiration time for call back. After the specified period, the call back is abandoned.
 - Under Dial back parameters, you can specify the number of retries and the duration for time out.
 - **Try to reach callback party**: Select the number of attempts to call back. The call failure is determined by the following factors:
 - Agent did not answer the call.
 - Agent answered, but the outbound leg dials out and experiences a busy network.
 - RNA (Ring no answer)
 - Minimum delay between tries: Specify the time delay between tries.

8x8

374



Cancel callback after: Enter the duration after which call back request needs to be canceled.

8. Save the script and assign it to a channel.

Enable Post Call Survey

A Post Call Survey is a questionnaire presented to the caller at the end of a call, typically to collect feedback about the quality of service offered by the company. Companies use a survey to gather feedback from customers, and analyze the collected data to help improve their services. You can get feedback on the overall product quality or service quality, get to know the customer satisfaction, and take corrective actions. Here are a few typical survey questions:

- Customer Satisfaction: "How satisfied are you with the overall experience of our service?"
- Agent Performance: "How do you rate the service quality of the agent who served you on the call?"
- First Call Resolution: "Was the issue resolved at first call or did you call more than once?"
- Net Promoter Score: "Would you recommend our service to your family or friends?"

Features

- Offers a questionnaire to the caller at the end of a call to collect feedback about the quality of service.
- Provides IVR-controlled surveys which are defined by an IVR script. The behavior and questions in IVR-controlled surveys are not controlled by agents.
- Provides agent-assisted surveys which are offered by agents via transferring a call to an inbound phone queue or a dedicated Post Call Survey channel.
- Provides stand-alone/Independent surveys which are taken by customers voluntarily and is directed to the survey from a web page.
- Offers surveys to callers while they are on a call, at the end of the call, or call back at a later time.
- Presents survey questions as scale, yes/no, and voice comment questions.

For details about use cases and survey questions, see our 8x8 Contact Center Post Call Survey User Guide.

Enhanced Data Augmentation

In 8x8 Contact Center, data collected by External CRMs and third party integrations can now be used in a meaningful way. The 8x8 Data Augmentation API allows you to tie data between external applications and call data. It facilitates greater resolution on what drives call volumes and handling times. Prior to this release, the two nodes: 8x8 IVR, and forward to external IVR, have been limited in terms of data variables.

Features

- Allows 8x8 customers to tie data between external applications and call data.
- Facilitates routing calls to the correct queues based on data collected.
- Drives down call misroutes and call handling times.
- Results in richer data and better insights in 8x8 Analytics for Contact Center.

Use cases

The followings are some common use cases for Data Augmentation:

- Route calls to queues by name, ID, or intention of the call
- Use for advanced Auto Attendant systems
- Route to different stores, locations, or offices
- Route to the last agent who handled the call previously (by integrating to a system that recorded the last interaction)

An example workflow

- 1. A variable is created based on the call flow or data need.
- 2. Call arrives at the 8x8 Contact Center.
- 3. The call is then forwarded to external IVR (eIVR).
- eIVR asks questions or queries a background integration or CRM, based on caller inputs.
- 5. The intent of the call is assessed by eIVR.

- 6. eIVR assigns a queue ID value to the call.
- 7. eIVR posts the queue ID value to VCC API.
- 8. Calls are terminated in eIVR.

8x8

- 9. The call is resumed in VCC with the queue ID value assigned.
- 10. A phone script tests to see if the variable matches.
- 11. The call is then routed to a queue based on data collected from eIVR.



Steps to forward calls to an external IVR (eIVR)

The following steps explain how you can forward calls to an external IVR such as intelligent IVR. Using the phone script in the 8x8 Configuration Manager, forward an incoming call to the external IVR, assign a queue ID inside the intelligent IVR, check the queue ID inside the phone script, and forward the call to the right queue. Step 1: Forward calls to an external IVR

When a call comes in to a Contact Center channel, the first step is to forward the call to an external IVR. In the 8x8 Configuration Manager, go to **Scripts > Phone** to create or edit a new script. For details, see our documents on how to create an inbound phone script. When creating or editing a phone script, use the Forward to External IVR object to forward the phone interaction to an external IVR server such as intelligent IVR.

- 1. Go to Scripts from the main menu in 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Select Phone > Add new phone script.
- 3. In the Script tab, add Forward to External IVR.
 - In the Object tag text entry area, type the alphanumeric label such as iIVR.
 Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an IVR script.
 - In the Phone number text entry area, type the complete phone number the IVR script dials when transferring a phone interaction.

The Phone number text entry area accepts only the numeric characters 0-9.

 In the United States, phone numbers, must be of the form (1 + three-digit area code + seven-digit phone number).

In the United States, when typing numbers into text entry areas, always preface the area code with 1.

- Outside the United States, must be of the form (Country Code + phone number).
- 4. Click OK.

8×8			名 Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout		
Home Security	Scripts » Phone » Script							
Agent Groups								
Users Queues/Skills	Acmelets							
Channels	< Back to script list							
Scr pts	Properties Script							
Outbound	Script	Save	Revert Cancel		View Variab	les		
Setup Campaigns Broadcast	B- resume							
Integration	··· 💬 Say [iIVR return greeting] 白 성 Test Variable [test queue ID] 다 True	Edit object	×					
Status Codes Transaction	i⊖- ≵ Forward to Queue [adfs] in queue	Forward To External IV	R					
Codes		Object tag : Phone number :	iIVR 999-999-9999					
Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	False DefaultTermination [Hang Up]</th <th>NOTE: To avoid capturing for example account num number of a third party IV DTMF tones sent whilst th</th> <th>any sensitive data being typed into the IVR, bers or bank card numbers, add a phone R to the 8x8 Blacklist. This will ensure that at IVR is executing are not reported in the</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	NOTE: To avoid capturing for example account num number of a third party IV DTMF tones sent whilst th	any sensitive data being typed into the IVR, bers or bank card numbers, add a phone R to the 8x8 Blacklist. This will ensure that at IVR is executing are not reported in the					
, in the second s		when the transfer is made	at call recording is automatically turned off Id they can arrange to add your number to					
		ОК	Cancel					

Step 2: Assign a queue ID inside the external IVR

Within the external IVR such as intelligent IVR application, the caller selects a menu choice that assigns a queue ID or variable, then sends the call back to the 8x8 IVR. The queue ID can be assigned based on:

- An integration between 8x8 and eIVR solutions
- A menu selection
- The caller identity verification

The simple menu below shows the selection to attach the variable. The caller selects 1 or 2 to be directed to either the Sales or Support queue. A queue ID is assigned and the call is sent back to the Contact Center. Inside the intelligent IVR integration, multiple variables can be attached based on the customer needs, such as queue names or phone numbers. 8x8 uses the basic authentication method or SIP call ID as the primary key to correctly identify the caller and apply the right variable to the call.



Step 3: Check the queue ID in the 8x8 phone script

When the call returns to the 8x8 IVR, it goes back to the **resume** path with variables attached. Resume provides the capability to resume within the Contact Center IVR tree on detecting a hang-up event on the external IVR server, and redirects a call to a predefined or assigned destination. For details, see our content regarding how to Forward to External IVR.
8×8			ది Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Home	Scripts » Phone » Script					(j)
Security Agent Groups Users Queues/Sails Channels Scripts CRM Outbound Status Campaigns Broadcast Intergration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Outbound Chat design	Acmelets	Save Revert C	ancel View V	Variables		ي

Use the phone script **Test Variable** object to run a simple variable test with a true or false statement. If the queue ID matches the variable assigned in the external IVR, the call is routed to the correct queue. You can also check a call by name or a phone number. The simple task below shows the ability to take action based on a variable returned by 8x8 Data Augmentation API:

- 1. In the Script tab, add the Test Variable Object.
- 2. Set the **Condition** and use the newly created variables in the Test Variable. To test a variable, select either a system variable or a user-defined variable, and test it against a specific value. For example, you can test the position of your call in the queue, the caller phone number, or the call back phone number by selecting a system variable. Type \$ to list the system variables or type _ to list user variables. For details see Test Variable object.
- 3. Click OK.

Edit object		×
Test Variable		
Object tag :	Test queueID	
Condition :	_queueld (num/str) v = v 103	-
Type \$ to list the system varia	oles or type _ to list user variables.	
Expression Preview :	_queueld = "103" OK Cancel	

Step 4: Forward the call to the right queue

If the variable test is passed, we forward the call to the correct queue within the same script using the Forward to Queue object.

- 1. In the Script tab, add the Forward to Queue Object.
- 2. Enter the Object tag, Queue timeout, and Queue Condition. For details, see Forward to Queue object.
- 3. Click OK.

8x8

8x8				ළු Robin Shasta (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Home	Scripts » Phone » Script							()
Security Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills Channels Soripts CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Utbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Acmelets C Back to script list Properties Script C Corport C Corport C Corport C C Corport C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Save	Revert	Cancel	Vi	sw Variables		<u>*</u>

Create a chat script

An 8x8 Contact Center chat script defines the path of a chat interaction from its initiation until it is accepted by an agent. Using chat scripts, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can define how to present a chat, when to present it, what information they need to collect before initiating the chat, and which queue to direct the chat interaction to. They can create a new script and assign it to any number of channels. Chat scripts are grouped under Scripts > Chat in 8x8 Configuration Manager. The enhanced chat script allows you to design and control the chat flow in a contact center. To see the chat workflow diagram, refer to Chat Overview.

Let's say Bob, a contact center administrator at AcmeJets, wants to define a chat workflow that allows website visitors to initiate a chat with friendly representatives from his company. To enable a smooth chat flow, Bob must create a chat script that enables the following workflow:

 Allow web page visitors during business hours to click the chat button and initiate a chat. OR

Invite visitors to chat once they have spent some time on the page.

- 2. When they click the chat button, present a short pre-chat form that helps identify the customer's interests.
- 3. Once the customer submits the pre-chat form, direct the chat interaction to an appropriate chat queue.
- 4. If the wait is too long, allow the customer to skip waiting in the queue and send an offline message.
- 5. Present the customer with a chat window they can use to interact with a representative.
- 6. Allow the visitor to send an email message, if reached during closed hours.

To achieve the above goals, Bob must create a chat script like the one below. The objects can be entered in any order, as 8x8 Contact Center arranges them in the correct order.

To create a chat script:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to the Chat tab.
- 3. Click or Add new chat script.
- 4. Follow the steps below:

Configure Chat Script Properties

1. Go to the **Properties** tab.

Home	Scripts » New Chat Script » Properties	Ū
Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	New Chat Script < Back to script list Properties Script Code	
CRM Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns	Script type Chat Script name Acmelets Chat Category Click to view or edit Copy script from	Assigned channels Warning: Rease restrict your assignment to 100 channels at a time.
Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction	Comment	
Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design		

2. Enter the properties for the script.

The following table summarizes the options under **Scripts > Chat > Properties**:

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
Script Type	 Phone: Select a script type: Inbound phone, Post Call Survey, or Outbound phone. Chat and Email: A read-only reminder of the script type. It displays if it is a phone, chat, or email script.
Script Name	Enter a unique name for the script.
Category	A category helps you organize your scripts better. For example, if you have multiple scripts serving Support and Sales needs, you can group scripts under separate categories. You can select an existing category or create a new one. To create a new category: 1. Select Edit Categories from the drop-down menu.
	2. In the Category dialog box, add a new category by clicking
Copy script from	Choose this option to place a copy of the default or an existing IVR script into this channel. This option appears when you are creating a new script.
Comment	Add comments or additional notes, if desired.

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
This script is enabled	Select to place this script definition into service.
Assigned Channels /Assigned Queues	 When you select Script Type > Outbound Phone, you must assign one or more new outbound phone queues. When you select Script Type > Post Call Survey or Script Type > Inbound phone, you must assign one or more channels to the script.
	Note: It is not mandatory to assign a channel while creating a script.
	To assign new channels:
	1. Click on the link to bring up the list of channels.
	2. Select the desired channels from the list.
	3. Click Assign .
	Note: All channels in the list are associated with a script whether default or user-defined. If you assign and save a new script, the old script is permanently replaced by the new selected script.
	Note: It is recommended to restrict your assignment to 100 channels at a time.

3. Click Save.

Create the Chat Script

1. Go to the Script tab.

- Click Chat. The [add] option appears. For a complete list of objects and their descriptions, refer to Summary of Chat Script Objects.
- 3. Click [add].
- 4. Select Schedule from the chat objects.

This object performs a particular sequence of script operations when the contact center is open or closed.

- a. Enter a name for the Object Tag.
- b. Select an existing schedule from the list of Select Schedule.
- c. Click OK.
- 5. Click [add] next to Open and then:
 - a. Select Forward to Queue, enter a name for the object tag, select a queue, and click OK.
 This object forwards a chat interaction to a specific chat queue, such as the sales or main queue.
 - b. Select CVB Online, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
 CVB Online refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button, chat invitation, chat form, or chat window, which can be used on your website during the business hours.
 - c. Select Greeting Message and click OK.

This object displays the greeting message to invite customers to the chat session. Append <@skipQueue@> to your message to offer the option to skip queue in the chat window.

d. Select Skip queue, enter the relevant parameters, and click OK.

This object gives customers the option to opt out of waiting in the chat queue and send an email offline. It can only be triggered in the greeting message object.

- 6. For the CVB Online, click [add]:
 - a. Select Online button, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
 - b. Select Invitation, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
 - c. Select **Pre-chat form**, enter a name for the object tag, and click **OK**.
 - d. Select Chat Window, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
- 7. Click Close, then click [add].
 - a. Click **CVB Offline**, enter a name for the object tag, and click **OK**.

This object refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form, that activates on your website during closed hours.

- b. Click add offline button next to CVB Offline, enter a name for the object tag, select a button, and click OK.
- 8. Click Save to save your chat script.

- 9. To edit the details, click any object and select **edit**. An edit window opens up. To view the details, double-click any object. The View details window appears. You can also click **edit** from inside the View details window.
- 10. To undo the changes click Revert.
 - ⊥
- 11. Click the on the script page to generate a PDF image and save it locally. The PDF printout is generated containing the script name, date, and time of print. Supervisors and administrators can review and modify the script as needed.



For details, refer to Summary of Chat Script Objects.



Note: As long as you have all the objects in the script, the sequence does not matter. 8x8 Contact Center arranges the script in the correct order.

Run and Use the Script

8x8

- 8x8
 - 1. Go to the Code tab.
 - 2. Select the chat channel from the list.



- 3. Click Generate Code. The code appears in the window.
- 4. Copy and paste the code to a page where you want to insert a chat button on your website.



Note: This script does not interfere with the button layout. It must be included in the same page and within the body section of the web page, preferably just before the ending tag.

5. Click the Chat button you just created. The Chat window opens.



See Chat Overview to learn about Embedded Chat Design.

Summary of chat script objects

The following table summarizes the 8x8 Contact Center chat objects available in the chat scripts and accessible via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

Chat Script Object	Description
Schedule	 Use the Schedule object to perform a particular sequence of script operations when the contact center is either open or closed. Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. In the Select schedule list, choose a schedule definition.
	 Exit points: The Schedule object uses the Select schedule value to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points: open equals true if the phone interaction has been received within the selected schedule's open hours. close equals true if the phone interaction has been received outside the selected schedule's open hours. #1 through #6 equal true if the schedule specified in Select Schedule includes an exception
	condition, numbered 1 through 6, and today's date is within the exceptions from and to dates. For details on creating schedules, refer to Define Business Hours and Schedules.
Skip Queue	 Use this object to give the customers the option to opt out of waiting in the chat queue and send an email offline. This option can only be triggered in the greeting message object. In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Email Prompt Msg: The prompt message offered to a customer waiting in the chat queue. It can appear as a link in the chat window (for example, "All our agents are busy helping other customers. Would you like to send us an email?").

Chat Script Object	Description
	 Select form: Select an offline form from the list. An offline form presents an option to send an email message during the chat's offline hours.
	 Send info by: Shows whether you want to send the information you collected in the form using an email channel or a dedicated email.
	• Email channel : Select this option to choose an email channel. The email channel directs the customer's email to the right agent.
	• Plain email: Select a dedicated email to send the customer's email to.
	• Email Channel: If you choose to use a Channel, you must select an email channel from the list.
	 Forced email header message: Specifies the Subject line in the email message sent by a customer skipping the chat queue. Exit Point: None
Forward to Queue	Use the Forward to queue object to forward a chat interaction to a specific chat queue, such as the sales or main queue. Parameters:
	In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script.
	The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script.
	 In the Queue name list, choose the target chat queue to receive the chat. Exit points: None
CVB Online	Chat Visual Block Online refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form which can be used on your website during business hours. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None
CVB Off- line	Chat Visual Block Offline refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form that activ- ates on your website during closed hours. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None

Chat Script Object	Description
CVB Default	 Chat Visual Block Default refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form available by default from 8x8 Contact Center. Parameters: In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None
Greeting Message	 Use this object to type a greeting message to invite the customers to the chat session. Use @skipQueue@ to present the message that is previously set in the skip queue. Parameters: In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. In the Greeting Message, type the message you like to appear in the chat window. For example: <we an="" be="" click="" email.="" here="" send="" shortly.="" to="" will="" with="" you=""></we> Use auto-translation: This option is selected by default and is used to automatically translate the greeting messages using Google Translate. If this option is disabled, you can bypass the automatic translation, and let the user provide a customized translation instead.
Test Condition of Queue	Use the Test Queue object to check the condition of a queue before entering a queue. Test queue provides a set of conditions which, when met, trigger specified actions. The test queue object gives the IVR designer much more routing and announcement flexibility by allowing them to repeatedly test queue status. Parameters: In the Object tag , type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. In the Queue name list, choose the phone queue to test the condition. Use the Condition Matched check boxes to determine routing choices based on agent availability or queue performance. To route the chat differently, or to provide the customer with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction, select there are no enabled agents waiting .

Chat Script Object	Description
	 To route the chat differently, or to provide the customer with choices when there is no qualified agent logged in to immediately accept the interaction, select there are no assigned agents logged in. Qualified agents refer to the agent setup to receive interactions from the queue specified in the Queue name list.
	 To evaluate the condition of a selected queue, and route the chat based on the test results of that performance, select Enable queue overload tests below. Perform one or all of the following tests:
	 Number of chats in queue ahead of this chat: Enter the maximum number of chats that can be ahead of the current chat.
	 there is a chat in this queue that has been waiting longer than (seconds): Enter the maximum time that a chat is waiting in the queue.
	 the instantaneous expected wait-time calculation exceeds: Enter a time duration in seconds.
	Exit points:
	Test Queue has two exit points:
	Condition Matched
	Condition not Matched
	The Test Queue object transfers control to the script sequence specified under the exit points based on the following test results:
	 There are no enabled agents waiting in the queue.
	 There are no assigned agents logged in.
	 There are <n> number of chats in the queue ahead of this chat, where <n> is the number specified in the test.</n></n>
	 There is a chat waiting longer than the specified time in the queue.
	 The instantaneous expected wait time calculation for a chat exceeds the specified time. The expected wait-time calculation is useful only when there are more than 20 qualified agents assigned to the queue and active. Mathematical uncertainty with fewer than 20 active similarly- skilled agents may produce unexpected results.
	Some of the many ways the exit points can be used are to trigger another test, provide the customer with

8x8		

Chat Script Object	Description
	a choice of waiting in a queue when no agent is available, leave a voicemail, or inform the customer of an approximate waiting time, and then forward to queue. For example, if there is a chat in the queue that has waited longer than 120 seconds, you can insert the Play object under the Condition matched exit point to play a message informing the customer of an expected waiting time for the chat to be answered. You can then use the Forward to Queue object to route the call to a queue.
Chat as a Pop-up	 Allows the pop-up chat window to appear. The pop-up chat applies to the Pre-Chat Survey and the Chat Window options. Parameters: In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None

Using script variables in chat channels

Before initiating a chat interaction in 8x8 Contact Center, customer information such as account numbers or case numbers collected via the pre-chat form, can be used to determine routing of the chat interaction. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can collect customer data, store them into system and user-defined variables, and use values stored in these variables to direct the interaction to the appropriate queue all using 8x8 Configuration Manager. It improves the efficiency of handling chat interactions.

Let's say your company wants to route interactions based on the customer language. Collect the preferred language choice in a variable, and use this data in the IVR to direct them to the appropriate language queue.

Or, let's say your company wants to route interactions based on the department such as Sales or Support, you can collect this information during the pre-chat, and use it to route the interaction to the right queue.

In this topic, we'll demonstrate the usage of script variables in chat channels based on the following use case.

AcmeJets Inc. is a premium jet service company that serves its customers via chat channels. When a customer initiates a chat, AcmeJets collects basic information such as customer name, account number, and the preferred language for chat. AcmeJets serves customers in English and Spanish, and have dedicated queues for each language. They want to direct customers to the appropriate queue based on the language choice. Additionally, the company wants to personalize their conversation for best customer satisfaction.

Assumptions

Let's assume that AcmeJets contact center has:

- Configured a chat channel
- Configured chat queues
- Designed chat elements (chat button, pre-chat form, and chat window)

To support the use case, follow the steps discussed here:

Step 1: Create a new pre-chat form or edit an existing pre-chat form

In this step, we create a new pre-chat form which collects a customer's name, and preferred language for chat. Store the values in a custom variable and a translation variable respectively. Important: For custom variables, note down the variable names to be used in chat scripts.

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Chat Design > Form.
- 3. Click **+Pre-chat** to begin creating a pre-chat form.

8x8 Applicat	tions X 818	[ryandemo0101] vcc Configuration	× +			-	Ц	×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow G		om/CM/cm_frameset.php				🕁 🔒 Incog	nito (3) (0
8x8				은 Nalini Anan	thamurthy (ryandemo0101)			
Home Security Agent Groups Users	Home » Summ	Audio Files Schedul	es Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer			0)
	Summary	Addo Files Scheda	co blar lano	Agenco fale finier				
	Incoming Channels		Agent Groups					
	Phone	31	ungroup	29				
	Email	1	QE	1				
	Chat	4						
	Social	0						
Campaigns Broadcast	SMS	0						
Integration	Inbound Queues							
	Phone	7						
	Email	2						
	Chat	6						
Outbound Phone Codes	Voice Mail	2						
Wallboard	Outbound Queues							
Chat design	Phone	29						
Line (

- 4. Enter a name and description for the pre-chat form.
- 5. Add your first question to collect customer information.
 - a. Format: Select < Open-ended>.
 - b. Question: Enter the question: <Enter your name>.
 - c. Variable: Note that the variable name is automatically generated. Edit as you want <_name>.

d. Click Add.

			ā N	lalini Ananthamurthy (ryandemo0101)			
Security Agent Groups	Chat de	sign » Add pre-chat form					Ū
Channels Scripts CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard	* Name Survey Format * Question	Acme-chat Open ended Finter your n Multiple lines answer Include a segarator on the end enter-your-n To be available in charsoript. It must begin with underline (* Description	Pre-chat form to collect customer data		Step :	L > Step 2
	M Question	change the display order of questions inside a form.	No items to show	Format	Car	ncel Ne	xt>>

- 6. Add a question to collect the customer's language preference.
 - a. Format: Select <Translation>.
 - b. Question: Enter the question: <Enter your language>
 - c. Select language choices from the list: Select <English> and <Spanish>.
 - d. **Variable**: Note that the system variable (\$language) is automatically populated. You are not allowed to edit the system variable names.

e. Click Add.

8×8				21	lalini Ananthamurthy (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Home Security Agent Groups Users	Chat des	ign » Add pre-chat form			nann Ananonanara y (ryanochioozoz)	My Frome	Co-browsing	<u></u>
Queues/Skills		Invitation Form Window						
Channels Scripts CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes	* Name Survey Format * Question * Variable	Acme-chat Enter question text (max. 125 chars) Mandatory Include a separator on the end		* Description	Prechat form to collect customer data		Step 1	1 > Step 2 🔺
Outbound Phone Codes	M Question	hange the display order of questions inside a form.	Variable		Format			
Wallboard	Enter your na	ame	_name		Open ended		1)
Chat design	LEGEND: 🛆 - Vari	able does not begin with dollar sign (\$) or underscon	Consider updating the name to have to Consider updating the name to have to	his data available for n	outing within your that scripts.	Can	icel Nez	xt >>

- 7. Optionally, add a question to gather either account number or case number. Select the format CRM field.
- Click Next>> to proceed to define the visual design of the pre-chat form. Select the colors and labels. Save your preferences.

Chat design »	› Edit pre-chat form				(
< Back to form list Button Invitatio	on Form Window				
					Step 1 > Step
Label			Preview		
* Window title	Acmelets Help Center			Regulation AcmeJets Help Center	
* Button label	Submit			Enter your name	
Introduction text	Enter introduction text (max. 125 chars)			Enter your language	
Color				T	
* Window background	#CCFFCC * Text	#555555			
* Border	#99CC00				
Logo customization					
Cho	ose Files No file chosen				
The file must be an image a The image will be resized for	and can not exceed 200kB. or the proportion of 100x30 pixels.			Submit	
				powered by 8x8 Inc.	J

Step 2: Create a chat script

In this step, you will define a script that determines the routing of each chat interaction from your customers. When a customer initiates a chat session, they are prompted to submit data through the pre-chat form. Based on this data, they

are then directed to the appropriate queue.

- 1. Go to **Scripts** from the main menu in Configuration Manager.
- 2. Select Chat > Add new chat script.
- 3. In the **Properties** tab, enter a name, category, and comment. Optionally, add the chat channel you wish to apply the script to. Save the properties.

Step 2a: Add a custom variable to the variables list

If you added custom variables in your pre-chat form, you must add them to the variable list here. By default, the View variables lists all system variables. To add a custom variable you have already added in your chat design,

- 1. In the Script tab, click View variables. A list of system variables shows up.
- 2. Click Add new and enter the custom variable name defined in the pre-chat form.

Important: Ensure the custom variable defined in the pre-chat form is added here.

Home Scripts * Chat * Script Sourdy Acme-Chat Questrosition * Sacht script int Yoperties Script Control Script Outbound * One Chat Reverting Cancel Very yoriables Very yoriables Properties Script Control Very yoriables Properties Script Control Very yoriables Properties Script Script Save Properties Control Very yoriables Very yoriables Properties Script Script Save Properties Script Cancel Very yoriables Properties Script Script Save Properties Script Cancel Very yoriables Properties Script Script Save Properties Script Cancel Very yoriables Properties Script Script Save Properties Script Cancel Very yoriables Properties Script Script Save Poperties Script Script Save Poperties Script Cancel Very yoriables Script Script Script Script Script Script Script Script Script Script S		Co-browsing		thamurthy (ryandem	名 Nalini Anan					×8
Arme-Chat Queues/2014 Sarba to script list Sarba CRM Outbound Sarba Campaign Revactart Information Satus Codes Wallboard Outbound Satus Codes Wallboard Outbound Satus Codes Wallboard Chat design Wallboard Chat design Chat design Cha	(Script	Chat » S	Scripts »	curity
ERM Durbound Generations Status Codes Porthoand Case Mallboard Chat design Chat design C								list		ers ieues/Skills
Variables							Code	Script	Properties	ripts
Integration	4		View Variables		evert Cancel	Save			Script	
Ampaigns https://madacatal https://madacatal https://madacatal https://madacatal https://madacatal https://madacatal buttourd bu			e e							
Namaction attac Codes addecodes atbound alliboard all design Variable Starswinder Starswinder Starswinder String SacourtNumber SacourtNumber SacourtNumber SacourtNumber SacourtNumber SacourtNumber String SemailAddress String									Wefault i	
And Codes arrangedina des tobund des tuber variable names must begin with underline (_), be alphanumeric, less than 255 thans and contain no spaces or special interacter, except inte dam (-). Variable User variable names must begin with underline (_), be alphanumeric, less than 255 thans and contain no spaces or special interacter, except inte dam (-). Variable User variable names must begin with underline (_), be alphanumeric, less than 255 thans and contain no spaces or special interacter, except inte dam (-). Variable Susquage String SaccountNumber String SemailAddress String Add new										
Impaction Refer bound one Codes User variable names must begin with underine (_), be alphanumeric, less than 235 chars and contain no spaces or special characters, except the dash (-). Impact and the alphanumeric, less than 235 chars and contain no spaces or special characters, except the dash (-). Variable Data type Stanguage String SaccountNumber String SemailAddress String © Add new										-
dec User verlable names must begin with underline [_], be alphanumeric, less than 255 chars and contain no spaces or special characters, except the dash (-). Variable Data type Illoward Variable Sting ScaseNumber String SaccountNumber String SemailAddress String O Add new				×		Variables				
one Codes alboard at design Variable Va										
at design Slanguage String ScaseNumber String SecouthNumber String SemailAdress String				rs and contain no spaces or	be alphanumeric, less than 255 char	User variable names must begin wi special characters, except the dash				
at design Slanguage String ScaseNumber String ScaseNumber String SaccountNumber String SemailAdress String SemailAdress String CAdd new						Variable				allboard
SaccountNumber String SemalAddress String						0				at design
SemailAddress String Add new						Slanguage				
Add new				String ^						
				String *		\$caseNumber				
OK Cancel				String String String String	:	\$caseNumber \$accountNumber				
UK Carte				String String String String	:	ScaseNumber \$accountNumber \$emailAddress				
				String String String String	:	ScaseNumber \$accountNumber \$emailAddress				
				String String String String	:	ScaseNumber \$accountNumber \$emailAddress				
				String String String String	:	ScaseNumber \$accountNumber \$emailAddress				
				String String String String	:	ScaseNumber \$accountNumber \$emailAddress				

Step 2b: Begin crafting the script

The chat script will embed a greeting message which includes the customer name. Use a test variable to identify the language choice and direct them to the right queue.

- Add Test variable > Tests if the variable value of language equals Spanish. Tests if a customer selects to chat in Spanish.
 - If True, add Forward to Queue. choose to forward it to the queue serving customers chatting in Spanish language.
 - If False, add Forward to Queue, choose to direct the interaction to the queue serving customers in English.
- 2. Add a greeting message to the customers. Example: Welcome to AcmeJets. We will be with you shortly.
- 3. Add all the chat visual block elements you have defined.
 - Chat button (Triggers chat interaction)
 - Pre-chat form (Collects information from the customer; Add the newly defined pre-chat form here.)
 - Chat-window (Allows a customer to interact with the agent)

8x8

4. Save the script.



- 5. In the **Code** tab, select the chat channel to apply this script to.
- 6. Click Generate Code. Copy the code and embed in your website which hosts the chat.

Step 3: Verify the chat workflow

1. To verify the chat workflow, simply initiate a chat as a customer.

2. In the pre-chat form presented, enter your name and select the language - English.

🔎 Help Center	X
Enter your name	
Robin	
Enter your language	
	Ň
	147
English	
Español	
Submit	
	powered by 8x8 Inc.

- 3. Click Submit.
- 4. Log in as an agent serving customers in English. You should now receive the interaction in English.
- 5. Trigger a second chat interaction as a customer and select Spanish in the pre-chat form and submit.
- 6. Log in as an agent serving customers in Spanish. You should now receive the interaction in Spanish.
- 7. If you received interactions via the correct queues, your setup is correct and complete.

Create an email script

An 8x8 Contact Center email script is used to route incoming email interactions to the correct email queue. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can create a new script and assign it to any number of channels. Email scripts are grouped under Scripts > Email in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

You can create a user-defined script or use a system default script. 8x8 Contact Center offers **Email script default**. The default email script is provided by the system. You can copy and then edit the default script when creating a new user-defined script.

To create or edit an email script:

- From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
 Scripts are grouped by media in separate tabs: Phone, Chat, and Email.
- 2. In the Email tab, click \checkmark or Add new email script.
- 3. Enter the required properties for the script.

The following table summarizes the options under Scripts > Email > Properties:

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
Script Type	 Phone: Select a script type: Inbound phone, Post Call Survey, or Outbound phone. Chat and Email: A read-only reminder of the script type. It displays if it is a phone, chat, or email script.
Script Name	Enter a unique name for the script.
Category	A category helps you organize your scripts better. For example, if you have multiple scripts serving Support and Sales needs, you can group scripts under separate categories. You can select an existing category or create a new one.
	To create a new category:
	1. Select Edit Categories from the drop-down menu.

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
	2. In the Category dialog box, add a new category by clicking .
Copy script from	Choose this option to place a copy of the default or an existing IVR script into this channel. This option appears when you are creating a new script.
Comment	Add comments or additional notes, if desired.
This script is enabled	Select to place this script definition into service.
Assigned Channels /Assigned Queues	 When you select Script Type > Outbound Phone, you must assign one or more new outbound phone queues. When you select Script Type > Post Call Survey or Script Type > Inbound phone, you
	must assign one or more channels to the script. Note: It is not mandatory to assign a channel while creating a script.
	 To assign new channels: 1. Click on the link to bring up the list of channels. 2. Select the desired channels from the list. 3. Click Assign.
	Note: All channels in the list are associated with a script whether default or user-defined. If you assign and save a new script, the old script is permanently replaced by the new selected script.
	Note: It is recommended to restrict your assignment to 100 channels at a time.

8×8

4. Click Save.

Upon saving the properties, 8x8 Configuration Manager takes you to the Script tab, where you can define the script.

- 5. In the **Script** tab, click **Email Routing**. The **[add]** option appears.
- 6. Add the desired objects.

See Summary of Email Script Objects for the complete list of available objects and their description.



- 7. Click Save.
- 8. To edit the details, click any object and select **edit**. An edit window opens up. To view the details, double-click any object. The View details window appears. You can also click **edit** from inside the View details window.
- 9. To undo the changes, click Revert.

10. Click the on the script page to generate a PDF image and save it locally. The PDF printout is generated containing the script name, date, and time of print. Supervisors and administrators can review and modify the script as needed.



8x8

Note: When creating or modifying a script, disable the script by clearing **This script is enabled** in the channel's **Properties** tab. This ensures that 8x8 Contact Center does not run an incomplete script. After completing the script, enable it again.

11. For a primer on writing IVR scripts, refer to the guide on Interactive Voice Response. For examples, refer to Email Script Examples.

Summary of email script objects

The following table summarizes the 8x8 Contact Center email script objects. You can access the email scripts by going to Scripts > Email > Script from the Configuration Menu. Click Email Routing, and then click [add] to see the drop-down menu.

Email Script Object	Description
Schedule	Use the Schedule object to perform a particular sequence of script operations when the contact center is either open or closed. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script.
	 Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script.
	 In the Select schedule list, choose a schedule definition. Exit points:
	The Schedule object uses the Select schedule value to transfer control to the script sequence spe- cified within the following exit points:
	 open equals true if the phone interaction has been received within the selected schedule's open hours.
	 close equals true if the phone interaction has been received outside the selected schedule's open hours.
	 #1 through #6 equal true if the schedule specified in Select Schedule includes an exception condition, numbered 1 through 6, and today's date is within the exceptions from and to dates. For details on creating schedules, refer to Define Business Hours and Schedules.
Check CRM	Use the Check CRM email script object to check the value of the Local CRM for existing customer information: new customer, new case, or followup fields.
	Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the
	email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters and must be unique within an email script.

Email Script	Description
Object	Exit points: The Check CRM script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following labeled conditions:
	 new customer equals true if the email interaction's From field contains an email address that is not in the Local CRM.
	 new case equals true if the email interaction's From field contains an email address that is in the Local CRM, and the email does not contain an existing case number in the Subject line. followup equals true if the email interaction's From field contains an email address that is in the Local CRM, and the email contains an existing case number in the Subject line. For details on the Local CRM, refer to Configure Local CRM.
Check Pri- ority	Use the Check Priority email script object to inspect the priority of the incoming mail message. The Check Priority object inspects the incoming email message's header for the value of X-Priority, Importance, and Priority. If 8x8 Contact Center cannot locate these areas in the message, it assigns the message a priority equal to 3 – Normal. Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script.
	In the Priority value list, choose the priority setting of the incoming email message, where 1 is the highest priority and 5 is the lowest priority.
	 Select Negate comparison to make inspection true if the priority specified in the Priority value list does not match the priority of the incoming mail message. Exit points:
	The Check Priority script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following labeled conditions:
	 matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the email interaction's priority equals the value of Priority.
	 not matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the email interaction's priority does not equal the value of Priority.
Check	Use the Check Recipient email script object to inspect the To or CC areas of the incoming mail for a

Email Script Object	Description
Recipient	name or other text string. Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script.
	In the Select recipient field list, choose whether the Email script inspects the To or Cc addressee field of the incoming email message.
	 In the Select operator list, choose a comparison operator. Choices available are Contains, Begins with, Ends with, or Is equal to.
	In the Use pattern as a POSIX extended regular expression text entry area, type a pattern as a text string or a POSIX extended regular expression.
	 Select Negate comparison to make the recipient check true if the Email Script does not find the string specified in the Pattern text entry area.
	 Select Case sensitive to enable the pattern search to differentiate between upper and lowercase characters.
	Exit points: The Check Recipient script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the fol- lowing labeled conditions:
	 matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the email message's recipient equals the value of Pattern.
	 not matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the email message's recipient does not equal the value of Pattern.
Check Sender	Use the Check Sender email script object to inspect the From area of the incoming mail for a name or other text string. Parameters:
	 In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script.
	 In the Select operator list, choose a comparison operator. Choices available are Contains, Begins with, Ends with, or Is equal to.

Email Script Object	Description
	 In the Use pattern as a POSIX extended regular expression text entry area, type a pattern as a text string or a POSIX extended regular expression.
	 Select Negate comparison to make the recipient check true if the email script does not find the string specified in the Pattern text entry area.
	 Select Case sensitive to enable the pattern search to differentiate between upper and lowercase characters. Exit points:
	The Check Sender script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following labeled conditions:
	 matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the From area of the email message equals the value of Pattern.
	 not matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the From area of the email message does not equal the value of Pattern.
Check Sub- ject	Use the Check Subject email script object to inspect the Subject area of the incoming mail for a par- ticular text string. Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script.
	 In the Select operator list, choose a comparison operator. Choices available are Contains, Begins with, Ends with, or Is equal to.
	In the Pattern text entry area, type a pattern as a POSIX extended regular expression.
	 Select Negate comparison to make the recipient check true if the string specified in the Pattern text entry area is not found.
	 Select Case sensitive to enable the pattern search to differentiate between upper and lowercase characters.
	Exit points:
	The Check Sender script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following labeled conditions:
	 matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the Subject area of the email

Email Script Object	Description
	message equals the value of Pattern.
	 not matched equals true if the Negate comparison is not selected, and the Subject area of the email message does not equal the value of Pattern.
Check Flood	Use the Check Flood email script object to detect an unusually high volume of similar incoming email messages, due to a denial of service attack or spamming an email channel. The Check Flood object is intended to detect such emails with the help of two parameters: time interval (the duration of an observation window), and the maximum number of emails needed to trigger the flood detection. For example, when an email is processed, the Check Flood object determines if other similar emails have been created in the system in the last x number of minutes, where x is the time interval.
	Note: We consider emails similar when they have the same sender (From), the same recipient (To), and the same subject (Subject) fields.
	Parameters:
	 In the Object tag text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Object tags can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script.
	 In the Time Interval list, choose the time period during which the email script counts the number of email messages arriving at the email queue. Choices available are Disabled, 15 minutes, 30 minutes, 45 minutes, 1 hour, 2 hour, 3 hour, 4 hour, 6 hour, 12 hour, and 1 day.
	 In the Maximum number of emails list, choose the maximum number of incoming emails that occur within the time period specified in the Time Interval list. Choices available are 2, 5, 10, 20, or 50 emails. Exit points:
	The Check Flood script object uses the values of Time Interval and Maximum number of emails to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following possibilities:
	 flood detected equals true if the Maximum number of emails that appear to be similar have been received within the Time Interval or the similar emails have reached the threshold. For example, 6 number of similar emails were found where the maximum number to trigger is set to 5 or more.
	• first email equals true if the most recently received email message appears to be new, that is no

Email Script Object	Description
	similar email was found before this email.
	 other emails equals true if the most recently received email message is similar to at least one other email processed within the specified Time Interval, but the quantity of these messages has not yet exceeded the value of the Maximum number of emails. For example, 4 number of similar emails were found where the maximum number to trigger is set to 5.
Check	Use the Check Spam email script object to enable the script to perform different operations depending
Spam	on the incoming email message's status as spam or not spam.
	Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script. Exit points: The Check Spam script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following
	labeled conditions:
	 is spam equals true if 8x8 Contact Center classifies the email message as spam.
	 is not spam equals true if 8x8 Contact Center does not classify the email message as spam. For details on the 8x8 Contact Center spam threshold level, refer to Summary of Profile Settings.
Check Virus	Use the Check virus email script object to enable the script to perform different operations depending on the incoming email message's status as infected or not infected.
	8x8 Contact Center uses McAfee VirusScan to inspect incoming email messages. Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script. Exit points:
	The Check Virus script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following labeled conditions:
	 infected equals true if 8x8 Contact Center detects a virus in the email message.
	• not infected equals true if 8x8 Contact Center does not detect a virus in the email message.
Forward to Queue	Use the Forward to queue email script object to check how many incoming messages are waiting in the queue, and if a maximum number is exceeded begin forwarding messages to a different email

Email Script Object	Description
	queue. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script.
	In the Select queue list, choose which email queue receives forwarded messages.
	In the Maximum number of emails waiting text entry area, type the integer number of emails that can accumulate in the current email queue before the script begins forwarding messages to the queue specified by the Select queue list.
	A 8x8 Contact Center email queue can contain a maximum of 900 messages. If an email queue contains more than 900 messages, and the email queue's email script includes the Forward to
	queue script object, then 8x8 Contact Center initiates overflow processing. Exit points:
	The Forward to queue script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the fol- lowing labeled conditions:
	 routed equals true if the email queue does not contain more messages than specified by the Maximum number of emails waiting text entry area, or no more than 900 messages.
	 8x8 Contact Center places the new message in the current email queue. overload equals true if the email queue contains more messages than specified by the Maximum number of emails waiting text entry area, or more than 900 messages. 8x8 Contact Center places the new message in the queue specified in the Select queue list.
Label	Use the Label email script object to insert a named point into the email script. The labeled script object can then be accessed by other script statements, such as the Goto script object, described later in this table. Parameters:
	In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script.
	Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script. Exit points: None
Goto	Use the Goto Email script object to direct the script to continue running at some labeled location in the script.

Email Script Object	Description
	 Parameters: In the Name text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within an email script. In the Destination list, choose a labeled script location. The Goto object can reference object labels located "lower" in the email script. Exit points: None
Reply to Email	 Use the Reply to Email email script object to define the email's Subject, From, CC, BCC, etc. Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the Email Script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters. In the From text entry area, type the return address for the outgoing email message. You must type a valid email address or select Use channel email address as From to save the Reply to Email email script object. Select Use channel email address as From to place the email channel's address in the outgoing email message's From area. You must select Use channel email address or type a valid email address in the From text entry area to save the Reply to Email email script object. In the CC text entry area, to send a carbon copy of the outgoing email message to one or more additional recipients, type the recipients' properly-formatted email address. The CC text entry area allows you to type up to 80 characters. In the BCC text entry area, to send a blind carbon copy of the outgoing email message (a copy whose email address is concealed from other addresses) to one or more additional recipients, type the recipients' address. The BCC text entry area allows you to type up to 80 characters. In the Subject text entry area allows you to type up to 40 characters. In the Subject text entry area allows you to type up to 40 characters. In the Content text entry area, type the message contents. Exit points: The Reply to email script object transfers control to the script sequence specified within the following labeled conditions:

Email Script Object	Description
	 sent equals true if 8x8 Contact Center did not receive an error when it sent the reply email message. not sent equals true if 8x8 Contact Center received an error when it sent the reply email message.
Delete Email	Use the Delete Email email script object to delete the email message being processed by the Email script. Because the Delete Email script object deletes the current email message, use the object as the final action in an email script. Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the Email Script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters. Exit points: None.
Stop Pro- cessing	Use the Stop Processing email script object to stop performing the email script. Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the email script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters. Exit points: None
Check Pick- list	Use Check Picklist to filter emails based on the customer type and send them to their respective queues for better customer experience. For example, if a company wishes to prioritize their premium customers and offer to assist them quickly, agents can prioritize and route the emails from customers based on their account type, say Platinum, Gold, and Bronze. Emails received from Platinum customers can be routed to a dedicated queue for faster processing. To take advantage of the check picklist object, you must first define the desired Customer field of picklist data type in the Local CRM and then select this field in the email script.

Email script examples

An 8x8 Contact Center email script uses the information contained in an email message to route the message to one or more email queues. Use 8x8 Configuration Manager to create email scripts.

The following procedure illustrates how to combine 8x8 Contact Center email script objects with script object control flow features:

- Delete email messages that contain viruses.
- Inspect an email message subject line.
- Route email messages to queues.
- Insert stop processing objects into email scripts.
- Enable an email channel.

Before you begin

The procedure in this section assumes that you have used 8x8 Configuration Manager to create at least one email queue. For details on creating email queues, refer to Create Email Queues.

		Best Practice: Before editing a 8x8 Contact Center script, disable the email channel.
1	<u>i – 124</u>	

To disable the email channel:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the **Email** tab.
- 3. Find the desired channel, and click
- 4. In the Properties tab, clear This channel is enabled.
- 5. Click Save.

For details on email channels properties, refer to Configure Email Channel Properties.

Delete Email Messages that Contain Viruses

If your email server does not provide protection against email viruses, include the Check Virus script object at the top of
all your email scripts to help protect your contact center from malicious email messages.

÷	
÷	
÷.,	T
÷ .	÷67
÷ .	
÷ .	//
÷ .	
÷ .	
÷ .	
÷ .	<u> </u>
÷ .	

8x8

Note: If your server already protects against email viruses, do not use the Check Virus object.

.....

To inspect the email messages for viruses:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to the Email tab.
- 3. Find the desired script, and click
- 4. In the Script tab, click Email Routing, then click [add].
- 5. In the Insert object selection list, select Check Virus.
- Enter an Object tag, such as <CV01>, and click OK.
 8x8 Configuration Manager adds the Check Virus script object to the script. The Check Virus script object contains the exit points labeled infected and not Infected.
- 7. Delete any email messages infected by viruses:
 - a. Under the Check Virus script object, click [add] next to infected.
 - b. In the Insert object selection list, select Delete Email.
 - c. Enter an Object tag, such as <Delete Infected>, then click OK.

Use the same script design principles to incorporate the Check Spam and Check Flood objects into an email script. Inspect an Email Message Subject Line

Use the Check Subject in the email script to inspect the subject line of incoming email messages for a particular string.

To inspect an email message's subject line:

- 1. In the above example, click [add] next to not infected.
- 2. In the script object selection list, select Check Subject.
- 3. Enter an Object tag, such as <CS01>.
- 4. In the Select Operator list, choose Contains.
- 5. In the Pattern text entry area, type <ADV>.
- 6. Clear Use pattern as a POSIX extended regular expression and Negate comparison.
- 7. Select Case Sensitive.

8. Click OK.

8x8 Configuration Manager inserts the Check Subject script object below not infected.



Route Email Messages to Queues

Use the comparison results returned by the Check Subject to route email messages.

To use the results Check Subject to route the message:

- 1. Delete email messages that contain a certain string, such as <ADV>, in the subject area.
 - a. Under Check Subject, click [add] next to matched.
 - b. Select Delete Email from the Insert object list.
 - c. Enter an object tag, such as <DelADV>, then click OK.
 The email script deletes all incoming email messages that contain <ADV> in the subject line.
- 2. For all messages that do not contain <ADV> in the subject area, route the message to an email queue.
 - a. Under Check Subject, click [add] next to not matched.
 - b. Select Forward to queue from the Insert object list.

- c. Enter an object tag, such as <EmailQ01>.
- d. In the Select Queue list, choose an email queue.
- e. In Maximum number of emails waiting, type <100>, and click OK.

Home	Scripts » Email » Script
Security Agent Groups	
Agents Queues/Skills Channels	Support Email < Back to script list
Scripts	Properties Script
CRM Support	Script
Center Outbound Setup	 ⇔ <>>> Email Routing ⇒ ⊕ Check Virus [CheckVir1] ⊕ infected
Campaigns	Delete Email [DeleteVir]
Broadcast	Check Subject [CheckSub1] matched
Integration Status Codes	 Delete Email [DeleteSub] not matched [add]
Transaction Codes	 Borward to Queue [SupportQ] routed overload

- 3. If the message does not exceed the value specified by Maximum number of emails waiting, then stop script processing:
 - a. Under Forward to queue, click [add] next to routed.
 - b. Select Stop processing from the Insert object list.
 - c. Enter an Object tag, and click **OK**.

After routing the message, the script stops.

4. If the message exceeds the value specified by Maximum number of emails waiting (in the email queue), then send the email to an overload queue:

- a. Under Forward to queue, click [add] next to overload.
- b. Select Forward to Queue from the Insert object list.
- c. Enter an Object tag.
- d. Enter the Maximum number of emails waiting.
- e. Click OK.

Use the Forward to Queue script object to specify a secondary email queue that receives messages that exceed the primary queue's Maximum number of emails waiting setting.

f. Click to Save your script.

Insert Stop Processing in Email Scripts

The procedure discussed in Route Email Messages to Queues illustrates the use of the Stop processing email script object to end the operation of an email script.

Insert Stop processing objects at all points where you intend the script to stop. Doing so ensures that the script always behaves as designed.

Enable an Email Channel

Perform the procedure in this section to enable an email channel, and run the channel's email script.

To enable the email channel:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Channels.
- 2. Go to the Email tab.
- 3. Find the desired script, and click
- 4. In the Properties tab, select This channel is enabled.
- 5. Click Save.

The 8x8 Contact Center puts the email channel and associated script into service.

You can now send test messages to the email channel to validate the operation of the script. For details on email channel properties, refer to Configure Email Channel Properties.

Create intelligent IVR

8x8 Contact Center provides speech recognition and natural language processing on all incoming calls. A set of prebuilt templates can be modified to easily implement solutions, such as appointments, bill reminders, and inbound IVR call treatment with integrations.

The intelligent IVR supports:

- Automated speech recognition (ASR)
- Natural language processing (NLP)

Features

The Intelligent IVR provides the following advantages:

- Allows customer requests without using Dual-tone multi-frequency (DTMF) interface.
- Increases efficiency of agents.
- Reduces cost of business.
- Improves customer experience.

Check out the instructions in the following pages to learn how to set up intelligent IVR.

- Studio Reference Guide
- Studio API Documentation
- Nodes or building blocks in call flows

Configure Local CRM

The 8x8 Contact Center's local Customer Relationship Manager or Local CRM, gives you the ability to manage customer and case data. Use the CRM page in 8x8 Configuration Manager to define the Customer and Case fields to identify and characterize interactions. For your contact center, you have the option to use Local CRM or a third-party CRM such as Salesforce or Zendesk that 8x8 Contact Center supports out of the box.



Note: You must select either the Local CRM or a third-party integration for customer relationship management. They cannot be used together.

Features

- Manage customer and case data in your contact center using the Local CRM. It is perfect for organizations that do
 not already use a CRM.
- Deliver screen pops of critical customer information to make every agent interaction more efficient.
- Solve customer problems more quickly and increase customer satisfaction.
- Integrate and combine information from other software and sources in the same screen.
- Define custom fields in the CRM to suit the needs of your organization.

To configure Local CRM, click **CRM** in the Configuration Menu. In the **Fields** tab, the **Predefined** column identifies the default set of customer and case fields.

ity Groups	1.11	Fields										
s/Skills els	Fields	-	Properties I	import	Fields							
		stomer Field: Case Fields Customer		eids Tasi	(Fields							
t	Order	Customer Fields	Label	Internal Id	Data Type	Predefined	Unique	Read Only	Hidden	Used in Outbound Setup		
Ind		customers.last_name	*Last Name	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
-		customers.email	Email	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
gns .		customers.password	Password	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
ast		customers.generate_pass	Generate Pas	-		yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
ion		customers.voice	Voice	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
odes -		customers.fax	Fax	-		yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
ion -		customers.alternative	Alternative	-		yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
d -		customers.restrict_custom	Restrict Custo	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
odes	L	customertype	Customer Type	cf_contactt	Picklist(1)	ves	no	no	no	no	0	
d 2	2	phone	Phone	cf01	Text(50)	no	no	no	no	no	2 11	
ign	3	email2	Email (Additio	cf02	Text(50)	no	no	no	no	no	1	
	Note: Dra	ag and drop to change display or			. ,	ve Order	Reset				- 0	

Configuring Local CRM involves:

- Understanding customers, cases, follow-ups, and tasks
- Understanding types of CRM Fields
- Configuring CRM fields
- Configuring case notification
- Configuring CRM properties
- Importing data into CRM

Understand Customers, Cases, and Tasks

8x8 Contact Center provides customer and case management capabilities using its Local CRM. The Local CRM provides a model for managing the contact center's interactions with customers and stores the contact center's customer, case, and follow-up data.

The phone, chat, and email scripts in 8x8 Contact Center can use information such as phone number, case number, or email ID, to locate and display a customer or case record stored in the Local CRM. To manage customer relationships, the Local CRM provides the following hierarchy of standard objects:

- Customer
- Case
- Follow-up
- Task

Customer

A customer object allows creating customer instances with unique account numbers. A customer record stores information such as name, address, and phone numbers, and offers the capability to customize the customer object with custom fields.

Case

A case object describes customer feedback, queries, or issues. Agents can create cases to systematically track and solve customer issues. Agents can quickly create, update, and view cases. They may indicate the status of a case as open or closed. The standard definition of a case allows adding additional attributes to a case by stating its status, visibility, severity, and priority.

For example, a support agent at AcmeJets creates a case when a customer calls in reporting scheduling issues with private jets. The support agent captures and records the customer-reported issue by creating a case.

Follow-up

A case may have multiple follow-ups before it is resolved. Each communication regarding the case from its creation until it is closed may be recorded as individual follow-up instances. This may include notes as well as email communications regarding the case. The Follow-up object allows tracking how a case is resolved by creating multiple follow-up records.

Task

A Task refers to a call, email, meeting, chat, or any other type of contact made with a customer. A task organizes and helps agents track all interactions associated with a customer. The task object serves to create and manage all tasks agents plan to perform or have performed, such as making calls or sending mails. For example, agents can create a task to schedule a phone call to a customer, and set a reminder. A reminder pops up a few minutes before the scheduled call.

Integrate with External CRM

The 8x8 Contact Center also supports integration with External CRMs, such as NetSuite and Salesforce. If your 8x8 Agent Console integrates with an External CRM, your contact center supervisor provides you with the information you need to use the CRM to manage your customers, cases, and follow-up activities.

Understand types of CRM fields

8x8 Contact Center administrators can view, create, and configure Local CRM fields in 8x8 Configuration Manager. Once configured, agents can access the CRM information via 8x8 Agent Console. 8x8 Contact Center supports customization abilities in the Local CRM for your convenience and better usability.

The CRM fields are categorized into three types in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- System-Predefined Fields: View-only system fields. You cannot create, edit, or delete System-Predefined Fields. They are marked by **yes (System)** under the Predefined column in 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- Predefined Fields: You can view and edit predefined fields, but cannot create or delete them. They are marked by yes under the Predefined column in 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- Custom Fields: You can create, view, edit, or delete custom fields. They are marked by no under the Predefined column in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To view the system-predefined fields:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **CRM**.
- 2. Go to the Fields tab.

The system-predefined fields are visible under all tabs: Customer Fields, Case Fields, Follow-up Fields, and Task Fields.

Field	ls Escalation Rules F	Properties	Import							
s Field	Lists									
Cus	tomer Fields Case Fields	Follow-up Fi	elds Tasl	Fields						
Add	Customer Field: (+) Customer	Field								
Orde	r Customer Fields -	Label	Internal Id	Data Type	Predefined	Unique	Read Only	Hidden	Used in Outbound Setup	
-	customers.last_name	*Last Name	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
-	customers.email	Email	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
-	customers.password	Password	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
-	customers.generate_pass	Generate Pas	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
-	customers.voice	Voice	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
-	customers.fax	Fax	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
-	customers.alternative	Alternative	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
•	customers.restrict_custom	Restrict Custo		÷	yes(System)	no	no	no	no	
1	customertype	Customer Type	cf_contactt	Picklist(1)	yes	no	no	no	no	Ø
2	phone	Phone	cf01	Text(50)	no	no	no	no	no	1
3	email2	Email (Additio	. cf02	Text(50)	no	no	no	no	no	0

CRM Field Option	Description					
Data Type	Choose the type of data to add:					
	■ Text					
	■ URL					
	Number					
	 Date 					
	Pick List					
	As you select a data type, 8x8 Configuration Manager enables or disables Add Field options.					
	Note: Once you save a data type, you cannot change it.					
Field Name	Type the name of the custom field. It can be a maximum of 32 alphanumeric characters.					
Display Label	Type the label that the 8x8 Contact Center displays for this field in 8x8 Agent Console. It can be a maximum of 32 alphanumeric characters.					
Default Value	For Text, URL, Number, and Date data types. Type the default value of the CRM Field. It can be a maximum of 85 alphanumeric characters.					
Maximum	For Text, URL, and Number data types.					
Length	Type the maximum number of characters that an agent can type into this field. The value varies based on the data type of the field, as follows:					
	 Text: Up to 4000 characters (4000 bytes) 					
	URL: 200 characters					
	Number: 255 characters					
Mandatory	For Text and Number data types. Select this option to make the field mandatory.					
Value Must	For Text and Number data types.					
be Unique	Select this option to require the Agent to supply a unique value for the field.					
Read Only	Select to prevent users from modifying the value of this field.					
Hidden	Select to hide this field on 8x8 Agent Console.					

The following table summarizes the options available when creating or editing a field under **CRM > Fields**:

CRM Field Option	Description
Show on Customer View	This feature is not accessible via the Customer Fields tab. Select to see this option to be visible in customer view.
Pick List Values	This option is available for the Pick List data type only. Click Edit Pick List Values from the drop-down menu, and enter the desired values for pick list field. For example, if your pick list field is Car Type, your values could be Sedan, SUV, Van, and Pickup Truck.
Existing Records Value (N/A)	This option is available only for the Pick List data type. While adding pick list values, you can select one of the values for the existing customer records. This automatically populates existing records, with the selected value visible on 8x8 Agent Console.
Include this value in Pick List	This option is available only for the Pick List data type. This option includes the pick list value in the list.
Show as a tree	This option is available only for the Pick List data type. Selecting this option will present the choices in a tree (multi-level) format in 8x8 Agent Console.

3. Enter the field properties, and **Save**.

Follow the above instructions to create new Case, Follow-up, and Task fields.

Configure CRM fields

The 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM allows administrators to create custom fields, such as customer instances with unique dates of birth or dates of employment. A customer record stores information such as name, address, and phone numbers, and offers the capability to customize the customer object with custom fields. Use the Fields tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to specify a custom field for the Local CRM.



Note: You can create up to twenty custom fields within each CRM object: Customer, Case, Task, or Follow-up.

Create New CRM Customer Fields

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open CRM.
- 2. Go to the Fields tab.



3. Click Customer Field.

The Add New Custom Field (Customer) page appears.

4. Enter the field properties, and Save.Follow the above instructions to create new Case, Follow-up, and Task Fields.For a summary of the options, refer to Types of CRM Fields.



Note: You can create up to twenty custom fields within each CRM object: Customer, Case, Task, or Follow-up.

Customize the Display Order of CRM Fields

You can change the display order of CRM fields. The CRM fields appear under the Customer, Case, Task, and Followup objects in 8x8 Agent Console. This feature is available to both custom and predefined fields. The system-predefined fields cannot be moved. For example, in Customer Fields, you can only move the **customertype** predefined field, in addition to the custom fields you have created.

To customize the display order of the CRM fields:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **CRM**.
- 2. Go to the **Fields** tab.

8x8

3. Select a predefined or custom field and drag it to the desired row, then drop.

The new order appears in 8x8 Agent Console.

Home Security	CRM	» Fields										í
gent Groups gents ueues/Skills	Fields	_	Properties I	mport								
annels ipts		mer Fields Case Fields	Follow-up Fie	elds Task	Fields							
м	Add Cu	istomer Field: 🕀 Customer	Field									
port ter	Order	Customer Fields	Label	Internal Id	Data Type	Predefined	Unique	Read Only	Hidden	Used in Outbound Setup		
ound	-	customers.last_name	*Last Name	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		^
	-	customers.email	Email	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
ıs	-	customers.password	Password		-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
t	-	customers.generate_pass	Generate Pas	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
	-	customers.voice	Voice	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
s	-	customers.fax	Fax	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
	-	customers.alternative	Alternative	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
	-	customers.restrict_custom	Restrict Custo	-	-	yes(System)	no	no	no	no		
s	1	customertype	Customer Type	cf.contactt	Dicklict(1)	yes	no	no	no	no	Ø	<i></i>
	2	phone	Phone	Email (Addit	ional) Texicol)	no	no	no	no	no	0	
	3	email2	Email (Additio	cf02	Text(50)	no	no	no	no	no	1	
	Note: Dr	ag and drop to change display or	der of fields on Age	nt Desktop.	Save	e Order	Reset					

Make Mandatory CRM Fields

You can make any existing or new predefined and custom field as mandatory. Mandatory fields can be added to Customer, Case, Task, and Follow-up objects. When creating new customer records or cases in 8x8 Agent Console for example, agents must enter data into fields that are mandatory (such as Name, Email, or Address). Mandatory fields cannot remain blank.



Note: System-predefined fields are view-only and cannot be edited.

To make a mandatory predefined or custom field:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open CRM.
- 2. Go to the Fields tab.
- 3. Open Customer Fields, Case Fields, Follow-up Fields, or Task Fields.

4. Click to add a custom field, or to edit an existing field.

5. Enter the field properties.

- 6. Select the Mandatory check box.
- 7. Click Save.

8x8

Home Security	CRM » Add a Custom Field	0
Agent Groups		
Agents	Fields Escalation Rules Properties Import	
Queues/Skills	Field Lists	
Channels Scripts	Customer Fields Case Fields Follow-up Fields Task Fields	
CRM	Add New Custom Field (Customer)	
Support Center	Data Type Text URL Number Date Pick List	
Outbound Setup		
Campaigns	Field Properties * Field Name phone	
Broadcast	* Display Label Phone Value Must Be Unique	
Integration	Default Value Read Only	
Status Codes	Maximum Length characters Hidden	
Transaction Codes		
Outbound Phone Codes	Save Cancel	
Wallboard		
Chat design		

In 8x8 Agent Console, a red * appears next to the mandatory field to indicate that a value must be added.

Hide CRM Fields

You can hide any existing or new predefined and custom fields. The hidden fields can be part of the **Customer**, **Case**, **Task**, and **Follow-up** objects.

To hide a CRM field:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **CRM**.
- 2. Go to the Fields tab.
- 3. Open Customer Fields, Case Fields, Follow-up Fields, or Task Fields.

4. Click to add a custom field, or to edit an existing field.

- 5. Enter the field properties.
- 6. Select the Hidden check box.

7. Click Save.

8x8

Home Security	CRM » Add a	Custom Field		(i)
Agent Groups				
Agents	Fields Escalation	n Rules Properties Im	nport	
Queues/Skills	Field Lists			
Channels Scripts	Customer Fields	Case Fields Follow-up Field	ds Task Fields	
CRM	Add New Custom Field	d (Customer)		
Support Center	Data Type	● Text ◯ URL ◯ Number	r ⊜ Date ⊜ Picklist	
Outbound Setup	Field Properties	00		
Campaigns	* Field Name	mytask	Mandatory	
Broadcast	* Display Label	My Task	Value Must Be Unique	
Integration	Default Value		Read Only	
Status Codes	* Maximum Length	characters	Idden	
Transaction Codes				
Outbound Phone Codes			Save Cancel	
Wallboard				
Chat design				

Configure case notification

8x8 Contact Center supervisors can receive an email notification if a customer case has been inactive for some time. CRM escalation rules allow you to configure case notification in 8x8 Configuration Manager for cases that have been open but not updated within the specified time.

To configure case notification:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open CRM.
- 2. Go to the Escalation Rules tab.
- 3. Select the Enable notification check box.
- 4. Enter the number of days and hours that a case must be closed before sending an email notification to the supervisors.
- 5. Enter the supervisor's email address.
- 6. Select the day and time to receive the notification.
- 7. Click Apply.

Home Security	CRM » Escalation	n Rules											0
Agent Groups Agents	Fields Escalation Ru	les Properties	Import										
Queues/Skills Channels	'Time to Close' Notification						'Stall Time' Notification						
Scripts	Enable notification						Enable notification						
CRM	If case is not closed in	7 🔻 days, C) 🔻 hours,				If there was no case activ		7 v days, 0 v hours,				
Support	send an email notification to:						send an email notification	n to:					
Center Outbound	Notification Frequency						Notification Frequency						
Setup	Days 🖬 Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday		Days 🛃 Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday		
Campaigns	Saturday	Sunday					🗹 Saturday	Sunday 🗹					
Broadcast	Hours 00:00	01:00	02:00	03:00	04:00	05:00	Hours 00:00	01:00	02:00	03:00	04:00	05:00	
Integration	06:00	07:00	08:00	09:00	10:00	11:00	06:00	07:00	08:00	09:00	10:00	11:00	
Status Codes	2 12:00	13:00	14:00	15:00	16:00	17:00	2 12:00	13:00	14:00	15:00	16:00	17:00	
Transaction	18:00	19:00	20:00	21:00	22:00	23:00	18:00	19:00	20:00	21:00	22:00	23:00	
Codes													
Outbound													
Phone Codes													
Wallboard													
Chat design					-								
				Apply	Reset								

The following table summarizes the options under CRM > Escalation Rules:

Escalation Rules Option	Description
Enable notification (Time to Close Notification)	If enabled, 8x8 Contact Center sends an email notification to the supervisor if a case has not been closed within the time specified time.
If the case is not closed in	Select the time interval, in hours and days, that a case must be closed.
Send an email notification to	Enter an email address to which 8x8 Contact Center sends the email notification when a case has not been closed within the specified period.

Escalation Rules Option	Description
Notification Frequency	Select the frequency with which 8x8 Contact Center sends email notifications about unclosed cases to the specified email address.
Enable notification (Stall Time Notification)	If enabled, 8x8 Contact Center sends an email notification to the supervisor if a case has been stalled (no activity) for the duration time specified.
If there was no case activity for more than	Select the time interval, in hours and days, during which a case activity must occur.
Send an email notification to	Enter an email address to which 8x8 Contact Center sends the email notification when a case has been inactive for the specified duration of time.
Notification Frequency	Select the frequency with which 8x8 Contact Center sends email notifications regarding cases that are not closed or do not have any activities.

An email notification is sent to the supervisor.

The follow have exce time of 7 o	eded the n	naximum					
Showing 3 3	oldest cas	ses out of					
Last Updated	Assigned To	Case #	Priority	Severity	Status	Company	Subject
06/04/18 10:33	Sasha Solovey	3	Medium	Information	Open	Specialty Cookies New York	Customer Request Additional
06/04/18 10:33		4	Medium	Information	Unassigned	Specialty Cookies New York	Customer Request Additional Follow-up
06/04/18 12:59	Sasha Solovey	5	High	Information	Open	Specialty Cookies New York	Customer Request 2

Configure CRM properties

8x8 Contact Center administrators configure the Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to specify CRM behavior in the following areas:

- To define time limit to reopen closed cases
- To assign reopened cases to agents
- To display case and follow-up records using HTML in 8x8 Agent Console
- To disable opening files attached to emails by clicking attachment

To configure CRM Properties:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open CRM.
- 2. Go to the Properties tab.
- 3. Configure the desired setting, and click Apply.

Home Security	CRM » Properties	(j)
	Fields Escalation Rules Properties Import	
Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM Support Center	Closed case - automatic re-opening time-limit: Never Aways Automatically assign re-opened cases to next agent hading the case: Display cases and follow-upp suing HTML when available:	
Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration	Disable file open on clicking attachment:	

The following table summarizes the options under **CRM > Properties**:

CRM Properties Option	Description
Closed case -	Select the time interval that a closed case automatically reopens within a specified time limit.
automatic re-	Specify one of the three possible values:
opening time-	 Never: Never opens a closed case automatically.
limit	• Always: Always reopens a closed case in the event of a customer follow-up via email.
	• Time limit : Specifies the maximum amount of time a case can be closed before it

CRM Properties Option	Description
	automatically reopens. If a follow-up is received within the time limit, the case reopens automatically. The case remains closed if a follow-up is received after the time limit. For example, if you set the time limit to 10 days, a case that is closed today can potentially be reopened within the next ten days in the event of a customer follow-up by email. Once the time limit expires, the system creates a follow-up case, but will not reopen the case.
	Note: When you change a parameter's value, it takes effect immediately.
Automatically assign re- opened cases to next agent handling the case	If enabled, assigns reopened cases to the next receiving agent automatically. Reopened cases normally retain their previous agent assignment. If disabled, assigns reopened cases to the agent who handled the case previously.
Display cases and follow-ups using HTML when available	 If enabled, supports HTML formatting during the following tasks: Creating and editing case records. Creating follow-up records. Creating notification emails. If disabled, an agent is restricted to plain-text data while creating or notifying case and follow-up records.
Disable file open on clicking attachment	If selected, the email attachment sent by the CRM customers cannot be opened from within 8x8 Agent Console. Agents can still save the attachment, but are prevented from opening the insecure attachments.

Understand CRM import

If 8x8 Contact Center administrators receive customer data in a CSV file, they can import the data to their 8x8 Contact Center customer file using the **Imports** tab of the CRM page in 8x8 Configuration Manager. To import data from a CSV file, map each column name from the CSV file to an existing customer contact field. If you have additional fields that do not map to the existing fields in the contact record, you must create custom fields to hold this data.

The data import feature allows a maximum of 50,000 records to be loaded per session, and the records are loaded in increments of 100. Use the Imports tab to view the progress of the current import, including error message for records that cannot be loaded.

To prevent any failure, complete the following tasks before importing:

- Match the columns in the CSV file with the existing CRM fields.
- Create custom fields for additional fields in the CRM page.
- Verify that the email information is unique for each record.
- Confirm that the records with pick list values match the pick list values defined in the CRM field of pick list data type.
- Enter dates in MM/DD/YYYY format.
- Verify you have data for all mandatory fields, such as First Name and Last Name.
- Confirm the data length of mapping column in the CSV file matches the data length of the mapped customer field in the CRM.

CRM Customer Field	Data Length
First Name	30
Last Name	30
Email	40
Company	50
Voice	38
Fax	38

The following table provides the data length of CRM customer fields:

CRM Customer Field	Data Length
Alternative	38
Password	15
Comments	400
Primary Address, Secondary Address	
Street (line 1)	50
CityStreet (line 1)	50
State	40
Zip	30
Country	15
Custom field - Text	up to 4000 (4000 bytes)
Custom field - Number	255

Import customer data into Local CRM

8x8 Contact Center administrators follow the procedure below via 8x8 Configuration Manager to import customer data into Local CRM.

To import customer data into Local CRM:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **CRM**.
- 2. Go to the Import tab.

Home Security	CRM » Import	(j)
Agent Groups Agents	Fields Escalation Rules Properties Import	
Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	1 import CSV File 2 Step 2 Customer Information 3 import Summary 4 Import Result	
CRM Support Center	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast	* Import a csv file Choose Files No file chosen Next >>	

- 3. Click **Choose Files** to select the Comma-Separated Value (CSV) file containing your customer information from your file system.
- 4. Click Next.

The mapping screen appears. This screen allows you to map a column in the CSV file to a field in the customer file of the 8x8 Contact Center CRM. The column names from the CSV file are available in the pull-down menu, as shown below. Select a column name of the CSV file from the pull-down menu, and map it to the matching field in

8x8

the 8x8 Contact Center customer file.

Home Security	CRM » Im	port										(
aent Groups												
Agents	Fields E	Escalation Rules	Properties Impo	•								
ueues/Skills	Tielus L	scalation Rules	Propercies impo									
hannels	Step	-	Step	Step		Step						
cripts		SV File 2	Customer Information	3 Import Sumi	mary 4	Impo	rt Result					
RM		_										
upport enter			÷									
	General Informa	tion	Primary		Secon	dary Add	ress		Custom Fields			
	* First Name	Choose an item	 Street(line1) 	Choose an item	 Stre 	et(line1)	Choose an item	-	Customer Type	Choose an item	•	
	* Last Name	Choose an item	 Street(line2) 	Choose an item	 Stre 	et(line2)	Choose an item	-	Phone	Choose an item	•	
	Email	Choose an item	 City 	Choose an item	*	City	Choose an item	•	Email (Additional)	Choose an item	-	
			 State 	Choose an item	-	State	Choose an item	-				
tegration	Company	Choose an item	 State 									
	Company Customer Type	Choose an item Choose an item	 State Zip 	Choose an item	•	Zip	Choose an item	•				
					* *	Zip Country	Choose an item Choose an item	•				
	Customer Type	Choose an item	▼ Zip	Choose an item	▼ ▼			•				
ntus Codes Insaction des tbound	Customer Type Voice	Choose an item Choose an item	▼ Zip	Choose an item	*			•				
itus Codes nsaction des tbound one Codes	Customer Type Voice Fax	Choose an item Choose an item Choose an item	▼ Zip	Choose an item	▼ ▼			•				
atus Codes insaction des tbound one Codes allboard	Customer Type Voice Fax Alternative	Choose an item Choose an item Choose an item Choose an item	▼ Zip	Choose an item	v			•				
	Customer Type Voice Fax Alternative Password	Choose an Item Choose an Item Choose an Item Choose an Item Choose an Item	▼ Zip	Choose an item	▼ ▼			•				

5. Click Next.

The summary page opens and shows the mappings selected.

Home Security	CRM » Import	
Security Agent Groups		
	Fields Escalation	Rules Properties Import
	Step	Step Step Step
Channels Scripts	1 Import CSV File	2 Customer Information 3 Import Summary 4 Import Result
RM		
upport enter		
Lenter Dutbound		General Information
	First Name	User.FirstName (col1)
	Last Name	User.LastName (col2)
	Email	User.Email (col3)
ntegration	Voice	User.Voice.Number (col4)
	Fax	User.Fax.Number (col6)
ransaction odes		
outbound Mone Codes		
Vallboard		
hat design		
		<< Back Start

6. Click Start to initiate the import.

OR

Click **Back** to modify the settings.

On initiating the import, the progress is displayed on the screen. The import is committed to the database in increments of 100 records at a time. Statistics about the import are displayed as well.

7. You can **save** the import report on the local file system.

About 8x8 Auto Dialer with campaign management

8x8 Auto Dialer with campaign management enables retrieving data from your Local CRM or importing data from an External CRM, creating campaigns, running campaigns, and tracking responses.

8x8 Contact Center supports preview, progressive, and predictive dialing modes to better manage outbound telephone-based campaigns to meet your business needs. Automate your outbound dialing and maximize the productivity of your contact center agents. Empower your agents to connect with prospects and customers more effectively, and boost conversion rates as well as customer satisfaction. The progressive and predictive dialing modes call numbers automatically from campaign calling lists, screen for busy signals, voicemail, no-answers, and disconnected numbers, connecting agents to only live-answered calls.

Learn more about the dialing modes.

A campaign enables you to search, generate, and feed a campaign call list to an outbound phone queue, facilitating automated outbound dialing. Campaigns pull data from the customer object of the Local CRM, or any CRM object, such as lead, account, or contact containing phone data from the Salesforce CRM. Campaigns are assigned to outbound phone queues, while agents assigned to these queues are offered campaign calls.

Note: 8x8 Auto Dialer supports generating campaign call lists directly from the Salesforce CRM if 8x8 Contact Center integration for Salesforce is set up. For all other External CRM integrations, the data must be imported from the External CRM into the Local CRM to generate campaign call lists.

Features

8x8 Auto Dialer provides capabilities to generate a campaign call list, create, run, and recycle campaigns. The Dialer allows you, as an administrator, to:

- Manage and automate outbound dialing campaigns extracting data directly from yourLocal CRM or imported from an External CRM application.
- Support blended call centers; agents can be setup to process inbound and outbound calls with priorities, skills, and skill levels.
- Define global properties for campaign management, which include selecting CRM objects and fields, and uploading audio messages for campaigns.
- Assign a campaign to an outbound queue.
- Upload and assign pre-recorded messages to campaigns.
- Search and retrieve records from the Local CRM or Salesforce CRM to generate a campaign call list, and feed the list to an outbound queue.
- Map transaction codes to automated disposition actions to schedule a call back, or try to call again.
- Control and monitor campaigns.

Limitations

- 8x8 Auto Dialer is limited to customers who use the Local CRM and Salesforce CRM.
- Available only to agents who are logged in to the Salesforce CRM Multi Channel interface. CTI Connect is not supported.

Dialer campaigns work in cycles

A key characteristic of nearly all dialer campaigns is that it is rare to reach the desired number of contacts after a single pass through a list. Therefore, campaign lists are recycled again and again using disposition codes from earlier cycles to alter selection and sort strategies to create new campaigns.

Dialing modes

The dialing mode of a campaign determines the pace at which calls are dialed out and connected with contacts. Whether you want to connect calls to agents first and then dial out to the contacts or want to connect agents to live answered calls, the dialing modes offer options to meet your business needs.

Prior to the 8x8 Contact Center 9.12 release, the 8x8 Auto Dialer was available in preview dialing mode. In the 9.12 release, we have introduced progressive and predictive dialing modes. What is preview dialing mode?

In preview dialing mode, agents are presented with customer records for preview before dialing out. The agent is given a choice to select the phone number and start the call, reject the call or skip the call if allowed, and view the next customer record. If no choice has been made within a certain predefined time limit, the system automatically dials out to the customer, provided the dial call action is configured within the campaign properties. If the agent chooses to skip the call, the next record is presented, and the procedure is repeated, until the records in the campaign have been exhausted.

The preview dialing mode is most suited to campaigns which require preparation before the conversation. For example, In a complex sales call where the agent needs to decide the best approach to the call preview dialing is more suited.

The diagram below shows the call flow in preview dialing mode. The agent previews the customer record and begins the call. The agent may preview and reject the call which forces the agent to go on break, The agent may skip (if allowed) the offered call and move to the next record.



Preview dialing allows agents to view the information they need to serve customers efficiently with a complete history of previous customer interactions and notes to review before calling them. This experience may vary if you are using

Salesforce in the Outbound Setup. Preview dialing provides agents with enough context to complete the interaction, instead of expecting agents to gather context during the call.

Preview dialing allows the system to initiate the call if the agent does not, and enhances agent productivity via answer machine detection, persistent agent connection, automatic transaction codes for unanswered calls, and carrier call blocking on the Do Not Call lists prior to connection.

The 8x8 Preview Dialer:

What is progressive dialing mode?

8x8 Progressive Dialer is an automated telephone dialing system that only connects agents to calls answered by a live person. The system automatically paces dialing and only dials when an agent becomes available. The dialer screens out busy lines, answering machines, and no answers automatically so that agents are connected to a live caller.

The progressive dialing method is straightforward. In every moment we compute the number of agents who are available and can receive calls at this moment. The corresponding number of calls are made.

The 8x8 Progressive Dialer:

- Automates the time-consuming process of dialing numbers and removes the need for manual dialing.
- Reduces wait time, eliminates errors in manual dialing and dramatically increases productivity.
- Connects only live answered calls to agents.
- Ensures each connected outbound call is delivered to an available agent.
- Detects calls with busy signals, answering machines, and disconnected numbers and dispositions them automatically with wrap-up codes.
- Supports sequential dialing of up to 22 phone numbers for each contact on the call list.

The diagram below shows the progressive dialing mode call flow.



The progressive dialing mode is more efficient than the preview method, since it connects agents to live calls and automatically screens failed calls. On the other hand, agents do not have the opportunity to preview and prepare for the call.

What is predictive dialing mode?

8x8 Predictive Dialer initiates outbound calls based on a preset dialing ratio before the agent is free to handle the next call. Predictive dialing is the most productive and most aggressive dialing mode. In predictive dialling mode the system dials multiple records simultaneously and connects answered calls to agents. Unanswered calls are automatically dispositioned with appropriate wrap-up codes.

The predictive dialer uses a complex algorithm to keep agents as productive as possible. It predicts the rate at which it will find live calls and adjusts the number of calls being overdialed so that an agent is available to handle the calls. As soon as an agent finishes one call they can move on to the next call right away. If you want to maximise agent talk-time, the predictive dialing mode typically provides the best results. This will greatly improve agent efficiency and campaign productivity.

The diagram below shows the progressive dialing mode call flow.



Features

8x8 Predictive Dialer offers the following features:

- Dials more calls than the number of agents available, only ever presenting live answered calls to the agents.
- Estimates how many calls need to be placed, in order to get idle agents busy on live calls as quickly as possible.
- Automates the dialing of the campaign calls, in quick succession.
- Supports sequential dialing of up to 22 phone numbers for each contact on the call list.

- Allows campaign admins to customize (from default 3%) the Abandoned Rate which refers to the rate at which calls are being abandoned due to non-availability of agents.
- Allows campaign admins to customize (the default 15) seconds of ring-time; Usually when answer-rate is low, customers want to increase ring time.
- Detects unanswered calls, such as answer machines, bad numbers, number busy or unanswered and automatically dispositions them.
- Allows campaign admins to customize how many retry attempts the system will make for unanswered calls and abandoned calls.
- Improves agent efficiency and campaign productivity via automatic answer machine detection, persistent agent connection, and carrier call blocking.
- Monitors the calling statistics in real time using the pacing algorithm.
- Supports safe harbor audio messages for abandoned calls.

Risks

While delivering a significant performance boost to contact centres, predictive dialing may result in connected calls with live individuals which do not have available agents. In this scenario, the dialer allows you to mitigate the risk by playing a pre-recorded safe harbor message. The message typically should identify the company running the campaign or the company they are calling on behalf of, provide a free or standard cost call back number, and contain no marketing or sales information.

- Abandoned call: If the live call fails to connect to an available agent within two seconds, but plays a pre-recorded safe harbour message, it is considered as an abandoned call.
- Silent call: If the live call fails to connect to an available agent within two seconds and doesn't play a pre-recorded safe harbour message, it drops. It is considered as a silent call.

Predictive dialers are routinely used in telemarketing, market research, debt collection, and customer service follow-up.

Next steps

After reviewing the capabilities of each dialing mode, you are now ready to begin configuring the 8x8 Auto Dialer. Learn how to set up the dialer.

8x8

Configure the 8x8 Auto Dialer

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, configuring an 8x8 Auto Dialer requires you to define outbound queues, set an appropriate dialing mode for each outbound queue, define global properties for outbound campaigns, and then create campaigns by assigning them to the outbound queues.

Configuring the 8x8 Auto Dialer involves the following steps:

- Step 1: Set up an outbound phone queue
- Step 2: Add custom phone fields in the Local CRM (Optional)
- Step 3: Define global properties for outbound campaigns
- Step 4: Create and control campaigns

If your tenant is provisioned with 8x8 Auto Dialer, the Configuration Menu shows the following tabs:

- Outbound Setup allows you to define global properties for managing all campaigns.
- Campaigns allows you to create and control campaigns.

Home	Home » Summary	
Security		
Agent Groups		
Agents	Summary Profile Audio Files Schedule	es Dial Plans
Queues/Skills		
Channels	Incoming Channels	Agent Groups
Scripts	Phone 0	Ungroup 0
CRM	Email 0	Sales 3
Support	Chat 1	Support 3
Center	Social 0	Marketing 0
Outbound		
Setup	Inbound Queues	
Campaigns	Phone 2	
Broadcast	Email 2	
Integration	Chat 1	
Status Codes	Voice Mail 2	
Transaction		
Codes	Outbound Queues	
Outbound Phone Codes	Phone 2	
Wallboard		
Chat design		

Step 1: Set up an outbound queue for dialer

Every 8x8 Contact Center outbound campaign is directed via an outbound queue. The queue must define the dialing mode which determines how calls are handled when this queue is assigned to a campaign. It can be set to preview, progressive, or predictive mode.

To add an outbound queue and set up the dial mode:

- 1. Log into 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. From the menu, go to Queues.
- 3. Select to add an outbound queue.
- 4. Define the following queue properties.

8x8				å F	Robin Smith (ryand	lemo0101)	
Home Security	Queues/Skills »	Add Outbound	Pł	none » Pro	operties		
Agent Groups							
Users							
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to queue list						
Scripts	Properties Members	Interactions SLA	\	Campaigns			
CRM	Queue type	Phone					
Outbound Setup	Queue direction * Queue name	Outbound Predictive queue					
Campaigns	Outbound Phone script	None	•				
Broadcast	Default priority	8	•	1=Low 10=High			
Integration	Post-processing timeout	5 seconds	•				
Status Codes	Voice Recording	25		96			
Transaction Codes	Dial Mode (for campaigns) Abandon Percentage	Predictive 3 %					
Outbound Phone Codes	Agent whisper audio	Acme Sales Play Audio	•]			
Wallboard		C Play Addio					
Chat design				Save	Cancel		

- 5. Enter a name, set a default priority, indicate the percentage of calls on this queue to be recorded.
- 6. Dial Mode (for campaigns): Select the dialing mode for campaigns from the drop-down list of choices. Dial

mode defines how calls will be handled when this queue is assigned to a campaign.



Note: This progressive or predictive dial mode when applied to a queue impacts the dialing mode in call back scenarios via the API or the IVR.

- Preview dialer: Offers agents the preview of the customer record before dialing out, either automatically or via agent action.
- Progressive dialer: Reacts to agent state and uses available data to make calls on behalf of agents in the background. Dials at a 1:1 ratio (one call for every agent in available status), making calls until a live customer answers. There is a reduced risk of abandonment but higher agent wait times.
- Predictive dialer: Monitors all agents status for high-performance outbound dialing, predicting the availability
 of agents before they end their current call in order to reduce wait times as much as possible. This mode offers
 built-in compliance checks for abandonment rate.
- 7. If you select progressive or predictive dial mode, you will be presented with a Dialer compliance warning. At the prompt for dialer compliance, click **accept**. To learn more about the rules and regulations for dialer compliance click here.



Note: The compliance warning is presented only the first time you use that mode prompting for your acceptance.

8. **Abandon percentage**: When you set the dial mode to predictive, you need to specify an acceptable percentage for abandoned calls. In Predictive mode the dialer will automatically lower the dialing pace when this threshold is exceeded to decrease the number of dialed calls in order to decrease the percentage of abandoned calls. If the rate drops far enough below the target then the opposite is true and the dialer will continue to increase the pace until the maximum percentage is reached or all agents are busy.



Note: This field is applicable to predictive dialing mode only.

9. Select the audio file for agent whisper. This audio is played to the agent on accepting a call from the queue, typically used to quickly remind the agent about the intent or context of the call. Learn how to add an audio file for agent whisper.

10. Click **Save** to save the queue properties.

8x8

11. Proceed to the remaining steps to identify members serving the queue, to add rules for interaction priority, and to set an SLA for the queue.

A message displays that the queue is created successfully. Learn more about creating an outbound phone queue.

Step 2: Add custom phone fields in the Local CRM (Optional)

By default, the Customer object in 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM offers two predefined voice phone fields: Voice, and Alternative. You can add additional phone fields to the Customer object to improve the chances of contact with the customer during a campaign. Let's say a debt collection company has to track an individual, they may have phone numbers of relatives listed as well.

To add a custom field to the Local CRM:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to **CRM** from the menu.
- 3. In the Customer Fields list, click + Customer Field. The Add a Custom Field (Customer) page appears.
- 4. Select Text for data type of phone fields.
- 5. Enter the field properties, and click Save. You have now created a custom field. Repeat this task to add more

custom phone fields if needed.



Learn more about how to configure custom CRM fields.

You will need to mark the new custom fields as phone fields in the Outbound Set up to ensure they are included in campaigns and dialed in a specified order. Learn more.
Step 3: Configure the outbound setup

For campaigns to function successfully, they need to connect to the 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM or Salesforce CRM, extract data from a specific CRM object, and generate a target call list.



Note: 8x8 Auto Dialer supports generating campaign call lists directly from the Salesforce CRM if 8x8 Contact Center integration for Salesforce is set up. For all other External CRM integrations, the data must be imported from the External CRM into the Local CRM to generate campaign call lists. Learn about the prerequisites and how to import the customer list in CSV format and how to add customers using the CRM API.

Outbound setup enables you to define global properties for campaigns by:

- 1. Specifying the target CRM properties
- 2. Defining CRM objects and fields relevant to campaigns
- 3. Uploading pre-recorded messages to be accessed by campaigns
- 4. Mapping transaction codes to disposition actions

Specify target CRM properties

A campaign requires a call list of customers or contacts for automated outbound dialing. To generate a call list, you must access and extract data from the Customer object of 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM or any object in the Salesforce CRM. To access data from your CRM, you must configure CRM information under Outbound Setup > Properties.

The Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager enables you to:

• Select a target CRM to extract the call list data.



Note: 8x8 Auto Dialer supports generating call lists from Local CRM and Salesforce CRM only. For all other External CRMs, the data must be imported to the Local CRM.

Provide and validate the login credentials of your Salesforce CRM account.

To extract customer data from your Local CRM:

- From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Setup**. The Properties tab opens.
- Select Local from the Target Type. Target type specifies the CRM application that stores the data used for campaigns.



Note: For the 8x8 Contact Center CRM, username and password information are not required.

3. Click Save.

To extract data from your Salesforce CRM account:



Note: 8x8 Auto Dialersupports generating campaign call lists directly from the Salesforce CRM if 8x8 Contact Center integration for Salesforce is set up.

1. Select **Salesforce** from the Target Type drop-down list.

Home Security	Outbound Setup » Properties	(j)
Agent Groups		
Agents	Properties CRM Objects Audio Files Disposition Action	
Queues/Skills		
Channels	Enabled 💌	
Scripts	* Target Type Salesforce •	
CRM	CRM User Name	
Support Center	CRM Password	
Outbound Setup	Note: - Please use Integration >> Screen Pop module to change Target Type.	
Campaigns	Login Test Apply Reset	
Broadcast		
Integration		

- 2. Enter your Salesforce **CRM User Name** and **CRM Password** to log in to the account. For Salesforce, add the security token to the password. ¹
- 3. Click **Login Test** to validate Salesforce account credentials. If the username and password are correct, the login test passes.
- 4. Click Save.

¹Obtain your authentication token from the original Salesforce email communication or from your Salesforce administrator.

Add CRM objects and fields

You can create campaigns by extracting call list data from the Customer object in the 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM, or any object in your Salesforce CRM provided the object has a phone field. To generate a call list based on an object, you should configure the object with its desired fields in the 8x8 Configuration Manager Outbound Setup. Let's say your customer record has three phone fields and you want to select them all for campaigns; additionally you want to display the customer name and email address in the transaction panel for agents to access the facts quickly; you will need to add these CRM fields in the Outbound setup for campaigns.

Outbound Setup > CRM Objects enables you to define CRM objects and fields to be used in campaigns.

To add a CRM object:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Setup**.
- 2. Go to the CRM objects tab.

rity			etup » CRM	2.5,0000							
Groups	Properti	es <u>CR</u> M	Objects Audio	Files Disposit	ion Action						
s/Skills els	CRM Ob	jects									
- -	Add Objec	t: 🕀 objec	t								
		Enabled	Name In CRM	Data Type	Label To Show Age	ents Pho	ne Field	Default Phone	Transaction Field	Used	
	object	~	Customer	(Object)	Customer					1	\oplus
nd	field	~	First Name	text	First Name						⊕ ⊞
	field	~	Last Name	text	Last Name						⊞ ⊕
gns	field	~	Phone	text	Phone		~				@ ⊕
st	field	~	Email	text	Email						⊞ ⊕
ion	field	~	Fax	text	Fax		~				⊞ ⊕
Codes tion nd Codes urd sign	Note: - Please u	se mouse to r	eorder CRM Objects/Fiel	ds. Also you can add r	ew fields by clicking on (+)	icon next to Object R	ow and edit i	nline data by clicking or	1 each row.		
	. 16636 0	Se 11003e to 1	conten entit Objectarrier	as. 1000 you control of 1	Test	Apply	Reset				

3. Click • Object.

If you selected to generate call list data from the Local CRM, then you can only select the data from the Customer object. If you selected Salesforce CRM, you can select any object.

4. Enter an object name for **Name in CRM**.

The data type for the object is automatically populated.

•		_	_	
•	- 25			
÷			_	
	-		_4	S. /
÷.,			_	
÷.,	-	_		
÷.,				8
0	_	_	S n	
61	- 44		14	
	_		r	

Note: You must enter the object name as it appears in the CRM.

Enter a value for Label to Show Agents in 8x8 Agent Console.
 The following table summarizes the options under CRM Objects:

CRM Objects Option	Description
Add Object	Lets you add an object from your CRM. If enabled, automatically populates the CRM Objects field while creating a campaign. If disabled, prevents creating a campaign based on the CRM object. Enter the following information to add a CRM object: Name in CRM : Enter the name of the object from your CRM. Make sure the object
	name matches the value in the CRM.
	Data Type : Select the most appropriate data type from the drop-down list.
	 Label to Show Agents: Enter a label to show on the transaction panel of 8x8 Agent Console.
	 Phone Field: Applies to a phone field only. If checked, displays the phone number to the agent on the transaction panel.
	 Default Phone: Applies to a phone field only. If checked, dials the number if an agent fails to select a number.
	 Transaction Field: Applies to any field. Shows the field on the transaction panel of 8x8 Agent Console.
	• Revert Edits : Reverses edits before the last save.
Add Field	Lets you add a field under the selected object. You can add any number of fields to filter your campaign call list. If disabled, prevents filtering a call list based on the CRM field. Enter the following information to add a CRM field under an object:
	 Name in CRM: Enter the field name from your CRM. Make sure the name matches the value in Field Name.
	Data Type: Select the most appropriate data type from the drop-down list.
	• Label to Show Agents: Enter a label to show on 8x8 Agent Console.
	 Phone Field: Applies to a phone field only. If checked, displays the phone number to the agent.

CRM Objects Option	Description
	 Default Phone: Applies to a phone field only. If checked, dials the number if an agent fails to select a number.
	 Transaction Field: Applies to any field. If checked, shows the field on the transaction panel of 8x8 Agent Console.
	 Revert Edits: Reverses the edits before the last save.
Move Up	Moves a CRM object or field up from its current position.
Move Down	Moves a CRM object or field down from its current position.
Delete	Deletes a selected object or field. For more information on deleting objects and fields, see how to delete CRM objects below.
	Note: You cannot delete an object without deleting its fields.
Save/Revert/Revert	Save: Saves all changes.
Edits	 Revert: Reverses all changes before the last save.
	 Revert Edits: Reverses the previous edit.

Add a CRM field to the Outbound Setup

To add a CRM field:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Setup**.
- 2. Go to the CRM objects tab.
- 3. Click next to the **Object** in the top row. Notice that another field is added.
- 4. Enter a name in **Name in CRM** for the field.



Note: You must enter the field name as it appears in the CRM.

5. Select Data Type to match the CRM field data type. If you do not find an exact match, enter the most appropriate data type. The Dialer supports the Boolean, Integer, Text, Date, and DateTime data types.



8x8

Note: Boolean may be used for check box values.

- 6. Enter a value for Label to Show Agents in 8x8 Agent Console.
- 7. Check the **Phone Field** to indicate if the data is a phone number. Phone Field is used to populate the list of phone numbers for a particular contact. The number shows on the control panel of 8x8 Agent Console.



Note: If you add a custom phone field, you must identify it as a phone field to include it in campaigns. Learn more.¹

Version 9.14

¹After adding a custom phone field in the Local CRM, you must add it and identify it as a phone field in the Outbound Setup. This marks the phone number for dialing during a campaign. If the Customer object has five phone fields three of which are custom fields, and you want to dial all these numbers during a campaign, the custom fields must be identified as phone fields.



- 8. Check the **Default Phone** to assign a default phone number if a contact has more than one number. A default phone number initiates an outbound call if an agent fails to select a particular number from the list. The number shows on the control panel of 8x8 Agent Console.
- 9. Check the **Transaction Field** for the field data to show on the control panel of 8x8 Agent Console and in the External Transaction Data field of Campaigns.

For example, you can select key information such as company name and phone number to show on the control panel, minimizing the agent's effort to retrieve this information from the contact record details. Custom objects and fields are supported as well. You can add any number of fields to filter your campaign call list.



Note: For custom objects and fields, suffix the object and field name with <_c>, such as in <Client_c>.

Custom phone fields in campaigns

The following steps are essential to ensure the custom phone fields are included in campaigns and dialed in a specified order.

Tag the custom field as a phone field in the Outbound Setup

After adding a custom phone field in the Local CRM, you must add it and identify it as a phone field in the Outbound Setup. This marks the phone number for dialing during a campaign. If the Customer object has five phone fields three of which are custom fields, and you want to dial all these numbers during a campaign, the custom fields must be identified as phone fields.

Go to Outbound Setup > CRM Objects. In this tab, you can define the fields to be used in campaigns.



Note: Customer object is chosen by default for the Local CRM.

To mark a custom field as a phone number field:

1. Click at the end of any row to add a Customer field.

- 2. Select the custom field you added in the Local CRM previously.
- 3. Add a label and click the checkbox to mark it as a phone field. This is required to confirm the field as a phone field. Enable this field for use in campaigns.
- 4. Optionally, enable Transaction field to select the fields to be shown to agents in the Control Panel > Transaction information.

Version 9.14



5. Click Test to validate the fields added and click Apply to confirm the changes.

Customize the dialing order of phone fields (Optional)

Let's say you have multiple phone numbers associated with each customer record and you want the dialer to try calling all the listed numbers during a campaign to improve the chances of contact. With sequential dialing, the dialer can now dial upto 22 phone fields. You will also need to determine the order in which they should be dialed. You want to reach a customer on their business number first, if unsuccessful, dial their home phone; if unsuccessful, dial their mobile number and so on; you need to list the phone fields in the order of business phone, home phone, and mobile phone by simply dragging and dropping the rows as desired in the Outbound Setup > CRM fields.

To customize the dialing order of the phone fields:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, go to Outbound Setup > CRM Fields.
- 2. Select the predefined or custom phone field and drag it to the desired row, then drop. Drag and drop all the fields necessary in the desired order.

3. Click Apply.



Delete a CRM object

To delete CRM objects:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Setup**.
- 2. Go to the CRM objects tab.
- 3. Select a field or object from the list.



- 傡 or **Delete**. The field is deleted from the list. 4. Click
- 5. Click Save.
- 6. Select the object and click **Delete** after deleting all the fields under the object.



Note: If an object is referenced in a campaign, the Delete button is disabled.

7. Click Save.

To delete a CRM field:

Select the field, and click **Delete**.



8x8

Note: If a field is referenced in a campaign, the **Delete** button is disabled.

Upload pre-recorded messages for campaigns

During a campaign call, an 8x8 Contact Center agent can access and play pre-recorded messages defined for that campaign to ensure a uniform delivery of the campaign message to all customers. In the Outbound Setup, you can upload a set of pre-recorded messages which can be accessed by campaigns. When you create a campaign in 8x8 Configuration Manager, you can assign messages specific to the campaign.

Abandoned calls in predictive campaigns need to play a message, typically stating the company the call is from and a standard call back number. This abandoned message must be played within two seconds of a live answer for compliance.



Note: Supports audio files in WAV format only.

To upload a pre-recorded message in Outbound Setup:

1. Go to Outbound Setup > Audio Files.

Done

- 2. Select Outbound Setup Files in the Directories section.
- 3. Click Menu.

The menu provides options to add, delete, or rename a folder. You can add files to folders only.

4. Select Add Folder.

You are prompted to enter a name for the new folder.

Home Security	Outbound Setup »	Audio Files	6
Agent Groups			
Agents	Properties CRM Objects	Audio Files Disposition Action	
Queues/Skills		Addio mes Disposition Addon	
Channels	Directories	Menu 👻 Audio Files	
Scripts	Name	Add File Size(bytes) Uploaded On Description	
CRM	Outbound Setup Files	Add Folder No Records Found.	
Support Center		Rename Delete	
Outbound Setup		Item Details	
Campaigns			
Broadcast			
Integration		* Name :	
Status Codes			
Transaction Codes		Description :	
Outbound Phone Codes		Upload : Choose Files No file chosen	
Wallboard		Save	
Chat design		Jave	
			Done

5. Enter a folder name, and select Create.

The folder appears under the Outbound Setup Files.



6. Select the folder, click Menu, and select Add File.

Home Security	Outbound Setup »	Audio Files	⁽⁾
Agent Groups			
Agents	Properties CRM Objects	Audio Files Disposition Action	
Queues/Skills	Troperdes Cron Objects	Addo Tiles Disposition Acdon	
Channels	Directories	Menu 👻 Audio Files	
Scripts	Name	Add File Size(bytes) Uploaded On Description	
CRM	Outbound Setup Files	Add Folder Rename No Records Found.	
Support Center		Delete	
Outbound Setup			
Campaigns		Item Details	
Broadcast		Q View Add	
Integration		* Name :	
Status Codes			
Transaction Codes		Description :	
Outbound Phone Codes		Upload : Choose Files No file chosen	
Wallboard		Save	
Chat design		Jave	
			Done

7. Enter a Name and Description of the audio file.

8. Click Choose File and select an audio file of the message to upload.



8x8

Note: You can upload audio files in WAV format only.

- 9. Click **Play Audio** to play and check content of the message.
- 10. Click Save. The audio file appears in the Audio File Items pane.

To upload an abandoned message:

- 1. Select the Abandoned message files folder, click Menu, and select Add File.
- Click Choose File and select an audio file of the message to upload. Note: You can upload audio files in WAV format only.

- 3. Click Play Audio to play and check the content of the message.
- 4. Click Save. The audio file appears in the Audio File Items pane.

Map disposition code

Campaign calls seldom reach the desired number of contacts after a single pass through a list. Therefore, campaign lists are recycled using disposition codes from earlier cycles to alter selection and sort strategies to create new campaigns. The transaction codes, which indicate call outcomes, can be used to determine how a campaign call needs to be processed further. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can map transaction codes to automated disposition actions in 8x8 Configuration Manager for better processing of campaign calls.

Every attempted campaign call may be labeled with a disposition action for follow-up. The supported disposition actions are Try Again, Schedule Call Back, and Do not Call.

Disposition Action	Resulting Action
Schedule	 Prompts an agent to schedule a callback time.
Call back	 Sends a reminder to the agent before the scheduled time if the agent is logged in to their 8x8 Agent Console or Salesforce account.
	 Sends a past-due reminder If the agent logs in past the scheduled time.
	 The agent has to manually place an outbound call at the scheduled time. For example, if you mapped a 'Busy, Callback' code with a 'Schedule Call Back' action, when an agent selects the 'Busy, Callback' code, the agent is immediately prompted to schedule a time for the callback. A reminder is sent half an hour before the scheduled time.
Try Again	 Offers a call to the contact based on the Retry properties defined for that campaign. Retries the call as often and as many times as defined in the Retry properties. Drops the record from the campaign list after going through the stated number of retry attempts. For example, if you failed to reach a contact, you mapped a 'Reached Voicemail' code with a 'Try Again' action, the campaign offers a call to the same contact based on the retry properties defined for that campaign.
Do not Call	allows marking records, and updating a CRM field with Do not Call disposition information. For example, the Lead object in Salesforce CRM has a standard Do not Call field. During a campaign call, you can update this field automatically by mapping a transaction code with Do not Call disposition action.

The following table summarizes the resulting disposition actions with examples:

The disposition actions get recorded in the Campaign Transaction Details report. A supervisor can monitor this report, and follow up with suitable actions.

To access the Disposition Action tab:

 Go to Outbound Setup > Disposition Action. The tab opens the existing transaction code lists assigned to queues.

Agent Groups Agent Groups Agent Groups Properties CRM Objects Audio Files Disposition Action QueuesSalls Selected Transaction Code List Channels Selected Transaction Code Lists Description: List of Transaction Code Lists CRM Description: Outbound Gransaction Code Lists Setup Menu text Report Text Disposition Action * Outbound Setup	Home Security	Outbound	Setup » Disposition Action	(j)
Channels Selected Transaction Code List Scripts Name: Transaction Code List CRM Description: Cuto und Transaction Code List Center Menu text Menu text Report Text Outbound C-D: Transaction Code List Campaigns Campaigns Transaction Code List	Agent Groups Agents	Properties	CRM Objects Audio Files Disposition Action	
Name: Transaction Code Lists CRM List of Transaction Code Lists Support Outbound Transaction Code Lists Center Menu text Report Text Disposition Action * Outbound Company Component Code Lists Company Setup Company Company Company Setup Company Company Company States Code None: Company Company	•	Selected Transact	ion Code List	
Other Description: List of Transaction Code Ist Support Outbound Transaction Code List Disposition Action * Outbound Setup Contrast of Support Inbound Contrast of Support Inbound Setup Contrast of Support Outbound Contrast of Support Inbound Campaigne Support Outbound Contrast of Support Inbound Campaigne Support Outbound Contrast of Support Inbound Status Codes Nore- Support Inbound Support Inbound		Name:	Transaction Code Lists	
Support Center Outbound Transaction Code List Neu text Report Text Disposition Action * Outbound Setup Or Transaction Code List Or Transaction C	-	Description:	List of Transaction Codes	
Outbound Image: Statup Setup Image: Statup Image: Statup Image: Statup Statup Image: Statup Statup Image: Statup Statup Image: Statup Note: Image: Statup	Support			
Integration Status Codes Note	Setup	👌 🛅 Support	Code Lists Inbound	
Note:				
Transaction - + nover over cell in disposition action column to start existing Codes Outbound Outbound	Transaction Codes		n disposition action column to start editing Apply Reset	
Phone Codes Wallboard				
Chat design				



Note: Disposition actions apply to transaction code lists assigned to queues only. You cannot map code lists assigned to agent groups.

2. Select a code from the list, and assign an appropriate Disposition Action from the drop-down list. The supported actions are Try Again, Schedule Callback, and Do not Call. Select None where other actions do not apply.

Home	Outhousd Coture Disease				0
Security	Outbound Setup » Disposit	tion Action			(i)
Agent Groups					
Agents	Properties CRM Objects Audio Files	Disposition Action			
Queues/Skills		Disposition readin			_
Channels	Selected Transaction Code List				
Scripts	Name: Transaction Code Lists				
CRM	Description: List of Transaction Codes				
Support	Outbound Transaction Code List				
Center	Menu text	Report Text		Disposition Action *	
Outbound	⊙- 🖻 Transaction Code Lists				
Setup	- Support Inbound				
Campaigns	o- E Support Outbound	Issue Resolved		None	
Broadcast	수- 🖺 Issue Resolved 수- 🗅 Follow Up	Follow Up		Schedule Callback	
Integration	o I No Answer	No Answer		Try Again	
Status Codes	🔆 🗋 Wrong Number	Wrong Number		Do Not Call	
Transaction Codes					
Outbound	Note:				
Phone Codes	- * Hover over cell in disposition action column to sta	rt editing			
Wallboard			Apply Reset		
Chat design					

Create a campaign

A campaign is an outbound phone-based dialer that enables you to search, generate, and feed a call list to an outbound queue, facilitating automated outbound dialing. As and 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can create a campaign based on the customer object in your 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM or any object defined in your Salesforce CRM, provided the object has a phone field. You can then define a search strategy to further filter the target call list. On initiating a campaign, the campaign manager fetches the target call list from the CRM and feeds records to an outbound phone queue. The agents assigned to the queue are offered campaign calls. If the campaign is in preview dialing mode, an agent previews a record, and then accepts, rejects, or skips the call. A call can be initiated automatically after the preview, if no action is taken, and if the auto dial feature is selected. If the campaign is in progressive or predictive dialing modes, the calls are dialed out to the customers first, when answered live, are then offered to the available agents.

The Campaigns tab in the 8x8 Configuration Manager lets you quickly create, execute, and manage campaigns. Additionally, you can sort and filter campaigns based on custom searches. Prerequisites for creating a campaign

Here is a checklist of tasks you should complete before creating a campaign:

- Create and identify an outbound phone queue to assign the campaign.
- Assign agents to the outbound phone queue.
- Create a transaction code list to capture campaign call outcomes and assign it to the outbound queue.
- Identify and set up CRM objects and fields from the 8x8 Contact Center CRM, or Salesforce CRM in Outbound Setup.
- Upload audio files.
- Identify and map call outcomes that require disposition actions.

- Optionally you can:
 - Determine a daily calling schedule for the campaign.
 - Determine the campaign search and sort strategy.
 - Identify a CRM field to capture the call outcome through transaction codes for recycling a campaign.
 - Identify a CRM field to capture the Do not Call disposition.
 - Identify supervisors to monitor and/or control a campaign.

Main tasks

Creating a campaign involves the following tasks:

- 1. Define campaign properties
- 2. Assign audio files to a campaign
- 3. Set preferences for abandoned campaign calls
- 4. Assign supervisors to a campaign
- 5. Define campaign search criteria
- 6. Specify a sort order for a campaign

Define campaign properties

8x8 Contact Center administrators define properties of a new campaign via Campaigns page Properties tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager. Select an outbound queue to assign the campaign to, define the scheduling attributes (start and end time of campaigns), and specify the number of retry attempts and more.

To define properties for a campaign:

- 1. In the Configuration Menu, click **Campaigns**.
- 2. Click ^(±) to add a new campaign.
- 3. In the Properties tab, enter or select values for the following properties of the new campaign:

Campaign Property	Description					
General	Campaign Name: Enter a campaign name.					
Properties	 Queue: Select the outbound queue to which the campaign is directed. 					
	 Dial Plan: Select one of the default dial plans or a custom dial plan from the drop down list of choices. 					
	Note : To ensure successful dialing of a campaign, select the appropriate dial plan based on the geographical region of the phone numbers included in the campaign. For example, if the contacts in your campaign are based in the US, use the US North American Numbering plan or a custom plan.					
	 Caller ID: Select the phone channel number configured for the tenant to be presented as the outbound caller ID, or select Anonymous. 					
	• CRM Objects : Select a CRM object from the list configured in the Outbound Setup.					
	Note: A campaign can extract data from only one CRM object.					

Campaign Property	Description
	This campaign is enabled: Select to enable the campaign.
	 Answer Machine Detection: If AMD service is provisioned for your tenant, the 8x8 Contact Center administrators can activate it for the desired campaigns. When selected, AMD identifies calls answered by a machine instead of people and allocates the calls answered by people to the available agents. For a machine-answered call, AMD sends a one- way message to the call routing to end that call and resolve it automatically. For details, see our content on how to enable AMD.
	 Show skip button: If selected, it offers agents the choice to skip a call by clicking the Skip button on 8x8 Agent Console's Control Panel. For details, see our content on how to skip campaign calls while on Auto Answer.
	Automatically apply Transaction Code to system ended calls. If this feature is provisioned for your tenant, the 8x8 Contact Center administrator can activate it for the desired campaigns. When selected, it automatically assigns transaction codes to campaign calls when the destination party is not available to answer the call, or the call cannot be completed, such as when there is a busy tone or dead line. This also includes identifying calls that are answered by a machine. For details, see our content on how to automatically apply transaction codes (Auto-TCL).
	 Override mandatory Transaction Code selection: If selected, you can let the system enter system-defined transaction codes, such as blocked number instead of the mandatory codes selected manually by agents.
	 Dynamic Campaign: If selected, you can add or remove records from an active campaign. The new numbers can then be dialed within five minutes while maintaining the original list. Removing a campaign record does not delete it from the list but will keep the record for the future reports. For details, see our content on dynamic campaigns.
	 Carrier Call Blocking: If selected, it detects TCPA-listed phone numbers for US customers and checking whether or not the phone number is listed on a Do Not Call (DNC) or mobile block list. If listed, the call is terminated by the carrier and an appropriate Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) code response is sent back to the interaction router. The call is then handled by our Auto-TCL and completed. For details, see our content on Carrier Call Blocking.
Preview Properties	 Preview Timeout: Define a time limit for previewing records before accepting a campaign call. You can select the agent's default preview time or enter a desirable preview time.

Campaign Property	Description
	 Timeout Action: Allows the system to follow one of the options below:
	 Dial Call: To place a call to the previewed party automatically once the preview time elapses.
	• No Action: To allow the agent to start, reject, or skip the call.
	Note: By default, the No action option is selected.
Start and	Select Start and End Date and Time values to schedule a campaign. You can specify a start date
End Time	and an end date. If start date and time is not provided, you must start the campaign manually. If
(Optional)	end date is not provided, the campaign stops after processing all the records.
	 Start Date: Specify a date to initiate the campaign.
	 Start Time: Specify a time of the day to initiate the campaign.
	End Date: Specify a date to end the campaign.
	End Time: Specify a time of the day to end the campaign.
	Note: A scheduled campaign follows the tenant time zone.
Daily Call	Enable and select a daily schedule to further control the time campaign calls are offered to agents
Start &	daily. This setting ensures the calls are offered based on a default schedule, or a custom
	schedule, and uses either the area code or the time zone of a destination number.
(Optional)	For example, if a campaign follows a default schedule with a daily start and end time configured at 9:00 and 17:00, the application initiates calls daily only between 9:00 AM and 5:00 PM. The
	current time at the destination is computed based on the area code of the destination number or
	the time zone specified.
	Enabled: Select to enable the daily call start and end time.
	 Schedule: Select a default schedule, or a custom schedule.
	Area Code (US & Canada only): Select this option to offer calls based on the area code of
	the outbound phone number.
	• Time Zone : Selecting a time zone from the drop down menu offers calls in the specified

Campaign Property	Description
	time zone. Select from 35 different time zones catering to all over the world. Note: Default or custom schedule refers to the schedule specified for the tenant under Home > Schedules.
Retry Properties (Optional)	Define retry attempts for unsuccessful campaign calls. You can define the retry frequency and the maximum number of retry attempts before dropping the number from the call list. When a campaign runs, the disposition action Try Again places retrial calls based on values defined in Retry Properties.
Auto Update (Optional)	Select a CRM field to be updated with transaction code report text or short codes. This data may be used to filter a campaign for further processing.
	Note: The CRM field must be included in the Outbound Setup. You may create a new CRM field to capture the disposition of each attempted campaign call. For each campaign cycle, create a new CRM field to capture the disposition for the cycle. Otherwise, the disposition from the next campaign cycle overwrites the disposition in the current cycle.
Do not Call (optional)	Select a CRM field to be updated with Do not Call disposition information.

4. Click Save.

You created a campaign successfully. Optionally, you may assign supervisors, create a search query, label a sort order, and assign pre-recorded messages to the campaign.

11		
1		
1	I = //	Not
÷.	I = //	NU
1	T = CA	
i.		
1.		

Note: On initiating a campaign, you cannot modify properties of the campaign.

Enable autodial campaign calls after preview

Campaign calls can automatically dial numbers when an agent who has spent all the preview time has not taken any action. At the end of the preview time if no action is taken, calls are initiated automatically eliminating the need for manual action by the agent. The 8x8 Contact Center administrators can enable autodialing for each campaign when an agent's preview countdown ends. The minimum preview duration is 15 seconds.

To set up autodial for campaign calls after preview:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager as an administrator.
- 2. Navigate to Campaigns from the menu.
- 3. Select to edit a campaign and scroll down to Preview Properties.
- 4. For the Preview Timeout (sec), select use Agent Offer Timeout. The default is 15 seconds.

8x8						ය Techpu
Home Security Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Campaigns » Pro	perties Filter Sort	Audio files			
CRM Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes	General Properties Campaign Name Queue Dial Plan Caller Id CRM Objects	System Dial Plan: US Nort Select ID	▼ ▼		Detection Ily Transaction Code to system ended calls datory Transaction Code selection In	
Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Preview Properties * Preview Timeout (sec) Start & End Time Start Date End Date	Use Agent Offer Timeout		Timeout Action Start Time End Time	Dial Call	
	Daily Call Start & End Time	Enabled	¥	Use	 Area Code (US & Canada only) Time Zone 	

5. For Timeout Action, select the **Dial Call** option. Timeout action allows the system: • **Dial Call:** To place a call to the previewed party automatically once the preview time elapses.

.....

• **No Action:** To allow the agent to start, reject, or skip the call.



8x8

Note: By default, the No action option is selected.

Enable Answer Machine Detection (AMD) service

In 8x8 Contact Center when the dialer is used in its aggressive mode, it can call more numbers than available agents to maximize agent efficiency. The dialer needs a service which detects the calls answered by a machine instead of people and filters them. We have introduced the Answer Machine Detection (AMD) service to identify such calls and allocate the calls answered by people to the available agents. When the AMD service identifies a machine-answered call, it sends a one-way message to the call routing to end that call and resolve it automatically. AMD is a learning service and it needs some time to build an effective library of known audio samples before it reaches the maximum efficiency. Once the library is created, the AMD service resolves a machine-answered call quicker than the manual effort of an agent.

AMD resolves a machine-answered call when the following acceptance criteria are met:

- There is an active interaction on an outbound call (non-active interactions include wrong numbers, numbers not in use, system messages).
- The call has a campaign ID from an AMD-enabled campaign.
- The elapsed time of an identified call can be terminated within the locally-configured threshold (two seconds in UK and US).

Once AMD is provisioned for a tenant, the 8x8 Contact Center administrators can activate it for desired campaigns under Campaigns.

To enable AMD in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager and go to Campaigns.
- 2. Click to create a new campaign or edit an existing campaign.
- 3. Under Properties, select Answer Machine Detection.
- 4. Click Save.

AMD works in conjunction with our new Auto-TCL. The transaction code for such calls appears as "Answer machine detected" in CRM Cases or under Historical reports.

Menu 👻 Robin (Robin)									
Menu Robin (Robin) Working Offline 3m:49s	at, Mi × Call Log (1	1242) × Google, Echip.	× Call Log (1243) × Macad	aeg, Je × Call Log)) × Ca	II Log (1244)	× AAASani, AA × (• •	
Available Take Break Log Out Edit Ta	1.								
	Customers: A Task Number:	AAASani, AAASamuel (10 120	000009]	Created by:	Customers Robin Sha				
2	* Assigned to:	Robin Shasta *	v	Phone:	+166990	05533			
Options +	Email:			Subject:	Call Log				
Dial Mute Hold End Call	Due Date:	08/05/2019 12:10		Status:	Closed		w.		
Transfer Lines Join Lines	Media Type:	Phone	*						
		Outbound	· ·						
Phone Transaction Agents Queues Participants	Description:								
Participants									
		Enable Reminder							
	Create Date: 0	08/05/2019 12:10:51		Last Modified Date:					
	Transaction Id: 1	1245		Campaign Name:	Acmelets- 305-321-	-301-302-30 322-323	3-304-		
	Call Duration: (D		Transaction Code:					
						Status	Due Date	Last Modified Date	Transaction Code
						Closed	25/07/2019 11:3	25/07/2019 11:36:	System Codes: Mobile number blocked
Foormality 8x8	Cancel			The new Trans		Closed	25/07/2019 11:3	25/07/2019 11:36:	System Codes: DNC blocked
				- machine-detect	ed calls	Closed	24/07/2019 16:2	24/07/2019 16:25:	System Codes: Call rejected
						Closed	24/07/2019 16:0	24/07/2019 16:08:	System Codes: Call rejected
						Closed	15/07/2019 15:2	15/07/2019 15:21:	System Codes: Answer machine detected



Note: The AMD service is only applicable to the calls routed via campaigns, but not the outbound calls placed by an agent.

Enable Carrier Call Blocking (CCB) Service

8x8 Contact Center is able to detect TCPA-listed phone numbers via Carrier Call Blocking (CCB) service. This feature is available for US customers only. The Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) designed to safeguard consumer privacy restricts telemarketing communications via calls, SMS texts, and fax. To comply with TCPA, we have introduced Carrier Call Blocking (CCB) service for campaign calls which allows the campaign manager in the Dialer to apply special routing to two carriers: Brightlink and RSquared. They will then run dialer calls through a service that checks whether or not the phone number is listed on a Do Not Call (DNC) or mobile block list. If listed, the call is terminated by the carrier and an appropriate Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) code response is sent back to the interaction router. The call is then handled by our Auto-TCL and completed.

Once CCB is provisioned for your tenant, the contact center administrators can activate it for the desired campaigns. If CCB is enabled, the campaign dialer checks whether the outbound call's phone number is listed on TCPA list.

To enable CCB in 8x8 Configuration Manager:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager and go to Campaigns.
- 2. Click to create a new campaign or edit an existing one.
- 3. Select Carrier Call Blocking.
- Select Automatically apply Transaction Code to system ended calls. Transaction codes record the outcome of each interaction using codes such as "Successful call", "Call back", "Do not call back", "Reached voicemail", "Faulty number", etc.
- Select Override mandatory Transaction Code selection to allow the system enter system-defined transaction codes such as "Mobile number blocked" or "DNC blocked" instead of mandatory transaction codes selected by agents.
- 6. Click Save.

When you run a campaign, the campaign dialer begins calling numbers fed from the CRM. When it detects a TCPA-listed phone number, the CCB terminates the call. A transaction code such as "Mobile number blocked" or "DNC blocked" is then generated by the system and recorded in the call log via Auto-TCL.

Automatically Apply Transaction Codes (Auto-TCL)

8x8 Contact Center automatically assigns transaction codes to campaign calls when the destination party is not available to answer the call, or the call cannot be completed, such as when there is a busy tone or dead line. This feature also identifies the calls that are answered by a machine. Auto-TCL works with Answering Machine Detection (AMD) service to identify such calls and automatically disposition them. It then moves onto the next call with minimal agent disruption. This feature allows 8x8 Contact Center agents to be more efficient with their time. Auto-TCL feature must be provisioned to the tenant. Administrators can then set it up in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

If Auto-TCL is provisioned for your tenant, you can enable it at the campaign level.

To set up Auto-TCL for campaigns:

- 1. Log into 8x8 Configuration Manager and go to Campaigns.
- 2. Click to edit or create a new campaign.
- Under Properties, select Automatically apply Transaction Code to System ended calls. Transaction codes record the outcome of each interactions using codes such as "Answer machine detected", "Call rejected", "Mobile number blocked", "Temporary failure", etc.
- 4. Select **Override Mandatory Transaction Code selection** to let the system enter system-defined transaction codes such as "Blocked number", instead of the mandatory codes selected manually by agents.

8x8				යී a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home	Campaigns » Pro	perties					(
Security	1 0 1						
Agent Groups							
Agents	AcmeJets Campaign						
Queues/Skills							
Channels	< Back to Campaign List						
Scripts	Properties Supervisors	Search Sort Audio f	iles				
CRM	General Properties						
Support	Campaign ID	181	Status Manual Stopped				
Centre	* Campaign Name	dfIPK2SC3YrjOA5	This campaign is enabled				
Outbound Setup	* Queue	Out 🔻	Answer Machine Detection				
Campaigns	* Dial Plan	System Dial Plan: Internat 🔻	Show Skip button				
Broadcast	* Caller Id	14086278909 🖉	Automatically apply Transaction Code to syst Override mandatory Transaction Code se				
Integration	 CRM Objects 	Load Test 🔍	Dynamic Campaign				
Status Codes			Carrier Call Blocking				
Transaction							
Codes	Preview Properties						
Outbound Phone Codes	 Preview Timeout (sec) 	Use Agent Offer Timeout 🛛 🔻	Timeout Action No Action	V			
Wallboard	Start & End Time						
Chat design	Start Date	i	Start Time				
	End Date						
	End Date	6	End Time 👻				

Note: Auto-TCL supports campaign calls only.	

In 8x8 Agent Console, the call log or task under a customer logs the automatic transaction code such as "Answer machine detected".

Menu Robin (Robin) Working Offline 0m:10s Available Take Break Log Out Take Break Log Out Take Break	093) × Mike chat, Mi × Call L Edit Task	og (1094) × Google, Echip.	.× Call Log (1095) ×	Macadaeg, Je × C	`all Log (1096) × дда	ASani, AA ×	Call Log (1097) ×	Bhupathi, Sra ×	Call Log () × () v
Al Fevorites Recents	Customers Task Number * Assigned to: Email: Due Date: Media Type: Call Type: Description:	Robin Shasta * 08/02/2019 14:38	* 3	* Created by: Phone: Subject: Status:	Customers List Robin Shasta +4086912691 Call Log Closed	¥			
All Fevorites Recents Q Iseanth	Create Date: Transaction Id: Call Duration:			Campaign Name	ne: 08/02/2019 14:38:1				
Show Status in: One Tab Powered by 8x8	Save Cancel								

Update live (dynamic) campaigns

In 8x8 Contact Center, Dynamic Campaigns allow administrators to add or remove records from an active campaign via campaign API. Prior to this release you could not add or remove records from a campaign after it started running. This supports integrated lead capturing systems which feed new prospects into the corresponding campaign in real time so they can be dialed within five minutes. Removing a campaign record does not delete it from the list but keeps the record for future reports.

For API configuration details, see our support article on how to configure 8x8 Contact Center dynamic campaign API.

Features

- Ability to add a record to an active campaign via campaign API. The new record appears at the end of the record set.
- Ability to remove a record from an active campaign via campaign API.
- Ability to return a list of active records.
- Ability to return the status and information of a specific record.
- A record that is on a Do Not Call list (DNC) cannot be added into the campaign. An error message is returned for that particular record on the multi-status response.
- Ability to schedule a callback for a maximum of seven days in advance via campaign API.
- Ability to schedule a maximum of five million records to be uploaded via campaign API.
- Copying a campaign with the Dynamic Campaign option does not copy this option for the new campaign.

To set up Dynamic Campaigns:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager and go to Campaigns.
- 2. Click to edit an existing campaign or create a new one.
- 3. Select Dynamic Campaign.
- 4. Click Save.

You can filter campaigns in the campaign list using the newly introduced columns: **Campaign ID** and **Dynamic Campaign**. Right-click on the campaign list and select to show the desired columns. For example, Dynamic Campaign appears in the campaign columns, but is not selected by default.

Check out how you can Skip Campaign calls during a campaign.

Skip campaign calls while on Auto Answer

8x8 Contact Center offers agents the option to skip the campaign calls during a campaign. To give the agents this capability, 8x8 Contact Center administrators must enable the option in 8x8 Configuration Manager under Campaign
> Properties .

To set up the Skip Campaign option:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to **Campaigns > Properties** and click to create or edit an existing campaign.
- 3. Select Show Skip button.

8×8					≗ a50opstest			
Home Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM Support Centre Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration	Campaigns » Pro Campaign List Properties General Properties Campaign Name Queue Dial Plan Caller Id CRM Objects			Detection n ply Transaction Code to system ended ca idatory Transaction Code selection		CO-Sitursing	Listh	
Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard	Preview Properties * Preview Timeout (sec) Start & End Time	Use Agent Offer Timeout	Carrier Call Block	No Action 🔹				
Chat design	Start Date End Date Daily Call Start & End Time	Enabled	Start Time End Time Use	Area Code (US & Canada only) Time Zone				

The campaign list also indicates if displaying skip button for agents is enabled or disabled for each campaign. Make sure the **Show Skip** button is selected in the column settings.

8x8						ය a50opstest	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	Campaigns » (Campaign List							0
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills	Campaign List						>	ilter Ca	mpaign Lis
Channels	Add Campaign: 🕀 Cam	ipaign			<< < 1 >>	>> 20 records	Configure Sort	i 🏹 Cl	ear All Sor
Scripts	Campaign Name ^	Enabled	Status	Caller ID	Queue	Show Skip button	Control		
RM	AcmeJets	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø) 🛈 🔶
upport entre	AcmeJets-301	yes	Completed	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	00
utbound	Acmelets-301-302	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	00
etup	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	D D
ampaigns	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø) 🗊
roadcast	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		D	00
tegration	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	00
atus Codes	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	D 🛈
ansaction odes	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø) 🗊
utbound	AcmeJets-301-302-303	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		D	00
none Codes	AcmeJets-301-341	yes	Completed	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	00
allboard	dflPK2SC3YrjOA5	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	D 🛈
nat design	eJaZuQrSfBD7xSo	yes	Completed	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		0	00
	eJaZuQrSfBD7xSo-363	yes	New	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes	۲	D	00
	test	yes	Manual Running	1-736-673-6673	Out	yes	III	P	ò
	Z39aYZxf2j93nXq	yes	Manual Stopped	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		Ø	00
	Z39aYZxf2j93nXq-221	yes	Completed	1-408-627-8909	Out	yes		0	00.

In 8x8 Agent Console and during a campaign call, if the Skip button is enabled, it offers agents the choice to skip a call by clicking the **Skip** button on their Control Panel.

Menu	·	Robin (Robin)
Outbound	Call Offered	0m:14s
Start	Reject	Skip
🥄 🗮		සී 🛈
1 2		
		Options 👻
Phone Tran	nsaction Age	nts Queues
Phone Number:	16507047542	
Queue:	Out	
Wait Time:	0m:00s	
Case ID:		
Transaction ID:	883	
Campaign Name:	Z39aYZxf2j93r	ηΧq
Voice:	16507047542	

Assign audio files to campaigns

During a campaign, an 8x8 Contact Center agent can play pre-recorded audio messages defined for the campaign to ensure a uniform delivery of the campaign message across all campaign calls. If as an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you have uploaded audio files of pre-recorded messages during Outbound Setup, you can assign those messages to the campaign now using 8x8 Configuration Manager. An agent accepting campaign calls can access and play pre-recorded messages at any point during the call. On reaching a voicemail, an agent can play a pre-recorded message, then immediately switch back to available status, and attend the next interaction.

To assign a pre-recorded message to a campaign:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Campaign > Audio Files.
- 3. In the Audio Files pane, select a folder. The voice messages in this folder appear in the list.
- 4. Select the voice message you would like to assign to the campaign.
5. Click **Assign** above the check boxes.

A dialog box appears with a message confirming the assignment.

Home Security	Campaigns » Audio files					i
Agent Groups						
Agents	AcmeSales					
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to Campaign List					
Scripts	Properties Supervisors Filter	Sort Auc	io files			
CRM						*
Support	Audio Files:					- 1
Center	Outbound Setup Files Sales Outbound	Name	Size(byte	s) Uploaded On Description	Play	- 1
Outbound Setup	Butter			No Records Found.		
Campaigns						
Broadcast						
Integration						
Status Codes Transaction						
Codes						
Outbound						- 1
Phone Codes	🗊 Un-Assign					- 1
Wallboard	Name	Size(bytes) Upl	oaded On Description		Play	
Chat design	😑 🕞 Dutbound Setup Files					
	🖻 📄 🔁 Sales Outbound					
			5/29/2018Legal details 5/29/2018Intro message		 Play Audio Play Audio 	
	Campaign nuo	250024 0	5/25/2016intro message		Play Addio	
						- 1
						- 1
			Done			-

- To un-assign an audio file, select the file from the Assigned Audio Files window, and select Un-assign from the menu.
- 7. Click Done.

Assigning abandoned messages to campaigns

A campaign call is considered abandoned if a live answered call is not accepted by an agent. Abandoned calls in predictive campaigns need to play a message within two seconds of a live answer for compliance. The message typically should identify the company running the campaign or the company they are calling on behalf of, provide a free or standard cost call back number, and contain no marketing or sales information.

To assign an abandoned message to a campaign:

- 1. Go to Campaign > Audio Files.
- 2. In the Audio Files pane, select Abandoned Message files. The voice messages in this folder appear in the list.

- 3. Select the voice message you would like to assign to the campaign.
- 4. Click **Assign** above the check boxes.

A dialog box appears with a message confirming the assignment.

- 5. To un-assign an audio file, select the file from the Assigned Audio Files window, and select Un-assign from the menu.
- 6. Click Done.



Set preferences for abandoned campaign calls

An abandoned 8x8 Contact Center campaign call is a live answered call which fails to connect to an available agent within two seconds, but plays a pre-recorded safe harbor message. As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator select an abandoned message for the campaign in the Dialer tab, set the number of attempts to retry an abandoned call, define the duration of ring time, and enable sequential dialing. To edit a campaign, go to the Dialer tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to define the following properties:

			名 Robin Smith (r	ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Campaigns » Dialer							
Оре	ration completed success	sfully.					
AcmeJets-predictive-campaign							
< Back to Campaign List							
Properties Dialer Su	pervisors Filter	Sort	Audio files				
Ring Time (sec)	15		Sequential Dialing				
Abandoned Audio Message							
Audio file	None	•					
NOTE: It must state where you are callin	g from and the reason you a	are calling abo	out to avoid silent calls.				
Abandoned Retry Properties							
Abandoned Max. Retry Attempts	3	•					
			Save	Cancel			
					-		

Ring Time: Ring time is the duration that passes from the time an outgoing call is initiated until the called party
answers the call. Ring time for campaigns must be set to a minimum of 15 seconds.

÷	
۰.	
	÷ 1-
۰.	
	- //
	T(2)
1	

Note: The ring time can only be set at the start of a campaign, if it is adjusted during a live campaign it does not impact the remaining calls.

Sequential Dialing: Set your campaign calls to sequentially dial all phone numbers associated with the customer record improving chances of contact with the customer. You can define up to 22 phone fields and customize the order to fit your dialing needs. Let's say customer Tom's record has three phone numbers listed - business number, home number, and mobile number. Sequential dialing places a call to the business number first; If unsuccessful,

dials the home number; If unsuccessful, dials the mobile number. The order of dialing can be customized in the Outbound Setup. Learn more.

Abandoned Audio Message: Select an audio file to play a safe harbor message for abandoned calls. When progressive or predictive dialing is adopted, an abandoned message must be played to the called party (where compliance requires) within two seconds of them starting to speak to avoid creating silent calls. A silent call is when a call is answered by the called party, but no agent is available to take the call and no message is played to the customer.

The content of the Abandoned Message typically should identify the company running the campaign or the company they are calling on behalf of, provide a free or standard cost call back number, and contain no marketing or sales information. Learn how to upload audio files.



Note: You must assign an audio file to the campaigns as described in step 6.

Abandoned Retry Properties: Set the maximum number of attempts to retry calling an abandoned campaign call. A configurable limit on the number of retry attempts can now be specified, with a maximum of 10 retry attempts. Let's say you set the retry limit on abandoned calls to three times; for every campaign call that is abandoned, the dialer waits 72 hours before retrying that customer. After three retry attempts, the dialer stops to dial that customer. This excludes the original attempt where the call is abandoned triggering the retry attempts.

Assign supervisors to campaigns

An 8x8 Contact Center campaign supervisor controls and monitors real time campaign status. A supervisor can run campaign reports to get statistical information on the campaign calls processed. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can assign the following campaign supervising privileges to supervisors via 8x8 Configuration Manager at any time during the campaign's life cycle.

- Monitor: Allows a supervisor to monitor real-time statistics of the campaigns they monitor.
- Control: Allows a supervisor to start, schedule, pause, purge, resume, and purge campaigns they control.

To assign Supervisors to a campaign:

1. Click the Supervisors tab for a campaign.

A list of supervisors appears.

Home Security	Campaigns » Supervisors		i
Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	AcmeSales C Back to Campaign List Properties Supervisors Filter Sort Audio files		
CRM Support	Supervisors > F	ilter Superviso	rs
Center	🗹 Unmonitor All 🗌 Control All 🔍 << < 1 💌 > >> 20 records 🕸 Configure Sort 💈	of Clear All So	rt
Outbound Setup		onitor Contro	s
Campaigns			
Broadcast			
Integration	Zufi Singh		-11
Status Codes			
Transaction Codes			
Outbound Phone Codes			
Wallboard			
Chat design			
	Save Cancel		Ŧ

- 2. Select the Monitor check box to allow supervisors to access real-time statistics about the campaigns.
- 3. Select the **Control** check box to allow supervisors to start, pause, purge, and stop a campaign through the Campaign Management tab in their 8x8 Supervisor Console.



4. Click Save.

Campaign supervisors manage campaigns using the monitoring tool in the Supervisor console. They can review the status of the campaigns, begin, schedule, pause, and purge campaigns. Additionally, they can access key metrics by accessing historical reports for campaigns. Supervisors generate historical reports of the campaigns they supervise. For details, go to monitoring campaigns.

Define search criteria to filter campaign call list

An 8x8 Contact Center campaign call list can be filtered based on a custom search query. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can define a query and generate a custom call list based on specific CRM fields and values under the CRM object. Let's say you wish to filter only customers with last names between A and L, use the search criteria to get the filtered list.

The 8x8 Configuration Manager filter option allows you to define a custom search query. You can validate a query by running the test query.



Note: You cannot alter a campaign filter after initiating the campaign.

To define search criteria for a campaign:

- 1. Click the **Search** tab for a campaign.
- 2. Select a field name from the drop-down list and enter a value. You can nest multiple search criteria to create a complex query.
- Œ
- 3. Click to nest search criteria. Let's say a complex query retrieves customer records with <Credit Rating greater than 700>, <Expense in the last 6 months greater than 30000>, <Expense in the last year greater than 100000>,

and <Income Range between 3 and 4>.

Home Security	Campaigns » Filter	(j)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	AcmeSales < Back to Campaign List Properties Supervisors Filter Sort Audio files	
CRM Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast	and • • • and • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	*
Integration Status Codes	Test Once done entering filter criteria, you should test it by clicking on the 'Test' button below.	
Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard Chat design	Test Save Cancel	

- 4. Click **Test** to validate the search criteria. If the test passes, you have defined a valid filter. If the test fails, check for any errors and redefine the filter.
- 5. Click Save.

Filter campaign lists based on Do Not Call preferences

While creating a campaign filter, you can filter those numbers from Local CRM records that are registered with the Telephone Preference Service (TPS) and Corporate Telephone Preference Service (CTPS), to be compliant with TPS and CTPS. This feature is currently supported for UK phone numbers, but will be extended to other countries in future releases.



This feature helps customers to be TPS/CTPS compliant, but does not guarantee it. Customers are responsible for their own compliance. It is recommended not to run campaigns longer than 28 days.



Note: The Telephone Preference Service (TPS) is a UK register of domestic telephone numbers whose users have indicated that they do not wish to receive sales and marketing telephone calls.



Note: The Corporate Telephone Preference Service (CTPS) is a list of organizations (limited companies, public limited companies and Scottish partnerships) who have registered their wish not to receive unsolicited direct marketing calls.

To filter campaign list based on Do Not Call lists:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Open Campaigns and select a campaign from the list, or click Edit.
- 3. Go to the Filter tab.
- 4. Make sure check Do Not Call lists is selected.
- Click **Test** to check your filter criteria.
 For details, see our content on how to define campaign search criteria.

Specify sort order

8x8 Contact Center administrators can sort a campaign call list based on applicable CRM fields. The call list takes priority based on the sort order you specified. When a campaign runs, calls are placed based on the sorted order. For example, using the 8x8 Configuration Manager, you can sort a call list by the descending order of your business expenses in the last six months. The calls are placed to the customers bearing the highest expenses first.



Note: You cannot modify the sort order after initiating a campaign.

To specify sort order for a campaign call list:

- 1. Click the **Sort** tab for a campaign.
- 2. Select a field from the drop down list, and select the sort order.



Note: You can sort any text field in the ascending or descending order.

- 3. Click to nest more sort criteria.
- 4. Click Save.

Control a campaign

After creating a campaign, the 8x8 Contact Center administrator can manually start or schedule the campaign. If you defined scheduling attributes in the 8x8 Configuration Manager campaign properties, the campaign runs as it is scheduled. If not, you must start the campaign manually. As an administrator or a privileged supervisor, you can start, pause, purge, or stop a running campaign at any time. You can execute a new campaign either by manually starting it or scheduling it.



Note: Campaigns are controlled by administrators and privileged supervisors only. An administrator controls the campaigns from 8x8 Configuration Manager, while a supervisor controls campaigns from the Campaign Management tab of 8x8 Agent Console.

To run a campaign manually:

- 1. Click Campaigns in the Configuration Menu.
- 2. Select the desired campaign, and click to manually start the campaign.

	Campaigns »	Campaign List					0
Agents Queues/Skills	Campaign List					> Fil	ter Campaign Lis
	Add Campaign: 🕀 Can	npaign		<< < 1	▼ > >> 20 recor	ds 🚯 Configure Sort	🧭 Clear All Sort
Scripts	Campaign Name ^	Enabled	Status	Caller ID	Queue	Control	
	AcmeSales	yes	New		Sales Outbound	۲	00
Support Center	AcmeSales New	yes	New	-	Sales Outbound	Start Now	∥ [] @
Outbound Setup							
Campaigns							
Integration							

Note: The status changes from New to Manually Started. For details on campaign status, refer to Understand Campaign Status.

To run a scheduled campaign:

- 1. Click Campaigns.
- 2. Select a campaign and click Control > Schedule to initiate a campaign on schedule.



Note: For a campaign to run on schedule, you must have specified a schedule in the Campaign Properties tab. For details on scheduling a campaign, refer to Define Properties.

Pause a campaign

Pausing a campaign stops the campaign temporarily retaining calls in the queue. Calls in the queue continue to be offered to agents until completed. You can resume or abort a paused campaign.

To pause a campaign:

- 1. Select a campaign, and click **Control > Pause** to pause the campaign.
- 2. Click **Control > Resume** to resume the paused campaign.

Purge a campaign

Purging a paused campaign aborts the campaign by flushing all calls in the queue. You can resume a purged campaign. Resuming feeds calls back to the queue.

To purge a campaign:

- 1. Select a campaign, and click **Control > Purge** to pause the campaign.
- 2. Click **Control > Resume** to resume the paused campaign.

Based on how a campaign is controlled, the campaign status changes accordingly. For details, refer to Understand Campaign Status.

8x8

Understand campaign status

An 8x8 Contact Center campaign can assume varying statuses based on how it is managed. The campaign status informs 8x8 Contact Center administrators if the campaign is ready to run, scheduled to run, running, stopped, or completed running.

To view a campaign status, go to **Campaigns** in the 8x8 Configuration Manager. You can see a list of all your campaigns with their corresponding status.

	Campaigns » C	ampaign List					()
Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills	Campaign List					>	Filter Campaign Li
Channels	Add Campaign: 🕂 Campa	ign			< 1 v > >> 20 re	ords 🖓 Configure So	rt 🤯 Clear All Sor
	Campaign Name ^	Enabled	Status	Caller ID	Queue	Control	
	AcmeSales	yes	New	-	Sales Outbound	۲	/ 🗅 🗇
Support Center	AcmeSales New	yes	New	•	Sales Outbound	۲	/ 🖸 🕸
Outbound Setup							
Campaigns							
Transaction Codes							
Dutbound Phone Codes							
Chat design							

The following table summarizes the various campaign statuses:

Campaign Status	Description
New	A newly-created campaign that has not been scheduled to start. You should manually start this cam- paign.
Manual Running	A campaign that is manually started and is currently running.
Manual Stopped	A campaign that is manually stopped by clicking Stop .
Scheduled	A campaign with a scheduled start time that has not been reached.
Scheduled Running	A campaign that has reached scheduled start time and is currently running.
Paused	A campaign that, when paused, stops feeding calls to the outbound queue until resumed. The cam-

Campaign Status	Description
	paign retains calls already in the queue and offers them to the agents.
Purged	A paused campaign that, when purged, removes all calls from the queue. You can resume purged cam- paigns.
Schedule Stopped	A campaign that has reached the scheduled stop time and is currently stopped.

Manage a campaign

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, once you create a campaign in 8x8 Configuration Manager, you can perform the following functions:

- Edit a campaign
- Control a campaign
- Copy a campaign
- Delete a campaign

Edit a campaign

You can edit a campaign's settings before running it. Once a campaign runs, you cannot edit any of its properties except changing the supervisor assignments.

To edit a campaign:

- 1. Click Campaigns in the Configuration Menu.
- 2. Choose the campaign you wish to edit, and click **Edit**.
- 3. Make the necessary edits, and click Save.

Control a campaign

After creating a campaign, you can manually start or schedule the campaign. See Control a Campaign for details.

Copy a campaign

You might want to copy a campaign and run it again, in cases such as:

- The campaign call list was not processed as expected.
- There were too many dropped calls or skipped calls.

To copy a campaign:

- 1. Click Campaigns in the Configuration Menu.
- 2. Select a campaign you wish to copy, and click **Copy**. A new copy of the campaign is created, and shows in the updated list of campaigns.

Delete a Campaign

8x8

After completing campaigns, you may want to remove them if you no longer need them. Deleting a campaign removes all historical information related to the campaign.

To remove a campaign:

- 1. Click **Campaigns** in the Configuration Menu.
- 2. Select a campaign from the list, and click **Delete**. The campaign is removed from the list.

Broadcast messages

Use the 8x8 Contact Center broadcast feature to send messages to one or more agent functional groups. This feature allows the administrator to mass-communicate a message to the agents using 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To broadcast a message:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, click Broadcast.
- 2. For Group, select a group or All Groups from the list.
- 3. For Alert Level, select low, medium, high, or pop-up.
- 4. For **Only send to logged-in agents**, choose whether you want to send the message to the agents who are logged in or to all agents.
- 5. For Message, type what you like to broadcast to agents.
- 6. Click **Broadcast** to send the message.

The following table describes the options under Broadcast:

Broadcast Option	Description
Group	Select agent functional groups you are sending the broadcast to. It can be a specific group or all groups. For details on creating 8x8 Contact Center Groups, refer to Create Agent Functional Groups.
Alert Level	Sets the importance or type of alert sent to agents: Low, Medium, or High alert, or Pop-up.
Only send to logged-in agents	If you select Yes, it only sends the broadcast to the agents who are logged in. If you select No, it sends the broadcast to all agents. The agents who are not logged in at the time of broadcast will see the message the next time they log in to 8x8 Agent Console.

8x8

Broadcast Option	ast Description							
Message The broadcast message that is sent to all or all logged-in agents.								
Not	t e: You cannot undo or delete a message once it is broadcast.							

Integrate with External CRM

8x8 Contact Center offers integration capabilities with local and external Customer Resource Management (CRM) systems. Integrating with an External CRM enables you to expand the capabilities of 8x8 Contact Center CRM, and to incorporate your existing CRM system data into your tenant's interaction processing workflow. The integration supports voice and chat channels, allowing you to access data from External CRM through an integrated 8x8 Agent Console.

8x8 Contact Center provides out-of-the-box integration with:

- NetSuite
- Salesforce
- Zendesk
- Microsoft Dynamics
- Local CRM

Additionally, 8x8 Contact Center supports custom integration with your CRM.

8x8 Contact Center's ability to integrate with External CRM offers the following benefits:

- Provides out-of-the-box integration with minimal configuration.
- Increases agent productivity with integrated one-click dialing out of the CRM application.
- Informs an agent about the caller by popping the caller's account information to the agent as soon as a call is
 offered to an agent.

Features

The CRM integration allows you to perform your CRM account activities using the integrated 8x8 Agent Console with the following features:

- 8×8
 - Multimedia interaction support
 - Fully integrated 8x8 Agent Console
 - Complete Telephony Integration
 - Single Sign-On functionality
 - Visibility to queue status and agent presence
 - Availability of custom landing pages
 - Customer CRM records appear via screen pop during inbound interactions
 - Integrated Chat Management
 - Ability to save chat transcripts
 - Ability to use click-to-dial directly from native Salesforce account
 - Ability for agents to toggle between 8x8 Agent Console and CRM accounts
 - Support for screen pop for outbound campaign calls
 - Support for screen pop for web callback transactions
 - Creates Auto Logs for all transactions automatically

The core feature set is common to all CRMs supported by integration, but varies slightly.

Overview of integration functionality

8x8 Contact Center administrators use 8x8 Configuration Manager to find and configure the following options:

8x8 CRM API: Specify the access credentials and rights an External CRM uses to access the Local CRM database.

The external system can access data from the Local CRM for purposes of producing customized reports or synchronizing database data between the two systems.

- CRM Triggers: Configure 8x8 Contact Center to transmit URLs that include activity parameters to an external HTTP server whenever an agent creates, edits, or deletes a customer, case, follow-up, or task record in the Local CRM. The HTTP server uses the URL received from 8x8 Contact Center to run an interaction-specific synchronization, such as a database synchronization.
- Screen pop: Configure 8x8 Contact Center to transmit a URL to an External CRM product when an agent is offered, accepts, or completes an interaction. The External CRM responds by sending an HTML document containing supplementary information about the interaction to the agent's browser as a pop-up.
- API Token: Create and copy the secure access tokens required to enable an external system to access the following Local CRM data:
 - Statistical reporting data
 - Recording API
 - External IVR API
 - Real-time statistics reporting data

Configure External CRM API access

To access 8x8 Contact Center CRM data, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can use 8x8 CRM API in 8x8 Configuration Manager. The 8x8 CRM API component of the integration suite enables you to develop external programs to access data for customers, cases, tasks, follow-up records, and FAQs.

The 8x8 CRM API uses HTTP or HTTPS to transmit requests and receives responses formatted as Extensible Mark-up Language (XML). All these API queries are authenticated by account access credentials.

-	 -	-	-	-	-	 -	-	 	 	-	-	-	-	-	 	-	-	-	-	 	-	-	-	 	 	-	-	-	 	 -	-	 	-	-	 	-	-	 	-	 -	-	 -	-	 	-	-	 -	-	 	 -	

÷
- //
÷ — « «
T _/ 2

Note: For APIs customization in the 8x8 Contact Center, check with your system administrators or developers to ensure that the system SSL libraries are updated to support TLS 1.2 or better. Affected products may include, but are not limited to, older distributions of Linux-based operating systems (using old versions of OpenSSL) or Java Runtime Environments (JRE) older than 1.8.

To configure 8x8 CRM API:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Integration.
- 2. Go to the CRM API tab.
- 3. Specify the account credentials and access rights used by an external process to access the Local CRM database.

Home Security	Integratio	on » CRM A	API					(j)
Agent Groups								
Agents	CRM API	CRM Triggers	Screen Pop	API Token				
Queues/Skills		55						
Channels	Enable Cl	RM API Access						
Scripts	* CRM API	WAPI						
CRM	username:							
Support Center	* Password:	•••••						
Outbound		sword:						
Setup	Used Identity	Robin Sha	ta 🔻					
Campaigns	Access Rights	5						
Broadcast Integration		Customers	Cases	Followups	Tasks	FAQ		
Status Codes		Customers	Cases	Followups	Tasks			
Transaction	Add							
Codes	Modify	×	\checkmark		~			
Outbound Phone Codes	Get	~	~		~			
Wallboard								
Chat design					Sa	ive Reset		

The following table summarizes the options under Integration > CRM API:

CRM API Option	Description
Enable CRM API Access	Select to enable a third-party process to access the Local CRM database. The third-party process uses the credentials entered for 8x8 CRM API username and password.
CRM API user- name	Do not reuse a user account name. Type a username created exclusively to service 8x8 CRM API XML access to the Local CRM database.
Password, Retype Pass- word	Type the password required to access the Local CRM database.
Used Identify	Select the user account name associated with activities performed by the 8x8 CRM API. In reports, interaction activity performed by the 8x8 CRM API matches the value of Used Identify.
Access Rights	 Choose the operations the third-party process allows to perform on the Local CRM. Select Add to enable the third-party process to create a new CRM database record. Select Modify to enable the third-party process to change an existing Local CRM database record. Select Get to enable the third-party process to read the Local CRM database record. Select Get to enable the third-party process to read the Local CRM database record. The Add, Modify, and Get permissions can be selected for each the following categories of Local CRM database records, including: Customers Cases Followups (No Modify option) Tasks FAQ Access Rights specify the operations 8x8 CRM API is allowed to perform: The 8x8 CRM API does not inherit the access rights of the user specified in the Used Identify list.

To completely configure bi-directional exchange of information to and from an external process and the Local CRM database, use the CRM Triggers page to transmit URLs to a third-party process when the Local CRM database records are modified. For details on CRM Triggers, refer to Configure External CRM Triggers.

Configure External CRM Triggers

If your business maintains an External CRM database that is not integrated with 8x8 Contact Center, administrators can use the 8x8 CRM API to query and fetch the data in Local CRM and synchronize with the External CRM database. Admins design 8x8 CRM API to synchronize a Local CRM database with the External CRM using the CRM Triggers. A CRM trigger is a URL that targets a script on an external HTTP server. The CRM Triggers notify admins of the changes to the 8x8 Contact Center Local CRM and invoke a script for further action. The CRM Triggers also pass parameters which can be used for further data mining.

When you create a new customer in the Local CRM via the user interface application, the script is executed with the appropriate parameter value (such as the customer account ID) sent with an HTTP method. The script then uses that parameter value to access the object data using 8x8 CRM API, and populate the External CRM with it. The script may use the data for synchronization, auditing purposes, and creating simple dashboards.

A CRM Trigger invokes the 8x8 Contact Center script when:

- A new case is created, edited, or deleted
- A new follow-up is created, edited, or deleted
- A new customer is created, edited, or deleted
- A new task is created, edited, or deleted



Note: The CRM Trigger is only executed when the above actions are requested via 8x8 Agent Console application. Other scenarios such as 8x8 CRM API requests, bulk customer creation via 8x8 Configuration Manager or CSV import, and CRM objects created via auto-log feature, do not execute CRM Triggers.

Set up the CRM Triggers

8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up CRM Triggers via 8x8 Configuration Manager for changes to CRM objects under specified events. The URL executes when those events occur, and those parameters are passed to the script targeted by the URL.

Ĩ

Note: When configuring a CRM Trigger:

- We require you to use a secure https URL.
- A retry mechanism is triggered when 8x8 Contact Center calls the configured URL but does not receive an http-response code (200).

The following table summarizes the CRM objects, corresponding events that invoke CRM Triggers, and parameters passed to the script:

CRM Object	Events	Parameters
Customer	 Create 	 Account ID
	 Edit 	
	 Delete 	
Case	 Create 	 Account ID
	 Edit 	 Case ID
	 Delete 	
Followup	 Create 	 Account ID
	 Delete 	 Case ID
		 Followup
		ID
Task	 Create 	 Account ID
	 Edit 	Task ID
	 Delete 	

Use the CRM Triggers tab to transmit URLs pointing to scripts from 8x8 Contact Center to an external process when the 8x8 Contact Center CRM database records are modified. The external process uses the URL to synchronize its database records with the 8x8 Contact Center CRM database.

To set up CRM Triggers:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Integration.
- 2. Go to the CRM Triggers tab and enter values.

Home Security	Integration	» CRM Triggers	Ġ
Agent Groups			
	CRM API CR	RM Triggers Screen Pop API Token	
			*
	Customer		
	Create:	https://myServer.net/acct_add.php ?AccountID=123	
Support Center	Edit	?AccountID=123	
Outbound Setup	Delete:	7AccountID=123	
	Case		
Broadcast			
Integration	Create:	?AccountID=123&CaseID=234	
Status Codes Transaction	Edit	?AccountID=123&CaseID=234	
Codes	Delete:	?AccountID=123&CaseID=234	
	Followup		
Wallboard Chat design			
Chat design	Create:	?	
		AccountID=123&CaseID=234&FollowupID=345	
	Delete:	? AccountID=123&CaseID=234&FollowupID=345	
	Task		
	Create:	?AccountID=123&TaskID=234	
	Edit	?AccountID=123&TaskID=234	
	Delete:	?AccountID=123&TaskID=234	
		Save	*



Note: Only UI updates on Local CRM Objects can trigger CRM Trigger. The changes on Local CRM via API or CSV do not trigger callbacks.

The following table summarizes the options under Integration > CRM Triggers:

CRM Triggers Option	Description
Customer	To enable 8x8 Contact Center to notify a third-party process of changes to customer account data, type a URL for the Create, Edit, and Delete areas under Customer . When an agent creates, edits, or deletes customer data in the Local CRM database, 8x8 Contact Center transmits a formatted string to the URL specified for the customer. For customer data, the formatted string has the following format: ?AccountID=aaa, where aaa specifies the customer account identifier.
Case	To enable 8x8 Contact Center to notify a third-party process about changes to case data, type a

CRM Triggers Option	Description
	 URL for the Create, Edit, and Delete areas under Case. When an agent creates, edits, or deletes case data in the Local CRM database, 8x8 Contact Center transmits a formatted string to the URL specified for the case. For case data, the formatted string has the following format: ?AccountID=aaa&CaseID=ccc, where: aaa specifies the customer account identifier. ccc specifies the case identifier.
Followup	To enable 8x8 Contact Center to notify a third-party process about changes to case follow-up data, type a URL for the Create, Edit, and Delete areas under Followup . When an agent creates or deletes follow-up data in the Local CRM database, 8x8 Contact Center transmits a formatted string to the URL specified for the follow-up. For follow-up data, the formatted string has the following format: ?AccountID=aaa&CaseID=ccc&FollowupID=fff, where:
Task	To enable the 8x8 Contact Center to notify a third-party process about changes to Task data, type a URL for the Create, Edit, and Delete areas under Task . When an agent creates, edits, or deletes task data in the Local CRM database, 8x8 Contact Center transmits a formatted string to the URL specified for the task. For task data, the formatted string is of the format: ?AccountID=aaa&TaskID=ttt, where: aaa specifies the customer account identifier. ttt specifies the case identifier.

3. Click Save.

8x8 CRM API configuration allows an external process to access the Local CRM database and exchange information to and from an external process and the Local CRM database. For details on 8x8 CRM API, refer to Configure External 8x8 CRM API Access.

Overview of data exchange

8x8 Contact Center administrators go to Integration > CRM API and Integration > CRM Triggers in 8x8 Configuration Manager to configure data, such as customer, case, follow-up, or task data.

The following sequence describes the two-way exchange of data between 8x8 Contact Center and an external process:

 An agent uses 8x8 Agent Console to update customer, case, follow-up, or task information contained in the Local CRM database.

If a URL has been specified for the interaction under CRM Triggers, then 8x8 Contact Center transmits a formatted URL that includes the customer, case, or follow-up information. For details on formatted strings transmitted by 8x8 Contact Center to an external process, refer to Configure External CRM Triggers.

- The external process receives the formatted string, then uses the 8x8 CRM API to read additional information about the interaction from the Local CRM database.
 For details on configuring the 8x8 CRM API to enable an external process to access the Local CRM database, refer to Configure External 8x8 CRM API Access.
- 3. The external process updates its database with the information read from the Local CRM.
- 4. The external process sends the Local CRM database any information required to synchronize the two databases. For example, the external process may use internal logic to revise the priority of the case.

Example of a CRM trigger

The following 8x8 Contact Center example illustrates a trigger specification in 8x8 Configuration Manager by going to Integration > CRM Trigger tab.

	Integration >	» CRM Triggers	
Agent Groups			
	CRM API CRM	M Triggers Screen Pop API Token	
	Customer		
CRM Support	Create:	https://myServer.net/acct_add.php ?AccountID=123	
Center	Edit	?AccountID=123	
Outbound Setup	Delete:	?AccountID=123	
Campaigns	Case		
	cuse		
ntegration	Create:	?AccountID=123&CaseID=234	
	Edit	?AccountID=123&CaseID=234	
ransaction Codes	Delete:	?AccountiD=123&CaseID=234	
outbound			
'hone Codes Vallboard	Followup		
rvaliboard Chat design			
	Create:	? AccountID=123&CaseID=234&FollowupID=345	
	Delete:	Accounted=123acasetd=234&Pollowupid=345	
	Delete.	AccountID=123&CaseID=234&FollowupID=345	
	Task		
	Create:	?AccountID=123&TaskID=234	
	Edit:	PAccountD=123&TaskID=234	
	Delete:	?AccountID=123&TaskID=234	
		Save Reset	

In the above image:

- <myServer.net> specifies a valid HTTPS server
- <acct_add.php> specifies a PHP script that creates a log file of the account ID written to myfile.txt

The following example shows a PHP script invoked by the 8x8 Contact Center CRM trigger illustrated in the above image.

```
/* acct_add.php - log creation of new accounts*/
<?
if(is_file('myfile.txt')) {
   $fp = fopen('myfile.txt','a+');
}
else {</pre>
```

```
$fp = fopen('myfile.txt','w');
}
if($fp) {
    $now = date( "[m/d/Y H:i:s] - ", time());
    fwrite($fp, $now.'AccountID: '.$AccountID." - action: CREATE CUSTOMER\n");
    fclose($fp);
}
```

The script reads the account ID referenced by an agent interaction, and writes the account ID to a file called myfile.txt.

8x8

Define screen pop settings for External CRM

A screen pop presents customer data to an 8x8 Contact Center agent automatically during an interaction, eliminating the need to manually search for the customer data. During an inbound call, 8x8 Contact Center looks up the caller ID in the existing customer data. On finding a record with a matching number in the Phone field, 8x8 Contact Center fetches and pops the record details to the agent presented with the interaction. If the search does not yield a matching record, it pops a new record entry screen.

A screen pop is presented for:

- Inbound transactions, including phone, voicemail, chat, and email media
- Outbound campaign phone transactions
- Transactions involving web callback

To enable an External CRM integration for a tenant, you have to configure screen pop settings in 8x8 Configuration Manager. You need to select a target CRM, specify events that trigger screen population of customer data, and specify screen pop window properties. An agent has to then save the login credentials of the External CRM account in the agent's profile. Integration enables searching for records containing phone data matching caller ID, and pops up the corresponding record(s) for specific events.

The events triggering a screen pop may be one or more of the following:

- An agent is offered an interaction.
- An agent has accepted an interaction.
- An agent has completed an interaction.

Use **Integration > screen pop** to configure the contents and appearance of the messages sent to the Web browser associated with a particular interaction.

To display the screen pop page

1. From the Configuration Menu, open Integration.

2. Go to the screen pop tab.

	Landing Pages
	Enable Custom
	Title:
	URL:
	Enable 8x8 CRM
	Trigger an Auto Log Window after interactions
	For these media: 🗌 Phone
	Voice Mail
	Chat
	Type of log 💿 No Screen pop
	window:
	Pop the log for view
	Trigger A Popup Window
	For these events: When agent is offered transaction
	 When agent accepts transaction When agent completes transaction
	For these media: 🗹 Phone
	Voice Mail
	Chat
	Email
	Window Properties
	Open new window for screenpop
	✓ Use single window only
	Hide result listing if only one search result is found
	Show toolbar:
	Size and position:
	width 748 top 0
	height 700 left 265
2	Save Reset

3. Select the CRM of your choice from the available options. For other details refer to the table below. The following table summarizes the options under **Integration > Screen Pop**:

Screen Pop Option	Description
Enable Screen Pop	If enabled, screen pop is offered during an interaction.
Target Type	Select a third-party CRM product. The selection of a product enables and disables other features on the screen pop page.
Integration	If you have selected NetSuite, then choose one of the following:

Screen Pop Option	Description
Туре	 Legacy Displays External CRM information in a separate browser window. SSO Allows the External CRM user to enter 8x8 Contact Center via NetSuite's website. Provides Single Sign-On; the user presents the authentication information only once per NetSuite session.
	 If the Target type specifies Salesforce, then choose one of the following: Legacy Displays information from the Salesforce database in a separate browser window. Provides less integration with Salesforce than Enhanced mode. Enhanced If you choose Enhanced, 8x8 Configuration Manager disables the Size and Position area described later in this table. Displays information from the Salesforce database in a frame with 8x8 Agent Console window. The agent can optionally move the Salesforce frame to a separate browser window. Provides more complete integration with Salesforce than Legacy mode.
Account	If the Target type is NetSuite or custom, then type the account name required to access the data the third-party CRM incorporates into the screen pop message.
Service Name	Service name is the URL used to log in to your External CRM account.
Login URL	Enter the login URL starting with <https:></https:>
Branding URL	The custom URL provided by your CRM if you have customized your help desk to match your brand's look and feel.
URL	For the Custom target type only. Type the URL where 8x8 Contact Center sends information about the interaction reported on by the screen pop.
Enable Customization	This option instructs the On Demand Contact Center to execute a custom XML Salesforce integration script using the specified Script URL.
Script URL	If Customization is enabled, the Script URL must contain a valid URL that points to the location of the custom script. Once the Script URL is specified and the screen pop page is saved, all

Screen Pop Option	Description
	features and functionality of the standard integration are replaced with the custom functionality. Agents see the changes with their next login.
Use Remote Login	This option enables Single Sign-On security settings in the Zendesk account.
API Token	Enter a valid API token to enable searching of the CRM.
Use Client Login Session to pop	Select the option to enable support for the Salesforce security setting: Lock sessions to the IP address from which they originated. Check the Launch native login window at agent login setting to have 8x8 Agent Console automatically launch a Salesforce login window when the agent logs in to 8x8 Agent Console. If the Launch native login window at agent login is not set, the agent must manually log in to Salesforce using the next tab of the same browser window used for the 8x8 Agent Console session.
Launch native login window at agent login	This option enables the native login window to launch when the agent logs in.
Select and assign all agents	Enable this option to grant access to all agents for Salesforce integration, or click (choose agents) to grant the permission to a selected group of agents.
Landing Pages	 8x8 Contact Center enables the custom landing page, and provides three built-in landing tabs from the 8x8 Contact Center CRM: Enable Custom: If enabled, enter a title for the landing page, and a URL to navigate to. Enable 8x8 CRM Note: Availability of the tabs depends on the External CRM the tenant is integrated with.
Trigger an Auto Log Window after interactions	 For these Media: Select media for auto log from Phone, Voice Mail, and Chat. Auto Log Window is offered after Interactions. You can disable auto log for certain media by clearing the check box of the option. Select the type of log window for auto log from the following choices: No screen pop: Prevents screen pop for auto log.

Screen Pop Option	Description
	 Pop the log for edit: Offers the ability to edit auto logs.
	 Pop the log for view: Limits auto log to view mode.
Trigger a	For these events:
Popup Window	 When agent is offered transaction: 8x8 Contact Center displays a screen pop when an agent is presented with a new interaction.
	 When agent accepts transaction: 8x8 Contact Center displays a screen pop when an agent accepts a new interaction.
	 When agent completes transaction: 8x8 Contact Center displays a screen pop when an agent has completed an interaction.
	 For these media: Choose 8x8 Contact Center channels that use screen pop. The choices are Phone, Voicemail, Chat, and Email.
Window Properties	If enabled by the administrator, the agents can see and configure the setup under Agent's Profile > External Setup . The following options are available in this section:
	 Open new window for screen pop: This option allows agents to see screen pop, and the new Salesforce URL launches in new windows instead of tabs within the 8x8 Agent Console window. This option opens a new window for each transaction and each new URL.
	 Use single window only: This option allows only one single window to display screen pop notifications and URL launch.
	Hide result listing if one search result is found: The application supports multiple search results displayed on screen pop. With the option enabled, the tab with one result listed will not be open. The screen pop window still will pop with the search result record. Note that with this option enabled, if multiple results are found, tab is open with all the result records listed. If the Salesforce window is collapsed, it will be automatically expanded.
	Show toolbar:
	 If the Target type is Salesforce, and the Integration Type is Legacy, then click yes to display the Internet Explorer toolbar at the top of the stand-alone pop-up window.
	 If the Integration Type is Enhanced, 8x8 Contact Center ignores the value of Show toolbar.

Screen Pop Option	Description
	 Size and position:
	 In the width and height text entry areas, type the size as an integer number pixels of the screen pop window.
	 In the top and left text entry areas, type the screen position as an integer number of pixels of the screen pop window's upper-left corner.

4. Save your settings.

For detailed instructions on setting up an external integration such as NetSuite or Salesforce, refer to the respective CRM integration guides on our documentation page.
Overview of screen pop

In 8x8 Contact Center, screen pop describes the mechanism that enables a third-party CRM to display supplementary information in an HTML page that pops into the 8x8 Contact Center agent's browser.

8x8 Contact Center screen pop directly supports the following CRM applications:

- NetSuite: Use Integration > Screen Pop in 8x8 Configuration Manager to specify the NetSuite account ID used to
 access the NetSuite CRM. The agent email address and password (used to log in) are set in the agent's profile in
 8x8 Agent Console.
- Salesforce: Configure Integration > Screen Pop in 8x8 Configuration Manager, and set up the external username and password in the agent's profile in 8x8 Agent Console.
- Zendesk: Configure Integration > Screen Pop in 8x8 Configuration Manager, and set up the external username and password in the agent's profile in 8x8 Agent Console.
- Microsoft Dynamics: Configure Integration > Screen Pop in 8x8 Configuration Manager, and set up the external username and password in the agent's profile in 8x8 Agent Console.
- Custom CRM: 8x8 Contact Center allows custom CRM integration. For more information regarding custom CRMs, consult the 8x8 Support team.

Screen Pop Event Types

A screen pop is triggered by events or by steps in the process of handling an interaction. You can configure screen pop for one or more events. There are three events that can cause a screen pop:

- Agent is offered an interaction, but has not yet accepted.
- Agent accepts an interaction (for example, is connected to a caller).
- Agent completes an interaction (for example, hangs up after a call).

Screen Pop Data Exchange

The following sequence must be performed to enable 8x8 Contact Center to transmit a screen pop request to a thirdparty CRM.

1. 8x8 Contact Center uses the information you entered in the screen pop tab to transmit interaction parameters to the third-party CRM as an HTTP POST message.

The following table summarizes screen pop parameters transmitted by 8x8 Contact Center in HTTP Post message:

screen pop parameter	Description
Channel	8x8 Contact Center channel name that received the interaction
Queue	8x8 Contact Center queue name that received the interaction
ANI	For phone channels, the caller's ANI information
Wait Time	The length of time this interaction waited before being accepted by an agent
Event	Interaction statuses: offered, accepted, or completed
Media	8x8 Contact Center phone, voicemail, chat, and email channels
ExtVar1, ExtVar2	Optional CRM-specific variables

2. The third-party CRM uses the received information to access its database, construct a pop-up message about the interaction, then transmit the pop-up message to 8x8 Agent Console, processing the interaction.

Example of a screen pop

The following example illustrates how to configure an 8x8 Contact Center screen pop via 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Home	Integration » S	creen Pop	()
Security Agent Groups			
Agents	CRM API CRM Tri	ggers Screen Pop API Token	
Queues/Skills			
Channels	Enable Screen Pop		ĵ.
Scripts	Target Attributes		
CRM			
Support Center	Target type:	◎ NetSuite ◎ Salesforce ◎ Zendesk ◎ Microsoft ◎ Zoho	l
Outbound Setup	Integration Type:	Enhanced *	1
Campaigns	Account:	TSTDRV1220860	
Broadcast	Service Name:		
Integration	Login URL:		
Status Codes	Branding URL:		
Transaction	URL:	http://www.myServer.net/ScriptPop.php	
Codes	Enable Custon	nization	
Outbound Phone Codes	Script URL:		
Wallboard	Use Remote Li	ogin	
	API Token:		
Chat design	Use client logi	n session to pop	
	Launch na	tive login window at agent login	-

In the above image:

- <myServer.net> specifies a valid HTTP server.
- <ScriptPop.php> specifies a PHP script that displays either of two HTML pages.

The following example shows a PHP script invoked by the screen pop configuration illustrated in the above image.

```
<?php
/* scriptPop.php - This script should return a web page depending on the phone
number dialed */
$channel=$_POST[`Channel'];
if (is_null($channel)) {
    printf(``No channel data was given'');
}
else {
    switch ($channel) {
        case `18005551212':
}
</pre>
```

```
header('Location: http://www.8x8.com');
break;
default:
    header('Location: http://www.example.com');
    break;
```

The script evaluates the Call ANI:

8x8

- If the interaction arrived on the 800-555-1212 phone channel, then the 8x8 homepage opens up in a new browser window.
- If the call arrived on a different channel, then the script opens http://www.example.com in a new browser window.

Access control for Salesforce integration

As an 8x8 Contact Center administrator, you can control the number of agents who access 8x8 Contact Center Integration with Salesforce. Access to the integration is controlled in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

In 8x8 Configuration Manager, admins can grant access to a selective group of agents. During provisioning 8x8 Contact Center, your sales agent assigns the desired number of users allowed to use 8x8 Contact Center Integration with Salesforce. To check the number of authorized Salesforce users, go to Home > Profile.

Home Security	Home » Profile	0
Agent Groups		
Agents	Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans	
Queues/Skills		
Channels		ent Access Limit : 10 Users Limit : 12
Scripts		red Users : 6
CRM	Salesfor	ce users limit: 12
Support		
Center	Administration & File Transfer Passwords Service notifications - email ad	Idresses
Outbound Setup	Current Configuration Manager Password * Administrator's email(s)†	
Campaigns		
Broadcast	Configuration Manager - change password	
Integration	New Password (min. 8 chars.) * Maintenance email distribution	n list(s)†
Status Codes	Retype New Password	
Transaction Codes	Secure File Transfer Protocol (FTPES) - set password	
Outbound	Password (min. 8 chars.) Tenant email - SPAM filtering	parameters
Phone Codes	Retype Password Spam threshold level 5 🔻	
Wallboard	Spam Black List #	
Chat design	Эран ріаск цізсіі	

To grant access to 8x8 Contact Center Integration with Salesforce:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Integration.
- 2. Go to the Screen Pop tab.

·	÷ 1-
	÷67
÷	//
÷	//
÷	
	24

Note: You must have enabled and configured 8x8 Contact Center Integration with Salesforce.

- 8x8
 - 3. Under Agents, select the **Select and assign all agents** check box.

	Integration » S	creen Pop	
Agent Groups			
	CRM API CRM Tri	ggers Screen Pop API Token	
	Enable Screen Pop		
	Target Attributes		
	-		
Support Center	Target type:	NetSuite Salesforce Zendesk Microsoft Zoho custom custom	
Dutbound Setup	Integration Type:	Enhanced •	
Campaigns	Account:		
	Service Name:		
tegration	Login URL:		
atus Codes	Branding URL:		
	URL:	/MashUp/MashUp.html	
	Enable Custom	nization	
itbound one Codes	Script URL:		
allboard	Use Remote Lo	ogin	
andoard nat design	API Token:		
nac design	Use client logir	n session to pop	
	Launch nat	tive login window at agent login	
	Agents (0/12)		
		(choose agents)	
	assign all agents		



Note: The check box is disabled if the number of named users assigned to the tenant exceeds the provisioned **Salesforce Users Limit**.

- 4. To select agents individually, click choose agents.
- 5. Select the desired agents from the list of agents configured in the tenant.
- 6. Click Assign.



Note: If the number of selected agents exceeds the Salesforce user limit, you get an error message indicating the limit. You must readjust the selection accordingly.

7. Save your settings.

NetSuite Single Sign-On

8x8 Contact Center integration with NetSuite Single Sign-On and (SSO) capability allows a user of NetSuite CRM to enter 8x8 Contact Center via NetSuite website, eliminating the need to remember or enter 8x8 Contact Center user credentials. The user presents the authentication information only once per session. NetSuite's Single Sign-On eliminates the need for a separate login for 8x8 Agent Console.



Notes:

There is no iframe for this release. 8x8 Contact Center appears in a separate window.
 SSO is the only option for new customers. The existing customers cannot go back to non-SSO once it is selected.

Features

- Easy installation using SuiteBundler.
- SuiteSignOn for time saving convenience and secure Single Sign-On.
- Improved security; NetSuite user credentials and password are not stored in user interface.

- Enhanced user experience; users can seamlessly sign in to 8x8 Contact Center from the NetSuite dashboard without the need to remember or enter 8x8 Contact Center user credentials.
 - Full functionality of 8x8 Contact Center and NetSuite.
 - No need to refresh 8x8 Contact Center while using NetSuite.

Limitations

8x8

We can associate only one 8x8 Contact Center tenant with each 8x8 Contact Center Suitebundle. Contact 8x8 professional services for the available workaround.

Requirements

You must have NetSuite SSO enabled for your NetSuite account to proceed with the installation. In order to enable SSO, contact the NetSuite support team at www.netsuite.com.

To learn how to install and configure NetSuite SSO, refer to the NetSuite SSO Installation Guide.

8x8

Generate authentication tokens for 8x8 Contact Center APIs

API access tokens are used to authenticate individual calls to read or write 8x8 Contact Center data, from outside the standard 8x8 Contact Center agent or admin interface. 8x8 Contact Center administrators create and copy secure tokens used to access 8x8 Contact Center data such as:

- Statistical data for reporting
- Audio recordings data
- External IVR such as web callback
- Real-time statistical data

To generate data and action request tokens:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Integration > API Token.
- 3. Click New Token to generate data- and action-request tokens for security reasons.

Home	Integration » API	Token	
Security	J		
Agent Groups			
Agents	CRM API CRM Triggers	Screen Pop API Token	
Queues/Skills			
Channels			
Scripts	Username:	AcmeJets	
CRM	Data Request Token:	18e949019f9ab90c8feb58f0f43f6001	New Token
Support Center	Action Request Token:	256409dd2e42160f55d647b9ed66e53a	New Token
Outbound Setup			

- 4. Highlight and copy the tokens.
- 5. Use the token to authenticate your API requests.

Status codes overview

8x8 Contact Center status codes enable contact center supervisors to track how an agent functions through a workday. When an 8x8 Contact Center agent is logged in to 8x8 Agent Console, the agent accepts or rejects interactions, takes breaks, works offline or logs out. Supervisors might want to know more details or reasons for an agent changing the status or rejecting an interaction. Agent statuses, such as On Break or Work Offline, do not point out the specific reasons for the status change by the agent. Status codes can be defined to bridge this information gap. The status codes associate an agent's status change with probable reasons for the change, and enable supervisors or managers to track the work pattern of agents.

For example, you can define status codes such as Attend Meeting or Complete Case Work as probable reasons for an agent to work offline.

Using the status codes functionality:

- An administrator predefines a list of status codes used to describe probable reasons for an agent's status change actions.
- An agent selects a reason for the status change from a predefined list of status codes when changing their status.
- A supervisor analyzes an agent's working pattern and contributes to improving call center's throughput.

When do you use status codes?

If your contact center's workflow requires a close supervision of agent's time, then you may define status codes to achieve that goal. The most common reasons to use status codes are:

- To know why an agent rejects an interaction.
- To know why an agent works offline.

The following table lists an agent's actions for which you can define status codes, as well as examples of corresponding status codes.

Agent Status action	Examples of Status Codes
Take Break	Lunch
	Short Break
	Restroom
Work Offline	Attend Meeting
	Project Work
	Training
	Outbound Call
Logout	End of shift
	PC Reboot
Reject Phone	Working on a Case
Reject Chat	Technical Issue
Reject Email	Not Ready for Interaction
	Nearing Break Time

How do you define status codes?

Before you define status codes, you need to understand your company's workflow. If your company has multiple workflows, you can create a separate status code list for each. For example, if your company has separate workflows for Support and Sales, you can define a separate code list for each department.

Each status code list contains a set of codes or reasons for a specific status change. A list of status codes can be assigned to a group of agents with the limitation that they only access one list of status codes. Within the agent group, specific agents can be enabled or disabled to have access to the status code list.

Defining status codes requires you to:

- Identify valid and acceptable reasons for status change.
- Identify groups or agents to apply status codes.
- Determine the need for multi-language translation of status codes.
- Create a status code list.

Creating a status code list involves the following tasks:

- Create status code lists by defining properties.
- Create individual status codes in the list to define possible reasons for actions.
- Translate status codes to a secondary language.
- Assign status codes to agent groups and specific agents.

How do agents use status codes?

In 8x8 Agent Console, agents assigned to a status code list are presented with individual status codes in the list. The agent must choose a code from the presented list that describes the reason for the status change, and only then are they allowed to proceed with the action. For example, when an agent who is active changes their status to Work Offline, a list of status codes associated with the action (such as Attend Meeting or Working on a Project) are presented to them in a drop-down list.

How do supervisors use Status Codes?

Supervisors can track how agents spend their time by generating the following historical reports:

Agent: Status change details: The report gives detailed information on an agent's status changes, time at which an agent changed status, and an associated reason, if any. When the supervisor browses through the report, they get information about how often the agent changed their status, as well as the reason for the status change.

Menu Kaoru (Kaoru)	🖻 🛗 🖧 👁 Historical Rep	orts x
Available Take Break Log Out	New Historical Repor	t Wizard
All Favorites Recents Q Search	1 Select Available Report 2	Step Specify data/fields criteria to generate report
INBOUND PHONE	Available Reports	Preview
▲ Sales Inbound 0 0 0m:00s ☆ E OUTBOUND PHONE	Reports	Agents: Status change details Period from: 07/18/2007 to 07/18/2007 Granularity: day
▲ Sales Outbo 0 0 0m:00s 🏠 👻	Processing and post proce	
All Favorites Recents	Processing and post proce	Period Agent (Username) Status Time Reason Code Transaction 3/20/2009 beatrice (tea) Logged in 3/20/00 11:15 N/A N/A
Q Search	Processing and post proce	3/29/2009 cyril (ck) On Break 3/29/09 11:15 001 Lunch
Name 💿 🛧	Other transactions analysis	3/29/2009 giles (gillesg) Work Offine 3/29/09 11:17 002 Meeting
SALES 🔺	Detailed accepted transact	
* Kaoru Minami 1m:18s	Detailed Outbound call act	
	🗅 Status change details	
Show Status in: One Tab 🔻	Next Cancel	
Powered by 8x8		

Agents: Time on Break/Offline with status codes: The report indicates how an agent spends time on each task while working offline or on break. The report summarizes information on time spent by each status code, by

status, by agent, and by date. A sample report is shown below:

Menu Kaoru (Kaoru) Orking Offline 1m:36s	🖹 🛗 🖧 👁 🛛 Historical Re	ports ×										
Available Take Break Log Out	New Historical Repo	rt Wiza	rd									
All Favorites Recents	1 Select Available Report 2	Step Specify dat criteria to g report										
🔺 Queue 💪 😤 🕒 ★												
INBOUND PHONE	Available Reports	Preview										
▲ Sales Inbound 0 0 0m:00s ☆ E OUTBOUND PHONE	Reports	Period from	Time on Break			status c	odes					
🔺 Sales Outbo 0 0 0m:00s 🛱 🔫	Detailed accepted transact	Granularity	: day									
						ng offline			Brea			
	Detailed Outbound call act	Period	Agent (Username)	Check 7	lickets	Personal Pl	hone Call	Lur	nch	Meetin	na	
All Envoriter Recents	Detailed Outbound call act	Fellou		<u> </u>				*		**		
All Favorites Recents	3			Time	%	Time 0:27:12	% 17.2%	Time 0:18:20	% 25.3%	Time	% 4.7%	
All Favorites Recents Q Search	Status change details	07/18/2007	bestrice (bea)	Time	% 82.8%	Time 0:27:12 0:48:01		Time 0:18:20 1:02:12	25.3%	Time 0:54:08 7 2:00:59 6	4.7%	
Q Search	3	07/18/2007	bestrice (bea)	Time 2:11:15 1:45:08	% 82.8%	0:27:12	17.2% 31.4%	0:18:20	25.3% 34.0%	0:54:08 7	74.7% 98.0%	
Q Search	Status change details Detailed accepted transact	07/18/2007	bestrice (bes) cyril (ck) giles (gillesg) Day Sub Total	Time 2:11:15 1:45:08 0:37:01 4:33:24	% 82.8% 68.6% 77.7% 78.1%	0:27:12 0:48:01 0:10:39 1:25:52	17.2% 31.4% 22.3% 23.9%	0:18:20 1:02:12 0:29:48 1:50:20	25.3% 34.0% 13.4% 13.4%	0:54:08 7 2:00:59 6 3:12:29 8 6:07:36 8	74.7% 98.0% 98.8%	
Q Search	Status change details	07/18/2007	beatrice (bea) cyril (ck) giles (gillesg)	Time 2:11:15 1:45:08 0:37:01 4:33:24	% 82.8% 68.6% 77.7% 78.1%	0:27:12 0:48:01 0:10:39	17.2% 31.4% 22.3% 23.9%	0:18:20 1:02:12 0:29:48 1:50:20	25.3% 34.0% 13.4% 13.4%	0:54:08 7 2:00:59 6 3:12:29 8	74.7% 98.0% 98.8%	
Q Search	Status change details Detailed accepted transact	07/18/2007	bestrice (bes) cyril (ck) giles (gillesg) Day Sub Total	Time 2:11:15 1:45:08 0:37:01 4:33:24	% 82.8% 68.6% 77.7% 78.1%	0:27:12 0:48:01 0:10:39 1:25:52	17.2% 31.4% 22.3% 23.9%	0:18:20 1:02:12 0:29:48 1:50:20	25.3% 34.0% 13.4% 13.4%	0:54:08 7 2:00:59 6 3:12:29 8 6:07:36 8	74.7% 98.0% 98.8%	
Q Search	Status change details Detailed accepted transact Detailed outbound transac	07/18/2007	bestrice (bes) cyril (ck) giles (gillesg) Day Sub Total	Time 2:11:15 1:45:08 0:37:01 4:33:24	% 82.8% 68.6% 77.7% 78.1%	0:27:12 0:48:01 0:10:39 1:25:52	17.2% 31.4% 22.3% 23.9%	0:18:20 1:02:12 0:29:48 1:50:20	25.3% 34.0% 13.4% 13.4%	0:54:08 7 2:00:59 6 3:12:29 8 6:07:36 8	74.7% 98.0% 98.8%	
Q Search	 Status change details Detailed accepted transact Detailed outbound transac Transactions grouped by w 	07/18/2007	bestrice (bes) cyril (ck) giles (gillesg) Day Sub Total	Time 2:11:15 1:45:08 0:37:01 4:33:24	% 82.8% 68.6% 77.7% 78.1%	0:27:12 0:48:01 0:10:39 1:25:52	17.2% 31.4% 22.3% 23.9%	0:18:20 1:02:12 0:29:48 1:50:20	25.3% 34.0% 13.4% 13.4%	0:54:08 7 2:00:59 6 3:12:29 8 6:07:36 8	74.7% 98.0% 98.8%	

Create status codes

8x8 Contact Center administrators create status codes for 8x8 Contact Center agents via 8x8 Configuration Manager. Status codes offer a mechanism to track agent activity during work hours. With codes, you can define reasons for changing status, such as lunch, attend a meeting, or taking a break. These codes can be invoked for status change actions, such as Take Break, Work Offline, Logoff, and Reject Phone.

Creating a new status code list involves:

- Configuring properties of the codes list.
- Defining individual codes.
- Translating codes to secondary languages (optional).
- Assigning the codes to agent groups (required) and specific agents (optional).

Configure Properties of a Status Code

1. From the Configuration Menu, open Status Codes.



- 2. Click 🕀 or Add. The Properties tab opens.
- 3. Enter the required values in the **Properties** tab.

The following table summarizes the options under Status Codes > Properties:

Properties Options	Description
Active	Select the check box to put this code list into service.
Name (Required)	Enter a name for the new code list.
Description	Enter a brief description of the purpose of the code list.
Category	A category distinguishes multiple code lists, and attributes a code list to a specific group. For example, you can create categories for Sales, Support, Services, and more. You can then assign each code list to a particular category. In the Category list, do one of the following:
	 Choose Edit Categories to create a new code category.
	 Choose an existing code category.

Properties Options	Description
Sort Order	Select the order in which the codes should appear in 8x8 Agent Console:
	 Manual allows organizing the order of the codes manually.
	 Automatic organizes the codes alphabetically.
Admin Notes	Type information that enables administrators to understand the purpose of the code list.
Primary Language	Select a primary language in which the codes are written. This information is required to create a list.
(Required)	Note: After saving the code list, you cannot change the Primary Language setting.
Secondary Language	Select the languages to translate the codes to. This option allows you to set up codes in languages other than English.

4. Click Save.

Define Status Codes

In the Codes tab, you can define individual status codes and assign them to an agent's action or status change. These codes are invoked when an agent performs one of the following actions:

- Take Break
- Work Offline
- Log Out
- Reject Phone
- Reject Chat
- Reject Email

To define status codes:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Status Codes.
- 2. Click to Edit a status code.
- 3. Go to the Codes tab, and enter the required values.

ecurity												
gent Groups												
gents	Sele	cted List : Sales Codes										
ueues/Skills)	< Back	< to Status Codes Lists										
hannels												
cripts	Prop	erties Codes Tra	nslations Assignmer	nts								
RM	Code	s										
upport enter	Code:	(+) Add										
utbound atup	Active	e Menu Text (English (US))	Report Text	Short Code	Take Break	Work Offl	Log Out	Reject Pho	Reject Ch	Reject Em	Used	
ampaigns		Sale	-	null								団
roadcast	~	Follow Up	-	null								ŵ
tegration		No Answer	-	null								Ū
atus Codes	~	No Sale	-	null								Ū
ansaction odes		Wrong Number		null								Û
utbound 1one Codes												
allboard	Note:											
hat design		can use mouse to reorder codes.	Also you can edit inline data	by clicking on each row								

The following table summarizes the options under **Status Codes > Codes**:

Status Codes Field Name	Description
Active	Select to activate the code.
Menu Text	Type the string that 8x8 Agent Console displays when displaying the code, such as Attend Meeting.
Report Text	Type the string that 8x8 Agent Console displays when listing the code in a report, such as Attend Meeting.
Short Code	Type the string that 8x8 Agent Console uses when displaying the code's short identifier, such as Mtg.
Status Action categories	Choose an optional primary category for the code: Take Break Work Offline Log Out Reject Phone Reject Chat Reject Email
Used	If an agent has applied a code in their 8x8 Agent Console, then 8x8 Configuration Manager adds a check mark to that code and its parent list. After a code has been used, the code and its code list cannot be deleted.

- 4. Select a status action check box to assign the code to an agent's action, such as Take Break, Work Offline, etc.
- 5. Repeat the above steps to create more codes.
- 6. Click Save.

8x8

Translate Status Codes (Optional)

The Translations tab allows you to translate codes from the primary language to the secondary languages supported by 8x8 Contact Center. You must specify a secondary language in the Properties tab to enable translation. This procedure is optional based on your company's needs. Use the Translations tab to configure secondary language options for individual status codes.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Status Codes.
- 2. Click to **Edit** a status code.
- 3. Go to the Translations tab.

Home Security	Agent Status » Edit Status Codes Lis	t » Translations			(j)
Agent Groups					
Agents Queues/Skills	Selected List : Sales Codes				
Channels	 Back to Status Codes Lists 				
Scripts	Properties Codes Translations Assignments				
CRM	Translations				
Support Center					
Outbound	Secondary Languag Primary Language		Secondary Languages		Active
Setup	Menu Texc	Menu Text	Report Text	Short Code	Acure
Campaigns	ENGLISH (CA)				
Broadcast	FRENCH				
Integration	JAPANESE				
Status Codes					
Transaction Codes					
Outbound Phone Codes					
Wallboard	Note:				
Chat design	- You can edit inline data by clicking on each row.				
		Save	eset		
		Save Re	iset		

- 4. Select a code from the read-only list of codes in the Translations tab.
- 5. Select a secondary language from the drop-down menu.
- Enter the translated Menu Text¹, Report Text², and Short Code³ in the secondary language of your choice. The following table summarizes the options under Status Codes > Translations:

³Short Code is the string 8x8 Agent Console uses when displaying the codes' short identifier.

¹Menu Text is the string 8x8 Agent Console displays when displaying the code in the secondary language ²Report Text is the string 8x8 Agent Console displays when listing the code in a report.

Translations Option	Description
Secondary Languages	Choose one of the secondary languages selected in the status codes Properties tab. When you select a secondary language, 8x8 Configuration Manager changes the title of Menu Text .
Primary Language	Read-only list of status code descriptions in the code's primary language.
Menu Text (secondary language ID)	Choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. 8x8 Agent Console displays the menu code in the secondary language.
Report Text	Choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. 8x8 Agent Console displays the report text in the secondary language.
Short Code	Choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. 8x8 Agent Console uses the short code when displaying the codes' short identifier.
Active	Shows the Active list of the status codes.

- 7. Repeat the above process for each of your secondary languages.
- 8. Click Save.

Assign to Agents or Groups

After creating the codes, choose the agent groups, and specify individual agents within each group to assign the code list to. Use the Assignments tab for this purpose.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Status Codes**.
- 2. Click to **Edit** a status code.
- 3. Go to the **Assignments** tab.



All agent groups in your contact center show. Groups that are currently assigned to other status lists are grayed

out.

- 4. Select a group from the list. A menu appears on the same line.
- Activate agents by checking the check box next to each name. OR

Click Activate All to select all agents in the group.

- Click Save to save the settings for the code. You have now defined a status code list.
- 7. To verify the behavior, log in to 8x8 Agent Console as an agent belonging to the group. Change your status to invoke the status codes.

Edit and delete status codes

You can edit or delete existing code lists at any time.

To edit a status codes list:

- From the Configuration Menu, open Status Codes. A list of existing codes appears.
- 2. Select the code list you want to edit, and click
- 3. Navigate through the tabs to make the desired changes.
- 4. Save your changes.

To delete an existing status code list:

1. Select a code list from the list, and click

You are prompted to confirm your action.

2. Click **Ok** to delete the list.

ē.	
ί.	
۰.	
۰.	T
۰.	÷67
۰.	//
۰.	
۰.	
۰.	T _ (20)
۰.	
۰.	
۰.	

Note: You cannot recover a deleted list.

Transaction codes overview

8x8 Contact Center transaction codes offer a means to apply call disposition to inbound as well as outbound interactions. Each inbound or outbound interaction in a call center has some purpose and disposition. Transaction codes can be defined to collect call disposition information from the agents at the time of the call and supervisors can report on this information for analysis and to determine further processing.

For example, an ACME sales representative, who is processing a sales campaign for a new product, places outbound calls to prospect customers. The representative can record the result of each interaction with predefined transaction codes, such as Successful Sale, Prospect Interested - Call back, Prospect not Interested - Do not call back, Reached Voicemail, and Faulty Number. Further in the sales process, you can define transaction codes to identify various stages of the sales process, and apply the codes to convey the status and result of each interaction.

Using the transaction codes functionality:

- An administrator predefines a list of transaction codes used to describe the purpose of an interaction, or probable outcomes for an interaction.
- An agent applies a call disposition from the predefined list of transaction codes during the processing or postprocessing stage of an interaction.
- A supervisor reports on call disposition for further analysis and to determine further processing.

When do you use transaction codes?

Transaction codes are mainly used to:

- State the purpose of interactions.
- Indicate the outcome of inbound and outbound interactions.

State the Purpose of Interactions with Transaction Codes

Each interaction from and into your call center has a purpose. You can define transaction codes to state the purpose of these interactions. When an agent processes an interaction, they can indicate the purpose of the interaction by selecting one of the transaction codes available.

For example, in a call center which combines Sales, Support, and Service calls, you can indicate the purpose of each interaction using a set of transaction codes, such as Sales Call, Support Call, and Service Call.

Indicate the Outcome of Interactions with Transaction Codes

Transaction codes allow your call center agents to record the purpose and outcome of inbound and outbound interactions. You are labeling an interaction with codes for further analysis or follow-up.

For example, when a ACME sales representative places sales calls, they can indicate the outcome of each interaction with predefined transaction codes, such as Successful Sale, Prospect Interested - Call back, and so on. At the end of the day, when the management runs a transaction report, the report indicates statistical information about sales, as well as transaction codes that prompt follow-up actions. For records that are labeled Prospect Interested - Call back, agents need to place follow-up calls. Records that are labeled Prospect not Interested - Do not call back must be filtered from the list.

Typically, you can define transaction code lists for a sales team to understand how many calls they made, how many resulted in sales, how many resulted in faulty numbers, etc.

Reasons for Using Transaction Codes	Examples of Transaction Codes
State the purpose of an interaction	Sales Call Service Call Support Call
Indicate the outcome of an inter- action	Prospect Interested – Call Back Prospect not Interested – Do not Call Back Reached Voicemail – Try Again Faulty Number

The following table lists the uses of transactions codes with corresponding examples:

How do you create transaction codes?

Understanding the process flow of your company provides a good basis for defining transaction codes. You may create multiple transaction code lists to define the purpose and outcomes of interactions for a particular process. For example,

select one or more outcomes for an interaction. Each transaction code list contains a set of codes to identify the call disposition. A transaction code list can be assigned to an agent group or to a queue. You can apply multiple disposition code lists to an agent group or a queue. When an agent accepts a call, all code lists assigned to the agent group or queue are presented in separate tabs. An agent may

select one or more codes from a single list and/or save desired codes from multiple lists. A call coded from multiple lists

To define transaction codes for disposition, you must:

- Identify probable purposes and outcomes of an interaction.
- Identify queues or agent groups to apply the transaction code list to.
- Determine the need to translate transaction codes to a secondary language.
- Create a transaction code list.

shows as a separate record.

8x8

To create transaction codes, you must:

- Create a transaction code list by defining properties.
- Define individual transaction codes in the list.
- Determine the need to translate transaction codes to a secondary language.
- Assign codes to agent group(s) or queue(s).

How do agents use transaction codes?

During the processing of an interaction, a transaction code list is presented to an agent in 8x8 Agent Console under the following circumstances:

- The agent is a member of the group assigned with the code list.
- The agent is a member of the queue(s) assigned with the code list(s).

From the presented code list, an agent selects transaction codes:

- Before initiating the call.
- During the call.
- At the end of the call, during post-processing.

An agent assigned to a call disposition list is presented with the code list during an interaction. The agent may select and save one code or multiple codes from a list anytime during the interaction or post-processing. When an agent is a member of the group or queue assigned with multiple lists, all lists are presented to the agent in separate tabs when they accept a call. The agent may select and save codes from multiple lists. The selected codes appear in historical reports.

How do supervisors use transaction codes?

Supervisors generate historical reports to get call disposition information for analysis and to determine the need for follow-up actions based on transaction codes, also known as wrap-up codes. The following reports list transaction codes used during agent interactions:

- Agents: Detailed accepted transactions with wrap up codes: This report lists wrap-up codes used by an agent during all of their inbound accepted interactions. Wrap-up codes indicate call disposition information. You may find multiple instances of the same call to indicate multiple wrap-up codes applied to the same call.
- Agents: Detailed outbound transactions with wrap up codes: This report lists dial codes as well as wrap-up codes. Dial codes are caller ID-related codes, which appear before dialing the call. An agent can apply only one dial code to a call, but can apply multiple wrap-up codes.

Menu Kaoru (Kaoru)	🖻 🛗 🖧 💿 Historical Rep	orts X				
Available Take Break Log Out	New Historical Repor	t Wizard				
All Favorites Recents Q Search	1 Select Available Report 2	Step Specify date/fields criteria to generate report				
INBOUND PHONE	Available Reports	Preview				-
Sales Inbound 0 0 0m:00s ☆ E OUTBOUND PHONE	Reports	Agents: Detailed outbour Period from: 07/18/2007 to 07/	nd transactions with 18/2007	wrap up codes		
🛓 Sales Outbo 0 0 0m:00s 🏠 🚽	Detailed accepted transact	Granularity: day				
	Detailed Outbound call act	Period Agent (Username) D	estination Call Start Time	Call Duration Transaction	Wrap Up	Dial
All Favorites Recents	Detailed Outbound can act	7/18/2009 Agent Smith (smith) 14	089239222 7/18/2009 12:12	0:02:44 1007	Code Text Call Call back	Code Text HPQ Hewlett Packar
	Status change details		089233455 7/18/2009 14:34	0:05:00 1011		CSCO Cisci
	Detailed accepted transact	7/18/2009 Mitul Sen (sen) 14	089245565 7/18/2009 15:56	0:02:10 1021	N/A N/A	N/A N/A
🕷 Name 🕚 📩						
SALES 🔺	Detailed outbound transac					
* Kaoru Minami 0m:48s	Transactions grouped by w					
	Time on Break/Offline with	4				, ,
Show Status in: One Tab	Next Cancel					
Powered by 8x8						

Agents: Transactions grouped by wrap up codes: The report groups transactions by wrap-up codes, queue, channel, media, and agent.

Menu Kaoru (Kaoru) Oworking Offline Om:595	声 簡 谷 の Historical Reports ×												
Available Take Break Log Out	New Historical Repor	t Wiza	ard										
All Favorites Recents Q Search	1 Select Available Report 2	Step Specify da criteria to g report											
INBOUND PHONE	Available Reports	Preview											-
A Sales Inbound 0 0 0m:00s ☆ E OUTBOUND PHONE Sales Outbo 0 0 0m:00s ☆	Reports	Agents: Period fror Granularity	m: 07/18/2007 to 0	7/18/2	ed by wrap up co DD7	odes							
							1	Follo	w Up (00	2)	0	II back (01	5
	Detailed Outbound call act	Period	Agent (Username)	Media	Channel	Queue	#	96	Time	ri da	# %	Time	96
					Chat Channel	Support	12	38.38%	0-18-02	10.000/		6 0:14:45	40.08%
All Favorites Recents		01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pma)	Chat						43.82%	14 42.42		
	Status change details	01/27/2011 01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pms) Agent Smith (pms)	Email	wpj1@contactual.com	Support Email				28.87%	13 17.58		11.38%
		01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma)	Email Email	wpj1@contactual.com wpj2@contactual.com	Support Email Helpdesk Email	24 24	32.43% 32.43%	0:28:40 0:41:49	28.87% 32.50%	13 17.58 13 17.58	6 0:09:01	7.01%
	Status change details Detailed accepted transact	01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pms) Agent Smith (pms) Agent Smith (pms)	Email Email	wpj1@contactual.com	Support Email	24 24 4	32.43% 32.43% 66.66%	0:28:40 0:41:49 0:03:57	28.87% 32.50% 80.34%	13 17.56 13 17.56 2 33.33	6 0:09:01 6 0:00:58	7.01% 19.88%
Q. Search ▼		01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Sub Total	Email Email	wpj1@contactual.com wpj2@contactual.com	Support Email Helpdesk Email	24 24 4 84	32.43% 32.43% 66.66% 34.22%	0:28:40 0:41:49 0:03:57 1:30:34	28.87% 32.50% 80.34% 32.59%	13 17.50 13 17.50 2 33.33 42 22.46	% 0:09:01 % 0:00:68 % 0:36:58	7.01% 19.88% 13.30%
Q Search	Detailed accepted transact	01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Sub Total Day Sub Total	Email Email	wpj1@contactual.com wpj2@contactual.com	Support Email Helpdesk Email	24 24 4 64	32.43% 32.43% 88.66% 34.22% 34.22%	0:28:40 0:41:49 0:03:57 1:30:34 1:30:34	20.07% 32.50% 80.34% 32.59% 32.59%	13 17.50 13 17.50 2 33.33 42 22.40 42 22.40	6 0:09:01 6 0:00:58 6 0:36:58 6 0:36:58	7.01% 19.88% 13.30%
Q Search 🖓	Detailed accepted transact	01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Sub Total	Email Email	wpj1@contactual.com wpj2@contactual.com	Support Email Helpdesk Email	24 24 4 64	32.43% 32.43% 88.66% 34.22% 34.22%	0:28:40 0:41:49 0:03:57 1:30:34 1:30:34	20.07% 32.50% 80.34% 32.59% 32.59%	13 17.50 13 17.50 2 33.33 42 22.40 42 22.40	% 0:09:01 % 0:00:68 % 0:36:58	7.01% 19.88% 13.30%
Q Search	Detailed accepted transact Detailed outbound transac	01/27/2011	Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Smith (pma) Agent Sub Total Day Sub Total	Email Email	wpj1@contactual.com wpj2@contactual.com	Support Email Helpdesk Email	24 24 4 64	32.43% 32.43% 88.66% 34.22% 34.22%	0:28:40 0:41:49 0:03:57 1:30:34 1:30:34	20.07% 32.50% 80.34% 32.59% 32.59%	13 17.50 13 17.50 2 33.33 42 22.40 42 22.40	6 0:09:01 6 0:00:58 6 0:36:58 6 0:36:58	7.01% 19.88% 13.30%

8x8

Create Transaction codes

8x8 Contact Center administrators create Transaction codes in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Creating 8x8 Contact Center Transaction code list involves:

- Configuring properties of the code list.
- Defining individual codes.
- Translating codes to secondary languages (optional).
- Assigning the codes to an agent's groups or queues.

Configure Transaction Code Properties

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Transaction Codes.
- or Add. The Properties tab appears. 2. Click
- 3. Enter the required values in the Properties tab.

The following table summarizes the options under **Transaction Codes > Properties**:

Properties Option	Description
Active	Select the check box to put this code list into service.
Name (required)	Enter a name for the transaction code list.
Description	Enter a description for the transaction code list.
Category	 Refers to a category of lists, such as Sales, Marketing, or Support. Within a single category, you can group multiple transaction code lists. You can create a new category or add a list to an existing category. In the Category list, do one of the following: Choose Edit Categories to create a new transaction code category. Choose an existing transaction code category.
Secondary Languages	Select other languages to translate the codes into.
Sort Order	Refers to the order in which the codes within the list are sorted when presented to an agent.

Properties Option	Description
	 Choose Manual to list transaction codes yourself in a specific order.
	 Choose Automatic to have 8x8 Contact Center sort transaction codes in alphabetical order.
Required	If enabled, the agent has to select a transaction code for all phone calls.
Multiple-choice	If enabled, the agent has to select multiple codes from the transaction codes list.
Assignment Type	Select an Agent Group or Queue to assign the list to. This option enables the members of the group or queue to access the list during phone calls.
Primary Language (required)	Select the primary language in which the codes are written. This information is required to create a list.
	Note: After saving the list, you cannot change the Primary Language setting.
Admin Notes	Type information that enables administrators to understand the purpose of the code list.

4. Click Save.

Define Transaction Codes

You can define individual transaction codes in the Codes tab.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Transaction Codes.
- 2. Click to **Edit** a transaction code.

3. Go to the **Codes** tab and enter the required values.

ecurity				-
gent Groups				
gents	SELECTED LIST : Sales Outbound			
ueues/Skills hannels	K Back to Transaction Codes Lists			
cripts	Properties Codes Translations Assignment	s		
RM	Codes			
upport enter	Code: 💮 Add			
utbound etup	Active Menu Text (English (US))	Report Text	Short Code	Used
ampaigns	Sale	Sale	Unt 1	団
oadcast	Follow Up	Follow Up	Unt 2	1
tegration	 Busy; Call Back 	Busy; Call Back	Unt 3	⑪
atus Codes	No Answer	No Answer	Unt 4	⑪
ansaction	Wrong Number	Wrong Number	Unt 5	Û
ides	Not Interested	Not Interested	Unt 6	節
ittoound ione Codes				
allboard	Note:			
hat design	- You can use mouse to reorder codes. Also you can edit inline data b	y clicking on each row.		

- 4. Enter values for the following fields:
 - Menu Text: The code text that appears in the code list in 8x8 Agent Console
 - **Report Text**: The code text that appears in the reports
 - Short Code: A short identifier for a code

The following table summarizes the options under **Transaction Codes > Codes**:

Codes Option	Description
Active	Select Active to activate the specific transaction codes.
Menu Text	Type the string that 8x8 Agent Console displays when displaying the code, such as Prospect Interested – Call Back.
Report Text	Type the string that 8x8 Agent Console displays when listing the code in a report, such as Prospect Interested – Call Back.
Short Code	Type the string that 8x8 Agent Console uses when displaying the code's short identifier, such as Int.
Used	If an agent has used a code in their 8x8 Agent Console, then the code is marked with o in the column. After a code has been used, the code and its code group Used
	cannot be deleted.

- 5. Repeat the above steps to create more codes.
- 6. Click **Save** to save the codes.

Translate Transaction Codes (Optional)

The Translations tab allows you to translate codes from the primary language to the secondary language supported by 8x8 Contact Center. You must specify a secondary language in the Properties tab to enable translation. This procedure is optional.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Transaction Codes.
- 2. Click to Edit a transaction code.
- 3. Go to the Translations tab.

Home Security	Edit Transaction Codes List » Tran	slations			0
Agent Groups					
Agents	SELECTED LIST : Sales Outbound				
Queues/Skills Channels	K Back to Transaction Codes Lists				
Scripts	Properties Codes <u>Translations</u> Assignmen	ts			
CRM	Translations				
Support Center					
Outbound	Secondary Languag Primary Language		Secondary Languages		Active
Setup Campaigns	Menu Text	Menu Text	Report Text	Short Code	
Broadcast	FRENCH				
Integration	Customer won	won à la clientèle	won à la clientèle	1	
Status Codes	Interested	interéssé	interéssé	2	
Transaction	Busy; call back	occupé , rappel	occupé , rappel	3	
Codes	Wrong number	mauvais numéro	mauvais numéro	4	
Outbound	Do not call back	ne remettent pas en arrière	ne remettent pas en arrière	5	
Phone Codes					
Wallboard	Note:				
Chat design	- You can edit inline data by clicking on each row.	Save	leset		

For every transaction code you have created in the Codes tab, you find a new row under the secondary language.

4. Enter Menu Text, Report Text, and Short Code in the secondary language.

The following table summarizes the options under **Transactions Codes > Translations**:

Translations Option	Description
Secondary Languages	Choose one of the secondary languages selected in the transaction codes Properties tab. When you select a secondary language, 8x8 Configuration Manager changes the title of the Menu Text text entry area described later in this table.
Primary Language	A read-only list of transaction codes created in the Codes tab, and as written in the primary language.
Menu Text (secondary language ID)	Choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. 8x8 Agent Console displays the menu code in the secondary language.
Report Text	Choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. 8x8 Agent Console displays the report text in the secondary language.

Translations Option	Description
Short Code	Choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. 8x8 Agent Console uses the short code when displaying the code's short identifier.
Active	Shows the Active list of transaction codes.

5. Select **Save** to save the translated codes.

Assign the Agent Groups and Queues

The Assignment tab enables you to select agent groups or queues to assign the code list. Based on your choice of assignment type in properties, the list of agent groups or queues setup in the tenant show up.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Transaction Codes.
- 2. Click to **Edit** a transaction code.
- 3. Go to the Assignments tab and enter the required values.

Home Security	Edit Transaction Codes List » Assignmen	ts	٥
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	SELECTED LIST : Sales Outbound < Back to Transaction Codes Lists Properties Codes Translations Assignments		
CRM	Assignments		> Filter Assignments
Center	Assign All		<< < 1 v > >> 20 records 🕸 Configure Sort 🤯 Clear All Sort
Outbound	Assign Queues	Media	Assigned OPCL/TCL
Setup	 Support Chat 	Chat	
Campaigns	Sales Email	Email	
Broadcast	Support Email	Email	
Integration	Sales Inbound	Phone	
Status Codes	Sales Outbound	Phone	
Transaction Codes	Support Inbound	Phone	
Outbound	Support Outbound	Phone	
Phone Codes	Sales Voicemail	Vmail	
Wallboard	Support Voicemail	Vmail	
Chat design			
		Save	Reset

- 4. Select an agent group or a queue from the list.
 - OR

Select the Assign All check box to assign all groups or queues in the list.

5. Click **Save** to finish defining the code list.



Edit and Delete Transaction Codes

You can edit or delete existing transaction code lists at any time.

To edit a transaction codes list:

- From the Configuration Menu, open Transaction Codes. A list of existing codes appears.
- 2. Select the code list you want to edit, and click
- 3. Navigate through the tabs to make the desired changes.
- 4. Save your changes.

8x8

To delete an existing transaction code list:

- Select a code list from the list, and click
 You are prompted to confirm your action.
- 2. Click **Ok** to delete the list.



Note: You cannot recover a deleted list.

Version 9.14

Outbound phone codes overview

Outbound Phone Codes offer a means to set a unique calling line identifier (caller ID) for outbound calls. You can define outbound phone codes to assign caller ID to outbound calls from your tenant. You can also use outbound phone codes to identify the purpose of each outbound call.

When placing an outbound call, you can use outbound phone codes to set the calling line identifier displayed to the called party. If your 8x8 Contact Center provides technical support services to multiple companies on the same tenant but on different channels, you must ensure that the correct caller ID is applied to each company. This helps the customers of each company to identify a number with the company, and provides the best callback experience. You can define transaction codes to assign caller ID to outbound calls from your tenant. When an agent initiates an interaction, they set a caller ID to an outbound call, thus identifying the right callback number.



Note: Assigning calling line identifier is not supported by all telecommunication carriers.

For example, ACME uses their 8x8 Contact Center to provide technical support services for two companies: Kids Zone for the Kids Entertainment company, and EMAC for Credit Recovery Services. ACME has two phone channels; one for callers to Kids Zone and one for callers to EMAC. The administrator defines transaction codes to map a phone number for each company. Before placing an outbound call to a customer of Kids Zone, the agent selects the code for Kids Zone. At the receiving end of the call, the phone number mapped with the code is displayed.

The following topics are discussed in this chapter:

- Creating outbound phone codes
- Assigning codes at the agent level

Using the outbound dial codes functionality:

- An administrator predefines a list of outbound phone codes to identify the calling line identifier to outbound calls.
- An agent assigns a calling line identifier to an outbound call from the predefined list of outbound phone codes before initiating the call to ensure the best callback experience for customers.

To create transaction codes, you must:

8x8

- Create a transaction code list by defining properties.
- Create individual transaction codes in the list.
- Translate codes to secondary languages.
- Assign codes to agent group(s) or queue(s).

How do agents use Outbound Phone Codes?

During the processing of an interaction, an Outbound Phone Code list is available to an agent in 8x8 Agent Console under the following circumstances:

- The agent is a member of the group that is assigned the code list.
- The agent is directly assigned the code list(s).

An agent assigned an Outbound Phone code list is shown the list before initiating an outbound call. The agent must choose a code to dial out. The calling line identifier associated with the selected code sets the caller ID to the call.

Create outbound phone codes

8x8 Contact Center administrators create outbound codes in 8x8 Configuration Manager. Creating an Outbound Phone Code list involves:

- Configuring properties of the code list.
- Defining individual codes.
- Translating codes to secondary languages (optional).
- Assigning codes to agent groups.

Configure Outbound Phone Code Properties

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Phone Codes**.
 - Ð
- 2. Click or Add to create a new list. The Properties tab opens.
- 3. Enter the following properties. Some fields are required, while others are optional.

Properties Options	Description
Active	Select the check box to put this code list into service.
Name (Required)	Enter a name for the new code list.
Description	Enter a brief description of the purpose of the code list.
Category	 A category distinguishes multiple code lists, and attributes a code list to a specific group. For example, you can create categories for Sales, Support, Services, and more. You can then assign each code list to a particular category. In the Category list, do one of the following: Choose Edit Categories to create a new code category. Choose an existing code category.
Sort Order	 Select the order in which the codes should appear in 8x8 Agent Console: Manual allows organizing the order of the codes manually. Automatic organizes the codes alphabetically.

Properties Options	Description
Admin Notes	Type information that enables administrators to understand the purpose of the code list.
Primary Language (Required)	Select a primary language in which the codes are written. This information is required to create a list.
(Required)	Note: After saving the code list, you cannot change the Primary Language setting.
Secondary Language	Select the languages to translate the codes to. This option allows you to set up codes in languages other than English.

4. Click Save to save the properties.

The Codes tab opens.

Define Outbound Phone Codes

In the Codes tab, you can define individual status codes and assign them to an agent's action or status change.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Outbound Phone Codes.
- 2. Click to **Edit** an outbound phone code.
- 3. Go to the Codes tab and enter the required values.

Home Security	Add Outbound Code	es List » Codes					(i)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	SELECTED LIST : Sales Outbound Seack to Outbound Codes Lists Properties <u>Codes</u> Tran	l slations Assignments					
CRM	Codes						
Support Center	Code: 🕀 Add						
Outbound Setup	Active Menu Text (English (US))	Report Text	Short Code	Calling Line Identifier *	Queue	Used	
Campaigns	Sale	Sale	Unt 1	Anonymous	Sales Outbound		団
Broadcast	Follow up	Follow up	Unt 2	Anonymous	Sales Outbound		Ū
Integration	 Busy; call back 	Busy; call back	Unt 3	Anonymous	Sales Outbound		Ū
Status Codes	No answer	No answer	Unt 4	Anonymous	Sales Outbound		団
Transaction	 Wrong number 	Wrong number	Unt 5	Anonymous	Sales Outbound		団
Codes Outbound	Not interested	Not interested	Unt 6	Anonymous	Sales Outbound		団
Phone Codes	Untitled 7		Unt 7	Anonymous	(none)	v	1
Wallboard Chat design	Note: - You can use mouse to reorder codes. A	lso you can edit inline data by clich		ave Reset			

The following table summarizes the options under **Outbound Phone Codes > Codes**:

- 4. Repeat the above steps to create more codes.
- 5. Select Save to save the codes.

Translate Outbound Phone Codes (Optional)

The Translations tab allows you to translate codes from the primary language to the secondary language supported by 8x8 Contact Center. You must specify a secondary language in the Properties tab to enable translation. This procedure is optional.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Outbound Phone Codes.
- 2. Click to Edit a status code.
- 3. Go to the Translations tab.

Home Security	Add Outbound Code	es List » Translations				(j)
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	SELECTED LIST : Sales Outbound Seck to Outbound Codes Lists Properties Codes Trar	d nslations Assignments				
CRM Support Center	Translations					
Outbound Setup		Primary Language		Secondary Languages		Active
Campaigns	FRENCH	Menu T	ext	Report Text	Short Code	
	Customer w	von won à la	clientèle	won à la clientèle	1	
	Interested	interes	sé			
Status Codes	Busy; call ba	ack -		-	-	
Transaction Codes	Wrong num	ber -		-	-	
Outbound Phone Codes	Do not call b	pack -		-	-	
Wallboard Chat design	Note: - You can edit inline data by clicking on i	each row.				
			Save Res	et		

- 4. Select a code from the read-only list of codes in the Translations tab.
- 5. Select a secondary language to translate the code to.

The following table summarizes the options under **Outbound Phone**:

Translations Options	Description
Secondary Languages	Choose one of the secondary languages selected in the outbound codes Properties tab. When you select a secondary language, 8x8 Configuration Manager changes the title of the Menu Text text entry area described later in this table.
Primary Language	Read-only list of outbound codes descriptions in the code's primary language.
Menu Text (secondary	In the Secondary Languages list, choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. The 8x8 Agent Console displays the menu code in the secondary language.

Translations Options	Description
language ID)	
Report Text	In the Secondary Languages list, choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. The 8x8 Agent Console displays the report text in the secondary language.
Short Code	In the Secondary Languages list, choose a secondary language, and type the string in that language. The 8x8 Agent Console uses the short code when displaying the codes' short identifier.
Active	Shows the Active list of outbound codes.

6. Select **Save** to save the translated codes.

Assign to Agents or Groups

After creating the codes, choose the agent groups and specify individual agents within each group to assign the code list to. Use the Assignments tab for this purpose.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Phone Codes**.
- 2. Click to Edit a status code.
- 3. Go to the Assignments tab.

Home Security	Add Outbound Codes List » Assignments)
Security Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM Support	SELECTED LIST : Sales Outbound < Back to Outbound Codes Lists Properties Codes Translations Assignments	
Center	> Filter	
Outbound Setup	<< < 1 v > >> 20 records 🕸 Configure Sort 🤯 Clear All Sort	
Campaigns	Assign Groups ^ Assigned OPCL	
Broadcast	Marketing	
Integration	Sales	
Status Codes	Support	1
Transaction Codes	Ungroup	-
Outbound Phone Codes		
Wallboard Chat design	Note: - Grayed out groups have already been associated with some other OPCL. Save Reset	

- 4. Select an agent group from the list. The list is assigned to your choice of agent groups.
- 5. Click **Save** to complete the code list definition.
| ē. | - | | - | | | | - | |
|----|---|-----|----|---|-----|----|----|-----|
| ŧ. | | | _ | _ | _ | _ | | |
| ÷. | | -4 | | _ | _ | | ۱. | |
| ŧ. | | - 7 | Π. | _ | - | _ | 6 | h., |
| ÷. | | - | ι. | | | -4 | 62 | Υ. |
| ÷. | | | | | | 7 | | ۴. |
| ۰. | | - | | - | - | | F | |
| ۰. | | -4 | | _ | . 4 | | δ. | |
| ۰. | | - 7 | | | r | 40 | | |
| ۰. | | -4 | | _ | 1 | ~ | | |
| ٩. | | - | _ | _ | _ | _ | | |
| 1 | | | | | | | | |

Note: An Outbound Phone Code list is not functional until activated and assigned.

Edit and delete outbound phone codes

You can edit or delete existing code lists at any time.

To edit an outbound phone codes list:

- From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Phone Codes**.
 A list of existing codes appears.
- 2. Select the code list you want to edit, and click
- 3. Navigate through the tabs to make the desired changes.
- 4. Save your changes.

To delete an existing status code list:

- From the Configuration Menu, open **Outbound Phone Codes**. A list of existing codes appears.
- Select a code list from the list, and click
 You are prompted to confirm your action.
- 3. Click OK to delete the list.



Note: You cannot recover a deleted list.

Assign Outbound phone codes at agent level

8x8 Contact Center administrators define Outbound Phone Code List in 8x8 Configuration Manager. The Assignment tab allows you to assign the code list to the members of the existing agent groups. You can assign different code lists to individual agents.

To assign an Outbound Phone Code list at the agent level:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Select the specific agent from the list.
- 3. Go to the Phone tab.

Home Security	Agent » Edit Agent » Phone		Û
Agent Groups Agents Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	(Kaoru) Kaoru Minami < Back to agent list General <u>Phone</u> Queues Supervisor CRM & Tab p	ermissions Interactions Experimental Features	
CRM Support Center Outbound Setup Campaigns	Workplace Workplace phone: Workplace SIP URI: Allow agent to change workplace phone Allow agent to change workplace SIP URI 	Outbound Calling Outbound Phone Codes Calling Line ID * Dial Plan VONE	
Broadcast Integration	Agent Access #'s and Voicemail	* can be overridden by Outbound Phone Codes Automatic Call Recording	

4. In Outbound Phone Codes, select the desired code list.

Notes:



-The **Default to Group [GroupName]** shows the agent's group assigned to a code list. The agent is assigned to the list automatically.

-NONE removes the agent from the default code list assignment.

-Outbound Phone Code Lists assigned at the agent level override group level settings.

5. Click Save.

Wallboards overview

The 8x8 Contact Center Wallboard presents real-time metrics of your contact center operations on a desktop, display TV, or monitor on a contact center floor. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can get key statistics to answer questions, such as:

- How productive are my agents?
- What is the number of interactions waiting in a queue?
- What is the current longest waiting interaction in a queue?
- What is the current SLA activity?
- What is the total number of accepted transactions since the beginning of the day?

The metrics provide an insight into queue traffic, longest-waiting interactions in a queue, agent productivity status, and more. Access to these metrics allows agents and supervisors to respond to increased call volume quickly and maintain the service levels of your business.

You can choose from readily-available stats, or generate custom stats to suit your business requirements. Whether as a supervisor or an agent, you can look at the metrics and make instant adjustments to serve your customers better.

Features

The 8x8 Wallboard offers the following benefits:

- Get a bird's-eye view of call center performance, and track agent availability
- Get real-time metrics on contact center operations
- Apply business intelligence to the decision-making process
- Manage customer demand proactively, and reduce waiting time for customers

- Access dozens of pre-calculated stats built out of predefined queries
- Customize stats to suit business needs by building custom queries
- Display data on web browsers, such as Internet Explorer, Chrome, or Firefox
- Configure thresholds against key performance indicators to show alerts for potential or actual slips in performance
- Set up audio and visual alerts on breached thresholds
- Filter data to suit individual needs
- Get metrics in tabular format for easier navigation
- Make use of separate login access to the wallboard

Requirements

8x8

- Wallboard Configuration: Login access to 8x8 Configuration Manager, with permissions to configure Wallboards.
- Wallboard Access: Access to login credentials for 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Configure a wallboard

8x8 Contact Center administrators configure Wallboards in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

Configuring an 8x8 Contact Center Wallboard involves:

- Defining wallboard general properties.
- Specifying desired metrics.
- Defining thresholds for better supervision (optional).
- Selecting skills/queues for which you need metrics.

Once configured, you can run a wallboard with a simple click. Typically, a contact center monitors critical data on agent status.

8x8 Global Cloud Communicatio	ns			STATUS OF	AGENTS			15:51
QUEUE NAME	BUSY	ON BREAK	POST PROCESSING	WORKING OFFLINE	AVAILABLE	LONGEST WAITING	INTERACTIONS WAITING	
Sales Inbound	95	47	61	68	6	00:00:23	15	Â.
Sales Outbound	36	95	32	80	02	00:00:36	7.,	, L
Sales Chat	89	14	40	29	09	00:00:26	21	, L
Sales Email	29	16	22	43	45	00:01:00	9	
袋					(GMT-8) Pacific Time		Powered by 8x8	

Setting up an 8x8 Wallboard is simple and quick. Determine the key metrics for your business, select the data from the readily-available stats or define custom stats, and run the wallboard. With just a few clicks, you are on your way to monitor your contact center performance in real time.

Set up a wallboard

To set up a wallboard:

1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.

2. Click or **Wallboard**.

- 3. Go to the General tab.
- 4. Enter a Name and Description for the wallboard.
- 5. Select the desired time zone from the Time Zone drop-down list.
- 6. Click Save to open the Fields tab.

The current time of the selected time zone appears on the top-right corner of the wallboard.

			MY W	/ALLBOARD							10:1		
Waiting- N-Queue	LONGEST- WAITING	PROCESSING- ALL-ELIGIBLE- QUEUES	POST-PROCESSING- ALL-ELIGIBLE- QUEUES	ENTERED- QUEUE-TODAY	ABANDONED-TODAY	ACCEPTED-TODAY	AVG-HANDLE- TIME-TODAY	AVG-WAIT- TIME-TODAY	MEDIA-TYPE	QUEUE-ID	QUEUE-NAME		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone	104	phone queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone	109	AcmeJetsSupport		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone		yi queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone		Rob backup queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone	108	outbound queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone	110	AcmeJetsOutbound		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	phone		yi outbound		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	vmail	103	vm queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	vmail		jeff vm queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	email	125	Email queue		
	00:00:00						00:00:00	00:00:00	chat		yi chat queue		
											Powered by 8x8		

The GMT-6 Central visible at the bottom indicates the selected time zone.

Specify desired metrics

8x8 Contact Center provides out-of-the-box metrics generated from predefined queries. Additionally, 8x8 Contact Center administrators have the flexibility to generate custom metrics using the available stats. Go to the Wallboard > Fields tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager to see the list of available real-time stats with their brief descriptions. For example, you can track the number of agents waiting for interactions in a queue, or the number of agents processing statuses).

To specify the desired metrics for a wallboard:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Click to edit an existing wallboard.
- 3. Go to the Fields tab.

Home Security	Wallboard » Edit Wallboard	- AcmeJets Sales » Fiel	ds	(
Agent Groups				
Agents	< Back to Wallboard list			
Queues/Skills	General Fields Thresholds Qu	eues URL		
Channels Scripts	Fields List			
CRM	Assign All Custom Field			
Support	Order ID	Display Name	Description	Assigned
Center	1 available	Available	Count of agents eligible to serve this and the	
Outbound	2 alerting	Alerting	Count of agents currently in the alerting stat	
Setup	3 busy	Busy	Count of agents either alerting or processing	
Campaigns	4 working-offline	Working Offline	Count of agents in working-offline state that	
Broadcast	5 on-break	On Break	Count of agents in on-break state that are e	
ntegration	6 waiting-in-queue	Waiting In Queue	Current number of transactions in this queue	
Status Codes	7 longest-waiting	Longest Waiting	Time of the current longest waiting interacti	
Transaction	8 processing-all-eligible-queues	Processing All Eligible Queues	Number of agents eligible to serve this queu	
Codes	9 post-processing-all-eligible-queues		Number of agents eligible to serve this queu	
Outbound Phone Codes	10 entered-queue-today		Number of interactions placed in this queue	
	11 abandoned-today		Number of interactions that exited this queu	
Wallboard	12 accepted-today		Number of interactions accepted by agents s	
Chat design	13 avg-handle-time-today		Average time of processing and post-proces	
	14 avg-wait-time-today		Average time accepted interactions waited i	
	15 media-type		Phone, chat or email	
	16 queue-id		System designated number for this queue	
	17 queue-name		Administrator assigned name for this queue	

4. Select the desired stats from a list of available fields.



Note: You can also generate custom metrics by defining custom fields. See Customize a Wallboard.

- 5. Enter a **Display Name** that replaces the standard field name on the wallboard.
- 6. Drag and drop the fields to change the display order of the fields on the wallboard.
- 7. Save the settings.

Define thresholds

The next step in configuring an 8x8 Contact Center Wallboard is to set up thresholds which alert you in the event of potential or actual slips in performance. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can set up audio and visual alerts in 8x8 Configuration Manager, and vary the alert type based on the severity of the situation. For example, you can set up a threshold alert to monitor the service levels of your contact center. If the performance of a skill or queue falls below the set Service Level Agreement (SLA), you set up an alert so you can look at the activity level of agents belonging to the queue, identify areas for improvement, and act quickly to recover. You can also set up a threshold alert can trigger. You can define thresholds for each media type and configure custom thresholds for each skill.

To define threshold for inbound phone media:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Click to edit an existing wallboard.
- 3. Go to the Threshold tab.
- 4. Select a media type, such as Inbound Phone.
- 5. Select a Field Name.
- 6. To specify a threshold value, enter the required parameters and arguments.
- 7. Select a color from the color chart to highlight a breached threshold.

8. Specify an alert sound pattern.

8x8



9. Click Save to save the threshold settings.

Select queues

In the final step of adding 8x8 Contact Center Wallboard, 8x8 Contact Center administrators must select which queues require metrics. Optionally, they can select predefined thresholds for each queue via 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To select queues:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Click to edit an existing wallboard.
- 3. Go to the Queues tab.

gent Groups gents ueues/Skills	< Back to Wallboard list General Fields	Thresholds Queues	URL					
nannels cripts	Queues List						>	Filter Queues Li
	Assign All			<< < 1	v > >>	20 records	🍪 Configure Sort	🤯 Clear All So
upport enter	Media	Name ^				Threshold Option		Assigned
utbound	Email	Sales Email				Media Default	Ψ	2
tup	Inbound Phone	Sales Inbound				Media Default		✓
ampaigns	Outbound Phone	Sales Outbound				Media Default		~
	Voice Mail	Sales Voicemail				Media Default		✓
tegration	Chat	Support Chat				Media Default		
	Email	Support Email				Media Default		
	Inbound Phone	Support Inbound				Media Default		
	Outbound Phone	Support Outbound				Media Default		
tbound one Codes	Voice Mail	Support Voicemail				Media Default		
allboard								

- 4. Select the queues individually, or click Assign All to pull their stats.
- 5. Specify a desired threshold from the drop-down list of choices.

	<u> </u>
	T
	÷
	//
£	
÷	

. . . .

Note: You must have specified the threshold settings previously.

6. Save the queue selections.

The wallboard configuration is now complete. You are ready to run a wallboard.

Share wallboard authentication

8x8 Contact Center wallboard administrators can bypass the need for login credentials to run a wallboard. Instead, they can click a URL shared by the contact center administrator to launch a wallboard. The URL provides direct access to the wallboard. For details on using login credentials, refer to Run a Wallboard.

To share direct wallboard access:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Click to edit a wallboard.
- 3. Go to the URL tab.

Home Security	Wallboard » Edit Wallboard - AcmeJets Sales » URL	()
Agent Groups		
Agents	< Back to Wallboard list	
Queues/Skills	General Fields Thresholds Queues URL	
Channels		
Scripts	URL https://vcc-vm4b.8x8.com/CM/run_wallboard.php?wallboard.id=1&access_token=6D5F76BE2ABF494FE053254A140AA1B1&tenant=vcctechpubs	
CRM		
Support Center	Revoke and Recreate Share	
Outbound Setup	Share wallboard: AcmeJets Sales	
Campaigns	alex.marcy@acmejets.com	
Broadcast	E-mails	
Integration	URL https://vcc-vm4b.8x8.com/CM/run_wallboard_php?wallboard_id=18	
Status Codes	Use commas () to separate +-mals.	
Transaction Codes	Send Cancel	
Outbound Phone Codes		
Wallboard		
Chat design		

- 4. Click Share.
- 5. Enter the email addresses of wallboard administrators that you like to share the wallboard with. You can see a wallboard URL.
- 6. Click Send.

A message notifies the wallboard URL is shared successfully via email. Wallboard administrators receive an email notification with a link to launch the wallboard.

7. Click Revoke and Recreate to retire the URL and create a new one.

If an email recipient uses the revoked link, a message indicates the URL is invalid.



8x8

Customize a wallboard

8x8 Contact Center administrators customize a wallboard via 8x8 Configuration Manager based on their business requirements:

- Set up custom queries and generate custom stats.
- Set up custom thresholds.
- Brand your contact center's wallboard by adding your company's logo.
- Use a custom font and sound for your wallboard display.

Customize Metrics

If you need more stats than what is readily available, you can build custom fields by defining custom queries. For example, if you wish to track agents unable to answer interactions at a given time, you can define a custom field as follows:

Number of agents Busy = Offered + Processing + Post-processing

To define a custom field:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Click to add a new wallboard, or to edit an existing one.
- 3. Go to the **Fields** tab.
- 4. Click or Custom Field.
- 5. Enter the custom field details:

Field Name	Description
Display Name	The custom field name that is displayed on the wallboard.
Description	A brief description of the metrics.
Field Type	Select a data type from a choice of Number, Seconds, and Percent.

Field Name	Description
	Note: The data type of the custom field must match the data type of deriving fields.
Field Definition	Based on the requirements:
	1. Select from the available fields drop-down or enter a number value.
	2. Select an operator (-,+, -, *, or /).
	3. Select another field or enter a number value.
	Note: You can add any number of arguments.

Customize Threshold

Within each media type, you can set up a custom threshold for each queue to suit your requirements. If the waiting time for an interaction in a queue exceeds two minutes, set up a first level threshold alert. If the time exceeds 3 minutes, set up an emergency alert. On breaching thresholds, the wallboard gives corresponding alerts.

Customizing threshold is a two-step process:

- 1. Set up a custom threshold with desired values and alerts. Time values are entered in seconds.
- 2. Apply this threshold to desired queues.

On running a wallboard with custom threshold, the alerts trigger on breaching the threshold for the selected queues.

To set up a custom threshold:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Click to edit the desired wallboard.
- 3. Go to the Threshold tab.

4. Click or **Custom Threshold**.

Home	Wallboard »	Edit Wallboa	rd - Acme	Jets Sales » Th	resh	olds			()
		Add Custon	n Thresho	ld				×	
	< Back to Wallboard lis								•
	General Fields	* Name :	ongest Waiting	Soun	d :	Chime		Play Audio	
Channels Scripts	Thresholds List	Get rules from :		Cop	y	Note: If any of	the threshold rules is	match this sound will be played.	> Filter Thresholds List
	Custom Threshold		♥ ₪	Longest Waiting	Greate	- 44	120 🖌	Time values	e Sort 🥳 Clear All Sort
Support Center	Name	Field Name		Background Color :	#d6c10		120	must be entered in seconds	Threshold
	Inbound Phone	Available	â 🗇	Longest Waiting	Greate	r than	180		0
	Outbound Phone	Alerting		Background Color :					Ø
Campaigns	Email	Busy		Background color .	#115000		_		P
	Voice Mail	Working Offline							D
Integration	Chat	On Break							0
		Waiting In Queue							
		Longest Waiting							
		Processing All Eligible	Q						
Outbound Phone Codes								Reset	
Wallboard									
Chat design				Save		Cancel			

- 5. Enter a **Name** for your custom threshold.
- 6. Click a Field Name, then specify a value in the parameters.
- 7. Select a color from the color chart for **Background Color**.
- 8. Select a **Sound** alert from the drop-down list.
- 9. Add more fields as desired.
- 10. Click Save.

To apply the threshold to a queue:

- 1. Go to **Wallboard > Queues**.
- 2. Select the desired queue.
- 3. Select the custom threshold from the Threshold Option drop-down.

Brand Your Contact Center Wallboard

Brand your contact center wallboard by adding your company logo.

To brand your wallboard with your company logo:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Home**.
- 2. Go to the Profile tab.
- 3. In the **Tenant Logo** area, upload your company logo.
- 4. Save the changes.

Customize Wallboard Display

You can control the font size of the wallboard display, or mute the audio alerts on your wallboard.

To change the control settings:

1. Run your wallboard.

8x8

QUEUE NAME	BUSY	ON BREAK	POST PROCESSING	WORKING OFFLINE	AVAILABLE	LONGEST WAITING	INTERACTIONS WAITING	
Sales Inbound	95	47:	61	68	6	00:00:23	15	
Sales_Outbound	36	95	32	180	[,] 02	00:00:36	7)	, È
Sales_Chat	89	14	40	`29	109	00:00:26	21	, t
SalesEmail	29	16 [.]	22	43	45	00:01:00	9	, È
¢ Settings	;						(back to Wallboard liet) 🗲	×
Mute all Font + size _								

- 2. Click the tools at the corner of the wallboard screen.
- 3. Use + and to increase or decrease the display font size.
- 4. Select Mute all to mute the sound.

Run a wallboard

8x8 Contact Center administrators can run a wallboard from the Wallboard tab while logged in to 8x8 Configuration Manager, or log in to the wallboard directly and select to run a wallboard from there. The login credentials for 8x8 Configuration Manager also allow direct access to the wallboard.

Requirements

- Login credentials: You must have 8x8 Configuration Manager's login credentials to access wallboards.
- Browser requirements: Google Chrome, by default, blocks pop-ups and limits you to run a single wallboard at a time. To run multiple wallboards simultaneously, in your Chrome settings, select Allow all sites to show pop-ups.

To access a wallboard via the Configuration Menu:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Wallboard.
- 2. Select a wallboard, and click

The wallboard runs in a new browser tab.

To access a wallboard via direct wallboard access:

1. In the 8x8 Configuration Manager login screen, select Wallboard Access.

8-8			
Global Cloud Communications		Enter:	Configuration Manager 🔹 🔻
Global Clobal Communications	Login		Configuration Manager
	Login		Wallboard Access
	login		
	password		
	Remember me		
	Forgot Password?		
	Login		
	Version: 9.6.0		
	© 2018 8x8, Inc.		
			Powered by 8x8
Release: 47393			0.0

2. Enter your 8x8 Configuration Manager login credentials, and click Login.

The Wallboard launches and displays the list of configured wallboards.



Note: The number of wallboards you can run simultaneously depends on your subscription.

3. Select a wallboard, and click Run.

As a wallboard administrator, you can bypass the need for login credentials to run a wallboard. For details, refer to Share Wallboard Authentication.

Note: A Chrome limitation prevents 8x8 Contact Center Wallboards from playing the alert sound notification when the threshold is met. To work around it:



- 1. Open a new Chrome browser and enter chrome://flags/#autoplay-policy.
- 3. Press enter. The Autoplay policy option appears.
- 2. Select No user gesture is required from the drop-down list.

4. Press **RELAUNCH NOW**. The sound is audible the next time you relaunch Google Chrome. See Chrome Autoplay Policy Changes for more information.

8x8

Brand your wallboard

Using 8x8 Configuration Manager, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can brand their contact center wallboard by adding their company logo.

To brand your wallboard with your company logo:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Home**.
- 2. Go to the Profile tab.

Home Home » Profile Security Agent forus Summary Frodie Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Agent's Idle Time Class Summary Frodie Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Agent's Idle Time Class Summary Frodie Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Agent's Idle Time Chansis Scripts Ciff0) Greenwich Mean Time, No Davlight Saving Time Spam threshold level Sum Black List " Curbuid Sector Pedult Agent Diplay Name Pagent' Pagent' Curbuid Allow Agents to Change Diplay Name Pagent' Spam White List " Cransaction Chable Sto Change Screenpop Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Spam White List " Chable Schent SUP face setting change validation @ Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Tomat - Logo Check is add yot' Chable Schent Sto Change Screenpop Enable Agents to combigure waring message popul The file of the animage/page, gr.g. of or nep) with a ste of less than Imb. It cannot Chable Schent Schent Space Schent	8x8			🐣 Robin Shasta (ryandemo01	01) My Profile Co-browsing	Help Logout
Lists Summary Profile Audio Files Schedules Dial Plans Agent's Lole Time Channels Singhs Ciffshill Ciffshill Singhs	Security	Home » Profile				0
Support Center Tenant Label ryandemo0101 Outbound Default Agent Display Name ''Agent'' Staps Default Agent Display Name ''Agent'' Campaigns Broadcast I Allow Agents to Change Display Name Som White List T Campaigns Broadcast I Allow Agents to Change Display Name Som White List T Campaigns Broadcast I Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Integration Status Codes I Enable Exhanced Ringtone Integration Codes I Enable Exhanced Ringtone Integration Cottourd I Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality Tenable Agent's My Recording searchs Chat design Enable Agent's My Recording Functionality The file must be an imaget/gs, png. gf or implivith a size of less than 1mb, it cannot exceed 326(w) x66(h) pixels. Wallboard Enable agents to return to available status after pulling email Enable Queue/Skill groups Phone Connection Mode Pone Connection Mode Pestet all Phone Connection Mode Pastistent Connection Mode Reset all	Users Queues/Skills Channels Scripts	Other Time Zone (Edit) (GMT-0) Greenwich Mean Time, British Sum	imer Time	pam threshold level 5		× ^
Seture Reset all agents Span White List # Campaigs 4 Allow Agents to Change Display Name Span White List # Broadcast 4 Allow Agents to Change Crempop Span White List # Integration 4 Allow Agents to Reject Interactions Span White List # Status Codes 6 Enable SSL for Agent GUI Click ta ad your Codes 6 Enable SSL for Agent GUI Click ta ad your Codes 6 Enable Chanced Ringtone Click ta add your Outbound 6 Enable Agent's With Recording Functionality Tenant - Logo Chat design 6 Enable Status Agents to configure warning message popuo The file must be an imaget/gp. png. gf or smp) with a size of less than tmb. It cannot exceed 325(n) x65(t) pixels. Wallboard 6 Enable Gaueur/Skill groups Phone Connection Mode Phone Connection Mode Persistent Reset all Callow Agents to Change FAQ as HTML Default Connection Mode Reset all	Support	Tenant Label	ryandemo0101			- 11
Campaigns ² Allow Agents to Change Display Name ² Allow Agents to Rock Interactions ² Anabe SSL for Agent GUI ² Enable Enhanced Ringtone ² Enable Enhance Enhance ² Enhance Enhance ² Enhanconce Enhance ² Enhance ²		Default Agent Display Name	0			
† separate email addresses with comma (.)	Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard	Allow Agents to Change Screenpop Allow Agents to Reject Interactions Change SS, for Agent CUI Enable S, for Agent CUI Enable Analysis for Agent Support S	ty orking agents essage popup	Click to add your company logo here Choose Files No file chosen The file must be an image(j.ge, ong, gif or a mp) with a exceed 325(w) x 65(h) pixels.	👻 Reset all	

- 3. In the Tenant Logo area, upload your company logo.
- 4. Save the changes.

When you run a wallboard, your company logo appears on the wallboard.

Chat overview

With 8x8 Contact Center, administrators can improve customer engagement by proactively offering web chat with live agents. You decide when and where to offer a chat based on web page hover time or your organization's chat capacity. Customer information from the web interaction can be used to drive screen pops to the agent to make the interaction as efficient as possible.

In 8x8 Agent Console, chat interactions provide a means of responding in real time to customer inquiries. Depending on the configuration of your contact center, the contact center's chat access page can be configured to either allow or require a customer to supply an account number or other information to identify themselves before beginning the chat interaction. 8x8 Contact Center uses this information to look up our Local CRM for a matching customer record. When you accept the new chat session, 8x8 Agent Console opens the matching customer details record. If the customer has not supplied any identifying information before beginning the chat, you can use the chat window to ask the customer for



the information you need to create a new customer or case record.

- A (Legacy Implementation): The chat channel was implemented using Support Center functionality. The Support Center contained a link to the chat channel, which in turn could be hosted on your web page. We have retired Support Center functionality, but providing new tools and interfaces for Chat via our new implementation.
- C (New Implementation): We offer chat, SMS, and social media channels with better chat workflow and design. Host your contact center's chat channel on your web page, independent of Support Center. You can design a proactive web chat interface according to your company's requirements, build a chat script to define a logical workflow for your chat channel, and finally, generate a code snippet to be placed in your website. For details about chat, see our documents for the Embedded Chat Channels. To take advantage of social media to service customers, such as Facebook and Twitter, see our guide about Social Media Integration.

The chat interactions directed from A or C implementation flow through the specified 8x8 Contact Center chat queue, and then to the available contact center agents.

- B (Legacy Implementation): Agents can process a single chat at a time, the traditional way, on 8x8 Agent Console.
- D (New Implementation): Agents can process multiple chats concurrently. Agents can process up to six customer chats concurrently, if configured by the administrator.

Features

- Customers can enter a web chat with live agents.
- Decide when and where to offer a chat based on your company's need and the resources.
- Interact with customers efficiently by pulling out their information on a screen pop.
- Respond in real time to customer inquiries.
- Allow customers to supply account information to identify themselves before beginning the chat interaction.
- Look up the Local CRM and open a matching customer record using the customer's account information.
- Use the chat window to ask customers information for a new customer or case record.
- Handle customer chats in any of the supported languages of agents, or use the automatic translation tool.
- Associate each 8x8 Contact Center agent with one primary and one or more secondary languages of fluency.

Multi-chats (multiple concurrent chats)

Multi-chats or multiple concurrent chats feature in 8x8 Contact Center allows an agent to handle up to six concurrent chats with customers at any time. There is no limit on the number of concurrent chats among agents. For details, see our content on how to configure multi-chats.



Multilingual support for chat

In multilingual support for chat, customers can choose to chat in one of the supported language by 8x8 Contact Center. Agents can handle customer chats in any of the supported languages they speak, or use the automatic translation tool. Each 8x8 Contact Center agent is associated with one primary and one or more secondary languages of fluency. For details see our content on how to configure multilingual support for chat. The multilingual chat flow can be represented as follows:



WCAG 2.1 support for chat

Websites, tools, and technologies are designed and developed so that people with disabilities can use them. Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) offer recommendations on how to increase the usability of your website, and how to make it accessible to people with disabilities. Web accessibility encompasses all disabilities that affect access to the Web, including:

- auditory
- cognitive
- neurological
- physical
- speech
- visual



Note: WCAG Compliance is limited to 8x8 Contact Center web chat only. All other features and applications in the 8x8 Contact Center are not yet WCAG compliant.

To comply with WCAG 2.1, 8x8 Contact Center introduces enhancements to the web chat experience, thus allowing 8x8 customers to be WCAG 2.1 AA compliant. Learn more¹

For details on how to make your chat WCAG compliant, see our content on chat design enhancements for WCAG 2.1 compliance.

This chapter involves:

- Understanding a case study for embedded chat design
- Designing and configuring embedded chat
- Configuring for web content accessibility
- Creating a chat script
- Configuring multi-chats
- Handling multilingual chats
- Enabling Co-browsing via chat

¹(Learn more about the compliance levels > Level **A**: Minimal compliance; Level **AA**: Acceptable compliance; Level **AAA**: Optimal compliance)

Case study - embedded chat design

Bob is the 8x8 Contact Center administrator at the AcmeJets contact center. He wants to create an online chat channel to support website visitors. He anticipates the website traffic to be heavy during peak hours, and therefore, the agents should be able to handle multiple chats to meet the demand. He plans to collect some identity information, such as customer names and account numbers, to identify existing customers so that agents can process interactions efficiently. This information can be collected from the customers even before they are connected to the agents, allowing agents to serve them faster and better.

To complete this plan, Bob needs to:

- Create a Chat Form via 8x8 Configuration Manager to place on the company's website in order to invite the customers to chat.
- Create a chat script to define the chat workflow.
- Enable AcmeJets agents to process multiple chats with customers and other agents on the same tenant. He knows
 that, by default, agents can handle only one chat at a time.
- Train his agents how to use Multi-Chat.



The following diagram represents configuration tasks Bob must do to get started with this project:

Here is what Bob has in mind for the agents:



To plan his work better, Bob has prepared the following checklist:

Task	Description	How to Complete	Completed
1	Create an online chat button to use during the business oper- ational hours.	Create an online chat button	N/A
2	Create an offline chat button to direct visitors during offline hours.	Create an offline chat button	N/A
3	Create a chat invitation to proactively invite website visitors to a chat.	Design a chat invitation	N/A
4	Create a chat form to gather information from a customer before initiating a chat.	Design a chat form	~
5	Create an Offline form to send an email message during chat offline hours.	Design a chat form	~
6	Create a chat window to serve as the interface between the customer and the agent during the chat.	Design a chat window	N/A
7	Design the chat flow.	Create a chat script	~
8	Enable agents to have more than one chat.	Configure Multi-Chat or number of concurrent chats	~

Task	Description	How to Complete	Completed
9	Train agents to use Multi-Chat.	Handle multiple chats in 8x8 Agent Console	~

Configure embedded chat design

The chat functionality in 8x8 Contact Center is now enhanced with better chat workflow and design. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can design a custom chat to match their corporate requirements and create a custom chat script to control the chat flow using 8x8 Configuration Manager.

A chat workflow can be represented as follows:

- 1. A customer visits a website.
- A chat invitation pops up, proactively inviting the visitor to chat. OR

The visitor clicks a chat button on the website to initiate a chat.

- 3. The visitor is then presented with a pre-chat survey form to collect some preliminary information.
- 4. The visitor fills and submits the information. Based on the information submitted, the system checks if it belongs to an existing customer.
- 5. An agent accepts the chat interaction, and begins a live chat session.
- 6. When the chat channel is offline, the visitor is presented with an option to send an email message using an offline form.
- 7. If the visitor drops out of a chat process, then the chat interaction enters a default termination.



The following image shows the chat script diagram:

8x8 Embedded Chat offers chat visual block elements used on your website for a chat interaction:

- Button: A chat button that initiates a chat interaction
- Invitation: A chat invitation that pops proactively, inviting website visitors for a chat
- Form: A pre-chat survey form that gathers customer information
- Window: A chat window used by the end user to chat with an agent

Configuring Embedded Chat Design in 8x8 Configuration Manager involves:

- Designing a chat button
- Designing a chat invitation
- Designing a pre-chat survey form
- Designing a chat window

To configure Embedded Chat Design, log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager and go to the Chat Design tab. You are ready to design visual elements for chat on your website.

Design a chat button

8x8

A chat button in 8x8 Contact Center is an interface for a customer to initiate a chat. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can design a chat button to be offline or online using 8x8 Configuration Manager. An online chat button can be used during the business operational hours for chat, while an offline button can be used to direct visitors during offline hours. Chat design offers default offline and online chat buttons for use. To customize a chat button, you can create a new button from scratch, or copy a default button and make the desired changes.

To create an online chat button:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Chat Design.
- 2. While in the **Button** tab, click $\stackrel{(\textcircled{})}{\longrightarrow}$ or **Online**.
- 3. Enter a Name and Description for the new chat button.
- 4. Browse and upload an image for the button.



Note: The file size must not exceed 1 MB.

8×8		& eu3vocqeone u3vocqeon	ne (eu3vocqeo	one01) My Profi	le Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security Agent Groups	Chat design » Edit online button						
Users Queues/Skills	< Back to button list Button Invitation Form Window						
Channels Scripts	* Name 8x8 online custorn_1		Description	8x8 online default I	outton]
CRM Outbound Setup	Button layout						
Campaigns Broadcast							
Integration Status Codes Transaction	Choose Files No file chosen						
Codes Outbound Phone Codes	* Button label Chat now						
Wallboard Chat design							
		Save	Cancel				

- 5. Enter the name for the **Button label**. This field mandates a label for the button that complies with WCAG. For the visually impaired, the screen reader reads out the label for better comprehension.
- 6. Click Save to create a new chat button.

To create an offline chat button:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open **Chat Design**.
- 2. While in the **Button** tab, click $\textcircled{\oplus}$ or **Offline**.
- 3. Enter a Name and Description for the new offline chat button.
- 4. Browse and upload an image for the button.



Note: The file size must not exceed 1 MB.

Home Security	Chat design » Add offline button	(j
Agent Groups		
Agents	< Back to button list	
Queues/Skills	Button Invitation Form Window	
Channels		
Scripts	* Name Support Chat (Offline) * Description Support Chat is currently offline	
CRM	Button layout	
Support	Durton rayout	
Center	Send your message	
Outbound Setup		
-		
Campaigns		
Broadcast	Choose Files No file chosen	
Integration	The file must be an image and can not exceed 1MB.	
Status Codes	* Button label	
Transaction Codes		
Outbound		
Phone Codes	Save Cancel	
Wallboard		
Chat design		

5. Enter the name for the **Button label**. This field mandates a label for the button that complies with WCAG. For the visually impaired, the screen reader reads out the label for better comprehension.

6. Click Save to create a new chat offline button.

Design a chat invitation

A chat invitation in 8x8 Contact Center serves to proactively invite website visitors to a chat. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can program and present the chat invitation to their website visitors after visitors have spent some time browsing the website. 8x8 Contact Center chat design offers a default chat invitation. To create a custom chat invitation via 8x8 Configuration Manager, you can build a new invitation from scratch, or copy a default invitation and make the desired changes.

To create a custom chat invitation:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Chat Design.
- 2. Go to the Invitation tab.
- 3. Click or Add new invitation.
- 4. Enter a Name and Description for the new chat button.
- Add or change the user interface elements of the invitation by adding Window title, Button label, and Message. The chat invitation preview is shown.
- 6. Select to **Use default colors**. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged such as the colorblind.





Note: Users for whom WCAG compliance is a non-priority, may select colors of their choice and overwrite the default colors.

- 7. Choose the Logo customization file to select the logo of your choice for your chat invitation.
- 8. Enter a **Logo label**. This field mandates a label for the logo that complies with WCAG. For the visually impaired, the screen reader reads out the label for better comprehension.
- 9. Click Save when you are satisfied with look and feel of the invitation form.

Design a chat form

8x8 Contact Center offers two types of chat forms: pre-chat survey forms and offline forms.

- A pre-chat survey form serves to gather information from a chat user before initiating a chat. Using the form, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can collect credentials, such as account number or case number, from an existing user. This information can be used to search for existing customer records in the Local CRM and present it when an agent accepts the chat.
- An offline form presents the option to send an email message during the chat's offline hours.

You can use the default form or create a custom form. To create a custom form, you can create a new form from scratch, or copy the default form and make the desired changes.

Pre-Chat Survey Form

A pre-chat survey form can include questions with open-ended or preset answers. To design a pre-chat form, you must both add survey questions and design the visual details of the form.

To create a custom pre-chat form:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Chat Design.
- 2. Go to the Form tab.
- 3. Click or **Pre-Chat**.

Autocomplete () Drag and drop to cha	inge the display order of questions inside a form.	fariable	Add	Format	
			Add		
Autocomplete ()	2				
Autocomplete ()	2				
* Variable	 Include a separator on the end 				
	Mandatory Include a separator on the end				
 Question 	Enter question text (max. 125 chars)				
	(only one CRM field is allowed per form)				
Format		*			
Survey					
* Name	prechat		* Description	prechat	3000 1 2 300
Button In	witation Form Window				Step 1 > Ste

4. Enter Name and Description.
- 5. Select a Format from the following choices:
 - Translation: Indicates a language choice question. It offers customers the languages that are supported in the chat, such as English, Russian, and German. You can select multiple language(s) for the customer to choose from, but only one of them can be set as default. When you select a language as default, that language is pre-selected in the pre-chat form offered to the customer. To make the browser language the priority language in the pre-chat form, you must Overwrite default with browser language.

Chat des	sign » Add pre-chat form			0
< Back to form Button	Invitation Form Window			
* Name	AcmeJets Pre-chat		Description The pre-chat form to get customer's information	Step 1 > Step
Survey Format	Translation		Available translation Set as default	
Question	change the display order of questions inside a form.		Spaniske Spanisk Spanisk Freuch Ortupuses Overvinte default with browser language Who torske unginged in out available for Vanisation, effect language above set will be used. Add	in the chait or you raidean Nau 12 data. Kana - Ka
M Question		Identifier	Format The boxe of	er language in lipschiss d'hu linguage Start chating sevente te lie.
				Cancel Next >>

	Enter your selection. Max: 127 chars.
	Name *
	Age
Customer has to select a language from the list when	Gender
there is no default language set, and the browser	E-mail address *
overwrite option is not selected either.	Language *
	Start chating

When the browser language is not available for translation, the default language is used. If there is no default language and no browser overwrite, the customer has to select a language from the drop-down list.

For example, if the pre-chat default language is Spanish, and the customer's browser is also in Spanish, there is no need for the customer to select the language. However, if the pe-chat default language is set as Spanish, but the browser is in French, French becomes the new default language. If French language is not available for translation, Spanish will remain the default language.

• CRM field: Select from the available default or custom Local CRM fields.



Note: You are allowed to add only one CRM field and one translation question in a pre-chat survey form. Once you add the questions, the option is disabled in the Formats list. You can change or edit the questions at any time.

- **Open ended**: Add an open-ended question, such as <Enter your nickname>.
- Single answer: This is a multiple-choice question. You must provide choices and allow the chat user to select a single answer.
- 6. Enter the **Question** that will be added to the form.
- 7. Select if the question is Mandatory.

- 8. Select the option to Include a separator at the end.
- 9. Enter an **Autocomplete** from the drop-down list, adding an autocomplete attribute for each question on the form makes it easier to fill out forms and assists users with cognitive disabilities. It helps screen readers to explain what a specific question is about.
- 10. Click Add to add the question to the survey form.
- 11. Repeat the above steps to add more questions.
- 12. Click Next.

The second part of the **Form** page configuration requires you to specify the visual details of the form.

Chat design	» Edit pre-chat form			info
< Back to form list Button Invitat	tion Form Window			
				Step 1 > Step 2 🔔
Label		Preview		_
* Window title	Support		🕞 Support 🛛 🗙	
* Button label	Send		Please answer the questions below to be connected	
Introduction text	Please answer the questions below to be connected with an agent.		with an agent.	
introduction text	ağara.		What is your Account number *	
Color				
Use default colors 8x8 offers a default color standards when customiz	theme that is compliant with Web Content Accessibility Guidelines. Please consider the relevant accessibility		full name *	
 Window background 			email address *	
* Border	#525252			
Logo customization				
Ch Ch	No file chosen		Send	
The file must be an image	e and can not exceed 200kB. for the proportion of 100x30 pixels.		powered by 8x8 Inc.	
	aport			
			Cancel << Previous	Save

- 13. Add the desired visual requirements, such as window title, background color, and font color.
- 14. Select Use default colors for WCAG. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged.
- 15. Enter a value for **Logo label**. The new field requiring a logo label has been added for screen readers to comply with WCAG.
- 16. Click Save. Your custom pre-chat survey form is now ready.

Offline Form

The offline form is meant to interface with visitors who wish to send a message when the chat channel is offline.

To create a custom offline form:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Chat Design.
- 2. Go to the Form tab.
- 3. Click or **Offline**.

8x8

4. Enter Name and Description.

8x8

- 5. Select a Format from the following choices:
 - CRM field: Select from the available default or custom Local CRM fields.
 - Open ended: Add an open-ended question, such as <Enter your nickname>.
 - Single answer: This is a multiple-choice question. You must provide choices and allow the chat user to select a single answer.
- 6. Select if the question is Mandatory.
- 7. Select the option to Include a separator at the end.
- 8. Enter an **Autocomplete** from the drop-down list, adding an autocomplete attribute for each question on the form makes it easier to fill out forms and assists users with cognitive disabilities. It helps screen readers to explain what a specific question is about.
- 9. Click Add to add the question to the survey form.
- 10. Repeat the above steps to add more questions.
- 11. Click Next.

The second part of the **Form** page configuration requires you to specify the visual details of the form.

- 12. Add the desired visual requirements, such as window title, background color, and font color.
- 13. Select Use default colors for WCAG. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged.
- 14. Enter a value for **Logo label**. The new field requiring a logo label has been added for screen readers to comply with WCAG.
- 15. Click Save.

Design a chat window

The 8x8 Contact Center chat window is the interface between a customer and the agent during the chat. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can use the default chat window or create a custom window. To create a custom window, you can create a new form from scratch, or copy the default form and make the desired changes.

To create a custom chat window:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Chat Design.
- 2. Go to the Window tab.
- 3. Click or Add New Window.

C hank under der Ausschler der Ausschle	Button In						
Like Prove *Works Consults Support	News 1						
Like Prove *Works Consults Support							
*Notice the Support Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr Corr C	name [8x8 chat window custom_2		* Description	8x8 chat window	v custom	
Core Control	abel			Pre	view		
Core Constructions Constructi	Window title	Acmelets Support				Armelets Sunnort	
Description Description Description Description Description Description Description Description Text Plane Plane Electription Description Description Description Description	Color						
powerd by full Inc.	It offers a default o severit accessibility Window backgro Text .ogo customizatio 	color theme that is compliant with Web Cr standards when costonizing the color th at1212121	eme. Border #52525	2		Lorem pound obler sit whet Lorem pound obler at whet Lorem pound obler at whet Lorem pound obler at whet Type a message	

- 4. Enter Name and Description.
- 5. Enter a value for Window title.
- Select Offer the Co-browsing request into the Chat window.
 Notice that Start Co-browsing session appears in the Chat window. For details regarding Co-browsing, see our content on Co-browsing via Chat.
- 7. Select Use default colors for WCAG. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged.
- 8. Select a file for Logo customization.
- 9. Enter a value for **Logo label**. The new field requiring a logo label has been added for screen readers to comply with WCAG.

10. Click Save.

8x8

You have defined all the Chat Visual Block (CVB) elements. The next step is to add them in a chat script to complete the workflow.

8x8 web chat complies with WCAG 2.1

When websites, tools, and technologies are designed and developed so that people with disabilities can use them, they are considered web accessible. Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) offer recommendations on how to increase the usability of your website, and how to make it accessible to people with disabilities. Web accessibility encompasses all disabilities that affect access to the Web, including:

- auditory
- cognitive
- neurological
- physical
- speech
- visual

Prior to this release, 8x8 Contact Center customers who are WCAG 2.1 compliant were restricted from using the web chat solution due to the lack of compliance. In this release, we have enhanced the 8x8 Contact Center web chat experience to comply with the WCAG 2.1 guidelines allowing better readability, navigability, and interactivity with our web chat elements.



Note: WCAG Compliance is limited to 8x8 Contact Center web chat only. All other features and applications in the 8x8 Contact Center are not yet WCAG compliant.

To comply with WCAG 2.1, 8x8 Contact Center introduces enhancements to the web chat experience, thus allowing 8x8 customers to be WCAG 2.1 AA compliant. Learn more¹

Features

- Better and readable user-interface (UI) even on aggressive zoom
- Ability to navigate via keyboard tab/enter

¹(Learn more about the compliance levels > Level **A**: Minimal compliance; Level **AA**: Acceptable compliance; Level **AAA**: Optimal compliance)

- Compliance with screen readers
- Color palette with good contrast ratio and color-blind friendly

These enhancements are designed to improve usability for all and accessibility of content for the disabled. For example, a field with an asterisk is called out as mandatory by screen readers. Adding an alternate text for an image informs the user, who may be visually impaired what the image is about.

Enhancements in Chat Design for WCAG compliance

As an admin of 8x8 Contact Center, you will notice enhancements while designing the following web chat elements:

Chat button: A chat button in 8x8 Contact Center is an interface element for a customer to initiate a chat. While designing a chat button, the new Button Label field now mandates a label for the button. For the visually impaired, the screen reader reads out the label for better comprehension. For example, adding a button label Chat now, informs users that clicking the button initiates a chat session.

8×8		Leu3vocqeone u3vocqeone (eu3vocqeo	ne01) My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	Chat design » Edit online button					
Agent Groups						
Users	< Back to button list					
Queues/Skills Channels	Button Invitation Form Window					
Channels Scripts	* Name 8x8 online custom_1	* Description	8x8 online default butt	00		
CRM	Button layout					
Outbound Setup	Chat now!					
Campaigns						
Broadcast						
Integration Status Codes	Choose Files No file chosen					
Transaction	The file must be an image and can not accessed 14/5	_				
Codes	* Button label Chat now					
Outbound Phone Codes						
Wallboard						
Chat design						
		Save Cancel				

Invitation: The chat invitation form which invites website visitors to initiate a chat, has now introduced default colors compliant with WCAG. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged such as the color-blind. Additionally, a new field requiring a logo label has been added for screen readers.

÷	<u> </u>
÷	—
÷	÷
÷	
÷	
i	
÷	
÷	1-1-1-1-1
÷	<u> </u>
÷	
÷	

Note: Users for whom WCAG compliance is a non-priority, may select colors of their choice and overwrite the default colors.

Charles de la	teres Andred Providence				
Chat des	ign » Add invitation				
< Back to invitat	ion list				
Button	Invitation Form Window				
* Name	Chat-invite		 Description 	Enter invitation description (max. 255 chars)	
Label			Preview		
* Window title	Chat			🕞 Chat	×
* Button label	Submit				
Message	We are here to help you. Would you like to chat with one of our agents?			We are here to help you. Would you li chat with one of our agents?	ke to
Color					
Use default of bot offers a default Guidelines. Please customizing the co * Window backg * Border	color theme that is compliant with Web Content Accessibility consider the relevant accessibility standards when for theme.			Submit	end inc.
Logo customiza	tion				
The file muss be an * Logo label	Choose Files No file chosen image and can not exceed 200k8.				
		Save	Cancel		

Pre-chat form: Using a pre-chat survey form, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can collect basic information such as name, email, account number or case number, from an existing user. This information can be used to search for existing customer records and present it when an agent accepts the chat. While designing this form, you can now add an autocomplete attribute for each question on the form. The autocomplete attribute makes it easier to fill out forms, assisting users with cognitive disabilities. It helps screen readers to explain what a specific question is about.

* Name	prechat		 Description 	prechat	
Survey					
Format		*			
	(only one CRM field is allowed per form)				
Question	Enter question text (max. 125 chars)				
	Mandatory				
	Include a separator on the end				
Variable					
Autocomplete	0	*			
			Add		
	change the display order of questions inside a form.				
M Question	V	riable		Format	

Additionally, the form uses default colors compliant with WCAG. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged. A new field requiring a logo label has been added for screen readers.

8×8			۵	eu3vccqeone u3vccqe	one (eu3vccqeone01)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Help	Logout
Home Security	Chat design	» Edit pre-chat fo	rm						0
Agent Groups									
Users	< Back to form list								
Queues/Skills	Button Invitati	on Form Window							
Channels								Step	1 > Step 2
Scripts	Label			Preview					
CRM	* Window title	Acmelets Support			Acmelets 5	unport	×		
Outbound Setup	* Button label	Chat now]		opport	~		
Campaigns	Introduction text	Enter introduction text (max.)			Enter your email	ddress *			
Broadcast									
Integration	Color								
Status Codes	Use default colors								
Transaction Codes	BxB offers a default color to the relevant accessibility st	heme that is compliant with Web Co andards when customizing the color	ntent Accessibility Guidelines. Please I theme.	consider					
Outbound	* Window background		#212121						
Phone Codes	* Border	#525252							
Wallboard	Logo customization					hat now!			
Chat design		Iose Files No file chosen			6				
	The file must be an image The image will be resized f	and can not exceed 200k8. or the proportion of 100x30 pixels.					powered by Bx8 Inc.	J	
	* Logo label logo								
						Cancel	<< Previous		Save

See the image below for better color contrast and helper text on the form.

Z Zoonou support chat X
Please provide additional information, so we can find the best Zoonou rep to assist you.
Name •
This field is mandatory.
Where do you need help? *
⊖ ui/ux
O Dev
⊖ QE
This field is mandatory.
Select your language
Chat now!
powered by 8×8 Inc.

Chat Window: The 8x8 Contact Center chat window is the interface between a customer and an agent during the chat. Customers use this chat window to communicate with agents. This window now uses default colors compliant with WCAG. The default colors are designed to help the visually challenged. A new field requiring a logo label has been added for screen readers.



Note: WCAG Compliance is limited to 8x8 Contact Center web chat only. All other features and applications in the 8x8 Contact Center are not WCAG compliant.

Chat des	sign » Edit window					Ū
< Back to winde Button * Name	low list Invitation Form <u>Window</u> 8x8 chat window custorn_2	_	* Description	8x8 chat window	w custom	
Label * Window title	Acmelets Support		Pres	iew.	C Acme)ets Support	
relevant accessibil * Window back * Text Logo customiza	alt color theme that is compliant with Web Co- lify standards when customizing the color the ground #FFFFFF #212121	Border #525252	se consider the		Lange span dalor at animat Lange span dalor at animat Lange span dalor at animat Lange span dalor at animat Type a message 2009 passwidg da lac	
			Save	Cancel		



Note: Existing 8x8 Contact Center users who have implemented the web chat solution, will need to review and enhance the chat design elements for WCAG compliance, and republish.

Create a chat script

An 8x8 Contact Center chat script defines the path of a chat interaction from its initiation until it is accepted by an agent. Using chat scripts, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can define how to present a chat, when to present it, what information they need to collect before initiating the chat, and which queue to direct the chat interaction to. They can create a new script and assign it to any number of channels. Chat scripts are grouped under Scripts > Chat in 8x8 Configuration Manager. The enhanced chat script allows you to design and control the chat flow in a contact center. To see the chat workflow diagram, refer to Chat Overview.

Let's say Bob, a contact center administrator at AcmeJets, wants to define a chat workflow that allows website visitors to initiate a chat with friendly representatives from his company. To enable a smooth chat flow, Bob must create a chat script that enables the following workflow:

 Allow web page visitors during business hours to click the chat button and initiate a chat. OR

Invite visitors to chat once they have spent some time on the page.

- 2. When they click the chat button, present a short pre-chat form that helps identify the customer's interests.
- 3. Once the customer submits the pre-chat form, direct the chat interaction to an appropriate chat queue.
- 4. If the wait is too long, allow the customer to skip waiting in the queue and send an offline message.
- 5. Present the customer with a chat window they can use to interact with a representative.
- 6. Allow the visitor to send an email message, if reached during closed hours.

To achieve the above goals, Bob must create a chat script like the one below. The objects can be entered in any order, as 8x8 Contact Center arranges them in the correct order.

To create a chat script:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to the Chat tab.
- 3. Click or Add new chat script.
- 4. Follow the steps below:

Configure Chat Script Properties

1. Go to the **Properties** tab.

Home Security	Scripts » Ne	w Chat Script » Properti	es		(j)
Security Agent Groups					
Agents Queues/Skills	New Chat Script				
Channels	< Back to script list				
Scripts	Properties S	Script Code			
CRM	Script type	Chat		Assigned channels	
Support Center		AcmeJets Chat		Warning: Please restrict your assignment to 100 channels at a time.	
Outbound	Category	Click to view or edit 🔹			
Setup	Copy script from			Assign new channel(s)	
Campaigns					
Broadcast	Comment				
Integration					
Status Codes					
Transaction Codes		This script is enabled			
Outbound Phone Codes					
Wallboard					
Chat design					

2. Enter the properties for the script.

The following table summarizes the options under **Scripts > Chat > Properties**:

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
Script Type	 Phone: Select a script type: Inbound phone, Post Call Survey, or Outbound phone. Chat and Email: A read-only reminder of the script type. It displays if it is a phone, chat, or email script.
Script Name	Enter a unique name for the script.
Category	A category helps you organize your scripts better. For example, if you have multiple scripts serving Support and Sales needs, you can group scripts under separate categories. You can select an existing category or create a new one. To create a new category: 1. Select Edit Categories from the drop-down menu.
	2. In the Category dialog box, add a new category by clicking
Copy script from	Choose this option to place a copy of the default or an existing IVR script into this channel. This option appears when you are creating a new script.
Comment	Add comments or additional notes, if desired.

Phone/ Chat/Email Script Property	Description
This script is enabled	Select to place this script definition into service.
Assigned Channels /Assigned Queues	 When you select Script Type > Outbound Phone, you must assign one or more new outbound phone queues. When you select Script Type > Post Call Survey or Script Type > Inbound phone, you must assign one or more channels to the script.
	Note: It is not mandatory to assign a channel while creating a script.
	To assign new channels:
	1. Click on the link to bring up the list of channels.
	2. Select the desired channels from the list.
	3. Click Assign .
	Note: All channels in the list are associated with a script whether default or user-defined. If you assign and save a new script, the old script is permanently replaced by the new selected script.
	Note: It is recommended to restrict your assignment to 100 channels at a time.

3. Click Save.

Create the Chat Script

1. Go to the Script tab.

- Click Chat. The [add] option appears. For a complete list of objects and their descriptions, refer to Summary of Chat Script Objects.
- 3. Click [add].
- 4. Select Schedule from the chat objects.

This object performs a particular sequence of script operations when the contact center is open or closed.

- a. Enter a name for the Object Tag.
- b. Select an existing schedule from the list of Select Schedule.
- c. Click OK.
- 5. Click [add] next to Open and then:
 - a. Select Forward to Queue, enter a name for the object tag, select a queue, and click OK.
 This object forwards a chat interaction to a specific chat queue, such as the sales or main queue.
 - b. Select CVB Online, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
 CVB Online refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button, chat invitation, chat form, or chat window, which can be used on your website during the business hours.
 - c. Select Greeting Message and click OK.

This object displays the greeting message to invite customers to the chat session. Append <@skipQueue@> to your message to offer the option to skip queue in the chat window.

d. Select Skip queue, enter the relevant parameters, and click OK.

This object gives customers the option to opt out of waiting in the chat queue and send an email offline. It can only be triggered in the greeting message object.

- 6. For the CVB Online, click [add]:
 - a. Select Online button, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
 - b. Select Invitation, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
 - c. Select **Pre-chat form**, enter a name for the object tag, and click **OK**.
 - d. Select Chat Window, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.
- 7. Click Close, then click [add].
 - a. Click CVB Offline, enter a name for the object tag, and click OK.

This object refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form, that activates on your website during closed hours.

- b. Click add offline button next to CVB Offline, enter a name for the object tag, select a button, and click OK.
- 8. Click Save to save your chat script.

- 9. To edit the details, click any object and select **edit**. An edit window opens up. To view the details, double-click any object. The View details window appears. You can also click **edit** from inside the View details window.
- 10. To undo the changes click Revert.
 - ⊥
- 11. Click the on the script page to generate a PDF image and save it locally. The PDF printout is generated containing the script name, date, and time of print. Supervisors and administrators can review and modify the script as needed.



For details, refer to Summary of Chat Script Objects.



Note: As long as you have all the objects in the script, the sequence does not matter. 8x8 Contact Center arranges the script in the correct order.

Run and Use the Script

- 8x8
 - 1. Go to the Code tab.
 - 2. Select the chat channel from the list.



- 3. Click Generate Code. The code appears in the window.
- 4. Copy and paste the code to a page where you want to insert a chat button on your website.



Note: This script does not interfere with the button layout. It must be included in the same page and within the body section of the web page, preferably just before the ending tag.

5. Click the Chat button you just created. The Chat window opens.



See Chat Overview to learn about Embedded Chat Design.

Summary of chat script objects

The following table summarizes the 8x8 Contact Center chat objects available in the chat scripts and accessible via 8x8 Configuration Manager:

Chat Script Object	Description
Schedule	 Use the Schedule object to perform a particular sequence of script operations when the contact center is either open or closed. Parameters: In the Label text entry area, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the IVR script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. In the Select schedule list, choose a schedule definition.
	 Exit points: The Schedule object uses the Select schedule value to transfer control to the script sequence specified within the following exit points: open equals true if the phone interaction has been received within the selected schedule's open hours. close equals true if the phone interaction has been received outside the selected schedule's open hours. #1 through #6 equal true if the schedule specified in Select Schedule includes an exception
	condition, numbered 1 through 6, and today's date is within the exceptions from and to dates. For details on creating schedules, refer to Define Business Hours and Schedules.
Skip Queue	 Use this object to give the customers the option to opt out of waiting in the chat queue and send an email offline. This option can only be triggered in the greeting message object. In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Email Prompt Msg: The prompt message offered to a customer waiting in the chat queue. It can appear as a link in the chat window (for example, "All our agents are busy helping other customers. Would you like to send us an email?").

Chat Script Object	Description
	 Select form: Select an offline form from the list. An offline form presents an option to send an email message during the chat's offline hours.
	 Send info by: Shows whether you want to send the information you collected in the form using an email channel or a dedicated email.
	 Email channel: Select this option to choose an email channel. The email channel directs the customer's email to the right agent.
	• Plain email: Select a dedicated email to send the customer's email to.
	Email Channel : If you choose to use a Channel, you must select an email channel from the list.
	 Forced email header message: Specifies the Subject line in the email message sent by a customer skipping the chat queue. Exit Point: None
Forward to Queue	Use the Forward to queue object to forward a chat interaction to a specific chat queue, such as the sales or main queue. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script.
	 In the Queue name list, choose the target chat queue to receive the chat. Exit points: None
CVB Online	Chat Visual Block Online refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form which can be used on your website during business hours. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None
CVB Off- line	Chat Visual Block Offline refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form that activ- ates on your website during closed hours. Parameters:
	 In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None

Chat Script Object	Description
CVB Default	 Chat Visual Block Default refers to a chat design element, such as a chat button or chat form available by default from 8x8 Contact Center. Parameters: In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None
Greeting Message	 Use this object to type a greeting message to invite the customers to the chat session. Use (@skipQueue(@) to present the message that is previously set in the skip queue. Parameters: In the Object tag, type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. In the Greeting Message, type the message you like to appear in the chat window. For example: <we an="" be="" click="" email.="" here="" send="" shortly.="" to="" will="" with="" you=""></we> Use auto-translation: This option is selected by default and is used to automatically translate the greeting messages using Google Translate. If this option is disabled, you can bypass the automatic translation, and let the user provide a customized translation instead.
Test Condition of Queue	Use the Test Queue object to check the condition of a queue before entering a queue. Test queue provides a set of conditions which, when met, trigger specified actions. The test queue object gives the IVR designer much more routing and announcement flexibility by allowing them to repeatedly test queue status. Parameters: In the Object tag , type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script. Labels can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. In the Queue name list, choose the phone queue to test the condition. Use the Condition Matched check boxes to determine routing choices based on agent availability or queue performance. To route the chat differently, or to provide the customer with choices when there is no qualified agent available to immediately accept the interaction, select there are no enabled agents waiting .

Chat Script Object	Description							
	 To route the chat differently, or to provide the customer with choices when there is no qualified agent logged in to immediately accept the interaction, select there are no assigned agents logged in. Qualified agents refer to the agent setup to receive interactions from the queue specified in the Queue name list. 							
	 To evaluate the condition of a selected queue, and route the chat based on the test results of that performance, select Enable queue overload tests below. Perform one or all of the following tests: 							
	 Number of chats in queue ahead of this chat: Enter the maximum number of chats that can be ahead of the current chat. 							
	 there is a chat in this queue that has been waiting longer than (seconds): Enter the maximum time that a chat is waiting in the queue. 							
	 the instantaneous expected wait-time calculation exceeds: Enter a time duration in seconds. 							
	Exit points:							
	Test Queue has two exit points:							
	 Condition Matched 							
	Condition not Matched							
	The Test Queue object transfers control to the script sequence specified under the exit points based on the following test results:							
	 There are no enabled agents waiting in the queue. 							
	 There are no assigned agents logged in. 							
	 There are <n> number of chats in the queue ahead of this chat, where <n> is the number specified in the test.</n></n> 							
	 There is a chat waiting longer than the specified time in the queue. 							
	 The instantaneous expected wait time calculation for a chat exceeds the specified time. The expected wait-time calculation is useful only when there are more than 20 qualified agents assigned to the queue and active. Mathematical uncertainty with fewer than 20 active similarly- skilled agents may produce unexpected results. 							
	Some of the many ways the exit points can be used are to trigger another test, provide the customer with							

Chat		

Script Object	Description
	a choice of waiting in a queue when no agent is available, leave a voicemail, or inform the customer of an approximate waiting time, and then forward to queue. For example, if there is a chat in the queue that has waited longer than 120 seconds, you can insert the Play object under the Condition matched exit point to play a message informing the customer of an expected waiting time for the chat to be answered. You can then use the Forward to Queue object to route the call to a queue.
Chat as a Pop-up	Allows the pop-up chat window to appear. The pop-up chat applies to the Pre-Chat Survey and the Chat Window options. Parameters: In the Object tag , type the alphanumeric label used to uniquely identify the element in the script.
	The object tag can contain a maximum of 21 characters, and must be unique within a script. Exit points: None

Using script variables in chat channels

Before initiating a chat interaction in 8x8 Contact Center, customer information such as account numbers or case numbers collected via the pre-chat form, can be used to determine routing of the chat interaction. 8x8 Contact Center administrators can collect customer data, store them into system and user-defined variables, and use values stored in these variables to direct the interaction to the appropriate queue all using 8x8 Configuration Manager. It improves the efficiency of handling chat interactions.

Let's say your company wants to route interactions based on the customer language. Collect the preferred language choice in a variable, and use this data in the IVR to direct them to the appropriate language queue.

Or, let's say your company wants to route interactions based on the department such as Sales or Support, you can collect this information during the pre-chat, and use it to route the interaction to the right queue.

In this topic, we'll demonstrate the usage of script variables in chat channels based on the following use case.

AcmeJets Inc. is a premium jet service company that serves its customers via chat channels. When a customer initiates a chat, AcmeJets collects basic information such as customer name, account number, and the preferred language for chat. AcmeJets serves customers in English and Spanish, and have dedicated queues for each language. They want to direct customers to the appropriate queue based on the language choice. Additionally, the company wants to personalize their conversation for best customer satisfaction.

Assumptions

Let's assume that AcmeJets contact center has:

- Configured a chat channel
- Configured chat queues
- Designed chat elements (chat button, pre-chat form, and chat window)

To support the use case, follow the steps discussed here:

Step 1: Create a new pre-chat form or edit an existing pre-chat form

In this step, we create a new pre-chat form which collects a customer's name, and preferred language for chat. Store the values in a custom variable and a translation variable respectively. Important: For custom variables, note down the variable names to be used in chat scripts.

- 1. Log in to the 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Go to Chat Design > Form.
- 3. Click **+Pre-chat** to begin creating a pre-chat form.

8x8 8x8 Applicat	ions 🗙 🎎	[ryandemo0101] vcc Configuration	× +			_		×
$\leftrightarrow \rightarrow G$		om/CM/cm_frameset.php				🕁 🔒 Incog	nito (3)	٥
8×8				은 Nalini Anan	thamurthy (ryandemo0101)	Co-browsing	Logout	
Home Security Agent Groups	Home » Summ	hary					(Û
Users Queues/Skills	Summary Profile	Audio Files Schedul	es Dial Plans	Agent's Idle Timer				
Queues/Skills Channels	Incoming Channels		Agent Groups					
Scripts	Phone	31	ungroup	29				
	Email	1	QE	1				
	Chat	4						
	Social	0						
Campaigns Broadcast	SMS	0						
Integration	Inbound Queues							
	Phone	7						
	Email	2						
	Chat	6						
Outbound Phone Codes	Voice Mail	2						
Wallboard	Outbound Queues							
Chat design	Phone	29						
Chat design	Phone	29						

- 4. Enter a name and description for the pre-chat form.
- 5. Add your first question to collect customer information.
 - a. Format: Select < Open-ended>.
 - b. Question: Enter the question: <Enter your name>.
 - c. Variable: Note that the variable name is automatically generated. Edit as you want <_name>.

d. Click Add.

8x8			<u> </u>	lalini Ananthamurthy (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	Logout
Home Security Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills	Chat de	sign » Add pre-chat form					
Channels Scripts CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes Outbound Phone Codes Wallboard	Name Survey Format Question Variable	Acme-chat Open ended • Enter your n • Multiple lines answer • Include a separator on the end •	* Description	Pre-chat form to collect customer data		Step :	L > Step 2 🖈
Chat design	M Question	a change the display order of questions inside a form. Variable	No items to show	Format	Can	icel Ne	xt >>

- 6. Add a question to collect the customer's language preference.
 - a. Format: Select <Translation>.
 - b. Question: Enter the question: <Enter your language>
 - c. Select language choices from the list: Select <English> and <Spanish>.
 - d. **Variable**: Note that the system variable (\$language) is automatically populated. You are not allowed to edit the system variable names.

e. Click Add.

8x8				۵ ۸	lalini Ananthamurthy (ryandemo0101)	My Profile	Co-browsing	
Home Security Agent Groups Users Queues/Skills	Chat de	sign » Add pre-chat						0
Queues/Skills Channels Scripts CRM Outbound Setup Campaigns Broadcast Integration Status Codes Transaction Codes	Name Survey Format Question Variable	Acme-chat		* Description	Prechat form to collect customer data		Step 1	1 > Step 2 🌰
Outbound Phone Codes	Drag and drop to M Question	o change the display order of questions insi	ide a form. Variable		Format			
Wallboard	Enter your	name	_name		Open ended		1	3
Chat design	LEGEND: 🛆 - Va	sriable does not begin with dollar sign (5) or	underscore (). Consider updating the	: name to have this data available for n	outing within your chat scripts.	Car	icel Ne	xt >>

- 7. Optionally, add a question to gather either account number or case number. Select the format CRM field.
- Click Next>> to proceed to define the visual design of the pre-chat form. Select the colors and labels. Save your preferences.

Chat design »	› Edit pre-chat form				(
< Back to form list Button Invitatio	on Form Window				
					Step 1 > Step
Label			Preview		
* Window title	Acmelets Help Center			Regulation AcmeJets Help Center	
* Button label	Submit			Enter your name	
Introduction text	Enter introduction text (max. 125 chars)			Enter your language	
Color				T	
* Window background	#CCFFCC * Text	#555555			
* Border	#99CC00				
Logo customization					
Cho	ose Files No file chosen				
The file must be an image a The image will be resized for	and can not exceed 200kB. or the proportion of 100x30 pixels.			Submit	
				powered by 8x8 Inc.	J

Step 2: Create a chat script

In this step, you will define a script that determines the routing of each chat interaction from your customers. When a customer initiates a chat session, they are prompted to submit data through the pre-chat form. Based on this data, they

are then directed to the appropriate queue.

- 1. Go to **Scripts** from the main menu in Configuration Manager.
- 2. Select Chat > Add new chat script.
- 3. In the **Properties** tab, enter a name, category, and comment. Optionally, add the chat channel you wish to apply the script to. Save the properties.

Step 2a: Add a custom variable to the variables list

If you added custom variables in your pre-chat form, you must add them to the variable list here. By default, the View variables lists all system variables. To add a custom variable you have already added in your chat design,

- 1. In the Script tab, click View variables. A list of system variables shows up.
- 2. Click Add new and enter the custom variable name defined in the pre-chat form.

Important: Ensure the custom variable defined in the pre-chat form is added here.

					h <mark>anthamurthy (</mark> rya			
curity ent Groups	Scripts » Chat » Script							0
ers ieues/Skills annels	Acme-Chat < Back to script list							
ripts	Properties Script Code							
M tbound	Script		Save Revert	Cancel		View Vari	iables	4
	⊕- <>> Chat					3		
mpaigns padcast	Cy Deradictermination							
egration								
atus Codes								
insaction des		Variables				×		
tbound one Codes		User variable names must be special characters, except the	egin with underline (_), be alphar e dash (-).	umeric, less than 255	chars and contain no sp	aces or		
allboard		Variable			Data type			
		Slanguage			String	÷.		
		\$caseNumber			String			
		\$accountNumber			String	1.00		
		SemailAddress			String	v		
		Add new						
			OK	Cancel				
			ÖK	Cancer		_		

Step 2b: Begin crafting the script

The chat script will embed a greeting message which includes the customer name. Use a test variable to identify the language choice and direct them to the right queue.

- Add Test variable > Tests if the variable value of language equals Spanish. Tests if a customer selects to chat in Spanish.
 - If True, add Forward to Queue. choose to forward it to the queue serving customers chatting in Spanish language.
 - If **False**, add **Forward to Queue**, choose to direct the interaction to the queue serving customers in English.
- 2. Add a greeting message to the customers. Example: Welcome to AcmeJets. We will be with you shortly.
- 3. Add all the chat visual block elements you have defined.
 - Chat button (Triggers chat interaction)
 - Pre-chat form (Collects information from the customer; Add the newly defined pre-chat form here.)
 - Chat-window (Allows a customer to interact with the agent)

8x8

4. Save the script.



- 5. In the **Code** tab, select the chat channel to apply this script to.
- 6. Click Generate Code. Copy the code and embed in your website which hosts the chat.

Step 3: Verify the chat workflow

1. To verify the chat workflow, simply initiate a chat as a customer.

2. In the pre-chat form presented, enter your name and select the language - English.

💫 Help Center	X
Enter your name	
Robin	
Enter your language	
	Ň
	~
English	
Español	
Submit	
	powered by 8x8 Inc.

- 3. Click Submit.
- 4. Log in as an agent serving customers in English. You should now receive the interaction in English.
- 5. Trigger a second chat interaction as a customer and select Spanish in the pre-chat form and submit.
- 6. Log in as an agent serving customers in Spanish. You should now receive the interaction in Spanish.
- 7. If you received interactions via the correct queues, your setup is correct and complete.

Configure multi-chats

8x8 Contact Center multi-chat allows an agent to handle up to six concurrent chats with customers at any time. There is no limit on the number of concurrent chats among agents. Using the Interactions tab in 8x8 Configuration Manager, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can configure the maximum number of concurrent chats with customers for each agent. They can also enable agent-to-agent chat from within the Interactions tab. There is no limit on the number of agent-toagent chats.

To define maximum number of concurrent chats with customers:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Find an agent and click
- 3. Open the Interactions tab.

Home Security	Agent » Edit Agent » Interactions	(i)	
Agent Groups			
Agents	(Kaoru) Kaoru Minami		
Queues/Skills Channels	< Back to agent list		
Scripts	General Phone Queues Supervisor CRM & Tab permissions Interactions		
CRM Support	* Max # of concurrent chats 1 v		
Center	✓ Enable agent to agent chat		
Outbound Setup	2 3 4 Save Cancel		
Campaigns	5		
Broadcast	v		

- 4. Select Max # of concurrent chats from the list.
- 5. Select Enable agent to agent chat.

It allows this agent to chat with other agents. There is no limit on the number of concurrent chats among agents.

6. Click Save.

Handle multilingual chats

An insurance customer in Rome, Italy initiates a chat with a support representative in New York. Using the automatic translation tool, the agent is able to handle the chat request in English while the customer uses their native Italian. The tool translates chat conversations between customers and agents, giving them the flexibility to communicate in their respective native languages. If this chat is handled by an agent who happens to speak Italian, they can choose to handle the conversation without the aid of the translation tool.

8x8 Contact Center introduces multilingual support for chat. Customers can choose to chat in any of the supported languages. Agents can handle customer chats in any of the supported languages they know or use automatic translation tool. Each 8x8 Contact Center agent is associated with one primary and one or more secondary languages of fluency.

- If the chat request is in one of these languages, agents can chat in the requested language.
- If the chat request is not in their primary or secondary language, agents can use the automatic translation tool.

With Multilingual support for chat:

- Administrators can provide language choice in embedded chat.
- Customers can choose to chat in a language of their choice.
- Agents can handle customer chats in any of the supported languages.

Supported languages

8x8 Contact Center offers chat translation support for:

English, Russian, German, Japanese, Spanish, French, Chinese, Portuguese, Italian, and Polish.

Configure multilingual support for chat

To configure multilingual support for chat, administrators must:

- Configure a pre-chat form in the embedded chat flow.
- Offer language choice for customers in the pre-chat form.
- Include the pre-chat form in the chat script that controls the chat flow.
- Indicate the primary and secondary languages of agents.

Step 1: Configure a pre-chat form to offer language choice.

In your embedded chat flow, you must add a pre-chat form which offers language choice for customers. Using this form, customers select a language to chat in. Follow the steps described here to design a pre-chat form.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Chat Design.
- 2. Click the Form tab.
- 3. Select to edit an existing pre-chat form or create a new one. For details, refer to Design a Chat Form.
- 4. Select **Translation** under **Format**. This offers customers a language choice question. A list of languages supported for chat translation shows up.
- 5. Enter a Question, such as <Select a language you wish to chat in>.
- 6. Select the language choices that you want to offer your customers to chat in. You can choose the language for translation to be **Set as default**.

Home Security	Chat de	sign » Edit pre-chat for	m							(j)
Agent Groups	< Back to form	n list								
Oueues/Skills	Button	Invitation Form Window								
Channels	Button	Invitation Point Window								
Scripts	* Name	AcmeJets Pre-Chat			* Description	Pre-chat forn	n that pops up f	or customers		Step 1 > Step 2
CRM	Survey									
Support Center	Format	Translation	*		Available t	ranslation	Set as default			
Outbound	Question	Which language would you like to chat	in?		English		۲	-		
Setup		Mandatory			🗹 Russian		0			
Campaigns		Include a separator on the end			German		0			
Broadcast					🔽 lananese			*		
Integration				Save	Cancel					
Status Codes						_				
Transaction		o change the display order of questions inside a f								
Codes	M Question		Identifier			Format				
Outbound	 Which lang 	guage would you like to chat in?				Translation				1 1
Phone Codes	* What is yo	ur email address?	what-is-your-em	ail-address		Open ende	d			0 1
Wallboard	 What is yo 	ur account number with us?	what-is-your-acc	ount-number-wit	h-us	Open ende	d			0
Chat design	* Do you wa	nt to discuss a new or existing issue?	do-you-want-to-	discuss-a-new-o	-existing-issue	Single ansv	ver			1
	* What is the	e issue you would like to discuss?	what-is-the-issu	e-you-would-like	to-discuss	Open ende	d			0
									Cancel	Next >>

- 7. Click **Add**. The question is added to the form.
- 8. Add more questions as desired.
- 9. Click Next to define the visual details of the form.
- 10. Add the desired visual requirements, such as window title, background color, or font color.
- 11. Click Save. Your custom pre-chat form is now ready with the chat translation choice.

Step 2: Add or edit the chat script to include pre-chat form.

In this step, make sure the pre-chat form is included in the chat flow, which is controlled by a chat script. You must include a pre-chat form with the language choice in the chat script.

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Scripts.
- 2. Go to the Chat tab.
- 3. Edit or add a chat script. For details, refer to Create a Chat Script.
- 4. Under the CVB Online object, click [add].
- 5. From the menu, select the pre-chat form you just created with the chat translation option.

Home Security	Scripts » Chat » Script						
Agent Groups							
Agents Queues/Skills Channels	Support Chat Script						
Scripts	Properties Script Code						
CRM	Script Save Revert Cancel						
Support Center	i⊖-«> Chat						
Outbound Setup							
Campaigns							
Broadcast Integration							
Status Codes	- Invitation (ChatInvite) Pre-chat form						
Transaction Codes	Pre-chat form [PreChat] [edit copy m Chat window [ChatWindow] Object tag : PreChat PreChat Object tag : PreChat Object tag : Acmejets Pre-Chat						
Outbound Phone Codes	□ Offline button [ButtonOffline] □ ♥ Offline form [ClosedForm]						
Wallboard	- #1 - #2						
Chat design	→ #3 → #4 → #5 → #6 → ≪> DefaultTermination						

6. Save the script.



Note: Your chat script must contain a chat button to initiate chats, a pre-chat form to indicate language choice, a chat window for typing chat messages, and a chat queue to forward the chat requests.

7. Assign this script to the desired chat channel.

Step 3: Define primary and secondary language for agents.

Selecting a primary and one or more secondary languages for agents indicates their ability to chat in these languages. Automatic translation is available to agents based on their primary and secondary languages:

- If the language of the chat request matches the agent's primary language, automatic translation is disabled.
- If the language of the chat request matches the agent's secondary language, automatic translation is available but turned off. The agent can turn it on.
- If the language of the chat request doesn't match the agent's languages, automatic translation is turned on by default.

To indicate languages of fluency for users:

- 1. From the Configuration Menu, open Agents.
- 2. Select to edit an agent.

8x8

- 3. In the General tab, notice two fields:
 - Primary Language: Select a language of primary fluency. This is the default language of chat for users.
 - **Secondary Language**: Select one or more languages of secondary fluency. If a chat request is in any of the secondary languages, they can chat in this language or use the automatic translation tool.
- 4. Save the language settings.

Multilingual chat flow

The multilingual chat flow can be represented as follows:


- 1. A customer visiting a website initiates a chat by clicking the chat button.
- 2. A pre-chat form is presented to the customer to indicate language choice.

Welcome t	o AcmeJets Support			
	We are here to serve you and make your journey smooth. If you have any questions, we have skilled reps waiting to assist you.			
Get started by clicking or	n the chat button.			
Chat now				
	Comparison Image: Comparison To get started, please answer a few questions. Which language would you like to chat in? English What is your email address? What is your account number with us? Do you want to discuss a new or existing issue? Submit			

- 3. The customer fills in the form, selects a language to chat in, and submits the chat request.
- 4. The request enters the chat queue in 8x8 Contact Center and is offered to an agent.

5. On receiving a chat, the control panel indicates the language of choice for the chat.

		Sas	
🛑 Busy			0m:16s
& <u>o</u>	ь M	තී	(j)
	·		
Search			
Identific	ation	Wait	ing ^
CUSTOMER	LIST		
9 15		0m	:13s
Chat Trar	nsaction A	gents	Queues
Transaction		-	
Language:			
Language.	Russian		
Customer:	Russian N/A		A
Customer:	N/A		
Customer: Company:	N/A N/A	ort Chat	
Customer: Company: Subject: Channel	N/A N/A N/A		
Customer: Company: Subject: Channel Name: Channel	N/A N/A N/A AcmeSuppo	rt Chat	
Customer: Company: Subject: Channel Name: Channel Number:	N/A N/A N/A AcmeSuppo AcmeSuppo Support Cha	rt Chat	

6. On accepting the chat, agents can process the chat using their language of fluency, or use the automatic translation tool.

Menu 🔻	Sasha (Sasha)	AcmeJets Support
e Busy	1m:48s	Русский
& 9 .5, E	ත සං ග	Вы говорите с Sasha.
Search		Sasha Здраствуйте, как я могу помочь?
Identification	Waiting ^	
CUSTOMER LIST		
9 15	1m:43s	
		5000 powered by 8x8 Inc.
		powered by over the
Chat Transaction	Agents Queues	



8x8

Note: Automatic translation is available only in the absence of language match or a secondary language match. In case of primary language match, automatic translation is disabled.

	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Transaction Codes	
	FAQ Shortcut	Show original excerpts	
	Your message	,	
		•	
	Auto translate	5000	
Version 9.14	Check Spelling	Send	
		Powered by 8x8	

7. By using the translation tool, messages from the customer are translated to agent's primary language, and vice versa.

Enable Co-browsing via chat

8x8 Contact Center Co-browsing allows customer support agents to assist customers remotely via a shared browser. With Co-browsing, 8x8 Contact Center administrators can empower a website or any browser-based application, and offer live, hands-on assistance to customers. A customer in need of assistance must initiate the remote session, generate a unique session code, communicate it to an agent via phone or chat. The agent then uses the code to establish a remote session. Co-browsing session co-exists with a call or a chat for communicating the session code. Agents and customers can request and or allow co-browsing sessions via chat.

To enable co-browsing for a chat session, administrator must enable this feature in 8x8 Configuration Manager. To enable the co-browsing feature, go to Chat Design > Window and then select Offer the Co-browsing request into the Chat window. Notice that Start Co-browsing session appears in the Chat window. See How to design a chat window.

Enable Co-browsing in 8x8 Configuration Manager

To enable Co-browsing for a chat session, administrator must enable this feature in 8x8 Configuration Manager.

To enable Co-browsing during a chat:

- 1. Log in to 8x8 Configuration Manager.
- 2. Navigate to Chat Design.
- 3. Open Window tab.
- 4. Open an existing Chat window.

Notice that the Start Co-browsing session

icon appears in the chat window.

Home Security	Chat design	» Edit wind	low				(j)
Agent Groups							
Agents	< Back to window list						
Queues/Skills	Button Invitati	ion Form	Window				
Channels							
Scripts	* Name Acme	eJets Support Custor	m		* Description	Chat window for AcmeJets Support	
CRM	Label				Preview		
Support Center		eJets Support			Fleview	AcmeJets Support	
Outbound	Co-browsing						
Setup	🗹 Offer the co-browsi	ing request into the o	chat window			Language	
Campaigns	Color					Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet	
Broadcast	* Window background	#CCFFCC	* Border	#555555			
Integration	* Text	#555555	* Flag	#555555		Lorem ipsum dolor s 🛄 t	
Status Codes	Logo customization					Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet	
Transaction Codes		pose Files No file c				Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet	
Outbound Phone Codes	The file must be an image The image will be resided t						
Wallboard							
Chat design						5000	
						powered by 8x8 Inc.	

6. Click Save.

8x8

When this feature is enabled, both customers and agents can invite the other party to Co-browsing during a chat session. Once the administrator enables Co-browsing for chat, agents can invite customers for Co-browsing during a chat session in 8x8 Agent Console. For details, see our content on Co-browsing in Agent guide.

GLOSSARY

Α

Administrator

The person who uses the Configuration Manager to configure the contact center's resources and behaviors. An Administrator can be the Primary Administrator with unrestricted access to all the configuration objects or a Role Based Administrator with full or partical configuration rights.

Agent

Agents use the Agent Console to view and manage customer interactions. Virtual Contact Center supports Regular agents and Supervisor agents.

Agent Console

Virtual Contact Center's browserbased graphical user interface (GUI) used by Agents to manage customer interactions.

Application Programming Interface (API)

An application programming interface (API) defines the way an external program can request services from another program. See also, Virtual Contact Center Integrations.

Automatic Call Distribution (ACD)

ACD uses the number called and programmable call distribution logic to route incoming telephone calls to agents with the skills necessary to efficiently process the interaction.

Automatic Number Identification (ANI)

ANI identifies the origination number of a call offered to an Agent.

В

Billing Telephone Number (BTN)

For customers with multiple separate telephone numbers, the BTN consolidates those multiple numbers under a single phone number for billing purposes.

С

Call Treatment Choice

Refers to choices within a schedule which allows a time based selection of treatment choices when interactions enter a Virtual Contact Center tenant.

Caller Name (CNAM)

An enhanced Caller ID feature that displays both the number and name

for an incoming voice call. To provide the value-added CNAM service, the carrier uses the originating caller's phone number to locate the caller's name in the carriers' names database, then transmits both the number and name to the CNAM-enabled customer.

Calling Line Identifier (CLI)

The intended display number of the calling party. In some network configurations, the CLI contains the calling party's Billing Telephone Number (BTN) or Charged Party Number (CPN) to be displayed instead.

Channel

Phone, email, or Web chat interactions arrive at a tenant on a channel. Virtual Contact Center uses skills based routing rules to place interaction requests into the appropriate Queue.

Collaborate

See Desktop Sharing.

Computer Telephony Integration (CTI)

CTI allows data associated with an incoming call or chat request to be presented to the responding agent in real-time. Virtual Contact Center CTI typically presents this data as a "screen pop".

Configuration Manager (CM)

The portion of the Virtual Contact Center application used by the contact center's administrator to define and configure the resources and operational behaviors of the center's tenant.

Contact Center

A contact center that enables agents to be located in different geographical locations yet managed as if they were located in the same physical location.

Contact Center Integrations Suite

An optional package containing the CRM API, Screen Pop, Triggers, and Reporting API components.

CRM API

The CRM API component of the Virtual Contact Center Integrations enables third-party processes to access the internal CRM data.

Custom Role

An administrator defined role with custom privileges is called a custom role. Any role other than the system defined Super User role is referred to as the custom role.

Customer Relationship Management (CRM)

The Virtual Contact Center CRM stores the contact center's customer, case, and follow-up data. Numerous third-party CRM products also exist. Two examples of third-party CRM applications are Salesforce and NetSuite.

D

Desktop Sharing

If authorized, an agent can use the Collaborate Desktop Sharing feature to view and control a customer's remote computer for purposes of providing assistance.

Direct Agent Access

In an IVR script, direct agent access permits a caller to reach an agent directly rather than through skills-based routing logic.

Ε

Email Script

A set of instructions that determine and direct the treatment and routing of an incoming email interaction.

G

Group

A group is a collection of agents created for management or reporting purposes. Groups can be functional (for example, Technical Support) or organizational (for example Supervisor Mary's Team). Each agent can be assigned to only one group, and cannot view or access information about other groups or group members.

I

Interactive Chat Response (ICR)

Interactive Chat Response specifies the message sent in response to a new chat interaction.

Interactive Voice Response (IVR)

IVR enables touch tones to guide customer interaction with the contact center. For example, an IVR script could direct a caller to Press 1 to be connected to Sales or Press 2 to be contacted to Support.

Intra Day Scheduler

Refers to the functionality of the tenant that allows creating multiple recurring choices within a day.

IVR Script

A set of instructions that prompts callers to choose options, then uses those choices to determine the optimal routing of an incoming phone interaction. See also, Interactive Voice Response.

0

Outbound Phone Codes

Outbound Phone codes offer a means to set a specific calling line identifier (caller ID) and optional outbound queue for outbound calls from your tenant. Outbound Phone Codes also may be used to track the purpose of an outbound call.

Ρ

Primary Administrator

An adminstrator with unrestricted access to all the configuration objects in the Configuration Manager.

Q

Queue

A queue is an ordered collection of interactions waiting to be served by agents qualified to respond to these interactions. In addition to enabling the call center administrator to customize how incoming interactions are prioritized and routed, queues also ensure that interactions are never lost or discarded.

R

Reporting API

The Reporting API component of the Virtual Contact Center Integrations enables third-party processes to access statistical reporting data, and status information.

Responsible Organization (RespOrg)

The entity that controls and maintains a phone number. Telephone carriers are the most common type of RespOrg. 8x8's provisioning department processes the RespOrg orders required to direct your contact center's phone numbers to your Virtual Contact Center client

Role

A role defines a set of privileges to configure a Virtual Contact Center tenant. A role can be system defined or administrator defined.

Role Based Administrator

An administrator who assumes a role with full or partial configuration rights to the Virtual Contact Center.

Role Based Management

Role Based Management is the functionality of Virtual Contact Center that allows a tenant to distribute the configuration management functionality among multiple roles.

S

Screen Pop

The Screen Pop component of the Virtual Contact Center Integrations enables third-party CRMs to display information in the Agent Desktop. See also, Computer Telephony Integration.

Service Level Agreement (SLA)

A commitment to process some number of interactions within a specific period of time. Service Levels are generally defined as X percent of interactions answered within Y seconds measured over Z minutes. In the Configuration Manager, use a queue's SLA tab to generate an alert whenever interaction processing levels fall below a specified commitment level.

Skill

A qualification that associates a particular queue to an agent.

Skill Levels

For each agent, Virtual Contact Center uses high, medium, and low skill level identifiers to prioritize the distribution of interactions across the pool of available agents.

Status Codes

The Status Codes feature enables agents to supply supplemental information about why they changed their state. Status Codes provide enhanced workforce planning and management. For example, status codes could be created for different categories of breaks such as Break for Lunch, Break for Meeting, and so on.

Super User

The system defined role with unrestricted access to configure all administrative areas of the Configuration Manager. Primary Administrator inherits the Super User role automatically. Multiple administrators can be assigned to the Super User role. Privileges to the Super User role cannot be edited or revoked.

Supervisor

An agent with the supplementary privileges required to create FAQ categories and answers, monitor agent interactions in progress, listen to recordings of previous interactions, and create reports for the agents groups they supervise.

Т

Tenant

Your unique and secure contact center instance running on a 8x8 platform. You use the Configuration Manager to create and configure all aspects of your contact center's resources and operational behaviors, including groups, incoming channels, queues, agents, routing scripts, skills, monitoring, recording, and reporting.

Transaction Code

The Transaction Codes feature enables agents to supply supplemental information about the reason for or outcome of an interaction. Transaction codes provide enhanced metrics or enable the calling line ID on an outbound call to be modified. For example, transaction codes could be created for different categories of sales activities such as Initial Contact, Prospect, Customer Satisfied, and so on.

Triggers

The Triggers component of the Virtual Contact Center Integrations invokes a remote thirdparty process whenever an agent creates, deletes, or edits internal CRM record.

V

Voice over IP (VoIP)

The use of the Internet Protocol (IP) to carry telephone calls.

W

Wallboard

The 8x8 Wallboard for Virtual Contact Center presents real time metrics of your contact center operations allowing supervisors to manage customer demand proactively.

Web Application Programming Interface (WAPI)

Deprecated term for the optional 8x8 Integrations package.

Weekly Schedule

Defines recurring day-of-week/time-of-day treatment choices. These are typically normal business hours. Schedules follow the defined weekly pattern unless superseded by date-specific Special Events.